
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING AGENDA

SEPTEMBER 19, 2024

OTO CONFERENCE ROOM, SUITE 101 

2208 W. CHESTERFIELD BLVD., SPRINGFIELD



 

 

 
Board of Directors Mee�ng Agenda 

September 19, 2024 
12:00 – 1:30 p.m. 

The Board of Directors will convene at the OTO offices. 
The online public viewing of the mee�ng will be available on Facebook: 

htps://www.facebook.com/ozarkstransporta�onorganiza�on 
and the full agenda will be made available on the OTO website: ozarkstransporta�on.org 

 
Call to Order .............................................................................................................................. NOON 
 

I. Administra�on 
 

A. Roll Call 
 

B. Approval of Board of Directors Mee�ng Agenda 
(2 minutes/Lee) 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 

C. Public Comment Period for All Agenda Items ...................................................... Tab 13 
Individuals atending the mee�ng in person and reques�ng to speak are asked to fill out 
a public comment form prior to the mee�ng.  Individuals and organiza�ons have a 
combined 15 minutes which will be divided among those reques�ng to address the 
Board of Directors (not to exceed five minutes per individual).  Individuals atending the 
mee�ng online and would like to comment must submit comments in wri�ng by 5:00 
p.m. on September 18, 2024, to comment@ozarkstransporta�on.org or at 
www.giveusyourinput.com.  These comments will be provided to the Board prior to the 
mee�ng.  Any public comment received since the last mee�ng will be included in the 
agenda packet under Tab 13. 
 

D. Adop�on of the Consent Agenda ..........................................................................Tab 1 
(2 minutes/Lee) 
 

1. July 18, 2024 Minutes 
2. Destruc�on of OTO Records 
3. Financial Statements for FY 2024 Budget Year 
4. FY 2024-2027 TIP Administra�ve Modifica�on 7 
5. Annual Lis�ng of Obligated Projects 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA 

 
E. Execu�ve Director’s Report 

(5 minutes/Fields) 
A review of staff ac�vi�es since the last Board of Directors mee�ng will be given. 

https://www.facebook.com/ozarkstransportationorganization
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/
mailto:comment@ozarkstransportation.org
http://www.giveusyourinput.com/


 
F. MoDOT Update 

(5 minutes/MoDOT) 
A MoDOT staff member will give an update of MoDOT ac�vi�es. 

 
G. Legisla�ve Reports 

(5 minutes/Lee) 
Representa�ves from the OTO area congressional delega�on will have an opportunity to 
give updates on current items of interest. 
 

H. Federal Funds Obliga�on Status Update................................................................Tab 2 
(5 minutes/Thomas) 

  Staff will provide an update on the FY 2024 obliga�on progress. 
 

II. New Business 
 

A. FRA Long Distance Service Study Resolu�on of Support ........................................Tab 3 
(5 minutes/Longpine) 
A resolu�on of support is proposed for passenger rail through the OTO region as 
described in the FRA Long Distance Passenger Rail Study. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE A RESOLUTION OF 
SUPPORT FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE FRA LONG DISTANCE SERVICE STUDY 

 
B. Conges�on Management Process Evalua�on ........................................................Tab 4 

(10 minutes/Faucet) 
The Conges�on Management Subcommitee has developed a dra� document which 
monitors conges�on in the OTO area. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO ACCEPT THE CONGESTION 
MANAGEMENT PROCESS EVALUATION 
 

C. Program Management Plan/5310 .........................................................................Tab 5 
(5 minutes/Knaut) 
Staff will present the recommended updates to the Program Management Plan. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE PROGRAM 
MANAGEMENT PLAN AND ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE OTO TO EXECUTE AND FILE APPLICATIONS WITH THE FEDERAL 
TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

 
D. TAP Project Schedule Extension ............................................................................Tab 6 

(5 minutes/Thomas) 
The Springfield-Greene County Park Board has requested to revise the schedule outlined 
for reasonable progress for the Lost Hill Greenway Bridge project. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION TO APPROVE THE REVISED REASONABLE PROGRESS 
SCHEDULE FOR THE LOST HILL GREENWAY BRIDGE PROJECT 
 



 
E. Trail and Sidewalk Project Funding Recommenda�on ............................................Tab 7 

(5 minutes/Knaut) 
Five applica�ons were submited for trail and sidewalk projects using TAP/CRP funding. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE TAP/CRP FUNDING 
FOR THE FIVE SUBMITTED SIDEWALK AND TRAIL PROJECTS  
 

F. Destination 2045 Amendment Seven ....................................................................Tab 8 
(5 minutes/Longpine) 
Changes are recommended to the Constrained Project List. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT SEVEN TO 
DESTINATION 2045 

 
G. FY 2025-2028 TIP Amendment One .......................................................................Tab 9 

(5 minutes/Longpine) 
Changes are proposed to the FY 2025-2028 Transporta�on Improvement Program. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT ONE TO THE 
FY 2025-2028 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
H. Unfunded Needs List .......................................................................................... Tab 10 

(5 minutes/Fields) 
Staff will present a request for modifica�on to the list. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE MODIFICATION AS 
PRESENTED 

 
I. Legisla�ve Priori�es ........................................................................................... Tab 11 

(10 minutes/Fields) 
OTO Legisla�ve Priori�es for the 2025 Legisla�ve Session are included for review and 
approval. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO ADOPT THE 2025 LEGISLATIVE 
PRIORITIES 

 
J. Nomina�ng Commitee 

(5 minutes/Fields) 
The staff is seeking nomina�ons to serve on the nomina�ng commitee to appoint or 
reappoint OTO officers and members of the Execu�ve Commitee for the calendar year 
2025. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPOINT A NOMINATING 
COMMITTEE 

 
K. Safe Streets and Roads for All Update ................................................................. Tab 12 

(10 minutes/Longpine) 
Staff will provide an update on the Safe Streets and Roads for All Ac�on Planning Grant. 



 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
 

III. Other Business 
 

A. Board of Directors Member Announcements 
(5 minutes/Board of Directors Members) 
Members are encouraged to announce transporta�on events being scheduled that may 
be of interest to OTO Board of Directors members. 

 
B. Transporta�on Issues for Board of Directors Member Review 

(5 minutes/Board of Directors Members) 
Members are encouraged to raise transporta�on issues or concerns that they have for 
future agenda items or later in-depth discussion by the OTO Board of Directors. 

 
C. Ar�cles for Board of Directors Member Informa�on ........................................... Tab 14 

(Ar�cles atached) 
 

IV. Adjourn Mee�ng 
A mo�on is requested to adjourn the mee�ng.  Targeted for 1:30 p.m. 
 
The next Board of Directors regular mee�ng is scheduled for Thursday, November 21, 2024 at 
12:00 p.m. in person. 
 

Atachments 
 
Si usted necesita la ayuda de un traductor, por favor comuníquese con David Knaut al (417) 865-3042, al 
menos 48 horas antes de la reuníon. 

Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who 
require interpreter services (free of charge) should contact David Knaut at (417) 865-3042 at least 24 
hours ahead of the meeting. 

If you need relay services, please call the following numbers:  711 - Nationwide relay service; 1-800-735-
2966 - Missouri TTY service; 1-800-735-0135 - Missouri voice carry-over service. 

OTO fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes and regulations in all 
programs and activities.  For more information or to obtain a Title VI Complaint Form, see 
www.ozarkstransportation.org or call (417) 865-3042. 

 
 
 

http://www.ozarkstransportation.org/


 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.D. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 
 
Items included on the Consent Agenda: 
 

1. July 18, 2024 Minutes 
2. Destruction of OTO Records 
3. Financial Statements for FY 2024 Budget Year 
4. FY 2024-2027 TIP Administrative Modification 7 
5. Annual Listing of Obligated Projects 

 
Any member may request removal of an item from the Consent Agenda at this time.  Any item removed 
from the Consent Agenda will be considered at the end of the Agenda.  Abstentions may be noted for 
any item on the Consent Agenda. 
 
Adoption of the consent agenda will result in approval of all items included.   
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to adopt the Consent Agenda.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to adopt the Consent Agenda with the following changes…” 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.D. 

July 18, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

Attached for Board member review are the minutes from the Board of Directors July 18, 2024 meeting. 
Please review these minutes prior to the meeting and note any changes that need to be made.  The Chair 
will ask during the meeting if any member has any amendments to the attached minutes. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 

“Move to approve the Board of Directors July 18, 2024 meeting minutes” 

OR 

“Move to approve the Board of Directors July 18, 2024 meeting minutes with 
the following corrections…” 



 

 
1 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

JULY 18, 2024 
 

The Board of Directors of the Ozarks Transportation Organization met at its scheduled time of 12:00 p.m. in 
person.  

 
The following members were present: 
 

Jerry Compton, Citizen-at-Large 
Travis Cossey, City of Nixa (a) 
Ben DeClue, City of Ozark (a) 
Eric Franklin, City of Republic 
Derek Lee, City of Springfield 
Rusty MacLachlan, Greene County 
Frank Miller, MoDOT (non-voting) 
Lynn Morris, Christian County 
 

James O’Neal, Springfield Citizen-at-Large 
John Russell, Greene County 
Dan Smith, City of Springfield (a) 
Kelly Turner, City Utilities 
Richard Walker, Springfield Citizen-at-Large 
Brian Weiler, Springfield-Branson Airport (a) 
Wes Young, City of Willard (a) 
 

(a) Denotes alternate given voting privileges as a substitute for voting member not present 
 
The following members were not present: 
 

Chuck Branch, Christian Co Citizen-at-Large 
Cecelie Cochran, FHWA (non-voting) 
Marc Crabtree, City of Battlefield 
Brandon Jenson, City of Springfield 
 

Mark Schenkelberg, FAA (non-voting) 
Martha Smartt, City of Strafford (a) 
Vacant, FTA (non-voting) 
 

Others Present:  Scott Bachman, City of Springfield; Bradley Jackson, Christian County; Tucker Jobes, Senator 
Schmitt’s Office; Nicole Boyd, Dave Faucett, Sara Fields, David Knaut, Natasha Longpine, Debbie Parks, and Jen 
Thomas, Ozarks Transportation Organization. 
 
Chair Lee called the meeting to order at approximately 12:00 p.m. 
 
I. Administration 
 

A. Welcome and Roll Call 
 

By-law Position Member Attendance 
BOD Citizen-at-Large Jerry Compton Present 
Christian County Citizen-at-Large Chuck Branch Absent 
Christian County Elected Official Lynn Morris Present 
City of Battlefield Elected Official Mark Crabtree Absent 
City of Nixa Elected Official Travis Cossey (a) Present 
City of Ozark Elected Official Ben DeClue (a) Present 
City of Republic Elected Official Eric Franklin Present 
City of Springfield Citizen-at-Large Richard Walker Present 
City of Springfield Citizen-at-Large James O’Neal Present 
City of Springfield Council Member Dan Smith (a) Present 



 

 
2 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

City of Springfield Council Member Brandon Jenson Absent 
City of Springfield Council Member Derek Lee Present 
City of Strafford Elected Official Martha Smartt (a) Absent 
City of Willard Elected Official Wes Young (a) Present 
City Utilities Transit Representative Kelly Turner Present 
Greene County Commissioner Rusty MacLachlan Present 
Greene County Commissioner John Russell Present 
Springfield-Branson National Airport Board Member Brian Weiler (a) Present 

       
A quorum was present. 

 
B. Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Travis Cossey moved to approve the July 18, 2024 revised agenda with Item M added.  Lynn Morris 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed.   
 

C. Public Comment Period for All Agenda Items 
The Chair advised there were public comments included in the packet and then asked for comments 
and questions.   
 

D. Adoption of the Consent Agenda 
The Chair stated any member of the Board of Directors could request to remove an item from the 
Consent Agenda to be discussed separately. 
 
Consent Agenda Items: 1.  May 16, 2024 Minutes 
    2.  Destruction of OTO Records 
    3.  Administrative Modification Six to the FY 2024-2027 TIP 
    4.  EV Charger Procurement, Contract Execution, and Resolution 
    5.  Planning Process and Financial Capacity Certifications 
 
Brian Weiler moved to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Jerry Compton seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed. 

                        
E. Executive Director’s Report 

Sara Fields stated the Highway Commission approved the Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program and with it they added a project for $166.5 million for improvements on I-44 from 160 in 
Springfield to 125 in Strafford.  The funding amount for the OTO MPO area matches estimates that 
includes six-lanes for that segment, pavement rebuild, the trail and the underpass, esthetic 
improvements to the bridge, and all four phases of the Highway 13/I-44 interchange.  This 
improvement will help with back-ups on I-44. 
 
The City of Springfield was awarded a $24 million RAISE Grant for their UnGap the Map trail project.   
 
Staff submitted an Active Transportation Grant which asked for engineering funds for around $1 
million for three trails.  It was entitled “Tomorrow’s Trails Connecting the Past” due to the historical 
significance of the Wilson’s Creek National Battlefield, the Trail of Tears, and Route 66.   
 
The Republic MM Grant application that requested rural funding has not been announced.      
 



 

 
3 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

Staff continue to explore opportunities for EV funding.  There is a Railroad Crossing Elimination Grant 
available.  Grant opportunities appear in the OTO newsletter which is sent out around the first of 
each month.  They are also listed on the OTO website.  Staff are available if any jurisdiction has a 
question regarding the grants.   
 
There is an application call for projects out for the Transportation Alternatives Program which is 
sidewalks and trails.  It is due August 1st and there is $3.5 million available.  This will be the last round 
of funding available through the current Federal Transportation Bill which expires in 2026.  OTO will 
be awarding FY 2027 funding due to the time it takes to get a project to construction.   
 
Staff continue to work on the SS4A grant.  A requirement of the SS4A is to adopt a Vision Zero goal.  
A proposal for that goal was presented to the OTO Technical Planning Committee.  The proposal was 
zero fatalities by 2040 and zero serious injuries by 2050.  The Vision Zero goal will be presented to 
the Board of Directors in September or November to consider for adoption.  The City of Springfield is 
also working on a Vision Zero goal.  Any jurisdiction wanting to apply for future implementation 
grants for SS4A will need to adopt that goal, as well. 
 
The MoDOT High Priority Unfunded Needs list includes a project under Southwest Rural for Route 
WW for $1.5 million.  This is the project Greene County Commissioner MacLachlan requested to be 
added for the extension of James River Freeway.  Route WW was a placeholder MoDOT used in their 
system for the study, not necessarily where it would go.   
 
On the Consent Agenda is the EV Charger procurement.  At the last Board of Directors meeting the 
progressive design build for installation was discussed.  Federal Highway has ruled it cannot be a 
progressive design build process.  It will now be a traditional construction bid process.  The goal is to 
have obligation by September 30th.   
 
The Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission will be in Springfield on September 5th.  A 
schedule has not been released.  In the past it has been in the morning and usually at the DoubleTree 
Conference Center in north Springfield.  There will be a community presentation for a collaborative 
approach.  If any member would like to be included or have items they would like included, let staff 
know.   

 
F. MoDOT Update 

Frank Miller shared the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission has adopted the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program.  Staff are working on how to structure the I-44 
project and hopefully reduce traffic impacts.  It is possible a part of the construction will start this 
fall.  A few of the projects on the Unfunded Needs list were funded.  The Unfunded Needs list has 
become an important document to help identify projects for study and funding.   
 

G. Legislative Reports 
Tucker Jobes with Senator Schmitt’s Office reported the Senator introduced the Table Rock Lake 
Property Protection Act.  Some property owners around the lake have lease agreements with the 
Army Corps of Engineers to have septic systems.  The Corps advised these property owners to 
remove the septic systems on Corps property by the year 2030.  The bill filed by the Senator would 
require the Corps to honor the existing agreements.   
 



 

 
4 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

The Senator also introduced the Separation of Powers Restoration Act of 2024.  The Supreme Court 
struck down the Chevron doctrine.  This bill modifies the scope of judicial review of agency actions to 
authorize courts reviewing agency actions to decide de novo, without giving deference to the 
agency’s interpretation.  It would be an even playing field.  Each side argues their side and the court 
decides which has the best argument.   
 
There will probably be a Continuing Resolution for the budget to extend the funding deadline.   
 

H. Federal Obligation Status Update 
Jen Thomas stated another obligation had come through since the agenda had been sent out.  The 
obligations are at approximately 30% of the 110% mandate.  There is another $1.5 million that is 
pending with Federal Highway.  After the $1.5 million is obligated, the obligations will be at 
approximately 42% of the 110%. 
 

II.  New Business 
 

A.   FY 2025 Operational Budget Amendment One 
Debbie Parks presented the Operational Budget Amendment for FY 2025. 
 
This was informational only.  No action was required.  
 

B.   Trail Planning and Design Engineering Services Consultant Selection & Contract Authority 
Jen Thomas shared the authorization to enter into negotiations with engineering services consultants 
for trail planning and design engineering services consultant selection. 
 
Wes Young made a motion to authorize the Executive Director to enter into negotiations with 
engineering services consultants and execute the contracts for consultant services not to exceed the 
awarded amounts as outlined in the 2024 CRP awards.  Ben DeClue seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed.    

 
C.    Resolution to Approve Line of Credit 

Debbie Parks reviewed the resolution authorizing a line of credit. 
 
Travis Cossey made a motion to approve a resolution to allow the OTO to renew the business line of 
credit in the amount of $350,000 as needed to cover budgeted expenses associated with the EV 
charger installation project or other federally funded projects.  Jim O’Neal seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed. 
 

D.   Strategic Action Plan 
Sara Fields presented the proposed Strategic Action Plan. 
 
Ben DeClue made a motion to approve the Strategic Action Plan.  Jerry Compton seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed. 
 

E.    FTA Section 5310 Designated Recipient 
Sara Fields shared the agreed to Memorandum of Understanding for FTA 5310 – Elderly and Disabled 
funding. 
 



 

 
5 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

Jim O’Neal made a motion to approve a resolution to request the Governor of Missouri designate 
OTO and City Utilities transit as the designated recipients for FTA Section 5310 and to approve the 
proposed Memorandum of Understanding between OTO and CU Transit for the designated 
recipients of FTA 5310 Funding.  Rusty MacLachlan seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

  F.    TAP Project Schedule Extensions 
Jen Thomas reviewed the requests to revise the schedules outlined for reasonable progress of the 
Garrison Springs Trail project and Grand Street Trail project. 
 
Dan Smith made a motion to approve the revised reasonable progress schedules for the Garrison 
Springs and Grand Street Trail projects.  Lynn Morris seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

G. Destination 2045 Amendments Four, Five, and Six 
Natasha Longpine highlighted the changes to the Constrained Project List as well as the Major 
Thoroughfare Plan of Destination 2045. 
 

• Amendment Four 
o Updated - moved from Unconstrained to Constrained: 

- 173 Route 125/OO Intersection Improvements 
- 174 Route OO Capacity Improvements 

o Estimate Updates 
- 5 – I-44 Capacity Improvements from Kansas Expressway to 

Glenstone Avenue > updated Time Band to 2025 and cost to 
$51,716,260 

- 126 – Kansas Expressway Capital Improvements Phases I, II, and III 
from Norton Road to Kearney, including I-44 interchange > updated 
cost to $57,224,000 
 

• Amendment Five 
o Major Thoroughfare Plan for Springfield/Greene County 

- Haseltine/Farm Road 115 and Chestnut Expressway – a portion of 
the proposed principal arterial was removed, the roadway realigned 
with existing access, and the functional classification changed to 
collector.   

-  
• Amendment Six  

o Major Thoroughfare Plan for Ozark 
- Jackson and Selmore along 17th Street in Ozark from principal 

arterial to secondary arterial for the entire corridor.   
 
Ben DeClue made a motion to approve Destination 2045 Amendments Four, Five, and Six with Five 
and Six pending adoption by their relevant jurisdictions.  Richard Walker seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed. 
 

H. Draft FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program 
Natasha Longpine reviewed the Draft FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 
 



 

 
6 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

Kelly Turner made a motion to approve the FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program.  
Dan Smith seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

I. Draft FY 2026-2030 STIP Prioritization Criteria 
Sara Fields presented the proposed criteria to be used for prioritizing projects ahead of the 2026-
2030 STIP project selection process. 
 
Wes Young made a motion to approve the STIP Project Prioritization Criteria as presented.  Jerry 
Compton seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

J. FY 2026-2030 Draft STIP Prioritization Project List 
Sara Fields reviewed the list of projects proposed for prioritization ahead of the 2026-2030 STIP 
project prioritization process.   
 
Commissioner MacLachlan mentioned there was discussion at the Planning and Zoning meeting 
regarding East Sunshine/D Highway, due to some development, of when it might become five lanes.   
 
Capacity improvements to D Highway will be added to the Draft STIP list.   
 
The Board of Directors were asked to review the project list. 
 

K. I-44 Cost Apportionment 
Sara Fields shared the funding agreement and resolution for I-44. 
 
Dan Smith made a motion to approve the included resolution to authorize the Executive Director to 
execute the cost apportionment agreement for I-44 with MoDOT, Greene County, and the City of 
Springfield.  Wes Young seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

L. Federal Discretionary Grant Support 
Debbie Parks presented the resolutions of support and certifications to add to the Transportation 
Improvement Program for Federal discretionary grant applications. 
 
Lynn Morris made a motion to approve the resolutions and TIP certifications as provided.  Ben 
DeClue seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

M. Authorization of Concurrence with I-44 Funding 
Sara Fields reviewed the approval to concur with the new funding for I-44. 
 
Richard Walker made a motion to approve the new funding for I-44.  Jim O’Neal seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed.      
 

III. Other Business 
 

A. Board of Directors Member Announcements 
There were no member announcements. 
 

B. Transportation Issues for Board of Directors Member Review 
There were no transportation issues for member review. 



 

 
7 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2024 

 

 
C. Articles for Board of Directors Member Information 

Chair Lee noted there were articles of interest included in the packet for the members to review. 
 

IV. Adjourn meeting 
Rusty MacLachlan made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Jerry Compton seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Martha Smartt 
OTO Secretary 
 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.D. 
 

Destruction of OTO Records 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
Attached for Board member review are the listing of documents that have met retention per The 
Ozarks Transportation Organization’s Sunshine Law and Records Retention Policy. The policy states 
that OTO complies with the State of Missouri General Record Retention Schedule as referenced 
below. The use of federal funds requires the keeping of records for 3 years after the final grant 
submittal.  The items listed will be destroyed in paper and electronic form.  A listing of these 
documents is attached. 

 
 
A Note about Retention Periods 
This schedule provides minimum retentions. Local authorities may choose to keep a particular series 
or record for a longer period of time. It should be kept in mind, however, that a record kept beyond its 
listed retention must be made available for inspection upon request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
This item is included for informational purposes only, no action is required.  



Destruction of OTO Records 

 
 
State of Missouri General Records Retention Schedule – Codes that apply to disposal of financial 
records: 

 

 

 

 



Destruction of OTO Records 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Documents for Complete Destruction  

FY 2013 – July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013 (Keep until July 31, 2016) 

• July 2012 - June 2013 Great Southern bank account deposit receipts 



Destruction of OTO Records 

 
 

• July 2012 - May 2013 MoDOT Submittals (June Final submittal kept for permanent file) 
• July 2012 - June 2013 check run, accounts payable invoices and copies of checks 
• July 2012 - June 2013 A+ Payroll Reports 
• 2012 & 2013 Membership Dues invoices 
• 2012 In-Kind documentation 
• 2004 W-4 Debbie Parks  
• 2010 Payroll Expenses 
• 2009 Membership Dues  

 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.D. 

Financial Statements for the FY 2024 Budget Year 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

Included for consideration are the financial statements for the FY 2024 Budget Year.  This period 
includes July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024.  The agenda packet is divided into several budget financial 
statements:  OTO Combined Financial Statements, Operations, UPWP, Chadwick Flyer Trail Phase III 
Project (CRRSAA), and Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Financial Statements.  The OTO made a 
change to its accounting basis for FY 2024. The OTO moved the financial statements from a modified 
cash basis to a modified accrual basis.   

Section One – Combined Financial Statements 

• Statement of Financial Position
o The Current Assets were $617,377 on June 30, 2024.  The current assets include

Revenue Receivables in the amount of $96,525.

• The Operating Fund Balance Report shows the OTO had a fund balance of $500,740 at the end
of June.  This balance is within the 6-month range set for expenses.  The report shows the
available bank balances as of June 30, 2024.

• Statement of Financial Income and Expense
This report shows all income and revenue for all sources broken out by project type.  The total
OTO revenue from all sources was $2,522,313.  The total OTO expenditures for all projects and
operations were $2,595,721.

Section Two – Operations Financial Statements 

• Profit and Loss Statement
During this period, expenses exceeded revenue in the amount of $93,745 during the fiscal year.

• Budget vs. Actual
The OTO budgeted expenses in the amount of $1,516,214 for the budget year.  Actual expenses
at the end of FY 2024 are $1,101,712.  This is 72.7% of budgeted expenses.

Section Three – OTO UPWP Financial Statements 

• UPWP Profit and Loss Statement, Budget vs. Actual
The UPWP Financial statements include the amount of in-kind and MoDOT direct cost the OTO is
utilizing as budgeted in the UPWP Budget.  The in-kind and MoDOT direct-cost revenue and
expense are shown in the UPWP financial statements. The OTO UPWP expenses are 71.4% of



the budgeted $1,597,423.  The UPWP expense reports exclude OTO operational expenses that 
are not eligible for federal reimbursement. 
 
The OTO utilized $44,373 of in-Kind match income during FY 2024.  Staff would like to thank all 
member jurisdictions and MoDOT for helping to achieve the in-kind match.   
 

• Unified Planning Work Program Progress Report – FY 2024 
This is the report that outlines the tasks and budget percentage completed in comparison to the 
OTO’s Unified Planning Work Program (the OTO’s grant budget). 
 

Section Four – Chadwick Flyer Trail Phase III (CRRSAA) Project 
 

• Profit and Loss Statement 
During this period, revenue exceeded expenses in the amount of $48,081.   
 

• Budget vs. Actual  
The OTO budgeted expenses in the amount of $1,302,040 for the budget year.  Actual expenses 
at the end of FY 2024 are $1,310,919.  This was a multiyear project with an overlap in invoices.   
 

Section Five – Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Project 
 

• Profit and Loss Statement 
During this period, expenses exceeded revenue in the amount of $27,743.  The OTO did not 
collect the SS4A Local Match until FY 2025. 
 

• Budget vs. Actual  
The OTO budgeted expenses in the amount of $286,000 for the budget year.  Actual expenses at 
the end of FY 2024 are $138,715.  The project began in FY 2024 and will be completed in FY 
2025.   

 
  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to accept the Financial Statements for the FY 2024 Budget Year.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to return to staff the Financial Statements for the FY 2024 Budget Year in order to…” 
 

 



 
 

 
OTO Combined 

Financial Statements 
Includes Statement of Financial Position, Fund Balance Report, and 

Statement of Financial Income and Expense covering all revenue and 
operating and project expense. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Jun 30, 24 Jun 30, 23 $ Change % Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Arvest Bank Operational Checkin 282,166.37 327,567.52 -45,401.15 -13.9%
Arvest Bank Special Projects 16,176.40 113,743.64 -97,567.24 -85.8%
Arvest COD 378366 101,198.64 0.00 101,198.64 100.0%
Arvest COD 378368 101,198.64 0.00 101,198.64 100.0%

Total Checking/Savings 500,740.05 441,311.16 59,428.89 13.5%

Accounts Receivable
Revenue Receivable 96,525.70 0.00 96,525.70 100.0%

Total Accounts Receivable 96,525.70 0.00 96,525.70 100.0%

Other Current Assets
Prepaid Insurance 10,439.00 0.00 10,439.00 100.0%
Prepaid Other Expense 9,672.33 0.00 9,672.33 100.0%

Total Other Current Assets 20,111.33 0.00 20,111.33 100.0%

Total Current Assets 617,377.08 441,311.16 176,065.92 39.9%

TOTAL ASSETS 617,377.08 441,311.16 176,065.92 39.9%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 8,421.00 0.00 8,421.00 100.0%

Credit Cards 9,504.53 5,446.65 4,057.88 74.5%

Other Current Liabilities 3,165.77 -152.96 3,318.73 2,169.7%

Total Current Liabilities 21,091.30 5,293.69 15,797.61 298.4%

Total Liabilities 21,091.30 5,293.69 15,797.61 298.4%

Equity 596,285.78 436,017.47 160,268.31 36.8%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 617,377.08 441,311.16 176,065.92 39.9%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Statement of Financial Position

As of June 30, 2024

Page 1



Monthly Ending Balance

Date
Arvest 

Operational 
Arvest

Special Projects
Arvest CD #1 Arvest CD #2 Total Balance

7/31/2023 $511,976.46 $406,897.66 $918,874.12
8/31/2023 $434,067.60 $147,430.16 $581,497.76
9/30/2023 $771,849.56 $119,951.56 $891,801.12

10/31/2023 $702,845.34 $575,552.39 $1,278,397.73
11/30/2023 $402,443.63 $288,102.94 $690,546.57
12/31/2023 $323,352.78 $227,131.95 $550,484.73
1/31/2024 $409,289.72 $118,181.50 $527,471.22
2/28/2024 $282,156.91 $15,934.60 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $498,091.51
3/31/2024 $272,589.09 $16,210.66 $100,301.51 $100,301.51 $489,402.77
4/30/2024 $331,714.60 $16,183.47 $100,599.66 $100,599.66 $549,097.39
5/31/2024 $317,497.92 $16,179.83 $100,898.71 $100,898.71 $535,475.17
6/30/2024 $304,114.37 $16,176.40 $101,198.64 $101,198.64 $522,688.05

Balance After Liabilities

Arvest Operational Bank 
Balances 6/30/2024 $304,114.37

Arvest Special Project 
Balances 6/30/2024 $16,176.40

Arvest Certificate of Deposit 
Balances 6/30/2024 $202,397.28

Outstanding Checking 
Withdrawals ($21,948.00)

Outstanding Checking 
Withdrawals $0.00

Outstanding Checking 
Withdrawals $0.00

Other Outstanding Liabilities $0.00 Other Outstanding Liabilities $0.00 Other Outstanding Liabilities $0.00

Total Equity 4/31/2024 $282,166.37 Total Equity 4/31/2024 $16,176.40 Total Equity 4/31/2024 $202,397.28

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operating Fund Balance Report

FY 2024

Operational Fund Balance:  $500,740.05

OPERATIONAL FUND

Operational Fund Balance Target:  $398,605 (3 months) - $797,211 (6 months)

SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND INVESTMENTS



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In-Kind Match Expense

Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries 0.00 15,108.38 0.00 0.00 15,108.38

Member Attendance at Meetings 0.00 29,265.49 0.00 0.00 29,265.49

Total In-Kind Match Expense 0.00 44,373.87 0.00 0.00 44,373.87

Information Technology

Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00

GIS Licenses 360.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 360.00

IT Maintenance Contract 13,820.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,820.40

Software 1,859.52 0.00 0.00 114.95 1,974.47

Webhosting 9,221.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,221.38

Total Information Technology 27,461.30 0.00 0.00 114.95 27,576.25

100 OTO Operations 200 UPWP 600 CRRSAA 650 SS4A TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Other Types of Income

In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 0.00 31,823.21 0.00 0.00 31,823.21

Interest Income 12,635.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,635.97

Miscellaneous Revenue 49.17 0.00 84.71 0.00 133.88

Total Other Types of Income 12,685.14 31,823.21 84.71 0.00 44,593.06

OTO Revenue

Chadwick Flyer Match Funds 0.00 0.00 293,193.10 0.00 293,193.10

Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 787,376.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 787,376.82

CRRSAA Funds 0.00 0.00 863,750.00 0.00 863,750.00

In Kind Match, Meeting Attend 0.00 12,550.66 0.00 0.00 12,550.66

Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 100,121.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,121.28

Safe Streets for All FHWA Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 110,972.42 110,972.42

STBG - Chadwick Flyer Phase III 0.00 0.00 201,973.01 0.00 201,973.01

Surface Trans Block Grant 107,783.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,783.16

Total OTO Revenue 995,281.26 12,550.66 1,358,916.11 110,972.42 2,477,720.45

Total Income 1,007,966.40 44,373.87 1,359,000.82 110,972.42 2,522,313.51

Gross Profit 1,007,966.40 44,373.87 1,359,000.82 110,972.42 2,522,313.51

Expense

Bank Fees

Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 2,258.89 0.00 2,258.89

Bank Fees - Other 154.86 0.00 300.00 0.00 454.86

Total Bank Fees 154.86 0.00 2,558.89 0.00 2,713.75

Building

Building Lease 54,060.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 54,060.00

Common Area Main Exp 19,903.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,903.92

Maintenance 236.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 236.16

Office Cleaning 4,706.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,706.72

Utilities 3,089.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,089.87

Total Building 81,996.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 81,996.67

Commodities

Office Supplies/Furniture 2,927.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,927.83

OTO Promotional Items 1,373.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,373.15

Public Input Promotional Items 34.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.65

Public Involvement Advertising 1,045.15 0.00 0.00 562.83 1,607.98

Publications 535.29 0.00 0.00 634.90 1,170.19

Total Commodities 5,916.07 0.00 0.00 1,197.73 7,113.80

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Statement of Financial Income and Expense

July 2023 through June 2024



 

 100 OTO Operations 200 UPWP 600 CRRSAA 650 SS4A TOTAL

Insurance

Directors & Officers 3,457.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,457.00

Errors & Omissions 4,536.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,536.00

General Liability/Property 4,590.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,590.00

Network Defender 2,820.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,820.00

Workers Compensation 937.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 937.00

Insurance - Other 0.00 0.00 323.40 0.00 323.40

Total Insurance 16,340.00 0.00 323.40 0.00 16,663.40

Operating

Dues/Memberships 7,985.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,985.71

Education/Training/Travel 24,083.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,083.61

Food/Meeting Expense 8,782.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,782.99

Legal/Bid Notices 341.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 341.20

Postage/Postal Services 596.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 596.25

Printing/Mapping Services 1,343.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,343.00

Staff Mileage Reimbursement 3,231.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,231.66

Telephone/Internet 6,915.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,915.15

Total Operating 53,279.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 53,279.57

Personnel

Mobile Data Plans 1,589.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,589.43

Payroll Services 3,168.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,168.08

Salaries and Fringe 810,444.11 0.00 0.00 40,694.89 851,139.00

Total Personnel 815,201.62 0.00 0.00 40,694.89 855,896.51

Services

Legislative Education 7,421.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,421.25

Professional Services (Legal & 35,432.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,432.50

TIP Tool Maintenance 16,791.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,791.00

Trail Construction 0.00 0.00 1,308,037.26 0.00 1,308,037.26

Trans Consult/Model Services 30,517.52 0.00 0.00 96,708.00 127,225.52

Travel Demand Model Update 11,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,200.00

Total Services 101,362.27 0.00 1,308,037.26 96,708.00 1,506,107.53

Total Expense 1,101,712.36 44,373.87 1,310,919.55 138,715.57 2,595,721.35

Net Ordinary Income -93,745.96 0.00 48,081.27 -27,743.15 -73,407.84
Net Income -93,745.96 0.00 48,081.27 -27,743.15 -73,407.84



 
 

 
Operational  

Financial Reports 
Excludes the special project grant budgets and in-kind. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Jul '23 - Jun 24

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
Interest Income 12,635.97
Miscellaneous Revenue 49.17

Total Other Types of Income 12,685.14

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 787,376.82
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 100,121.28
Surface Trans Block Grant 107,783.16

Total OTO Revenue 995,281.26

Total Income 1,007,966.40

Gross Profit 1,007,966.40

Expense
Bank Fees 154.86

Building
Building Lease 54,060.00
Common Area Main Exp 19,903.92
Maintenance 236.16
Office Cleaning 4,706.72
Utilities 3,089.87

Total Building 81,996.67

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 2,927.83
OTO Promotional Items 1,373.15
Public Input Promotional Items 34.65
Public Involvement Advertising 1,045.15
Publications 535.29

Total Commodities 5,916.07

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 2,200.00
GIS Licenses 360.00
IT Maintenance Contract 13,820.40
Software 1,859.52
Webhosting 9,221.38

Total Information Technology 27,461.30

Insurance
Directors & Officers 3,457.00
Errors & Omissions 4,536.00
General Liability/Property 4,590.00
Network Defender 2,820.00
Workers Compensation 937.00

Total Insurance 16,340.00

Operating
Dues/Memberships 7,985.71
Education/Training/Travel 24,083.61

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operations Profit & Loss

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Jul '23 - Jun 24

Food/Meeting Expense 8,782.99
Legal/Bid Notices 341.20
Postage/Postal Services 596.25
Printing/Mapping Services 1,343.00
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 3,231.66
Telephone/Internet 6,915.15

Total Operating 53,279.57

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 1,589.43
Payroll Services 3,168.08
Salaries and Fringe 810,444.11

Total Personnel 815,201.62

Services
Legislative Education 7,421.25
Professional Services (Legal & 35,432.50
TIP Tool Maintenance 16,791.00
Trans Consult/Model Services 30,517.52
Travel Demand Model Update 11,200.00

Total Services 101,362.27

Total Expense 1,101,712.36

Net Ordinary Income -93,745.96

Net Income -93,745.96

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operations Profit & Loss

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 2



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
Interest Income 12,635.97 6,000.00 6,635.97 210.6%
Miscellaneous Revenue 49.17 400.00 -350.83 12.3%

Total Other Types of Income 12,685.14 6,400.00 6,285.14 198.2%

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 787,376.82 1,037,729.00 -250,352.18 75.9%
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 100,121.28 162,954.00 -62,832.72 61.4%
Local Jurisdiction Study Fees 0.00 24,800.00 -24,800.00 0.0%
Surface Trans Block Grant 107,783.16 243,101.00 -135,317.84 44.3%

Total OTO Revenue 995,281.26 1,468,584.00 -473,302.74 67.8%

Total Income 1,007,966.40 1,474,984.00 -467,017.60 68.3%

Gross Profit 1,007,966.40 1,474,984.00 -467,017.60 68.3%

Expense
Bank Fees 154.86 500.00 -345.14 31.0%

Building
Building Lease 54,060.00 54,060.00 0.00 100.0%
Common Area Main Exp 19,903.92 22,635.00 -2,731.08 87.9%
Maintenance 236.16 2,000.00 -1,763.84 11.8%
Office Cleaning 4,706.72 4,500.00 206.72 104.6%
Utilities 3,089.87 3,200.00 -110.13 96.6%

Total Building 81,996.67 86,395.00 -4,398.33 94.9%

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 2,927.83 7,500.00 -4,572.17 39.0%
OTO Media/Advertising 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
OTO Promotional Items 1,373.15 4,000.00 -2,626.85 34.3%
Public Input Promotional Items 34.65 5,500.00 -5,465.35 0.6%
Public Involvement Advertising 1,045.15
Publications 535.29 1,000.00 -464.71 53.5%

Total Commodities 5,916.07 20,500.00 -14,583.93 28.9%

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 2,200.00 8,500.00 -6,300.00 25.9%
GIS Licenses 360.00 7,000.00 -6,640.00 5.1%
IT Maintenance Contract 13,820.40 13,000.00 820.40 106.3%
Software 1,859.52 7,000.00 -5,140.48 26.6%
Webhosting 9,221.38 3,000.00 6,221.38 307.4%

Total Information Technology 27,461.30 38,500.00 -11,038.70 71.3%

Insurance
Automobile Insurance 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Directors & Officers 3,457.00 2,600.00 857.00 133.0%
Errors & Omissions 4,536.00 3,300.00 1,236.00 137.5%
General Liability/Property 4,590.00 3,000.00 1,590.00 153.0%
Network Defender 2,820.00 290.00 2,530.00 972.4%
Workers Compensation 937.00 2,500.00 -1,563.00 37.5%

Total Insurance 16,340.00 13,690.00 2,650.00 119.4%

Operating
Dues/Memberships 7,985.71 9,500.00 -1,514.29 84.1%
Education/Training/Travel 24,083.61 28,000.00 -3,916.39 86.0%

Food/Meeting Expense 8,782.99 8,500.00 282.99 103.3%
Legal/Bid Notices 341.20 1,500.00 -1,158.80 22.7%
Postage/Postal Services 596.25 200.00 396.25 298.1%
Printing/Mapping Services 1,343.00 3,500.00 -2,157.00 38.4%
Public Input Event Registration 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0%
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 3,231.66 3,500.00 -268.34 92.3%
Telephone/Internet 6,915.15 7,000.00 -84.85 98.8%
Vehicle 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%
Vehicle Maintenance/Fuel 0.00 2,400.00 -2,400.00 0.0%

Total Operating 53,279.57 99,300.00 -46,020.43 53.7%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operations  Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 1,589.43 3,120.00 -1,530.57 50.9%
Payroll Services 3,168.08 4,000.00 -831.92 79.2%
Salaries and Fringe 810,444.11 868,025.00 -57,580.89 93.4%

Total Personnel 815,201.62 875,145.00 -59,943.38 93.2%

Services
Data Acquisition 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
Legislative Education 7,421.25 9,000.00 -1,578.75 82.5%
Professional Services (Legal & 35,432.50 75,000.00 -39,567.50 47.2%
Rideshare 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
TIP Tool Maintenance 16,791.00 15,684.00 1,107.00 107.1%
Trans Consult/Model Services 30,517.52 240,000.00 -209,482.48 12.7%
Travel Demand Model Update 11,200.00 12,000.00 -800.00 93.3%
Travel Sensing & Time Serv Proj 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Total Services 101,362.27 382,184.00 -280,821.73 26.5%

Total Expense 1,101,712.36 1,516,214.00 -414,501.64 72.7%

Net Ordinary Income -93,745.96 -41,230.00 -52,515.96 227.4%

Net Income -93,745.96 -41,230.00 -52,515.96 227.4%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operations  Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 2



 
 

 
Unified Planning  

Work Program (UPWP) 
Financial Reports 

OTO UPWP Grant Expenses are included in the OTO Operational 
Budget, but this report includes the In-Kind and grant only expenses 

to match the UPWP (OTO Consolidated Planning Grant) Budget. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Jul '23 - Jun 24

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 31,823.21
Interest Income 341.78

Total Other Types of Income 32,164.99

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 787,376.82
In Kind Match, Meeting Attend 12,550.66
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 100,121.28
Surface Trans Block Grant 107,783.16

Total OTO Revenue 1,007,831.92

Total Income 1,039,996.91

Gross Profit 1,039,996.91

Expense
Building

Building Lease 54,060.00
Common Area Main Exp 19,903.92
Maintenance 236.16
Office Cleaning 4,706.72
Utilities 3,089.87

Total Building 81,996.67

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 2,926.21
Public Input Promotional Items 34.65
Publications 535.29

Total Commodities 3,496.15

In-Kind Match Expense
Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries 15,108.38
Member Attendance at Meetings 29,265.49

Total In-Kind Match Expense 44,373.87

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 2,200.00
GIS Licenses 6,572.00
IT Maintenance Contract 13,820.40
Software 3,829.44
Webhosting 9,221.38

Total Information Technology 35,643.22

Insurance
Directors & Officers 3,457.00
Errors & Omissions 10,231.00
General Liability/Property 9,334.00
Network Defender 2,820.00
Workers Compensation 937.00

Total Insurance 26,779.00

Operating
Dues/Memberships 7,473.49
Education/Training/Travel 23,238.44

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss
July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Jul '23 - Jun 24

Food/Meeting Expense 7,340.46
Legal/Bid Notices 341.20
Postage/Postal Services 477.45
Printing/Mapping Services 865.05
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 3,231.66
Telephone/Internet 6,915.15

Total Operating 49,882.90

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 1,589.43
Payroll Services 3,168.08
Salaries and Fringe 810,443.29

Total Personnel 815,200.80

Services
Professional Services (Legal & 24,932.50
TIP Tool Maintenance 16,791.00
Trans Consult/Model Services 30,517.52
Travel Demand Model Update 11,200.00

Total Services 83,441.02

Total Expense 1,140,813.63

Net Ordinary Income -100,816.72

Net Income -100,816.72

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss
July 2023 through June 2024

Page 2



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 31,823.21 133,670.00 -101,846.79 23.8%
Interest Income 341.78 0.00 341.78 100.0%

Total Other Types of Income 32,164.99 133,670.00 -101,505.01 24.1%

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 787,376.82 1,037,729.00 -250,352.18 75.9%
In Kind Match, Meeting Attend 12,550.66 0.00 12,550.66 100.0%
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 100,121.28 162,954.00 -62,832.72 61.4%
Local Jurisdiction Study Fees 0.00 19,969.00 -19,969.00 0.0%
Surface Trans Block Grant 107,783.16 243,101.00 -135,317.84 44.3%

Total OTO Revenue 1,007,831.92 1,463,753.00 -455,921.08 68.9%

Total Income 1,039,996.91 1,597,423.00 -557,426.09 65.1%

Gross Profit 1,039,996.91 1,597,423.00 -557,426.09 65.1%

Expense
Building

Building Lease 54,060.00 54,060.00 0.00 100.0%
Common Area Main Exp 19,903.92 22,635.00 -2,731.08 87.9%
Maintenance 236.16 2,000.00 -1,763.84 11.8%
Office Cleaning 4,706.72 4,500.00 206.72 104.6%
Utilities 3,089.87 3,200.00 -110.13 96.6%

Total Building 81,996.67 86,395.00 -4,398.33 94.9%

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 2,926.21 7,500.00 -4,573.79 39.0%
Public Input Promotional Items 34.65 2,500.00 -2,465.35 1.4%
Publications 535.29 1,000.00 -464.71 53.5%

Total Commodities 3,496.15 11,000.00 -7,503.85 31.8%

In-Kind Match Expense
Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries 15,108.38 97,670.00 -82,561.62 15.5%
Member Attendance at Meetings 29,265.49 36,000.00 -6,734.51 81.3%

Total In-Kind Match Expense 44,373.87 133,670.00 -89,296.13 33.2%

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 2,200.00 8,500.00 -6,300.00 25.9%
GIS Licenses 6,572.00 7,000.00 -428.00 93.9%
IT Maintenance Contract 13,820.40 13,000.00 820.40 106.3%
Software 3,829.44 7,000.00 -3,170.56 54.7%
Webhosting 9,221.38 3,000.00 6,221.38 307.4%

Total Information Technology 35,643.22 38,500.00 -2,856.78 92.6%

Insurance
Automobile Insurance 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Directors & Officers 3,457.00 2,600.00 857.00 133.0%
Errors & Omissions 10,231.00 3,300.00 6,931.00 310.0%
General Liability/Property 9,334.00 3,000.00 6,334.00 311.1%
Network Defender 2,820.00 290.00 2,530.00 972.4%
Workers Compensation 937.00 2,500.00 -1,563.00 37.5%

Total Insurance 26,779.00 13,690.00 13,089.00 195.6%

Operating
Dues/Memberships 7,473.49 9,500.00 -2,026.51 78.7%
Education/Training/Travel 23,238.44 28,000.00 -4,761.56 83.0%

Food/Meeting Expense 7,340.46 8,500.00 -1,159.54 86.4%
Legal/Bid Notices 341.20 1,500.00 -1,158.80 22.7%
Postage/Postal Services 477.45 200.00 277.45 238.7%
Printing/Mapping Services 865.05 3,500.00 -2,634.95 24.7%
Public Input Event Registration 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0%
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 3,231.66 3,500.00 -268.34 92.3%
Telephone/Internet 6,915.15 7,000.00 -84.85 98.8%
Vehicle 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%
Vehicle Maintenance/Fuel 0.00 2,400.00 -2,400.00 0.0%

Total Operating 49,882.90 99,300.00 -49,417.10 50.2%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 1,589.43 3,120.00 -1,530.57 50.9%
Payroll Services 3,168.08 4,000.00 -831.92 79.2%
Salaries and Fringe 810,443.29 864,564.00 -54,120.71 93.7%

Total Personnel 815,200.80 871,684.00 -56,483.20 93.5%

Services
Data Acquisition 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
Professional Services (Legal & 24,932.50 45,000.00 -20,067.50 55.4%
Rideshare 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
TIP Tool Maintenance 16,791.00 15,684.00 1,107.00 107.1%
Trans Consult/Model Services 30,517.52 240,000.00 -209,482.48 12.7%
Travel Demand Model Update 11,200.00 12,000.00 -800.00 93.3%
Travel Sensing & Time Serv Proj 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Total Services 83,441.02 343,184.00 -259,742.98 24.3%

Total Expense 1,140,813.63 1,597,423.00 -456,609.37 71.4%

Net Ordinary Income -100,816.72 0.00 -100,816.72 100.0%

Net Income -100,816.72 0.00 -100,816.72 100.0%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 2



 
FY 2024 UPWP Year End Report 1 July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
Unified Planning Work Program Year End Report 

Period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 
 

Task 1 – OTO General Administration (100% Complete) 
FY 2023 quarterly and year-end reports, as well as FY 2024 first through third quarter financial reports 
were prepared and presented to the Board of Directors.  Prepared for Financial Statement Audit of the FY 
2023 Financial Statements which was conducted in October 2023 and presented to the OTO Executive 
Committee in December.  One bylaw amendment was approved.  With adoption of the FY 2024-2027 
Transportation Improvement Program, passed planning self-certification resolution.  Prepared draft 
UPWP and presented to UPWP Subcommittee, which was approved by the Board of Directors in May and 
the CPG contract was executed in June. Processed a correction to the FY 2024 UPWP.  Continued to track 
and monitor contracts and payments.  Maintained websites and social media pages, as well as managed 
network services.  Conducted Board of Directors Strategic Planning. 
 
Travel and Training 
• AMPO Working Groups  
• AMPO Policy Board Meetings 
• OSITE Seminars 
• Missouri Public Transit Association Board Meetings 
• Ozark Mountain Section of the APA Board Meetings 
• Annual OSITE Technical Seminar 
• FTA Triennial and State Management Review webinars 
• NPMRDS User Group Quarterly Webinar 
• 2024 Mid-America GIS Consortium (MAGIC) Symposium  
• AMPO Planning Tools and Training Symposium 
• Miscellaneous workshops and trainings 
 
Task 2 – Coordination and Public Engagement (100% Complete) 
Conducted the following meetings: 

7 Board of Directors 
5 Technical Planning Committee 
6 Executive Committee 
7 Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
5 Local Coordinating Board for Transit 
4 Traffic Incident Management Committee 
1 Board of Directors Strategic Planning Session 
1 UPWP Subcommittee 
1 TIP Subcommittee 
4 Technical Planning Committee STIP 
Several additional ad hoc committee meetings 

 
OTO staff and MoDOT continued to coordinate on planning and programming activities.  Staff attended 
relevant community meetings.  Press releases were issued according to the public participation plan for 
items going before the Board of Directors.  Updated civil rights portions of the OTO website, as well as the 



 
FY 2024 UPWP Year End Report 2 July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

OTO Social Equity Index webapp.  Meeting attendance was documented for In-Kind Match reporting. A 
total of 504.71 committee hours were reported. 
 
Completed annual Public Participation Plan (PPP) evaluation, Title VI/ADA program update and LEP plan 
update. Updated Let’s Go Smart webpage and increased social media education campaign through Let’s 
Go Smart webpage. 
 
Task 3 – Planning and Implementation (100% Complete) 
Work continued on items in the Destination 2045 Implementation Plan.  Processed Amendment 3 and 
prepared Amendments 4, 5, and 6 to Destination 2045.  Provided feedback, reviewed, and approved 
MoDOT Safety Performance Measures and Transit Safety Measures, including reporting to MoDOT.  
Finalized State of Transportation Report.  Processed and submitted one federal functional classification 
change request to MoDOT.  Reviewed and proposed changes to the Urban Areas within the OTO 
boundary.  Continued monitoring regional air quality, participating with the Ozarks Clean Air Alliance, as 
well as the Ozarks Clean Fuels Coalition.  Submitted projects for Missouri Community Pollution Reduction 
Program Plan.  Updated Let’s Go Smart webpage.  Completed annual Title VI reporting to FHWA and 
started updating Title VI Plan. Updated datasets for the annual STIP prioritization process. Developed 
speed data and other congestion metrics for the Congestion Management Process. Worked with 
Springfield on next steps for a Master Transportation Plan.  Coordinated on other regional plans including 
for Lake Springfield, the Airport, and CU Transit.  Developed Official Trail Map for inclusion in the Long 
Range Transportation Plan.  Finalized the Annual Bicycle and Pedestrian Implementation Plan, as well as 
the Pedestrian Safety Analysis. Completed annual review of STRAHNET system in coordination with DOD, 
with no current improvements needed.  Reviewed and updated website tools and researched best 
practices for active transportation. Completed annual bicycle/pedestrian implementation report for CY 
2023.  Developed OTO annual Growth Trends Report.  Maintained geospatial data and developed print 
and web-based maps for relevant projects. 
 
Task 4 – Project Selection and Programming (100% Complete) 
Worked with MoDOT and member jurisdictions to program funds ahead of August Redistribution and 
continually coordinated federal funds obligation with MoDOT.  Implemented local public agency reporting 
for projects in the FY 2024-2027 TIP.  Adopted FY 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program.  
Processed Amendments 1 through 4 and Administrative Modifications 1 through 6 to the FY 2024-2027 
TIP.  Monitored funds balances and tracked obligations through the end of the federal fiscal year.  Scored 
over 180 projects to use in STIP prioritization.  Held two STIP Prioritization meetings and developed a 
draft project list for MoDOT’s use in the 2025-2029 STIP.  Developed Unfunded Needs list, including 
multimodal unfunded needs, for MoDOT.  Facilitated Board adoption of STIP priorities. 
 
Prepared for and requested projects for the draft FY 2025-2028 TIP.  Drafted and conducted public input 
for the FY 2025-2028 TIP.  Met with member agencies to review needs and project plans.  Solicited bicycle 
and pedestrian engineering projects.  Reviewed, scored and approved bicycle and pedestrian engineering 
projects.  Developed call for projects for Transportation Alternatives Program and Carbon Reduction 
Program for trail and sidewalk projects.  Approved sidewalk cost share funding. 
 
Task 5 – OTO Transit Planning (100% Complete) 
Held five Local Coordinating Board for Transit meetings.   Developed FTA Section 5310 funding guidebook 
and conducted call for projects, with awards.  Conducted 5310 workshop for potential grant applicants.  
Amended Program Management Plan to incorporate minor changes.  Reviewed transit on-time 



 
FY 2024 UPWP Year End Report 3 July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

performance for the annual performance measures report.  Attended Connect SGF Stakeholder meeting 
to review draft plan for the future of transit. Attended MPTA Board Meetings and Annual Conference.  
Reviewed and updated list of operators.  Discussed Regional Transit options and possible stop locations 
through intercity program with OATS and discussed change of designated recipient status for 5310 
program, including potential changes in oversight procedures. No ADA appeals were received from CU. 
Researched additional funding for senior centers and human service agencies and worked on compliance 
documents for those agencies. Coordinated with MoDOT and CU Transit on a potential change to 5310 
designation status and researched administration and procurement procedures. Attended CU transit 
open house and provided annual 5310 funding split to MoDOT and CU transit. Attended Let’s Go Smart 
Collaborative meetings. 
 
Task 6 – Ad Hoc Studies and Projects (100% Complete) 
Reviewed options for next travel demand model update.  Scoped and executed Travel Demand Model 
Contract Addendum.  Prepared population projections and housing unit and employment 2050 forecasts 
by Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ) for the 2022 base-year travel demand model update.  Travel demand 
model anticipated next quarter.   
 
Development and submittal of Highway MM RAISE Grant and RURAL grant applications with the City of 
Republic.  Worked on a regional ATIIP grant application.  Installed and moved trail counter on Wilson’s 
Creek, Galloway and South Creek Greenway trail, collecting counts to support grant materials. 
 
Prepared and sent out monthly grants update newsletter. 
 
Task 7 – Operations and Demand Management (100% Complete) 
Held four meetings of the TIM subcommittee.  Acquired and maintained membership with RITIS at the 
University of Maryland CATT Lab.  Performed additional network analysis and provided support for STIP 
prioritization with access to higher resolution data from HERE.  Remained available for outreach and as a 
resource for employers and the travelling public regarding rideshare program opportunities.  Conducted 
Employer and participant outreach for rideshare program. 
 
Task 8 – MoDOT Studies and Data Collection (100% Complete) 
MoDOT staff continued to work on transportation planning work in the OTO region that was eligible for 
MoDOT Direct Cost.  A total of 520.15 staff hours were completed. 
 
2.5% Set Aside Work Program 
Task 9 - Safe and Accessible Transportation Options (100% Complete) 
Reviewed upcoming programmed projects to identify opportunities for additional funding and 
subsequent pedestrian improvements.  Continued to meet with the Let’s Go Smart Transportation 
Collaborative and developed recommendations for the Community Focus Report.  Redesigned, 
maintained, and updated the trail dashboard.  Worked with OTO Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee to 
advance project to “ungap” the trail map. 
 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Work Program 
Task 10 – Studies and Project Administration (100% Complete) 
Staff coordinated the CRRSAA Chadwick Flyer Trail Phase III project, including work on closeout.  Staff 
continued administration assistance on LPA projects for member jurisdictions including assistance with 



 
FY 2024 UPWP Year End Report 4 July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

environmental clearances and sharing best practices. Staff is managing trail engineering projects for two 
LPAs and as part of those efforts, submitted the projects for initial environmental reviews and issued an 
RFQ for engineering design services.  Assisted LPA with grant administration and invoicing on LPA 
projects.  Coordinated with awarded local public agencies and MoDOT to develop a procurement process 
for EV chargers using federal funding. 
 
Appendix A – Related Planning Activities 
FTA 5303 - City Utilities Work Program 
Task 11 – CU Transit Planning (100% Complete) 
Operational Planning 
CU’s Open FTA Grants: 
MO-2022-018 – In Progress 
MO-2022-019 – In Progress 
MO-2023-005 – In Progress 
MO-2023-019 – In Progress 
MO-2023-023 – In Progress 
MO-2024-011 – In Progress 
MO-2024-012 – In Progress 
1828-2023-3 – Pending NEPA Review 
1828-2024-1 – Submitted to FTA 
1828-2024-2 – Submitted to FTA 
 
ADA Accessibility Planning 
In Spring 2023, CU was awarded FY21-23 years of Section 5310 funding for ADA improvements.  These 
funds will be used to add ADA approved landing pads at bus stops and sidewalks to make our system 
more accessible, and to continue the shelter replacement plan which removes the plexiglass shelters and 
replaces them with a more ADA friendly option.  We are currently working through NEPA approval with 
FTA.  We will also utilize this grant funding to add new mobility securement systems that are safer and 
provide passengers with more independence.  The notice of award for these securements was issued 
4/2/2024 and the tentative ship date is in August 2024.  Upon delivery, we will work with the vendor to 
install these in the fixed route buses. 
  
Transit Fixed Route/Regional Service Analysis Implementation 
No permanent route modifications have been made in SFY24.  All fixed routes are consistently evaluated 
to make improvements as needed.  In FFY23, Transit completed a Fixed Route Study, ConnectSGF.  The 
study resulted in changes to routes (effective 9/29/2024) and a reduction to fares (effective 10/1/2024).  
Transit is currently working with CU Communications department on customer facing marketing material 
and new maps, route cards, turn by turns, etc. 
 
Service Planning 
Data collection for on-time performance by bus route is posted each week for all the bus operators to 
monitor how each route and bus operator are performing.  CU is active in OTO and community 
committees involving discussions on Transit. 
 
Financial Planning 
CU Transit staff prepares and monitors the Transit Budget, Financial and Capital Project Plans monthly, 
quarterly, and annually.  Transit Project Managers also meet with Finance during the year to discuss the 



 
FY 2024 UPWP Year End Report 5 July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

budget and financials.  In January 2024, FORVIS presented the Utility annual audit, which includes a single 
audit of our federal grants, to the Board of Public Utilities. The audit was given an unmodified opinion. 
 
Competitive Contract Planning 
City Utilities Purchasing department ensures that CU Transit awards bids to the most competitive 
contracts and that all FTA guidelines and requirements are followed.  In the future, we are considering 
studying opportunities for transit cost reductions using third-party and private sector providers for a 
portion of our paratransit bus service. 
 
Safety, Security, and Drug/Alcohol Control Planning 
CU continues to monitor safety, security and DOT Drug and Alcohol control regulations monthly.  During 
SFY24, we continued to have discussions with the Safety Committee about PTASP.   
 
Transit Coordination Plan Implementation 
CU has implemented the Transit Coordination Plan, since we receive Section 5310 grant funding.  The 
OTO provides annual training for applicants, including CU each fiscal year and provides media outreach. 
 
Program Management Plan Implementation 
CU does not have to do a Program Management Plan for Section 5339 grant funding.  The OTO does do a 
Program Management Plan for our Section 5310 grant program. 
 
Data Collection and Analysis 
CU collects and analyzes ridership data monthly for transit planning purposes.  CU submits 
weekly/monthly the National Transit Database reports to FTA.   
 
Transit Fixed Route Analysis 
In FFY23, Transit completed a Fixed Route Study, ConnectSGF.  The study resulted in changes to routes 
(effective 9/29/2024) and a reduction to fares (effective 10/1/2024).  Transit is currently working with CU 
Communications department on customer facing marketing material and new maps, route cards, turn by 
turns, etc. 
 
FHWA Discretionary Grant 
Task 12 – Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant (100% Complete) 
Data collected and analyzed by OTO staff to develop draft high injury network.  Additional co-location 
analysis was also developed.  An advisory team has been appointed from among OTO member 
jurisdictions.  Initial discussion on goal setting at the August 16, 2023 Technical Planning Committee 
meeting.  Solicited, interviewed, and selected safety analysis engineering firm, as well as equity 
engagement firm.   
 
OTO developed a high-injury network and shared that with consultants for analyzing high-risk roadway 
features.  Compiled and prepared SS4A crash statistics analysis report document and web maps.  Staff 
continued to meet with consultants on project progress.  Prepared data package of transportation, land 
use, and crash statistics for SS4A roadway analysis consultants. 
 
Conducted public involvement, including public meetings, surveys, and targeted outreach.  Survey results 
were analyzed and summarized by equity engagement consultant.  Finalized the high injury network by 
reviewing different ways of indexing the data.  



 
FY 2024 UPWP Year End Report 6 July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

 
Held virtual and in-person stakeholder meetings.  Developed a project list for prioritization.  Developed 
prioritization criteria.  Conducted additional engagement activities.  Developed systemic safety analysis, 
including identification of routes with high risk roadway features.  Provided information for consultant to 
analyze policies and processes in place in member communities.  Drafted goals with the Advisory Team 
for zero fatalities and zero serious injuries.  Continued to meet with Advisory Team and consultants.  
Completed grant administration and invoicing.  
 



 
 

 
Chadwick Flyer Trail 

Phase III Project 
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental 

 Appropriations Act of 2021 (CRRSAA) 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Jul '23 - Jun 24

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
Miscellaneous Revenue 84.71

Total Other Types of Income 84.71

OTO Revenue
Chadwick Flyer Match Funds 293,193.10
CRRSAA Funds 863,750.00
STBG - Chadwick Flyer Phase III 201,973.01

Total OTO Revenue 1,358,916.11

Total Income 1,359,000.82

Gross Profit 1,359,000.82

Expense
Bank Fees 2,558.89

Insurance 323.40

Services
Trail Construction 1,308,037.26

Total Services 1,308,037.26

Total Expense 1,310,919.55

Net Ordinary Income 48,081.27

Net Income 48,081.27

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Chadwick Flyer Trail Phase III Profit & Loss

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
Miscellaneous Revenue 84.71

Total Other Types of Income 84.71

OTO Revenue
Chadwick Flyer Match Funds 293,193.10 67,250.00 225,943.10 436.0%
CRRSAA Funds 863,750.00 779,307.00 84,443.00 110.8%
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
STBG - Chadwick Flyer Phase III 201,973.01 269,000.00 -67,026.99 75.1%

Total OTO Revenue 1,358,916.11 1,115,557.00 243,359.11 121.8%

Total Income 1,359,000.82 1,115,557.00 243,443.82 121.8%

Gross Profit 1,359,000.82 1,115,557.00 243,443.82 121.8%

Expense
Bank Fees 2,558.89

Insurance 323.40

Services
Trail Construction 1,308,037.26 1,302,040.00 5,997.26 100.5%

Total Services 1,308,037.26 1,302,040.00 5,997.26 100.5%

Total Expense 1,310,919.55 1,302,040.00 8,879.55 100.7%

Net Ordinary Income 48,081.27 -186,483.00 234,564.27 -25.8%

Net Income 48,081.27 -186,483.00 234,564.27 -25.8%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Chadwick Flyer Trail Phase III Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Safe Streets and Roads 
for All 

FHWA Discretionary Grant



Jul '23 - Jun 24

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

OTO Revenue
Safe Streets for All FHWA Grant 110,972.42

Total OTO Revenue 110,972.42

Total Income 110,972.42

Gross Profit 110,972.42

Expense
Commodities

Public Involvement Advertising 562.83
Publications 634.90

Total Commodities 1,197.73

Information Technology
Software 114.95

Total Information Technology 114.95

Personnel
Salaries and Fringe 40,694.89

Total Personnel 40,694.89

Services
Trans Consult/Model Services 96,708.00

Total Services 96,708.00

Total Expense 138,715.57

Net Ordinary Income -27,743.15

Net Income -27,743.15

Ozarks Transportation Organization
SS4A Profit & Loss

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

OTO Revenue
Safe Streets for All FHWA Grant 110,972.42 228,800.00 -117,827.58 48.5%
Safe Streets for All Match 0.00 57,200.00 -57,200.00 0.0%

Total OTO Revenue 110,972.42 286,000.00 -175,027.58 38.8%

Total Income 110,972.42 286,000.00 -175,027.58 38.8%

Gross Profit 110,972.42 286,000.00 -175,027.58 38.8%

Expense
Commodities

Office Supplies/Furniture 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
Public Involvement Advertising 562.83 5,000.00 -4,437.17 11.3%
Publications 634.90

Total Commodities 1,197.73 8,000.00 -6,802.27 15.0%

Information Technology
Software 114.95

Total Information Technology 114.95

Personnel
Salaries and Fringe 40,694.89 53,000.00 -12,305.11 76.8%

Personnel - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Personnel 40,694.89 53,000.00 -12,305.11 76.8%

Services
Trans Consult/Model Services 96,708.00 225,000.00 -128,292.00 43.0%

Total Services 96,708.00 225,000.00 -128,292.00 43.0%

Total Expense 138,715.57 286,000.00 -147,284.43 48.5%

Net Ordinary Income -27,743.15 0.00 -27,743.15 100.0%

Net Income -27,743.15 0.00 -27,743.15 100.0%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
SS4A Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.D. 

Administrative Modification 7 to the FY 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

There are multiple changes included as part of Administrative Modification 7 to the FY 2024-2027 
Transportation Improvement Program.  These changes do not affect Fiscal Constraint. 

1. Chadwick Flyer Phase V (EN2405)
• Update Moving a project’s funds to another fiscal year, provided they are not being moved

into or out of the first four fiscal years of the TIP
• Changes in a project’s total programmed amount less than 25% (up to $2,000,000)
• Moving funds between development phases of a project (Environmental Assessment, PE

Design, ROW, Construction, or other) without major changes to the scope of the project

Added $50,000 funding for meeting reasonable progress and due to increased costs, plus 
moving remaining engineering to construction in FY 2025. 

2. Chadwick Flyer US 65 Crossing (OK2304)
• Update Moving a project’s funds to another fiscal year, provided they are not being moved

into or out of the first four fiscal years of the TIP
• Changes in a project’s total programmed amount less than 25% (up to $2,000,000)

Moving remaining engineering to FY 2025 and adding STBG-U funds to construction. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 

NO ACTION REQUESTED – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 



2 July 2024 

Mr. Ezekiel Hall 
Transportation Planning  
Missouri Department of Transportation 
P. O. Box 270 
Jefferson City, Missouri  65102 

Dear Mr. Hall: 

I am writing to advise you that the Ozarks Transportation Organization approved Administrative 
Modification Number Seven to the OTO FY 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) on 
July 2, 2024.  Please find enclosed the administrative modification, which is outlined on the following 
pages.   

Please let me know if you have any questions about the administrative modification or need any other 
information. 

Sincerely, 

Natasha L. Longpine, AICP 
Transportation Planning Manager 

Enclosure 



24AM7 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Ozark

Christian County Ozark Programmed $786,000

- 9901862 Biagio Biagio

Environmental Justice Area,
Bike/Ped Plan, Regional Trail
Plan Priority

Construct 10-foot wide trail along N. 20th Street in Ozark from Biagio to Biagio.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Ozark Transportation Sales Tax

Engineering CRP (FHWA) - $42,705 - - - - $42,705

Engineering Local - $10,676 - - - - $10,676

Total Engineering - $53,381 - - - - $53,381

Construction CRP (FHWA) - - $586,095 - - - $586,095

Construction Local - - $146,524 - - - $146,524

Total Construction - - $732,619 - - - $732,619

Total Programmed - $53,381 $732,619 - - - $786,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2405-24AM7 - CHADWICK FLYER PHASE V



CURRENT
CHANGE
REASON

Schedule / Funding / Scope- Update Moving a project’s funds to another
fiscal year, provided they are not being moved into or out of the first four
fiscal years of the TIP - Changes in a project’s total programmed amount
less than 25% (up to $2,000,000) - Moving funds between development
phases of a project (Environmental Assessment, PE Design, ROW,
Construction, or other) without major changes to the scope of the project

PROJECT
CHANGES

ID changed from "EN2405-24" to "EN2405-24AM7"

Plan Revision Name changed from "24Adopted" to "24AM7"

FUNDING
CHANGES

CRP (FHWA)

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $44,540 to $42,705

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $534,260 to $586,095

Local

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $11,135 to $10,676

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $133,565 to $146,524

FEDERAL
PROJECT
COST

Increased from $578,800 to $628,800 (8.64%)

TOTAL
PROJECT
COST

Increased from $723,500 to $786,000 (8.64%)



24AM7 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Ozark

Christian County Ozark Programmed $4,001,243

- 9901849 - -

Environmental Justice Area,
Bike/Ped Plan, Regional Trail
Plan Priority

Crossing US 65 with the Chadwick Flyer Trail in Ozark

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Ozark; FYI: $375,000 Christian County STBG-U

Engineering STBG-U (FHWA) - $230,688 $69,312 - - - $300,000

Engineering Local - $72,090 $39,039 - - - $111,129

Engineering TAP (FHWA) - $57,672 $86,843 - - - $144,515

Total Engineering - $360,450 $195,194 - - - $555,644

ROW Other - - $201,550 - - - $201,550

ROW STBG-U (FHWA) - - $19,600 - - - $19,600

ROW Local - - $34,750 - - - $34,750

ROW TAP (FHWA) - - $19,600 - - - $19,600

Total ROW - - $275,500 - - - $275,500

Construction Local - - $354,370 - - - $354,370

Construction MO-ARPA - - $1,179,750 - - - $1,179,750

Construction Other - - $43,700 - - - $43,700

Construction STBG-U (FHWA) - - $256,394 - - - $256,394

Construction TAP (FHWA) - - $1,335,885 - - - $1,335,885

Total Construction - - $3,170,099 - - - $3,170,099

Total Programmed - $360,450 $3,640,793 - - - $4,001,243

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FUTURE TOTAL

OK2304-24AM7 - CHADWICK FLYER US 65 CROSSING



CURRENT
CHANGE
REASON

Schedule / Funding / Scope- Update Moving a project’s funds to another
fiscal year, provided they are not being moved into or out of the first four
fiscal years of the TIP - Changes in a project’s total programmed amount
less than 25% (up to $2,000,000)

PROJECT
CHANGES

ID changed from "OK2304-23AM6" to "OK2304-24AM7" Plan 

Revision Name changed from "24Adopted" to "24AM7"

FUNDING
CHANGES

Local

+ Increase funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $0 to $72,090

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $111,129 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ENG from $0 to $39,039

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ROW from $34,750 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ROW from $0 to $34,750

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in CON from $304,121 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $0 to $354,370

TAP (FHWA)

+ Increase funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $0 to $57,672

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $144,515 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ENG from $0 to $86,843

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ROW from $19,600 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ROW from $0 to $19,600

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in CON from $1,335,885 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $0 to $1,335,885

STBG-U (FHWA)

+ Increase funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $0 to $230,688

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ENG from $300,000 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ENG from $0 to $69,312

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ROW from $19,600 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ROW from $0 to $19,600

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in CON from $55,400 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $0 to $256,394

Other

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in ROW from $201,550 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in ROW from $0 to $201,550

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in CON from $43,700 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $0 to $43,700

MO-ARPA

- Decrease funds in FY 2024 in CON from $1,179,750 to $0

+ Increase funds in FY 2025 in CON from $0 to $1,179,750

FEDERAL
PROJECT
COST

Increased from $1,875,000 to $2,075,994 (10.72%)

TOTAL
PROJECT
COST

Increased from $3,750,000 to $4,001,243 (6.70%)



Revenue Source Carryover 2024 2025 2026 2027 Total
MoDOT State/Federal $80,371,088 $125,885,699 $64,545,322 $66,317,065 $337,119,174 
Suballocated STBG-U $16,638,414 $7,568,166 $7,719,529 $7,873,920 $8,031,398 $47,831,427 
Suballocated TAP $3,134,365 $1,551,388 $1,568,998 $1,587,191 $1,618,935 $9,460,877 
Suballocated CRP $1,772,594 $904,761 $904,761 $904,761 $904,761 $5,391,638 
Aviation - FAA $0 $7,866,000 $22,262,580 $9,693,000 $3,402,000 $43,223,580 
FTA 5307 $4,605,375 $3,541,107 $3,611,929 $3,684,168 $3,757,851 $19,200,430 
FTA 5310 $863,053 $444,515 $453,405 $462,473 $471,723 $2,695,170 
FTA 5339 $845,868 $283,357 $289,024 $294,805 $300,701 $2,013,754 
Transit MO HealthNet Contract $0 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000 $220,000 
Transit State Operating Funding $0 $263,282 $40,200 $40,200 $40,200 $383,882 
CU Transit Utility Ratepayers $5,461,692 $7,169,545 $7,227,017 $7,089,367 $6,911,255 $33,858,876 
CU Transit Farebox, Ads, Rent $0 $886,964 $886,964 $886,964 $886,964 $3,547,856 
Human Service Agencies $118,670 $61,121 $62,343 $63,590 $64,862 $370,586 
TOTAL $33,440,031 $110,966,295 $170,967,449 $97,180,761 $92,762,715 $505,317,251 

$8,317,242 $8,271,524 $8,135,121 $7,958,281

2024 2025 2026 2027 Total
$16,054,001 $16,054,001 $16,054,001 $16,054,001 $64,216,005 

$3,378,668 $3,469,892 $3,563,579 $3,659,796 $14,071,934 
($17,789,072) ($5,212,141) ($1,663,052) ($258,773) ($24,923,038)

$60,924,503 $60,924,503 $60,924,503 $60,924,503 $243,698,012 
$62,568,100 $75,236,255 $78,879,031 $80,379,527 $297,062,913 

Transit Local Operations/Maint. Carryover 2024 2025 2026 2027 Total
System Operations Local $5,271,692 $7,710,791 $7,710,791 $7,710,791 $7,710,791 $36,114,856 
System Maintenance Local $190,000 $190,000 $190,000 $190,000 $190,000 $950,000 
Local Programmed O&M -- ($13,362,483) ($7,900,791) ($7,900,791) ($7,900,791) ($37,064,856)
Carryover $5,461,692 $5,461,692 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Additional O&M Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

REVENUE

LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY CAPACITY

LPA Capacity
CART All Jurisdictions (Projected)
O&M (634.73 miles * $5,323/mile)
TIP Programmed Funds All Jurisdictions
Other Committed Funds All Jurisdictions
TOTAL

Ozarks Transportation Organization G-1 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program



Fund Type Programmed (2024) Programmed (2025) Programmed (2026) Programmed (2027)
FEDERAL
BRO (FHWA) $1,997,870 $24,000 $36,000 $0
CRP (FHWA) $2,500,666 $2,271,936 $0 $0
I/M (FHWA) $90,000 $135,000 $135,000 $0
NHPP (FHWA) $23,732,500 $45,890,807 $45,921,887 $41,552,800
SAFETY (FHWA) $7,187,100 $890,700 $82,800 $73,800
SS4A (FHWA) $228,800 $0 $0 $0
STAP (FHWA) $257,000 $252,000 $0 $0
STBG (FHWA) $9,171,002 $20,462,800 $347,200 $171,200
STBG-U (FHWA) $31,073,336 $12,318,375 $2,368,226 $761,419
TAP (FHWA) $2,933,317 $4,480,701 $302,006 $134,836
Federal Subtotal $79,171,591 $86,726,319 $49,193,119 $42,694,055
STATE
MoDOT $15,968,951 $21,531,310 $7,332,500 $12,307,400
MoDOT-AC $20,008,200 $21,469,641 $2,530,400 $6,244,800
MoDOT O&M $5,504,088 $5,652,699 $5,805,322 $5,962,065
State Subtotal $41,481,239 $48,653,650 $15,668,222 $24,514,265
LOCAL/OTHER $35,977,151 $43,000,951 $9,862,900 $18,552,200
Local $17,789,072 $5,212,141 $1,663,052 $258,773
MO-ARPA $ $1,179,750 $0 $0
Other $2,962,010 $245,250 $0 $0
Local/Other Subtotal $20,751,082 $6,637,141 $1,663,052 $258,773
Total $141,403,912 $142,017,110 $66,524,393 $67,467,093

$135,899,824 $136,364,411 $60,719,071 $61,505,028 $394,488,334
Prior Year FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 TOTAL

Available State and Federal Funding $18,280,000 $80,426,088 $125,940,699 $64,600,322 $66,372,065 $355,619,174
Federal Discretionary Funding $228,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $228,800
Available Operations and Maintenance Funding $0 $5,504,088 $5,652,699 $5,805,322 $5,962,065 $22,924,174
Funds from Other Sources (inc. Local) $0 $20,751,082 $6,637,141 $1,663,052 $258,773 $29,310,048
Available Suballocated Funding $22,277,288 $10,024,315 $10,193,288 $10,365,872 $10,555,094 $63,415,857
TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING $40,786,088 $116,705,574 $148,423,827 $82,434,567 $83,147,998 $471,498,054
Carryover $40,786,088 $16,087,749 $22,494,466 $38,404,641 --
Programmed State and Federal Funding ($141,403,912) ($142,017,110) ($66,524,393) ($67,467,093) ($417,412,508)
TOTAL REMAINING $40,786,088 $16,087,749 $22,494,466 $38,404,641 $54,085,545 $54,085,545

FINANCIAL CONSTRAINT

FHWA Sponsored Projects

Ozarks Transportation Organization G-2 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.D. 

Annual Listing of Obligated Projects (ALOP) 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

Ozarks Transportation Organization is required by federal law to publish an Annual Listing of 
Obligated Projects: 

§ 450.334 Annual listing of obligated projects.
(a) In metropolitan planning areas, on an annual basis, no later than 90 calendar days
following the end of the program year, the State, public transportation operator(s), and
the MPO(s) shall cooperatively develop a listing of projects (including investments in
pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation facilities) for which funds under 23
U.S.C. or 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 were obligated in the preceding program year.

(b) The listing shall be prepared in accordance with §450.314(a) and shall include all
federally funded projects authorized or revised to increase obligations in the preceding
program year, and shall at a minimum include the TIP information under §450.326(g)(1)
and (4) and identify, for each project, the amount of Federal funds requested in the TIP,
the Federal funding that was obligated during the preceding year, and the Federal
funding remaining and available for subsequent years.

(c) The listing shall be published or otherwise made available in accordance with the
MPO(s) public participation criteria for the TIP.

The Ozarks Transportation Organization Program Year 2024 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects 
is available in the Agenda for member review. Please note that Program Year 2024 includes the 
time period from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

Please note that this is required to be published by September 28, 2024. 

TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN:   
At its regularly scheduled meeting on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee 
recommended the Board of Directors accept the Annual Listing of Obligated Projects. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 

“Move to accept the Annual Listing of Obligated Projects.” 

OR 

“Move to accept the Annual Listing of Obligated Projects with the following corrections...” 



FY 2024 Annual Listing of 
Obligated Projects 

 

  
 



 
FY 2024 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects - Introduction i 

Introduction 
Each year, the Ozarks Transportation Organization develops a list of all funding obligated during the 
preceding program year, which runs from July 1 to June 30.  This is known as the Annual Listing of 
Obligated Projects (ALOP).  An obligation is a commitment of the federal government’s promise to pay 
for the federal share of a project’s eligible cost.  This commitment occurs when the project is approved 
and the project agreement is executed.  Obligation is a key step in financing and obligated funds are 
considered “used” even though no cash is transferred.   

Annual Listing of Obligated Projects (ALOP) 
The ALOP is a requirement of metropolitan planning areas, per § 450.334: 

(a) In metropolitan planning areas, on an annual basis, no later than 90 calendar days following the 
end of the program year, the State, public transportation operator(s), and the MPO(s) shall 
cooperatively develop a listing of projects (including investments in pedestrian walkways and 
bicycle transportation facilities) for which funds under 23 U.S.C. or 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 were 
obligated in the preceding program year. 

(b) The listing shall be prepared in accordance with §450.314(a) and shall include all federally 
funded projects authorized or revised to increase obligations in the preceding program year, and 
shall at a minimum include the TIP information under §450.326(g)(1) and (4) and identify, for 
each project, the amount of Federal funds requested in the TIP, the Federal funding that was 
obligated during the preceding year, and the Federal funding remaining and available for 
subsequent years. 

(c) The listing shall be published or otherwise made available in accordance with the MPO(s) public 
participation criteria for the TIP. 

TIP (Transportation Improvement Program) 
The TIP is a financially constrained four-year program outlining the most immediate implementation 
priorities for area transportation projects, carrying out the goals and vision of Destination 2045, the 
OTO’s long range transportation plan.  It serves to allocate limited financial resources among the various 
transportation needs of the community and to program the expenditure of federal, state, and local 
transportation funds.  In order to receive federal highway or transit funds, a project must be included in 
the TIP.  The TIP is developed through a collaborative process in which each jurisdiction or federal 
recipient of transportation funds is given the opportunity to submit projects to be considered for 
placement in the TIP.  No project can receive federal funds unless it appears in the TIP. 

Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) 
The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization for 
the Springfield, Missouri Urbanized Area.  Metropolitan planning organizations serve to conduct and 
lead a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning process.  In an effort to 
make the transportation planning process cooperative and collaborative, elected officials from 
jurisdictions within the urban area and major transportation providers are members of the Ozarks 
Transportation Organization.  The mission of the OTO is to provide a forum for cooperative decision-
making in support of an excellent regional transportation system. 



 
FY 2024 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects - Introduction ii 

The Report 
As stated in federal law, the ALOP has a number of required elements.  Below is an explanation of each 
column included in the report. 

PROJECT NO 
This is the Federal Number assigned to a project when it is entered into the federal financial 
management system. 

JOB NO 
This is an ID assigned by MoDOT (Missouri Department of Transportation) for tracking of projects at the 
state level. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Contains a brief description of the project. 

COUNTY 
County where project is to take place. 

SPONSOR 
This references the agency responsible for implementing the project. 

TIP NUMBER 
The OTO assigns each project a unique identifier to track it through the local process.  This number is 
often assigned before the state and federal IDs are known. 

TIP YEARS 
The TIP is developed annually with a four-year time horizon.  This column indicates each edition of the 
TIP where the project appears.  An additional qualifier, like “A1” or “AM2,” indicates if the project was 
part of an amendment or administrative modification to the TIP. 

PROGRAMMED YEAR 
This lists the actual years when funding was planned to be obligated for the project.  The (AC) appearing 
after certain years indicates the expected year of advance construction conversion.  MoDOT uses a 
federal funding tool called advance construction to maximize the receipt of federal funds and provide 
greater flexibility/efficiency in matching federal-aid categories to individual projects.  Advance 
Construction (AC) is an innovative finance funding technique, which allows states to initiate a project 
using non-federal funds, while preserving eligibility for future federal-aid.  AC does not provide 
additional federal funding, but simply changes the timing of receipts by allowing states to construct 
projects with state or local money and then later seek federal-aid reimbursement. 

PREVIOUSLY PROGRAMMED FEDERAL FUNDS 
These are the funds that were scheduled to be obligated during or prior to program year 2024. 

FUTURE PROGRAMMED FEDERAL FUNDS 
These are funds that are estimated to be obligated after program year 2024. 



 
FY 2024 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects - Introduction iii 

PROGRAM CODE 
The program code is associated with the category of federal funding that was obligated for the project.  
The program code changes with each surface transportation bill and extension.  A search of this 
document (http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federalaid/projects.cfm) will provide information on the source of 
funding for each program code.  As a quick reference, the first letter in the code is related to a particular 
surface transportation bill.  Funding from the FAST Act, the most recent bill, starts with the letter “Z,” 
MAP-21, starts with the letter “M,” while funding that starts with the letter “L” is from SAFETEA-LU.  
Some funding is still shown for some older projects as having come from TEA-21 (Q) and from an 
extension of TEA-21 (H).  To learn more about the current surface transportation bill, the FAST Act, click 
here - http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/.  The U.S. DOT website is a good source of information on 
federal funding programs. 

TRANSACTION DATE 
This is the date that funding was obligated during the 2024 program year. 

FEDERAL FUNDING CHANGE 
This is the amount of money either obligated or de-obligated during the 2024 program year.  Values 
shown in the positive are obligations and values shown in the (negative) are de-obligations.  Funding is 
often de-obligated at the end of a project if costs were less than expected.  Zero values may be shown 
for projects that were newly created or closed out in FY 2024, even if funding itself was not obligated. 

PREVIOUS ALOP(S) FUNDING CHANGE 
This shows all obligations prior to the 2024 program year.  Current and past funding changes are shown 
by Program Code. 

REMAINING FUTURE FEDERAL FUNDS 
This shows how much money is left to obligate based on the amount of funding programmed in the OTO 
Transportation Improvement Program.  If the project is complete, the amount is left at $0.00, which is 
also the case when the obligated amount has maxed the available programmed funding.  Generally, this 
number is determined by subtracting all obligated funding from all programmed funds, regardless of the 
year in which funding was programmed. 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/federalaid/projects.cfm
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/


FY 2024 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects

PROJECT 

NO
JOB NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION COUNTY SPONSOR TIP NUMBER TIP YEARS PROGRAMMED YEAR*

PREVIOUSLY 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

FUTURE 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

PROGRAM 

CODE
TRANS DATE

FED FUND 

CHANGE

PREVIOUS 

ALOP(S) FUNDING 

CHANGE

REMAINING 

FEDERAL FUNDS

000S649 N/A

RAIL/GRADE IMPROVEMENT FOR PROTECTIVE 

DEVICES AT NATIONAL AVE AND DIVISION ST, 

DOT 664172S, IN SPRINGFIELD, GREENE CO

GREENE MODOT N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A YS40 2/23/2024 991,087.00 0.00 0.00

Y410 11/08/2023 2,372.50 12,085.50

Y450 -- 0.00 1,023,271.00

Z230 -- 0.00 243,101.00

23MP 6/26/2024 52,367.34 0.00

M450 6/26/2024 24,139.40 0.00

M45E 6/26/2024 77,664.26 0.00

Y230 6/26/2024 255,256.00 0.00

Y410 6/26/2024 14,988.00 0.00

Y450 6/26/2024 495,868.26 0.00

Z450 6/26/2024 316,294.08 0.00

Z77D 6/26/2024 11,594.66 0.00

RN94 -- 0.00 3,839.99

Y001 5/08/2024 2,739,577.62 0.00

Z001 -- 0.00 47,693.15

Y230 8/22/2023 718,571.00 0.00

Z0E1 8/22/2023 (0.01) 909,818.64

Y001 7/21/2023 60,808.86 1,054,017.43

Y230 7/21/2023 49,305.04 731,915.71

Z001 -- 0.00 280,800.00

Z0E1 -- 0.00 148,800.00

Z230 -- 0.00 134,930.67

Z23E -- 0.00 13,869.33

Z972 -- 0.00 573,750.00

Y001 7/19/2023 757,229.32 0.00

Y230 7/19/2023 902,460.65 0.00

YS30 7/19/2023 5,450.54 0.00

Z001 8/22/2023 (199,749.47) 389,606.54

Z0E1 7/19/2023 (73,600.00) 87,600.00

Z230 -- 0.00 87,600.00

8/22/2023 0.01 0.00

7/19/2023 102,682.55 0.00

YS31 5/01/2024 2,300.00 0.00

Z232 5/01/2024 247,897.96 2,262,109.76

ZS30 5/01/2024 (2,300.00) 60,100.35

ZS31 -- 0.00 774,899.65

Y001 -- 0.00 209,436.99

Z001 12/01/2023 19,307.69 3,343,786.58

Z230 -- 0.00 130,000.00

Z001 -- 0.00 79,200.00

Z0E1 8/28/2023 443,156.80 1,756,743.69

Y001 7/10/2024 1,111,013.52 0.00

Z001 7/10/2024 32,778.09 462.90

Y001 5/17/2024 68,875.99 48,276.05

Z0E1 -- 0.00 96,300.00

0443345 JSU0058

IS 44, GREENE CO, ADD HIGH FRICTION SURFACE 

TREATMENT ON WESTBOUND LANES IN 

STRAFFORD, 60 IN SPRINGFIELD, RTS NN AND 

125 IN CHRISTIAN CO AND PAVEMENT 

CHRISTIAN,

GREENE
MODOT MO2309

2023-2026,

2024-2027
2023, 2024 $2,474,100.00 $0.00 YS31 7/10/2024 12,719.16 0.00 2,461,380.84

Y001 -- 0.00 1,675,438.68

Y002 -- 0.00 1,025.80

YS30 5/01/2024 110,061.00 0.00

Z002 -- 0.00 38,699.56

0602112 J8P3068B

GREENE CO, US 60, BRIDGE DECK SEALING ON 

MULTIPLE BRIDGES AT RT 65/60 INTERCHANGE 

IN SPRINGFIELD

GREENE MODOT SP2004 2020‐2023 2020 $1,221,600.00 $0.00 Z001 4/04/2024 343,962.00 1,074,920.10 0.00

0602114 J8P3207

GREENE COUNTY; US 60, ADD ITS FOR OZARK 

TRAFFIC AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS ON RTE 60 

(JAMES RIVER FREEWAY) IN SPRINGFIELD, RT FF 

(WEST BYPASS) NEAR BATTLEFI

CHRISTIAN,

GREENE
MODOT MO2106

2020-2023 A7,

2022-2025
2021 (AC), 2022 (AC) $847,200.00 $0.00 Y240 1/03/2024 (13,238.31) 1,086,011.85 COMPLETE

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,747,610.37

0.00

166,319.86

0.00

0.00

0.00

25,345.49

8,534,047.96

0.00
2019, 2020, 2021,

2022, 2023
$1,812,800.00 $0.00

2022, 2023, 2024,

2025
$375,500.00 $8,372,000.00

2019, 2020, 2021 $1,256,000.00 $0.00

2020, 2021, 2022,

2023, 2024
$1,169,600.00 $0.00

$3,316,570.00 $0.00

2018, 2019, 2020 $2,968,000.00 $0.00

2024 $243,101.00 N/A

2025 $255,256.00 N/A

2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 $2,646,400.00 $0.00

2020 (AC), 2021 (AC),

2022 (AC), 2023,

2023 (AC)

$4,376,000.00 $0.00

2018, 2019, 2020,

2021, 2022, 2023
$2,706,800.00 $0.00

2018, 2019, 2020,

2021, 2022, 2023
$2,225,600.00 $0.00

2017, 2018, 2019,

2020

2019-2022,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2018-2021,

2019-2022,

2020-2023

2019-2022,

2020-2023

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2019-2022 A5,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027 &

SEE FY 2024 UPWP

2019-2022 A5,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028 &

SEE FY 2025 UPWP

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2020-2023 AM5,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2018-2021 A2,

2019-2022,

2020-2023 A6,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2018-2021 A2,

2019-2022,

2020-2023 A6,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2017‐2020,

2018‐2021,

2019‐2022,

2020‐2023 A2

Z919

OK1803

GR1906

SP2002

SP1816

GR1907

SP1817

OT1901

STBG-U ONLY

OT1901

STBG-U ONLY

EN2003

GR2007

GR2201

OK1701

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

OTO

OTO

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

CHRISTIAN

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

CHRISTIAN

MO 14, CHRISTIAN CO, ROADWAY 

IMPROVEMENTS FROM 32ND RD TO 22ND ST IN 

OZARK

LP 44, GREENE CO; REBUILD PAVEMENT ON 

CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY FROM I-44 TO EAST OF 

BROADVIEW PLACE IN SPRINGFIELD.

LP 44 E, GREENE, PAVEMENT RESURFACING ON 

CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY FROM 0.1 MILE WEST 

OF BUS. 65 (GLENSTONE AVENUE) TO 0.1 MILE 

EAST OF EASTGATE AVENUE AND 

MO 13 S, GREENE CO, ADD LANES, IMPROVE 

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND REPLACE SIGNAL ON 

KANSAS EXPRESSWAY AT SUNSET STREET IN 

SPRINGFIELD.

US 60 E, GREENE, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

FROM HIGHLAND SPRINGS BOULEVARD EAST OF 

SPRINGFIELD TO WEST OF RTE. 125 IN 

ROGERSVILLE.

MO 13 S, GREENE CO, INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS ON KANSAS EXPRESSWAY AT 

WALNUT LAWN ST IN SPRINGFIELD.

2024 ANNUAL CPG AGREEMENT FOR OZARK 

TRANSPRORTATION ORGANIZATION.

FY 2025 ANNUAL CPG AGREEMENT FOR THE 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 

(OTO)

GREENE CO, MO 13 S, UPGRADE PED FACILITIES 

TO COMPLY W/ ADA TRANSITION PLAN AT 

VARIOUS LOCATION ON KS EXPRESSWAY N OF I-

44 TO RT 60(JAMES RIVER FREEWA

GREENE CO, MO 13 S, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

ON KANSAS EXPRESSWAY FROM N OF I-44 TO RT 

60 (JAMES RIVER FREEWAY)

IS  44, GREENE CO, PAVEMENT RESURFACING .6 

MI W OF RT 266(CHESTNUT EXPRESS)TO RT 

H(GLENSTONE AVE) IN SPRINGFIELD AND RT 65 

SPRINGFIELD .5 MI E OF RT 1

MO 14, CHRISTIAN CO, ADD LANES, SIDEWALK & 

PED SIGNAL ON JACKSON ST FROM 16TH ST TO 

.2 MI E OF RT NN IN OZARK.

J8P0588I

J8S3155

J8S3167

J8P3087E

J8P3122B

J8P3087F

N/A

N/A

J8S3173

J8S3165

J8I3225

J8P3096

0141032

0442319

0442324

0132093

0602110

0132092

00FY824

00FY825

0132091

0132090

0442335

0141027

Page 1 of 6



PROJECT 

NO
JOB NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION COUNTY SPONSOR TIP NUMBER TIP YEARS PROGRAMMED YEAR*

PREVIOUSLY 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

FUTURE 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

PROGRAM 

CODE
TRANS DATE

FED FUND 

CHANGE

PREVIOUS 

ALOP(S) FUNDING 

CHANGE

REMAINING 

FEDERAL FUNDS

Y001 -- 0.00 10,885,780.50

YS30 6/20/2024 57,428.46 0.00

Z0E1 -- 0.00 4,000.00

ZS30 6/20/2024 7,937.20 0.00

Y001 -- 0.00 7,297,251.88

ZS30 5/01/2024 30,656.47 0.00

Y240 7/21/2023 12,532.42 275,949.08

Z0E1 -- 0.00 8,000.00

0651082 J8P0605I
 US 65, CHRISTIAN CO; ADD LANES FROM RT CC 

TO RT 14 IN OZARK
CHRISTIAN MODOT CC1901

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2019, 2020 (AC), 2021

(AC), 2022 (AC), 2023
$10,300,800.00 $0.00 Y001 7/10/2024 12,809,566.09 40,000.00 0.00

Y001 7/25/2023 6,345.57 42,638.40

YS30 4/08/2024 260,255.22 0.00

9/01/2023 (6,345.57)

7/25/2023 6,345.57

Z922 4/08/2024 5,703,647.80 0.00

L23E -- 0.00 1,805,388.96

L23R -- 0.00 190,111.86

M0E1 -- 0.00 1,995,500.82

M230 -- 0.00 0.00

M23E -- 0.00 1,486,740.21

MS40 -- 0.00 0.00

Z001 10/24/2023 (249,722.22) 2,664,502.07

ZS40 -- 0.00 2,250,000.00

M230 10/17/2023 (26,678.57) 1,108,035.39

Z001 10/17/2023 (38,707.15) 1,380,017.82

Y240 -- 0.00 795,663.98

YS30 4/25/2024 6,961.00 0.00

Z001 -- 0.00 12,800.00

Y001 -- 0.00 141,811.76

Y240 8/22/2023 0.01 5,705,362.36

YS30 8/22/2023 308.91 183,290.33

YS31 8/22/2023 (15,940.80) 692,940.80

Z001 -- 0.00 1,645,648.74

Z0E1 -- 0.00 354,432.14

Z230 -- 0.00 315,434.00

Y001 7/10/2024 1,198,865.47 0.00

YS31 7/10/2024 17,790.00 0.00

Z001 11/14/2023 (8,280.80) 27,200.00

1601052 J8P2389
US 160, GREENE COUNTY. INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS AT RTE. AB AND AT MILLER 

ROAD IN WILLARD. 0.20 MI

GREENE MODOT WI1301

2013-2016,

2014-2017,

2015-2018,

2017-2020

2013, 2014, 2015,

2016, 2017
$44,800.00 $0.00 Z231 10/17/2023 0.00 2,426.68 COMPLETE

Y001 2/09/2024 147,475.17 0.00

Z001 -- 0.00 24,605.47

Z0E1 2/09/2024 10,631.16 1,183,304.72

Y001 8/08/2023 36,303.55 106,600.00

Z001 -- 0.00 261,600.00

Z0E1 -- 0.00 270,400.00

H230 11/28/2023 (0.01) 21,308.22

L23E -- 0.00 262,442.91

L23R -- 0.00 234,340.01

Y230 11/28/2023 (0.01) 40,193.00

5900850 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; GREENE CO; 

TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

IMPROVEMENTS IN SPRINFIELD AT VARIOUS 

LOCATIONS, INCLUDING TRAFFIC SIGNAL 

CONTROLLERS

GREENE SPRINGFIELD SP2404
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2025 $0.00 $2,450,000.00 Y230 9/12/2023 2,450,000.00 0.00 0.00

5900851 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; GREENE CO; 

RESURFACING OF VARIOUS PRIMARY ARTERIAL, 

SECONDARY ARTERIAL, AND COLLECTOR 

STREETS IN SPRINGFIELD ON THE FEDERAL AID 

S

GREENE SPRINGFIELD SP2405
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2025 $0.00 $3,885,000.00 Y230 6/06/2024 3,548,353.60 0.00 336,646.40

0.00

COMPLETE

0.00

0.00

566,825.33

1,183.48

4,820,296.45

COMPLETE

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,219,913.01

COMPLETE

2019, 2020, 2021,

2022, 2023, 2024
$5,495,200.00 $0.00

2022 $560,000.00 $0.00

2020, 2021, 2022,

2023
$1,802,400.00 $0.00

2020, 2021, 2022 $1,367,200.00 $0.00

2020, 2021, 2022,

2023
$7,392,300.00 $0.00

2019, 2020 (AC), 2021

(AC), 2022 (AC), 2023
$8,232,800.00 $0.00

<2012, 2012, 2013,

2014, 2015, 2015

(AC), 2016, 2017

$7,727,110.00 $0.00

2016 $2,316,510.00 $0.00

2022 $5,475,200.00 $0.00

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC) $196,000.00 $0.00

2019, 2020, 2021,

2022, 2023
$710,400.00 $0.00

2022 $7,818,400.00 $0.00

2020-2023 A5,

2022-2025

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2010-2013

(SP1017),

2012-2015

(SP1109),

2013-2016

(SP1109),

2014-2017

(SP1109),

2015-2018 AM4

(SP1109),

2017-2020 (SP1109)

2015-2018 AM6

2019-2022,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2020-2023 A7,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2020‐2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2022-2025

2022-2025

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2019-2022 A2,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

Z0E1

GR2106

SP1603 (SPLIT

FROM SP1109)

SP1903

SP2003

GR2003

SP2008

SP1908

SP2205

SP2204

RP2202

CC1902

SP1017,

SP1109

GREENE

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

CHRISTIAN

GREENE

MILL/FILL AND ADA UPGRADES ON FARM RD 

135(GOLDEN AVE) FROM REPUBLIC RD TO CITY 

LIMITS AND FARM RD 102(VALLEY WATER MILL) 

FROM FARM RD 171 TO FARM RD

BU 65, GREENE CO; UTILITY RELOCATE & 

ACCESS IMPROVES FOR RR CROSSING GRADE 

SEPERATION AT CHESTNUT EXPWY & BNSF RR 

0.2 MI W/O RT 65

BU 65, GREENE CO, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

ON GLENSTONE AVE FROM BATTLEFIELD RD TO 

RT 60 (JAMES RIVER FREEWAY) & ON NATURE 

CENTER WAY AT REED AVE IN SPRIN

BUS 65, GREEN CO; MODIFY ACCESS, SIGNALS, 

ADA IMPROVEMENS AND REPLACE BUS STOP 

PADS FROM VALLEY WATER MILL RD TO RT 60 IN 

SPRINGFIELD

GREENE CO, US 65, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

ON NORTHBOUND LANES FROM NORTH OF I-44 

TO RT KK

GREENE CO, US 160 E, PAVEMENT 

RESURFACING FROM I-44 TO RT 413 (SUNSHINE 

ST)

GREENE CO, MO 413, BRIDGE REPLACEMENT, 

ADD SIDEWALKS, AND ADA TRANS PLAN 

IMPROVE ON SUNSHINE ST .1M E/O SCENIC AVE 

TO RT 13 (KANSAS EXPRESSWAY) IN SPR

GREENE CO, US 60, ADD LANES & SOUND 

ABATEMENT ON JAMES RIVER FREEWAY FROM 

W OF RT 160(CAMPBELL AVE)TO NATIONAL AVE 

IN SPRINGFIELD.

US 60, GREENE CO; ADD LANES ON JAMES RIVER 

FREEWAY FROM RT 13 (KANSAS EXP) TO W/O RT 

160 (CAMPBELL AVE) IN SPRINGFIELD

GREENE CO, US 60, PAVE RESURF FROM CO RD 

194 TO .7 MI W OF ILLINOIS ST IN REPUBLIC.

US 65, CHRISTIAN CO; ADD LANES FROM RT 14 

TO RT F AND BRIDGE REHAB OVER THE FINLEY 

RIVER IN OZARK

BUS 65 GREENE CO; RAILROAD CROSSING 

GRADE SEP AT CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY & BNSF 

0.2 MI W/0 RTE 65; 0.23 MI

N/A

J8P2196B

J8S3112

J8S3160

J8P3164

J8P3170

J8S3157

J8P3032C

J8P3032D

J8P3198

J8P0605J

J8P2196

5900849

0652099

0652108

0652112

0652114

1601074

4131009

0602115

0602116

0602120

0651083

0652087

Page 2 of 6



PROJECT 

NO
JOB NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION COUNTY SPONSOR TIP NUMBER TIP YEARS PROGRAMMED YEAR*

PREVIOUSLY 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

FUTURE 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

PROGRAM 

CODE
TRANS DATE

FED FUND 

CHANGE

PREVIOUS 

ALOP(S) FUNDING 

CHANGE

REMAINING 

FEDERAL FUNDS

5901817 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, GREENE CO; CONST 

APPROX 1.650 LINEAR FT OF FASSNIGHT CREEK 

GREENWAY, EXTENDING TRAIL FROM CLAY ST 

THROUGH PHELPS GROVE PARK TO BR

GREENE SPRINGFIELD EN2009
2020-2023 A3,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2023 $217,461.00 $0.00 Z230 1/3/2024 0.00 217,461.00 COMPLETE

5901821 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM 

IMPROVE IN SPRINGFIELD AT VARIOUS 

LOCATIONS, INCLUDING CABINET REPLACE AND 

ADVANCED VEHICLE DETECTION INSTA

GREENE SPRINGFIELD SP2016
2020-2023 AM6,

2022-2025
2022 $760,000.00 $0.00 Z230 1/3/2024 0.00 620,000.00 COMPLETE

5901827 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; GREENE CO; JORDAN 

CREEK TRAIL THROUGH SMITH PARK; 

CONSTRUCT MULTI-USE PATH THROUGH SMITH 

PARK TO DIVISION STREET, INCLUDING THE A

GREENE SPRINGFIELD EN2410
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $15,032.00 $100,210.00 Y301 1/09/2024 14,800.77 0.00 100,441.23

5901828 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; GREENE CO; SHERMAN 

PARKWAY LINK; CONSTRUCT THE LINK ALONG 

SHERMAN PKWY FROM JORDAN VALLEY PARK 

TO CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY, INCLUDING 

GREENE SPRINGFIELD EN2411
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $61,295.00 $408,635.00 Y601 3/18/2024 58,722.86 0.00 411,207.14

5901829 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; GREENE CO; MOUNT 

VERNON AND MILLER SIDEWALKS; PEDESTRIAN 

AND ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS ALONG MT 

VERNON ST AND MILLER AVENUE

GREENE SPRINGFIELD EN2412
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $130,385.00 $869,236.00 Y301 5/15/2024 124,798.92 0.00 750,023.16

5901830 N/A

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; GREENE CO; SOUTH 

CREEK GREENWAY FREMONT TO GLENSTONE; 

CONSTRUCT PEDESTRIAN PATHWAY FROM 

FREMONT TO GLENSTONE

GREENE SPRINGFIELD EN2413
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $96,641.00 $644,270.00 Y601 5/15/2024 96,641.00 0.00 644,270.00

11/28/2023 (2,350.15)

8/28/2023 16,000.00

H230 -- 0.00 41,436.78

HY10 -- 0.00 273,751.00

L230 -- 0.00 352,977.68

L23R -- 0.00 59,968.80

LY10 -- 0.00 1,166,089.00

M230 -- 0.00 3,043,427.54

12/01/2023 (41,040.72)

9/15/2023 6,575,516.11

12/01/2023 0.01

9/15/2023 3,686,085.19

12/01/2023 (2,138,827.85)

9/15/2023 2,303,580.57

Z905 -- 0.00 1,625,285.00

Z910 -- 0.00 408,019.70

Y230 9/01/2023 162,856.16 329,463.00

Z230 -- 0.00 295,001.60

5944805 N/A

CITY OF WILLARD; GREENE CO; RESURFACING 

ON JACKSON ST FROM HIGHWAY 160 TO TOWER 

ROAD

GREENE WILLARD WI2301

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2024, 2025 $30,253.00 $327,060.00 Y230 3/06/2024 14,415.60 0.00 342,897.40

6/14/2024 85,900.15

8/01/2023 (245.00)

Z001 -- 0.00 22,400.00

Y001 8/01/2023 (43,099.36) 1,753,558.92

Y600 5/10/2024 49,069.91 0.00

Z001 -- 0.00 180,528.80

Y001 8/09/2023 0.03 2,587,233.47

Y600 5/10/2024 355,816.83 0.00

Z001 -- 0.00 211,853.60

Y001 -- 0.00 3,247,399.02

Y600 5/01/2024 340,078.55 0.00

Z001 -- 0.00 231,337.60

6/14/2024 224,837.39 1,118,347.07

8/01/2023 (416.25) 0.00

Y001 8/03/2023 (76,016.40) 551,650.01

YS31 8/03/2023 (57.05) 581,070.79

360,000.00

12,968.61

13,178,798.18

0.00

1,617,815.45

0.00

0.00

0.00

760,952.65

1,279,424.40

500,679.24

0.00

0.00

COMPLETE

2023, 2024 $1,817,600.00 $0.00

2019 (AC), 2020 (AC),

2021 (AC), 2022 (AC),

2023 (AC), 2024 (AC)

$2,303,200.00 $0.00

2017, 2018, 2019,

2020, 2021, 2022,

2023, 2024

$636,000.00 $0.00

2020, 2021, 2022,

2023, 2024
$1,316,800.00 $0.00

2020 (AC), 2021 (AC),

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)

$1,812,800.00 $0.00

2020 (AC), 2021 (AC),

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)

$2,019,200.00 $0.00

2023 $1,288,000.00 $0.00

2023, 2023 (AC) $988,000.00 $0.00

2016, 2017, 2018,

2019, 2020, 2021,

2022, 2024

$31,827,460.00 $0.00

2020‐2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2019-2022,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022-2025 AM5,

2023-2026

2015-2018 A1,

2017-2020,

2018-2021,

2019-2022,

2020-2023 AM6,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2023 A7,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

Y001

Z23E

Y001

Y230

Y230

Z230

GR2004

EN2005

EN2006

EN1901

SP1708

SP2307

MO2301

GR1501,

GR1901,

GR1902

SP2014

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

GREENE

SPRINGFIELD

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE CO, MO 744 E, PAVEMENT 

RESURFACING FROM EAST OF LOOP 44 

(GLENSTONE AVENUE) TO MULROY ROAD AND 

ON MULROY ROAD FROM RTE. OO TO I-44.

MO 744E, GREENE CO, UPGRADE PED FACIL TO 

COMPLY W/ADA TRANS PLAN VARIOUS 

LOCATIONS KEARNEY ST FROM E OF LOOP 

44(GLENSTONEAVE) TO LECOMPTE RD

GREENE CO, MO 744 W, UPGRADE PED FAC 

COMPLY W/ ADA TRANS PLAN KEARNEY ST 

FROM RT 160 (W BYPASS) TO RT 13 (KANSAS 

EXPRESSWAY) IN SPRINGFIELD.

MO 744 E, GREENE CO, UPGRADE PEDESTRIAN 

FACILITIES TO COMPLY WITH THE ADA 

TRANSITION PLAN ON KEARNEY STREET AT 

VARIOUS LOCATIONS BETWEEN RTE. 13 (KANS

GREENE CO, MO 744 E, PAVEMENT 

RESURFACING ON KEARNEY STREET FROM RTE. 

13 (KANSAS EXPRESSWAY) TO LOOP 44 

(GLENSTONE AVENUE).

MO 744 E, GREENE, ADD LANES AND MODIFY 

SIGNALS ON KEARNEY STREET FROM 

SPRINGFIELD-BRANSON NATIONAL AIRPORT TO 

LECOMPTE AVENUE.

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, GREEN CO; CITY/MODOT 

TMC SALARIES FOR FY2023

GREENE CO; PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE 

EXTENSION OF KANSAS EXPRESSWAY FROM 

REPUBLIC RD TO THE FUTURE EAST/WEST 

ARTERIAL.

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, ADA IMPROVE IN 

CONJUNCTION W/ OVERLAY NATIONAL AVE 

BETWEEN KEARNEY ST AND SUNSET ST, 

BATTLEFIELD RD BETWEEN GOLDEN AVE AND 

J8S3162

J8S3172

J8S3190

J8S3149

J8P3050C

JSU0085

N/A

N/A

N/A

7441016

7441017

7441018

7441019

7441020

7441022

5905811

5909802

5916808

Page 3 of 6



PROJECT 

NO
JOB NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION COUNTY SPONSOR TIP NUMBER TIP YEARS PROGRAMMED YEAR*

PREVIOUSLY 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

FUTURE 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

PROGRAM 

CODE
TRANS DATE

FED FUND 

CHANGE

PREVIOUS 

ALOP(S) FUNDING 

CHANGE

REMAINING 

FEDERAL FUNDS

Y230 -- 0.00 54,307.00

12/19/2023 5,927.20

9/15/2023 13,088.60

Z23E -- 0.00 680,183.33

Y230 -- 0.00 32,786.61

Z230 11/28/2023 (18,939.37) 199,219.08

Y230 8/22/2023 400,800.00 0.00

Z230 -- 0.00 392,000.00

Y230 2/14/2024 113,524.01 131,584.31

Z23E 10/30/2023 4,209.45 0.00

9901835 N/A

OTO, PREPARATION OF CONCEPTUAL REPORT 

FOR THE I-44/MO 13 INTERCHANGE, INCLUDING 

MO 13 FROM FARM RD 94 TO MO 744.

GREENE OTO SP2216 2022-2025 2022 $240,000.00 $0.00 Z23E 11/28/2023 (184.95) 236,004.19 COMPLETE

6/07/2024 (200,994.41)

3/18/2024 672,698.36

Y300 10/27/2023 230,687.54 0.00

Z23E 10/27/2023 57,671.89 0.00

9901851 N/A

CITY OF OZARK IN CHRISTIAN COUNTY, 

CONSTRUCT A 10' WIDE MULTIUSE TRAIL TO 

EXISTING SIDEWALK ALONG PARKVIEW ST.  

THEN CONSTRUCT AN ADDITIONAL 10' TRAIL

CHRISTIAN OZARK OK2302
2023-2026 A3,

2024-2027 A3,

2025-2028

2024, 2025 $39,088.00 $229,369.00 Y300 11/02/2023 39,088.45 0.00 229,368.55

9901858 N/A

CITY OF STRAFFORD; GREENE COUNTY; 

SIDEWALK ALONG ROUTE 00 FROM ROUTE 125 

TO JUST EAST OF DOLLAR GENERAL

GREENE STRAFFORD ST2302

2023-2026 A4,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2024, 2025 $20,783.00 $175,223.00 Z303 2/14/2024 20,782.65 0.00 175,223.35

9901859 N/A

CITY OF BATTLEFIELD; GREENE CO; TRAIL OF 

TEARS CONNECTOR; TRAIL/SIDEWALK 

CONSTRUCTION FROM CITY PARK TRAIL IN 

CLOVERDALE TO FARM RD 131

GREENE BATTLEFIELD EN2401
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $38,133.00 $284,718.00 Y301 2/14/2024 38,132.61 0.00 284,718.39

9901860 N/A

CITY OF NIXA; CHRISTIAN CO; CHEYENNE RD 

MULTI-USE PATH; MULTI-USE PATH 

CONSTRUCTION FROM NORTH ST, FROM 

CHEYENNE RD TO SUMMIT ELEMENTARY, 

CHEYENNE VAL

CHRISTIAN NIXA EN2403
2024-2027,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $102,057.00 $602,134.00 Y300 1/03/2024 102,057.00 0.00 602,134.00

9901862 N/A

CITY OF OZARK; CHRISTIAN CO; CHADWICK 

FLYER PHASE V; CONSTRUCT 10-FT WIDE TRAIL 

ALONG N 20TH ST IN OZARK FROM BIAGIO TO 

BIAGIO

CHRISTIAN OZARK EN2405
2024-2027 AM7,

2025-2028
2024, 2025 $42,705.00 $586,095.00 Y601 4/01/2024 42,705.03 0.00 586,094.97

B039040 N/A

GREENE CO, BRIDGE REPLACEMENT AND 

ROADWAY REALIGNMENT FOR BRIDGE 2230071 

ON FARM RD 223 OVER LITTLE SAC RIVER

GREENE GREENE GR2210
2022-2025 A4,

2023-2026
2023 $560,000.00 $0.00 Y233 3/18/2024 22,834.92 642,799.00 0.00

6/20/2024 27,885.02

5/10/2024 14,833.44

NBI9798 N/A

GREENE COUNTY; 2024 CONTRACT 

UNDERWATER INSPECTIONS FOR NON-FEDERAL 

AID ROUTES

GREENE MODOT N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Y240 5/08/2024 25,571.93 0.00 0.00

S601057 J8P0601

US 160, GREENE CO, TO IMPROVE CAPACITY & 

SAFETY FROM RT 123 IN WILLARD TO I-44 IN 

SPRINGFIELD

GREENE MODOT WI1001

2017-2020 A2,

2018-2021,

2019-2022

2017, 2018, 2019 $99,200.00 $0.00 Z240 10/17/2023 0.00 84,935.40 COMPLETE

M230 4/02/2024 (13,962.87) 959,126.13

ZS30 4/02/2024 (15,731.53) 1,119,353.28

M230 -- 0.00 100,286.00

Z231 11/07/2023 (25,847.37) 119,054.42

Z240 11/07/2023 (11,050.80) 18,101.32

Y001 -- 0.00 275,084.34

Y230 11/21/2023 10,154.76 0.00

11/21/2023 10,154.76

7/21/2023 (119,639.74)

Z0E1 -- 0.00

Z230 7/21/2023 (262,614.97) 1,877,111.73

Z001 1/31/2024 (7,714.76) 27,830.40

Z002 1/31/2024 (21,833.10) 161,515.11

0.00

1,887,686.04

79,874.23

58,716.29

COMPLETE

COMPLETE

0.00

COMPLETE

212,427.76

1,787,634.57

0.00

37,568.64

COMPLETE

7,200.00

1,623,828.23

2017, 2018, 2019 $338,586.00 $0.00

2018, 2019, 2022 $3,532,000.00 $0.00

2019 $369,600.00 $0.00

N/A N/A N/A

2017, 2018, 2019 $1,985,600.00 $0.00

2024, 2025 $288,360.00 $1,787,634.00

2023, 2024 $742,848.00 $0.00

2023 $800,000.00 $0.00

2023, 2024, 2025 $249,317.00 $1,623,829.00

2021, 2022 $870,949.00 $0.00

2020, 2022 $286,886.00 $0.00

N/A

2017-2020 A1,

2018-2021 AM1,

2019-2022

2017-2020 A3,

2018-2021,

2019-2022 A5

2018-2021 A4,

2019-2022 A3,

2020-2023 AM5,

2022-2025 AM4

2019-2022

2020-2023 A3,

2022-2025

2022-2025,

2023-2026 A6

2022-2025,

2023-2026 AM4,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2022-2025 AM1,

2023-2026 AM7,

2024-2027

2023-2026 AM6,

2024-2027 AM7,

2025-2028

2020-2023 AM6,

2022-2025

Z001

Y230

Y240

Z230

N/A

RP1801

EN1708

SP1818

GR1904

EN2008

EN2011

CC2103

NX2101

EN2204

OK2304

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

OZARK

BATTLEFIELD

CHRISTIAN

NIXA

OZARK

OZARK

GREENE

GREENE

CHRISTIAN

GREENE

GREENE

CHRISTIAN

GREENE

CHRISTIAN

CHRISTIAN

CHRISTIAN

CHRISTIAN

2024 CONTRACT UNDERWATER INSPECTIONS 

FOR FEDERAL AID ROUTES

RT M, GREENE CO, ADD ROUNDABOUT AT CO RD 

103 & REPMO DR IN REPUBLIC.

MO 14, CHRISTIAN CO, PEDESTRIAN 

IMPROVEMENTS ON MT VERNON ST FROM 

CEDAR HEIGHTS DR TO ELLEN AVE IN NIXA

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, GREENE CO; REPUBLIC 

RD PHASE 5, WIDEN LANES, ADD CURB/GUTTER, 

SIDEWALKS & ACCESS CONTROL AS NEEDED AT 

CAMPBELL AVE

GREENE CO, US 160, BRIDGE REHABILITATION 

OVER THE FRISCO HIGHLINE TRAIL NEAR 

WILLARD

CITY OF OZARK, CONST 3,200 FT CHADWICK 

FLYER TRAIL BETWEEN CLAY ST AND JACKSON 

ST, 500FT TRAIL RUNNING NW FROM JACKSON, 

W OF 12TH ST, TO DIANE ST, 2 P

CITY OF BATTLEFIELD, CONSTRUCT TRAIL 

CONNECTING ELM ST AND SOMERSET ST 

THROUGH TRAIL OF TEARS PARK, INCLUDING 

WIDENING PARTS OF TRAIL.

CHRISTIAN CO; REHAB, WIDING AND REDECKING 

OF BRIDGE ALONG WITH WIDENING THE 

APPROACH ROADWAY TO MATCH NEW BRIDGE 

ON NELSON MILL RD BRIDGE

CITY OF NIXA, CHRISTIAN CO, NORTH MAIN ST 

WIDENING, SIDEWALKS, & ASSOCIATED 

IMPROVEMENTS FROM NORTH OF TRACKER TO 

SOUTH OF RT CC

CITY OF OZARK, CHRISTIAN CO; CONSTRUCT A 

SECTION OF CHADWICK FLYER TRAIL FROM THE 

TERMINUS OF EXISTING TRAIL LOCATED ON THE 

SE CORNER OF THE OLDE WORL

US 65, CHRISTIAN CO, CONSTRUCT A TRAIL 

PEDESTRIAN CROSSING (BRIDGE) AND 

APPROACHES OVER US 65 IN THE CITY OF 

OZARK NEAR WHERE THE ORIGINAL BNSF - 

N/A

J8P3088D, JJ8P3088D

J8P3104, JJ8P3104

J8P3087C

J8P3150

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

NBI9797

S601061

S601065

S602027

S602065

9901827

9901828

9901830

9901831

9901837

9901849

Page 4 of 6



PROJECT 

NO
JOB NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION COUNTY SPONSOR TIP NUMBER TIP YEARS PROGRAMMED YEAR*

PREVIOUSLY 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

FUTURE 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

PROGRAM 

CODE
TRANS DATE

FED FUND 

CHANGE

PREVIOUS 

ALOP(S) FUNDING 

CHANGE

REMAINING 

FEDERAL FUNDS

7/02/2024 85,929.44

8/03/2023 (226.25)

Y240 5/17/2024 2,231.46 1,204.73

Z24E -- 0.00 20,800.00

5/30/2024 99,227.28

3/04/2024 1,161,768.45

Z001 -- 0.00 12,800.00

Z0E1 -- 0.00 157,601.57

S603071 J8S3179

CST NORTON RD, GREENE CO; UPGRADE PED 

FACILITIES FOR ADA PLAN ON NORTON RD NEAR 

RT 13 IN SPRINGFIELD

GREENE MODOT EN2103
2020-2023 A5,

2022-2025
2021 (AC), 2022 (AC) $252,800.00 $0.00 Z24E 8/15/2023 (25,052.59) 296,487.31 COMPLETE

6/26/2024 41,699.00

9/12/2023 100,000.00

Z21E 9/12/2023 870,000.00 0.00

Z230 9/12/2023 (13,941.26) 135,200.00

Y237 -- 0.00 2,864.35

Y240 7/21/2023 27,692.10 161,802.90

Z2E1 7/21/2023 630.27 8,000.00

Y607 5/10/2024 380,929.88 0.00

Z2E1 -- 0.00 60,957.32

Y240 5/08/2024 366,537.12 621,553.66

Z03E -- 0.00 159,793.29

Z24E -- 0.00 48,000.00

Y001 7/02/2024 2,244,294.53 0.00

Z0E1 7/02/2024 8,312.22 29,600.00

Z2E2 -- 0.00 8,000.00

Z921 2/14/2024 50,331.52 0.00

S604071 J8S3227
RT WW, GREENE CO, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

FROM RT 13 TO RT H.
GREENE MODOT GR2207

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)
$622,400.00 $0.00 Y237 6/07/2024 466,309.94 0.00 156,090.06

S604073 J8S3226
GREENE CO, RT C, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

FROM RT 65 TO RT 125 N OF STRAFFORD.
GREENE MODOT GR2202

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)
$313,600.00 $0.00 Y237 6/07/2024 261,522.61 0.00 52,077.39

S604085 J8S3240

CST REPUBLIC ST E, GREENE, BRIDGE 

REHABILITATION OVER RTE. 60 (JAMES RIVER 

FREEWAY) 0.5 MILE EAST OF RTE. 13 (KANSAS 

EXPRESSWAY) IN SPRINGFIELD.

GREENE MODOT SP2211
2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022, 2023, 2024 $951,200.00 $0.00 Y001 3/07/2024 (40,947.39) 96,000.00 896,147.39

S604093 J8S0736F
RT CC, CHRISTIAN CO; SCOPING FOR 

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT MAIN STREET 

IN NIXA

CHRISTIAN MODOT NX2202

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC), 2025 (AC)
$472,000.00 $3,663,200.00 Y237 4/30/2024 44,186.41 404,890.08 3,686,123.51

YS30 5/15/2024 1,505,799.13 0.00

YS31 5/15/2024 840,000.00 0.00

L23R -- 0.00 13,829.74

M23E 7/28/2023 0.02 5,405.81

Z230 -- 0.00 23,973.95

Z23E 7/28/2023 (240,505.26) 245,494.96

Z972 -- 0.00 1,246,730.00

5/30/2024 91,784.35

5/15/2024 453,416.94

5/30/2024 30,697.56

5/15/2024 143,559.20

S605047 JSU0210

CST WEAVER RD E, GREENE, SCOPING FOR 

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS FROM EAST OF RTE. 

FF TO CLOVERDALE LANE.

GREENE MODOT BA2402 2024-2027 A3 2024 $141,082.00 $0.00 M23E 2/29/2024 80,000.00 0.00 61,082.00

7/20/2023 16,599.00

9/9/2023 1,845.00

FY 2021 5310 PROJECTS MO1729 2023, 2024, 2025 $616,044.00 $21,358.00 CAPITAL 7/20/2023 165,994.00

7/20/2023 117,369.00

7/20/2023 60,831.00

0.00 N/A

2017-2020 A5,

2018-2021,

2019-2022 A4,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

0.00 N/A

CAPITALMO-2023-023MO16X094 FY 2021-2022 5310 PROJECTS GREENE CITY UTILITIES CU2205

2022-2025,

2023-2026 A4,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2024, 2025 $178,200.00 $272,488.00

$52,379.00 ADMINFY 2021 5310 ADMINISTRATION MO1901 2019, 2023, 2025 $53,479.00

MO16X093 MO-2023-022
CHRISTIAN,

GREENE
MODOT

0.00

0.00

1,225,225.76

0.00

0.00

452,400.78

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

180,868.48

697,100.87

354,402.70

142,642.26

0.00

0.00

2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, 

2024
$540,800.00 $0.00

2023, 2024 $3,042,900.00 $0.00

2023, 2023 (AC), 2023, 

2023 (AC)
$1,747,330.00 $0.00

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)
$239,200.00 $0.00

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)
$577,600.00 $0.00

2022, 2023, 2024 $2,278,400.00 $0.00

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC) $158,400.00 $0.00

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC) $281,600.00 $0.00

2020, 2021,

2022, 2023, 2024
$1,785,800.00 $0.00

2020, 2021, 2022,

2023, 2023 (AC)
$1,275,600.00 $0.00

2020 (AC), 2021 (AC),

2022 (AC), 2023 (AC),

2024 (AC)

$726,400.00 $0.00

2023-2026 AM1,

2024-2027

2022-2025 AM1,

2023-2026 AM1

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2022-2025,

2023-2026

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027 AM2

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2026,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2020-2023 A1,

2022-2025,

2023-2026

Y001

YS30

Y001

Y600

Y700

GR2204

SP2308

EN2205

SP2013

RP2203

EN2202

RP2201

SP2206

SP2006

EN2007

GR2010

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

MODOT

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE

GREENE CO, RT DD, PAVEMENT RESURFACING 

FROM RT 125 IN STRAFFORD TO THE WEBSTER 

CO LINE. 

US 65, GREENE CO, ADD J-TURN AT BLUEGRASS 

ROAD (COUNTY ROAD 94)

RT ZZ N, GREENE, ADD BICYCLE AND 

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL FROM RTE. M TO COUNTY 

ROAD 182 IN REPUBLIC.

LP 44 E, GREENE, PAVEMENT RESURFACING ON 

CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY FROM SCENIC AVENUE 

TO WEST OF RTE. 13 (KANSAS EXPRESSWAY).

 GREENE CO, RT P, PAVEMENT RESURFING 

FROM RT 60 TO COUNTY RD 194 IN REPUBLIC.

RT P N, GREENE, UPGRADE PEDESTRIAN 

FACILITIES TO COMPLY WITH THE ADA 

TRANSITION PLAN FROM RTE. 60 TO GRACE 

STREET AND ON RTE. 174 FROM LINDSEY 

RT MM, GREENE CO, ADD SIGNALS AT RAMPS 

AND RECONFIGURE LANES AT I-44

LP 44 E, GREENE, PAVEMENT RESURFACING ON 

CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY FROM LULLWOOD 

AVENUE TO SCENIC AVENUE AND FROM EAST OF 

RTE. 13 (KANSAS EXPRESSWAY) TO 0.1

GREENE CO, MO 744 W, PAVEMENT 

RESURFACING ON KEARNEY STREET FROM 

SPRINGFIELD-BRANSON NATIONAL AIRPORT TO 

WEST OF RTE. 13 (KANSAS EXPRESSWAY) IN 

SPRING

BU 65 N, GREENE, UPGRADE PED FACILITIES TO 

COMPLY W ADA TRANSITION PLAN AT VARIOUS 

LOCATIONS ON CHESTNUT EXPRESSWAY FROM 

E BUS 65 TO E OF BELCREST AVE

GREENE CO, RT ZZ S, ADD ROUNDABOUT ON 

WILSON'S CREEK BLVD AT COUNTY RD 182.

J8S3228

JSU0101

JSU0054

J8S3166

J8S3199

J8S3200

J8S3239

J8S3224

J8S3169

J8S3171

J8S3194

S604070

S605003

S605022

S605040

S604037

S604038

S604043

S604069

S603057

S603070

S603073

Page 5 of 6



PROJECT 

NO
JOB NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION COUNTY SPONSOR TIP NUMBER TIP YEARS PROGRAMMED YEAR*

PREVIOUSLY 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

FUTURE 

PROGRAMMED 

FEDERAL FUNDS

PROGRAM 

CODE
TRANS DATE

FED FUND 

CHANGE

PREVIOUS 

ALOP(S) FUNDING 

CHANGE

REMAINING 

FEDERAL FUNDS

2/23/2024 147,178.00

6/18/2024 147,389.00

2/23/2024 1,324,601.00

6/18/2024 1,326,497.00

CHRISTIAN, 26,110.00

GREENE 26,269.00

234,990.00

236,418.00

OTHER CAPITAL ITEMS (BUS) GREENE CITY UTILITIES CU2304 2023-2026 A4 2023 $4,447,855.00 $0.00 CAPITAL 6/14/2024 1,100,000.00

OPERATING ASSISTANCE GREENE CITY UTILITIES CU2407 2024-2027 2025 $0.00 $3,895,855.00 OPERATING 6/14/2024 2,795,855.00

CAPITAL 6/18/2024 50,000.00

CAPITAL 6/18/2024 100,000.00

MO340032 MO-2022-018 BUS - ROLLING STOCK GREENE CITY UTILITIES CU2401

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027

2024 $720,000.00 $0.00 CAPITAL 6/26/2026 16,955.00 781,756.00 0.00

*Note: (AC) indicates Advanced Construction, which means MoDOT funds the project during the initial completion and then requests reimbursement with federal funds at a projected later date.

0.00 161,756.00

0.00 N/A

2017-2020 A5,

2018-2021,

2019-2022 A4,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

2017-2020 A5,

2018-2021,

2019-2022 A4,

2020-2023,

2022-2025,

2023-2026,

2024-2027,

2025-2028

0.00 N/A

0.00 N/A

0.00 N/A

6/18/2024

6/18/2024

MO904002 MO-2024-011

MO340035 MO-2024-012 BUS - ROLLING STOCK GREENE CITY UTILITIES CU2204
2022-2025,

2023-2026
2023 $311,756.00 $0.00

2019, 2023, 2025

2023, 2024, 2025

$53,479.00

$616,044.00

$52,379.00

$21,358.00

ADMIN

CAPITAL

MO160039 MO-2024-016

FY 2023 5310 ADMINISTRATION

FY 2023 5310 PROJECTS
CHRISTIAN,

GREENE

MODOT

MODOT

MO1901

MO1729

MO16X095

FY2022-2023 5310 ADMINISTRATION

FY2022-2023 5310 PROJECTS

CHRISTIAN,

GREENE
MODOT MO1901 2019, 2023, 2025 $53,479.00 $52,379.00 ADMIN

CHRISTIAN,

GREENE
MODOT MO1729 2023, 2024, 2025 $616,044.00 $21,358.00 CAPITAL

MO-2024-009

Page 6 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report was prepared in cooperation with the USDOT, 
including FHWA and FTA, as well as the Missouri 

Department of Transportation.  The opinions, findings, and 
conclusions expressed in this publication are those of the 

authors and not necessarily those of the Missouri 
Highways and Transportation Commission, the Federal 

Highway Administration or the Federal Transit 
Administration. 

  

 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
2208 W. Chesterfield Boulevard, Suite 101 

Springfield, Missouri 65807 
(417) 865-3042 

(417) 862-6013 Fax 
www.OzarksTransportation.org 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 2 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.H. 

Federal Funds Obligation Status – September 2024 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
Ozarks Transportation Organization is allocated Urban Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG-Urban) 
funds each year through MoDOT from the Federal Highway Administration.  OTO has elected to sub-
allocate the STBG-Urban funds among the jurisdictions within the MPO area.  Each of these jurisdiction’s 
allocations is based upon the population within the MPO area.  OTO’s balance is monitored as a whole 
by MoDOT, while OTO staff monitors each jurisdiction’s individual balance.   
 
THE OTO AREA MUST OBLIGATE $11.5 MILLION BY SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 OR MODOT WILL TAKE 
FUNDING TO USE ON MODOT ROADS.  In the past, MoDOT has limited OTO to no more than three 
years of accumulated funding as a balance.  To limit the accumulation of funds and to maximize August 
redistribution, MoDOT has now established a statewide goal that 120 percent of allocated funds are 
obligated each year, with 100 percent as the minimum amount to be obligated.  As OTO received $10.4 
million for FY 2024, the minimum amount to be obligated is $11.5 million, with a goal of $12.5 million. 
 
As of September 11, 2024, OTO has obligated $6,426,979.  Another $7,459,731 has been submitted to 
MoDOT and is pending obligation.  These two actions will obligate 132 percent of OTO’s annual 
allocation. 
 
Staff has developed a status report which documents Federal Fiscal Year obligations to date, as well as 
the amount that needs to be obligated by the end of the Federal Fiscal Year in order to not be rescinded 
by MoDOT.  
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
No official action is requested, however, OTO is requesting each jurisdiction review the report for any 
inaccuracies or changes in project status and advise staff.   



Federal Funds Balance Report
FY 2024 Status

FY 2023 Ending Balance All Funds 4,444,316.10

FY 2024 Allocations (100%) All Funds 10,481,073.00

FY 2024 Obligations/Deobligations All Funds (6,426,979.33)

Balance as of 9/11/2024 All Funds 8,498,409.77

Pending Obligations/Deobligations (7,459,731.00)

Pending Balance 1,038,678.77

Percent Obligated/Pending Obligation All Funds 132%

List of FY 2024 Obligations/Deobligations

0652099 Chestnut RR Utilities STBG-Urban 26,678.57

9901849 Chadwick Flyer 65 Overpass STBG-Urban (57,671.89)

9901849 Chadwick Flyer 65 Overpass TAP (230,687.54)

9901831 N. Main Street STBG-Urban (4,209.45)

9901851 Chadwick Spur TAP (39,088.45)

S602027 Campbell and Republic STBG-Urban (10,154.76)

5900849 FR 135/102 Mill/Fill/ADA STBG-Urban 0.01

5900849 FR 135/102 Mill/Fill/ADA STBG-Urban 0.01

5905811 TMC Staff 2023 STBG-Urban 2,350.15

9901828 Trail of Tears Elm SmrSet STBG-Urban 18,939.37

9901835 I-44/13 Study STBG-Urban 61.65

9901835 I-44/13 Study STBG-Urban 61.65

9901835 I-44/13 Study STBG-Urban 61.65

5909802 KS Extension STBG-Urban 2,138,827.85

5909802 KS Extension STBG-Urban 41,040.72

5909802 KS Extension STBG-Urban (0.01)

9901827 ChadwickFlyr Jackson/Clay STBG-Urban (5,927.20)

9901860 Cheyenne Multi-Use Path TAP (102,057.00)

5901827 Jordan Creek Smith Park TAP (14,800.77)

9901858 Strafford East SW TAP (20,782.65)

9901859 Battlefield ToT Extension TAP (38,132.61)

9901831 N. Main Street STBG-Urban (113,524.01)

S605047 Battlefield Weaver Scoping STBG-Urban (80,000.00)

5944805 Jackson Street Resurfacing STBG-Urban (14,415.60)

9901837 Chadwick Flyer Phase II STBG-Urban (672,698.36)

5901828 Sherman Parkway Link CRP (58,722.86)

9901862 Chadwick Phase V CRP (42,705.30)

S601061 FR 103/Repmo Roundabout STBG-Urban 13,962.87

5901830 South Ck Fremont/Glenstone CRP (96,641.00)

5901829 Mt. Vernon/Miller Sidewalks TAP (124,798.92)

5900851 Pavement Resurfacing STBG-Urban (3,548,353.60)

9901837 Chadwick Flyer Phase II STBG-Urban 200,994.41

00FY825 UPWP FY 2025 STBG-Urban (255,256.00)

5944805 Jackson Street Resurfacing STBG-Urban (342,897.40)

6900813 Shuyler Creek Trail STBG-Urban (177,737.97)

6900813 Shuyler Creek Trail TAP (1,264,015.09)

S605047 Weaver Road Improvements STBG-Urban (197,600.00)

9901864 Finley River Trail CRP (79,508.46)

5905812 FY 2025 TMC Staff STBG-Urban (480,000.00)

5944805 Jackson Street Resurfacing STBG-Urban 15,684.84

5901831 Grand Street Design CRP (240,000.00)

5901834 South Creek ESC CRP (128,303.00)

9901877 Blue Stem ESC CRP (57,811.23)

9901876 Kali Springs ESC CRP (25,910.00)

9901875 CFT Jackson ESC CRP (9,470.86)

5901837 Bennett ESC CRP (351,761.09)

Amount subtracted from balance (6,426,979.33)

MODOT MANDATED MINIMUM
FY 2024 Allocations @ 110% All Funds 11,529,180.30

FY 2024 Obligations/Deobligations All Funds (6,426,979.33)

110% Goal Obligations Remaining All Funds 5,102,200.97

Max Balance on 9/30/24 to Prevent MoDOT Rescinding Funds 3,396,208.80

MODOT MANDATED GOAL
FY 2024 Allocations @ 120% All Funds 12,577,287.60

FY 2024 Obligations/Deobligations All Funds (6,426,979.33)

120% Goal Obligations Remaining All Funds 6,150,308.27

Max Balance on 9/30/24 to Achieve MoDOT's Mandated Goal 2,348,101.50

Ozarks Transportation Organization 1 Funds Balance Report - 9/11/2024



Pending Obligations

Name Responsible Agency Transactions Total Obligations

PENDING OBLIGATIONS

S605031 CC Cost Share Ozark/MoDOT (441,198.00) (441,198.00)

S605063 N. Main Street Nixa (2,089,336.00) (2,530,534.00)

0442344 I-44 STBG-U Springfield (1,628,207.00) (4,158,741.00)

0442344 I-44 TAP MoDOT (302,006.00) (4,460,747.00)

5901832 EV Chargers OTO (592,800.00) (5,053,547.00)

5901836 Fassnight ESC OTO (135,030.00) (5,188,577.00)

9901849 Chadwick Flyer Overpass Ozark (1,787,634.00) (6,976,211.00)

9901851 Chadwick Flyer Spur to OHS Ozark (229,369.00) (7,205,580.00)

S604064 Strafford 125 West SW Strafford (219,600.00) (7,425,180.00)

5936804 Ward Branch ESC OTO (34,551.00) (7,459,731.00)

Total Pending Obligations (7,459,731.00)

MODOT MANDATED MINIMUM
110% Goal Obligations Remaining All Funds 5,102,200.97
Critical Obligations All Funds (7,459,731.00)

Obligations over MoDOT Mandated Minimum (2,357,530.03)

MODOT MANDATED GOAL
120% Goal Obligations Remaining All Funds 6,150,308.27
Critical Obligations All Funds (7,459,731.00)

Obligations over MoDOT Mandated Goal (1,309,422.73)

Ozarks Transportation Organization Page 2 Funds Balance Report - 9/11/2024



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 3 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.A. 

FRA Long Distance Service Study Resolution of Support 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) is conducting an Amtrak Daily Long-Distance Service Study to 
evaluate the restoration of daily long-distance intercity rail passenger service and the potential for new 
Amtrak long-distance routes. This study will ultimately create a long-term vision for long-distance 
passenger rail service and identify capital projects and funding needed to implement that vision. 

As a result of this planning process, a long distance route between New York and Dallas has been 
identified on the proposed network of preferred routes.  This route would bring passenger rail through 
Springfield and the OTO region, however further analysis and identification of funding after completion 
of this study would be necessary to advance the preferred routes through project planning and project 
development activities prior to implementation. 

OTO has developed a resolution to show support of this route and the next steps to fund and implement 
the FRA Long-Distance Service Study.  Excerpts from a presentation on the study are included in the 
agenda. 

More on the study and the presentation of recommendations can be found at this link: 
https://fralongdistancerailstudy.org/meeting-materials/#:~:text=June%202024-,Presentation,-
The%20PowerPoint%20presentation 

TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
At its regularly scheduled meeting on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee recommended 
the Board of Directors approve the Resolution of Support for passenger rail through the OTO region. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 

“Move to approve the Resolution of Support for the recommendations of the FRA Long Distance Service 
Study.” 

OR 

“Move to approve the Resolution of Support for the recommendations of the FRA Long Distance Service 
Study with the following changes…” 

https://fralongdistancerailstudy.org/meeting-materials/#:%7E:text=June%202024-,Presentation,-The%20PowerPoint%20presentation
https://fralongdistancerailstudy.org/meeting-materials/#:%7E:text=June%202024-,Presentation,-The%20PowerPoint%20presentation


Resolution # 2024-15 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF  

Ozarks Transportation Organization  
A Missouri Nonprofit Corporation 

September 19, 2024 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE THROUGH THE OTO REGION 

The members of the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Ozarks Transportation Organization Inc., a 
Missouri nonprofit corporation (the "Organization"), acting pursuant to RSMo Section §355.246 (the 
"Act"), do hereby consent to the adoption of the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Ozarks Transportation Organization is the Springfield, Missouri metropolitan planning 
organization; and 

WHEREAS, the Ozarks Transportation Organization’s Long Range Transportation Plan, Destination 2045, 
identified the public’s desire for passenger rail through the OTO region; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Rail Administration is conducting an Amtrak Daily Long-Distance Service Study to 
evaluate the restoration of daily long-distance intercity rail passenger service and the potential for new 
Amtrak long-distance routes; and 

WHEREAS, a long distance route between New York and Dallas has been identified on the proposed 
network of preferred routes, with service passing through the OTO region. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Board of Directors agrees to express 
support for the recommendations of the Long Distance Service Study; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Organization Board of Directors encourages 
the Federal Rail Administration and Congress to provide funding, planning, and support required to 
implement this study and its recommendations; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Organization Board of Directors directs staff to 
write a letter of support to the Federal Rail Administration. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, Board of the Organization have duly executed this Written 
Consent as of the date set forth above. 

The above resolution is hereby Adopted on this 19th day of September 2024. 

ATTEST: 

Mr. Derek Lee   Ms. Martha Smartt 
OTO Board of Directors Chair     OTO Board of Directors Secretary 



1

Regional Working Group Meeting 4



STUDY 
OVERVIEW

10



About the FRA Long-Distance Service Study

The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) of  2021 requires the FRA to 

conduct a study to evaluate the restoration of  daily intercity rail passenger service 

along —

▪ any Amtrak Long-Distance routes that were discontinued; and

▪ any Amtrak Long-Distance routes that occur on a nondaily basis.

▪ FRA may also evaluate potential new Amtrak Long-Distance routes, including 

with specific attention provided to routes in service as of  April 1971 but not 

continued by Amtrak.

11



Legislative Considerations for Long-Distance Service Expansion

12

Link and serve large and small communities as part of  a regional rail 
network 

Advance the economic and social well-being of  rural areas of  the 
United States

Provide enhanced connectivity for the national Long-Distance 
passenger rail system 

Reflect public engagement and local and regional support of  restored 
passenger rail service



FRA Long-Distance Service Study – Report to Congress

13

Preferred options for restoring 
or enhancing Long-Distance 

service

Prioritized inventory of  capital 
projects to restore or enhance 

service

Federal and non-Federal funding 
sources

Estimated costs and public 
benefits of  restoring or enhancing 

intercity rail passenger 
transportation in the region 

impacted for each relevant Amtrak 
route

Recommendations for methods 
by which Amtrak could work 
with local communities and 

organizations to develop activities 
and programs to continuously 
improve public use of  intercity 

passenger rail service along each 
route.



Amtrak Passenger Rail Service

14

▪ Amtrak provides passenger rail service across the nation, serving more than 

500 destinations in 46 states. 

▪ The current Amtrak network provides passenger rail service across three 

service lines:

o Northeast Corridor (NEC) provides service between Boston, Massachusetts, and 

Washington, DC on the Northeast Regional and Acela routes; Amtrak owns most of  

the NEC main line, and provides high-speed service on Acela. 

o State-Supported provides service on 30 routes of  not more than 750 miles through 

cost-sharing agreements with state partners.

o Long-Distance provides service on 15 Amtrak routes over 750 miles. The federal 

government provides significant financial support to Amtrak for these routes.  

▪ Both state-supported and long-distance routes primarily operate on host 

railroad tracks, which are not owned by Amtrak. 



Existing Network

15

Data provided by Amtrak, 2024



What are Amtrak Long-Distance (LD) Routes?

16

*Station data excludes the Auto Train; state data includes Washington, DC

**Amtrak General and Legislative Annual Report & Fiscal Year 2025 Grant Request

Frequency and 

Service

Amtrak operates 15 
LD routes. By 
statute, LD routes 
are over 750 miles; 
they typically operate 
once per day in each 
direction (except 
Cardinal and Sunset 
Limited), with end-
to-end travel times 
of  12+ hours, and 
have coach and 
sleeper 
accommodations.

Rural 

Connections

Less than 10 percent 
of  LD riders travel 
end-to-end; many 
different origin-
destination pairs in 
each route,* 
connecting urban 
and rural markets. 
Approximately 20 
percent of LD riders 
connect to another 
Amtrak service.

Geography

LD routes are the 
only passenger rail 
service in 22 of  the 
46 states in the 
passenger rail 
network; on average, 
an LD route serves 
29 stations and 8 
states.* LD routes 
help form a 
“backbone” of  the 
national passenger 
rail network. 

Funding

Congress, through 
an annual grant to 
Amtrak, provides 
funds to offset the 
adjusted operating 
loss for LD routes – 
projected to be 
approximately 
$495M in FY25.** 
Amtrak is prohibited 
from discontinuing 
LD routes in any 
year it receives 
adequate federal 
funding. 

Passengers

LD routes carried 
over 4 million 
passengers in 2023, 
who traveled 2 
billion passenger 
miles – more than a 
third of  total 
passenger miles 
traveled in the 
Amtrak system. 



Overview of Long-Distance Service Study Scope

▪ Plan and execute agency, stakeholder and public engagement

▪ Review previous Long-Distance services

▪ Assess current Long-Distance services and travel market

▪ Develop study methods and tools

▪ Develop restoration and expansion concepts

▪ Identify preferred options and prioritization

▪ Develop costs, benefits, and financing information

▪ Identify final recommendations and implementation strategies

▪ Issue final report

20



Long-Distance Service Study Expectations

22

What this Study IS What this Study IS NOT

Focused on Long-Distance Network A “National Rail Plan”

Assessment of  routes over 750 miles Assessment of  State-Supported routes

Focused on Amtrak as service provider Identifying other service providers

Service frequencies to meet Long-Distance markets High frequency service

Utilization of  existing rail corridors Identifying new “greenfield” alignments

Conventional rail/technology High-speed or other emerging technologies



Long-Distance Service Study Technical Outputs

▪ Develop market demand and operations and maintenance (O&M) costs that 

emphasize the benefits and costs of  both the existing and an expanded long-

distance network

o Includes developing demand, revenue, and O&M cost estimates for specific routes under 

consideration

▪ Identify certain types of  passenger service-required projects

o Passenger service-required projects identified for this study include track upgrades to track class 4 

and supporting signalization and PTC, passenger stations, maintenance facilities, and rolling stock

o Projects will be included as part of  “prioritized inventory” required by the legislation

o Decision to focus on identifying these types of  projects was based on feedback from host railroads 

during initial outreach

o Estimated cost ranges of  passenger service-required projects will be identified 

o Total capital costs for preferred routes will not be identified

23



NETWORK 
DEVELOPMENT

37



Existing Network

38

Data provided by Amtrak, 2024



39

Baseline Network

Existing Route and Station Data provided by Amtrak 2024; Baseline Projects Data provided by FRA 2024



4040

Existing Route and Station Data provided by Amtrak 2024; Baseline Projects Data provided by FRA 2024

Presented at Regional 

Working Group 

Meetings July 2023

Segments are conceptual 

building blocks for 
consideration in 

developing potential new 
long-distance routes

Conceptual Enhanced Network
Conceptual segments for future route development consideration

Not an FRA proposal for service



41

Proposed Network of Preferred Routes

Presented at Regional 

Working Group Meetings 

February 2024

Existing Route and Station Data provided by Amtrak 2024; Baseline Projects Data provided by FRA 2024

Further analysis and identification 

of funding after completion of this 

study would be necessary to 

advance the preferred routes 

through project planning and 

project development activities 

prior to implementation.



DALLAS/FORT WORTH - 
NEW YORK

105



106

Conceptual Service Overview

Route Service Metrics

Scheduled 

run time
avg. of both 

directions

approx. 44 

hours

Route length
avg. of both 

directions
1,907 miles

Dallas, TX 

departure time
local time midday

New York, NY 

arrival time
local time

late 

morning+2

New York, NY 

departure time
local time

late 

afternoon

Dallas, TX

arrival time
local time midday+2

Average travel 

time improvements
hours 7

Route Stations

Total number 

of stations
count of 

stations
33

Stations in 

small communities 
count of 

stations
3

Existing stations 

adding new service
count of 

stations
17

Average travel time improvements are for existing OD pairs 

when using a new route compared to an existing route

Dallas/Fort Worth - New York

Not an FRA proposal for service

These conceptual schedules are not 

FRA proposals for service. This study 

selected conceptual departure times 

to maximize daytime service for 

highest population market pairs on a 

preferred route.  

Further analysis and identification of 

funding after completion of this study 

would be necessary to advance the 

preferred routes through project 

planning and project development 

activities, including detailed 

schedule development.

Some arrivals at night 

depends on direction.

All existing stations and new 

stations in cities with over 50K 

people are labeled. 

Daytime = 5:00 a.m.-10:59 p.m. (5 a.m.-7:59 a.m. early morning; 8 a.m.-10:59 a.m. late morning; 11 
a.m.-12:59 p.m. midday; 1 p.m.-3:59 p.m. early afternoon; 4 p.m.-5:59 p.m. late afternoon; 6 p.m.-
8:59 p.m. early evening; 9 p.m.-10:59 p.m. late evening).  Nighttime = 11 p.m.-4:59 a.m.



107

Equity and Accessibility
Additional Populations Served

Population served
in thousands 

of people
5,820

Rural population
in thousands

of people
990

Rural population in 

areas of persistent poverty
in thousands 

of people
280

Rural population that is

transportation disadvantaged
in thousands

of people
630

Rural population that is 

health disadvantaged
in thousands 

of people
378

Population on tribal lands
in thousands

of people
1,025

Additional Institutions Served

Medical centers
count of 

centers
13

Higher education

institutions
count of 

institutions
104

Historically black colleges

and universities
count of 

institutions
3

Military installations
count of 

installations
12

NPS Lands 
count of NPS

units measured
0

Dallas/Fort Worth - New York

Not an FRA 

proposal for 

service

Further analysis and identification of 

funding after completion of this study 

would be necessary to advance the 

preferred routes through project 

planning and project development 

activities, including detailed 

schedule development.

524 miles
of discontinued 

long-distance 

routes restored



108

Selected Passenger Service-Required Cost Estimate Ranges 
Selected Passenger Service-Required Cost Ranges

Vehicle costs
2025 dollars,

in millions
$740-960

Station and maintenance

facility costs
2025 dollars,

in millions
$1,120-1,450

Track class and PTC

upgrade costs
2025 dollars,

in millions
$2,710-3,520

O&M costs (annual)
2025 dollars, 

in millions
$98-138

Cost estimate ranges include Professional Services. Cost 
estimate ranges do not include other capital projects including 

track capacity and operational improvement projects.

Dallas/Fort Worth - New York

Not an FRA 

proposal for 

service

Further analysis and identification of 

funding after completion of this study 

would be necessary to advance the 

preferred routes through project 

planning and project development 

activities, including detailed 

schedule development.



109

Safety, Jobs, and Earnings
Estimated Jobs and Earnings

Jobs supported 

by construction
count of jobs, 

in thousands
56.3 - 73.1

Earnings supported

by construction
2025 dollars,

in millions
$3,769-4,900

Jobs supported 

by operations (annual)
count of jobs,

in thousands
1.7 - 2.5

Earning supported 

by operations (annual)
2025 dollars,

in millions
$90-127

Route Travel Changes and Impacts

Travel shifted 

from vehicle to rail 

(annual)

vehicles miles

traveled, in millions
70

Total crashes avoided 

(annual)
number of crashes

(decrease)
149

Dallas/Fort Worth - New York

Not an FRA 

proposal for 

service

Further analysis and identification of 

funding after completion of this study 

would be necessary to advance the 

preferred routes through project 

planning and project development 

activities, including detailed 

schedule development.



CLOSING AND 
NEXT STEPS

192



Final Report Elements

▪ Elements of  the final report: 

o IIJA Study Requirements

o Opportunities, Challenges, and Study Limitations 

o Study Approach

o Summary of  Public and Stakeholder Engagement

o Preferred Route Options for Restoring or Enhancing Long-Distance Service

o Inventory of  Selected Capital Projects

o Estimated Costs and Public Benefits; potential federal and non-federal funding sources

o Recommendations for methods by which Amtrak could work with communities and 

organizations to improve public use of  intercity passenger rail service along each route

▪ Final report to Congress later in 2024

193



Opportunities and Challenges

194

▪ Establishes options for potential 
future long-distance service, in 
response to legislative requirements, 
examining broad needs, challenges, 
and opportunities. 

▪ Identifies regions where potential 
new service could provide economic 
and social benefits.

▪ Demonstrates support for restoring 
long-distance intercity passenger rail 
services and exploring the creation 
of  new long-distance routes.

▪ Satisfies an early step in the FRA 
project lifecycle to identify actions 
needed to enhance long-distance 
service

▪ Documents high-level analysis. 
Substantial additional analysis and 
resources are required prior to 
implementation.

▪ Identifies only certain passenger 
service-required capital projects. 
Future identification and analysis of  
additional capital projects, including 
those related to capacity, requires 
additional time and resources, 
including coordination with host 
railroads and other stakeholders.

▪ Requires significant unidentified 
funding for planning, infrastructure 
improvements, fleet needs, and 
ongoing operating support.

O
p

p
o

rt
un

it
ie

s

C
h

allen
ges



Moving Forward

195

Corridor ID

•Provides sustained 
support for new or 

improved passenger 
corridors through 

planning and project 

development stages

•Includes some long-

distance routes

▪ Daily Cardinal

▪ Daily Sunset 

Limited

▪ North Coast 

Hiawatha

Report to 
Congress

•Complete later in 2024

•Establish options for 

restoring and 
expanding long-

distance service

•Include ideas for 

ongoing collaboration 

and planning

•Acknowledge the 

need for additional 
analysis, coordination, 

funding 

Comments 
Received

•Maintain a database 
of comments for 
reference in future 
planning processes



Thank You!

▪ After the final report is submitted to 

Congress, it will be published on the 

study and FRA websites.

▪ www.fralongdistancerailstudy.org 

196

http://www.fralongdistancerailstudy.org/


 

 

 

 

 

TAB 4 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.B. 
 

Congestion Management Process: Congestion Monitoring and Strategy Evaluation 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  
 
The Congestion Management Process: Congestion Monitoring and Strategy Evaluation can be 
found here - https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/uploads/documents/Draft-CMP-Report-
2024.pdf. 
 
All MPO’s that serve a metropolitan area with a population greater than 200,000 are required by 
federal law to develop a Congestion Management Process (CMP).  The CMP is a multi-phased 
program that monitors congestion and tracks efforts to mitigate that congestion. Mitigation 
includes operational improvements, behavioral changes, and added capacity.    
 
The OTO began its Congestion Management Process in 2005. The CMP Subcommittee and staff 
have completed expansions and updates to the process in 2008, 2012, 2017, 2020, and now 
2024. The process evaluates congestion based on (1) volume-to-capacity ratios, (2) crash 
frequencies, (3) peak travel delay, and (4) intersection level of service. The process also tracks 
capacity and operational improvements completed in the OTO area. Completed projects can be 
compared to changes in congestion to measure the success of the completed projects.  
 
The effectiveness of congestion mitigation activities was also evaluated. The current analysis 
focuses on evaluating the system’s performance across time and before and after 
improvements. Operational improvements and adding capacity seem to be the most effective 
mitigation strategies.  
 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN:  
At its regularly scheduled meeting on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee 
recommended the Board of Directors accept the Congestion Management Process: Congestion 
Monitoring and Strategy Evaluation. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make the following motion: 
 
“Move to accept the Congestion Management Process: Congestion Monitoring and Strategy 
Evaluation.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to accept the Congestion Management Process: Congestion Monitoring and Strategy 
Evaluation with the following revisions...” 
  

https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/uploads/documents/Draft-CMP-Report-2024.pdf
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/uploads/documents/Draft-CMP-Report-2024.pdf


  

 

 

OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III:  

Congestion Monitoring and Strategy Evaluation 2024 

 

 

 

 

Draft 

 

August 21, 2024 

 

 

 

 



  

Executive Summary 

The Congestion Management Process (CMP) consists of three main phases.  Phase I was a 
methodology to identify congestion and designate specific strategies to address congestion.  
Phase II was the identification of where congestion is occurring or is expected to occur. Phase 
III is the development of a monitoring program to determine if selected strategies are effective 
in dealing with congestion. The OTO monitors the CMP network with four performance 
metrics: volume to capacity ratio, crash frequency, peak travel delay, and intersection level of 
service (LOS). In 2024, these metrics were compared to the previous CMP completed in 2019 
resulting in the following findings: 
 

• 2023 per capita VMT for the OTO area has rebounded to the 2019 level after the decline 

due to COVID 19 in 2020. Data shows the VMT increase of 331,477 miles traveled daily, 

or 5.9%, since 2019.  The OTO area population estimate has increased by 19,003 

people, or 5.7%, since 2019. 

 
• There was an increase in crashes at 134 intersections and a decrease at 93. Compared 

to MPO averages, 18% (44 of 240) signalized intersections had an acceptable number 

of crashes in 2024. This is a significant improvement compared to 25% (54 of 220) of 

intersections having an above-average crash frequency in 2019.  

 
• A total of 32 intersections saw improved LOS and 21 intersections saw deteriorated LOS 

during morning commutes between 2019-2024. The PM commute saw similar 

movements, with 33 improving and 16 deteriorating. 

 

• Overall improvement in intersection LOS demonstrates the effectiveness of roadway 

operations and signalization improvements in the OTO. Prioritized projects including 

fiber connections and further investment in Traffic Management Center resources 

have proven effective. 

 

• Adding lanes has lowered volume to capacity ratios on roads that were considered over 

capacity in 2019. Conversion of US 160 from Springfield to Willard to a four lane 

expressway from a super-two lane road, adding lanes and turn lanes on Hwy 14 east 

and west of US 65, six laning US 65 from US 60 to Rte CC, and adding lanes on James 

River Freeway from US 65 to National Ave are examples where lower volume to capacity 

ratios have improved travel speeds. 

 

To summarize, there have been numerous geometric improvements and additions of capacity. 
Extensive work has been done to improve coordination of the traffic signal system. Incident 
management remains a priority as crashes have increased since 2019. Great strides have been 
made increasing the bicycle and pedestrian network. These strategies have proven effective 
by reducing the percentage of severe delays during the AM and PM peaks. 
 



  

Table of Contents 

Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

Background and Process Overview  .................................................................................................. 2 

Overview of CMP Network ................................................................................................................. 2 

Congestion Monitoring ....................................................................................................................... 3 

Roadway Volume-to-Capacity Ratios ................................................................................................. 3 

Crash Frequencies ............................................................................................................................... 4 

Peak Travel Delay ................................................................................................................................. 6 

Intersection Level of Service ............................................................................................................... 8 

Strategies for Recurring Congestion Mitigation............................................................................... 9 

Strategy #1 Improve Roadway Operations ....................................................................................... 9 

Strategy #2 Reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) at Peak Travel Times .................................... 11 

Strategy #3 Shift Trips from Automobile to Other Modes ............................................................ 11 

Strategy #4 Shift Trips from SOV to HOV Automobile/Van .......................................................... 12 

Strategy #5 Add Capacity ................................................................................................................. 12 

Strategy Effectiveness........................................................................................................................ 13 

Conclusion .......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Congestion Monitoring Maps .......................................................................................................... 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Maps 

Map 1: OTO Study Area in Southwest Missouri ...................................................... 1 

Map 2: Revised 2024 CMP Network ......................................................................... 2 

Map 3.1: Volume-to-Capacity Ratios ...................................................................... 16 

Map 4.1: Crashes per Mile 2019 - 2024 ................................................................. 17 

Map 4.2: Intersection Crash Frequencies 2019 - 2024 ........................................ 18 

Map 5.1: AM Peak Travel Delay 2019 - 2024......................................................... 19 

Map 5.2: PM Peak Travel Delay 2019 - 2024 ......................................................... 20 

Map 6.1: AM Intersection Level of Service 2019 - 2024 ....................................... 21 

Map 6.2: PM Intersection Level of Service 2019 - 2024 ....................................... 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

1  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Introduction 

The Congestion Management Process (CMP) is a systematic approach to addressing 
congestion within the Ozarks Transportation Organization’s (OTO) planning area, shown in 
Map 1.  The process was developed through a collaborative effort involving local government 
and technical experts.  The intent of the CMP is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of 
both the existing and future transportation system through the implementation of 
Transportation System Management (TSM), which includes Intelligent Transportation Systems 
(ITS) and Travel Demand Management (TDM) techniques. 
 

 

Map 1. OTO Study Area in Southwest Missouri 



  

2  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Background and Process Overview  

The CMP consists of three main phases.  Phase I is a methodology to identify congestion and 
designate specific strategies to address congestion.  Phase II is the identification of where 
congestion is occurring or is expected to occur. Phase III is the development of a monitoring 
program to determine if selected strategies are effective in dealing with congestion at 
identified locations, and if not, identify other strategies to alleviate congestion.  Phases I and II 
were completed in 2002 and 2008. The initial Phase III was completed in 2012 and updated in 
2016 and again in 2020. This 2024 Congestion Monitoring report is an update to Phase III and 
should be updated every three to five years. 
 

Overview of CMP Network 

Phase I and II of the CMP identified the CMP network as OTO-area roadways that are part of 
the National Highway System (NHS).  With passage of MAP-21, the CMP network was expanded 
in Phase III to include the Enhanced-NHS, the traditional NHS, and principal arterials. In 
addition, committee members chose to include segments of some principal arterials not 
included in the Enhanced-NHS, such as National north of Chestnut Expressway and Kearney 
west of I-44. In 2024, the CMP committee elected to include more routes that are expected to 
become congested to monitor where HERE speed probe data is now available. The CMP 
network defined in 2024 can be seen in Map 2 below.  
 

 
Map 2. 2024 Revised CMP Network 



  

3  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Congestion Monitoring 

The following four measures are the indicators the OTO has elected to monitor to determine 
where congestion is occurring.  These measures are Roadway Volume-to-Capacity Ratio, Crash 
Frequency, Peak Travel Delay, and Intersection Level of Service (LOS). The maps for these 
indicators can be found at the end of the report. 
 
Roadway Volume-to-Capacity Ratio 
The first measure OTO utilizes to monitor congestion is roadway volume-to-capacity ratio. This 
ratio is used to determine which roads have an average annual daily volume (AADT) that 
exceeds the road’s daily capacity and which roads are approaching capacity. Traffic volumes 
that are used in the ratios are based on MoDOT AADT. An important indicator of traffic volumes 
is Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT). The indicator represents the total number of miles driven by 
the OTO population each day. If VMT is rising, it is likely associated with increased traffic 
volumes. Recent trends indicate a concomitant rise in VMT and population growth.  
 
Table 1 shows the 2023 per capita VMT for the OTO area has rebounded to the 2019 level 
after the decline due to COVID 19 in 2020. Data shows the VMT increase of 331,477 miles 
traveled daily, or 5.9%, since 2019.  The OTO area population estimate has increased by 
19,003 people, or 5.7%, since 2019. A nearly identical VMT per capita in 2019 & 2023 further 
demonstrates the colinear relation between VMT and population growth. 
 
Table 1 OTO Daily Vehicle Miles Travelled 

Year VMT 
OTO 

Population 
VMT per 
Capita 

2023 5,923,899 353,503 16.76 

2022 5,705,465 351,277 16.24 

2021 5,482,804 346,710 15.81 

2020 5,025,591 343,141 14.65 

2019 5,592,422 334,485 16.72 

2018 5,460,495 332,321 16.43 

2017 5,502,936 329,330 16.71 
 
Map 3 includes volume-to-capacity ratios divided into three categories: below capacity, 
nearing capacity, and at or above capacity. Segments with a volume-to-capacity ratio of 0 to 
0.77 are below capacity and offer an LOS of A, B, or C. Segments with a ratio of .78 to .86 are 
nearing capacity and offer a LOS of D. Ratios of 0.86 or above offer LOS E or F and are at or 
above capacity. For purposes of this study, LOS A, B, C, or D are acceptable. The Volume to 
Capacity status of roads can be reviewed in Table 2.  
 
Table 2 Volume-to-Capacity Status 2019 - 2024 

Remained Above Capacity 
Moved to Above Capacity 

from Below Capacity 
Moved Below Capacity 
from Above Capacity 

Kansas Expressway – I-44 to 
Kearney 

I-44 - Glenstone to West 
Bypass 

US 160 - Jackson St to I-44 



  

4  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Remained Above Capacity 
Moved to Above Capacity 

from Below Capacity 
Moved Below Capacity 
from Above Capacity 

Kansas Expressway - Nichols 
to Battlefield 

Chestnut Expressway -
Cedarbrooke to US 65 

US 60 - County Line to 
Illinois 

Kearney - Kansas Expwy to 
Benton 

Campbell - Primrose to 
Republic 

US 60 - Hines to Rte 174 

JRF - National to Campbell Campbell - Sunshine to 
Battlefield 

US 60 - Rte MM to JRF 

US 60 - FR 189 to Rte NN US 60 - US 65 to FR 189 JRF - National to JRF EB to 
US 65 SB ramp 

US 60 - Rte MM to Rte 174 US 160 - Rte AA to Rte CC Republic Rd - Rte FF to 
Kansas Expwy 

Campbell - Battlefield to 
Primrose 

Rte CC - Fremont to 
Cheyenne 

Republic Rd - Fremont to 
Glenstone 

Battlefield National to 
Campbell 

 
National Ave - Chestnut 
Expwy to Walnut Lawn 

Sunshine - Fort to Campbell 
 

Division - Glenstone to US 
65 

Sunshine - Kimbrough to US 
65 

 
Battlefield - Fort to 
Campbell 

Rte CC - Fremont to US 65 
 

Battlefield - National to 
Glenstone 

Rte J - US 65 to Rte NN 
 

Sunshine - Scenic to Fort 

Hwy 14 - 12th St to Church 
 

Sunshine - Campbell to 
Kimbrough 

Hwy 14  - Selmore to Rte W 
 

Glenstone - Evergreen to 
Kearney 

South/BU 65 - 9th to 
Selmore 

 
Kansas Expwy - Nichols to 
Division 

 
Crash Frequency 
Crash frequency is important to consider because it affects the reliability of the transportation 
system. A fender bender may only cause traffic to back up for a few minutes, but for every 
minute a lane is blocked, it takes four minutes for traffic to return to normal flows. This slow 
recovery helps contribute to congestion. Crash data used in this analysis was exported from 
MoDOT’s Crash Statistics Map TMS Application. Crash frequencies are analyzed for both 
intersections and along roadways. For comparison purposes, intersections are divided into 
major intersections (over 30,000 entering volume) and minor intersections (under 30,000). 
Roadway crashes per mile are compared to same year MPO crashes per mile for each roadway 
type name, such as freeway, expressway, 5-lane, or 3-lane. Map 4.1 and 4.2 contains crashes 
per mile for segments and crash frequencies for intersections for the CMP Network in the OTO 
area.  

Segment Crashes per Mile 

The roadway segment crash frequency is calculated by using the formula below. The 3-year 
crash frequency for each segment is then compared to the MPO average crash frequency for 



  

5  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

that period for that roadway type, i.e. freeway or 5-lane section. Crash frequencies for 
segments is calculated as follows:  

Segment Crash Frequency = Number of Crashes (3yr)/Length of Segment 
Below Average: Crash frequency for that segment is 50% or less of the MPO average crash   
frequency for that type of road during the same period. 
 
Average: Crash frequency for that segment is between 50.1% and 150% of the MPO average  
crash frequency for that type of road during the same period. 
 
Above Average: Crash frequency for that segment exceeds 150% of the MPO average crash  
frequency for that type of road during the same period. 
 
Table 3 shows the change in crash frequency along CMP road segments. Four segments along 
three roads experienced decreased crash frequency relative to the average, and 8 segments 
along eight roads experienced increases relative to the average.  
 
Table 3 Segment Crash Frequency 2019 - 2024 

From Average or Below 
Average to Above Average 

From Above Average to 
Average or Below Average 

Remained Above 
Average 

Glenstone - Sunset to Battlefield Kansas Expwy - Kearney to 
Division 

I-44 - Glenstone to 
Kansas Expwy 

Kansas Expwy - Evergreen to 
Kearney 

Sunshine - US 65 to Lone Pine US 65 - Kearney to 
Division 

Sunshine - Kansas Expwy to 
Scenic 

Sunshine - From Campbell to 
Kansas Expwy 

US 60 - National to 
Campbell 

JRF - US 65 to Campbell Glenstone - Battlefield to US 60  

US 60 - Hwy 174 to Oakwood 
  

Republic Rd - Campbell to 
National 

  

Rte CC - Fremont to US 65 
  

I-44 - From Kansas Expwy to 
Glenstone 

  

 
Intersection Crash Frequency 
The intersection crash frequency is calculated by using the formula below. The 3-year crash 
frequency for each intersection is then compared to MPO average intersection crash frequency 
for that period. Two values are calculated for MPO intersection crash averages, intersections 
at or above 30,000 entering volumes and intersections below 30,000 entering volumes. 
 
Intersection Crash Frequency = Number of Crashes (3yr) 
 
Below Average: An intersection is considered to have a below average crash frequency if the 
three-year crash frequency is 50.0 percent or less of the MPO average crash frequency for 
signalized intersections during the same period.  
 



  

6  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Average: Intersection is considered to have an average crash frequency if the three-year 
average crash frequency for that segment is between 50.1 percent and 150.0 percent of the 
MPO’s average crash frequency for signalized intersections during the same period. 
 
Above Average: An intersection is considered to have an above average crash frequency if the 
three-year crash frequency for that segment exceeds 150.0 percent of the MPO’s average crash 
frequency for signalized intersections during the same period. 
 
Table 4 shows changes in crash frequency at CMP intersections by type from 2019 to 2024. 
There was no change in the number of crashes at 13 intersections.  There was an increase in 
crashes at 134 intersections and a decrease at 93. Compared to MPO averages, 18% (44 of 
240) signalized intersections had an above average number of crashes in 2024. This is a 
significant improvement compared to 25% (54 of 220) of intersections having an above-
average crash frequency in 2019.  
 
Table 4 Intersection Crash Frequencies 2019 - 2024 

From Average or Below Average to 
Above Average 

From Above Average to Average or 
Below Average 

National Ave & Commercial St Republic Rd & Cox 

US 60 & Oakwood Ave US 60 & Hamilton 

Campbell Ave & Battlefield Glenstone Ave & Chestnut Expwy 

Campbell Ave & Sunshine St Rte J & Farmer Branch 

National Ave & Sunshine St Kearney St & US 60 NB Ramp 

West Bypass & Division St National Ave & Sunset St 

Campbell Ave & James River Freeway WB 
Ramp 

Glenstone & I-44 EB Ramp 

Rte CC & Rte J Battlefield Rd & Delaware Ave 

Hwy 14 & South (BU 65) Battlefield Rd & Ingram Mill 

Glenstone Ave & Evergreen St US 160 & Rte AA 

US 160 & South (Nixa) US 160 & I-44 EB Ramp 

US 160 & Wasson Dr Kearney St & National Ave 

Kansas Expwy & Republic Rd Rte J & 17th St  
Glenstone Ave & Bennett St  
Glenstone Ave & James River Freeway 
WB Ramp  
Kansas Expwy & Nichols St  
Chestnut Expwy & Benton St  
Sunshine St & Ventura Ave  
National Ave & Walnut St  
Battlefield Rd & Moulder Ave 

 
 
Peak Travel Delay 
Historical HERE speed data collected through RITIS©, commonly referred to as probe data, was 
used to calculate travel speeds along the CMP network in 2019 and 2024. Data from the 



  

7  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

morning rush, 7:15 am-8:15 am, and evening rush, 5:00 pm-6:00 pm in Springfield and 5:30 
pm -6:30 pm outside of Springfield, was exported for weekdays during March, April, and May 
2019 and 2024. To better represent the range in delay experienced, 25th percentile speeds 
were used in delay calculations. These 25th percentile speeds are then compared to posted 
speed limits to calculate delay. A road is considered severely delayed if the travel speed is 
greater than 20 mph below the posted speed limit. Maps 5.1 and 5.2 shows travel delay for the 
AM and PM peaks, respectively. 
 
Travel Speed Summary 
The corridors experiencing severe delays in 2024 are many of the same corridors identified in 
2019. Many of these are urban primary arterials or expressways that carry significant traffic 
volumes. However, there has been a reduction in the percentage of roadways experiencing 
peak hour congestion from 2019 to 2024. In 2019, the percentage of roadways congested 
during the AM peak was 7% and 16.8% during the PM peak. In 2024, the percentage of 
congested roadways was 3.5% during the AM peak and 7.8% for the PM peak. Table 5 lists the 
roadways that remained congested from 2019 to 2024 during the AM and PM peaks. 
 
Table 5 Severely Delayed Roadways 2019 & 2024 

Remained Above Average AM Remained Above Average PM 

Rte CC - Eastbound from Fremont to US 65 Kansas Expwy - SB & NB Republic Rd to JRF 

US 160 - Northbound from Rte AA to 
Plainview 

Kansas Expwy - Northbound from Kearney 
to Evergreen 

US 60 - Eastbound from Rte P to Hwy 174 Kansas Expwy - Southbound from Grand to 
Sunshine 

Kansas Expwy - Northbound from Kearney to 
Evergreen 

Hwy 413 - Westbound from West Bypass to 
FR 129 

Kansas Expwy - Northbound from Republic 
Rd to Battlefield 

Glenstone - Southbound from McLernon to 
I-44 

National Ave - Northbound from Republic Rd 
to JRF 

Glenstone - SB & NB Evergreen to Kearney 

Battlefield Rd - Eastbound from Ingram Mill 
to US 65 

Kearney - Westbound from Neergard to 
Glenstone 

Chestnut Expwy - Westbound from US 65 to 
BNSF 

Kearney - Eastbound from East Ave to 
National 

Chestnut Expwy - Eastbound from Campbell 
to Jefferson 

Kearney Eastbound from Neergard to US 
65 

Glenstone Ave - Southbound from 
McClernon to Kearney 

Kearney - Westbound from Le Compte to 
US 65 

Kearney St - Westbound from LeCompte Rd 
to US 65 

Rte B - Northbound from I-44 to Hwy 266 

 
West Bypass - Southbound from Chestnut 
Expwy to Hwy 413  
Sunshine St - Westbound from Campbell to 
Kansas Expwy  
Sunshine St - EB & WB National to 
Glenstone 



  

8  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Remained Above Average AM Remained Above Average PM  
Sunshine St - Eastbound from Deeswood to 
Oak Grove  
Sunshine St - EB & WB Deeswood to US 65  
Chestnut Expwy - Westbound from US 65 
to BNSF  
Glenstone Ave - Northbound from St Louis 
to Chestnut Expwy  
Glenstone Ave - Southbound from Grand to 
Sunshine  
Glenstone Ave - Northbound from 
Seminole to Sunshine  
Battlefield Rd - Westbound US 65 to Ingram 
Mill Rd  
Battlefield Rd - EB & WB National to 
Glenstone  
Battlefield Rd - Westbound from National 
to Campbell  
National Ave - Northbound from Republic 
Rd to JRF  
Campbell Ave - Southbound from 
Battlefield to Republic  
US 60 - Eastbound from Rte P to Hwy 174  
US 160 - SB & NB from Rte CC to Plainview 
Rd  
Rte CC - Eastbound from Fremont to US 65 

  
Intersection Level of Service 
Intersection level of service is a function of delay.  Accordingly, an intersection with LOS A 
would have a shorter delay than an intersection with LOS F.  The longer traffic is delayed at an 
intersection, the lower/worse the level of service for that intersection. Maps 6.1 and 6.2 show 
changes in intersection LOS for the entire OTO region from 2019 to 2024. Intersection LOS 
data was provided by City of Springfield and MoDOT Southwest District staff via the Traffic 
Management Center.  
 
Level of Service Scale: 
LOS A, B, C - Acceptable 
LOS D – Approaching Congested 
LOS E & F - Congested 
 
Table 6 and Table 7 contain summaries of intersection LOS for the AM and PM commutes. All 
intersections with 2019 data are represented in the totals included in each table.  
 
 
 
 



  

9  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Table 6 AM Intersection LOS Summary 

2024 LOS Total 
No 

Change 

LOS Improved LOS Declined 

From 
LOS D 

From 
LOS E 

From 
LOS F 

From 
LOS ABC 

From 
LOS D 

From 
LOS E 

LOS A, B, C 153 143 7 2 1 - - - 

LOS D 21 16 - 2 0 3 - - 

LOS E 7 4 - - 2 - 1 - 

LOS F 2 2 - - - - - - 

 
Table 7 PM Intersection LOS Summary 

2024 LOS Total 
No 

Change 

LOS Improved LOS Declined 

From 
LOS D 

From 
LOS E 

From 
LOS F 

From LOS 
ABC 

From 
LOS D 

From 
LOS E 

LOS A, B, C 137 124 12 1 - - - - 

LOS D 40 31 - 6 - 3 - - 

LOS E 6 3 - - - 1 2 - 

LOS F 0 - - - - - - - 

 
Intersection LOS Summary 
Overall, OTO’s intersections provide acceptable service. A total of 32 intersections saw 
improved LOS and 21 intersections saw deteriorated LOS during morning commutes between 
2019-2024. The PM commute saw similar movements, with 33 improving and 16 deteriorating.  
 

Strategies for Recurring Congestion Mitigation 

Phase I of the adopted Congestion Management Process outlined five main strategies on 
which to focus the OTO Congestion Management Process.  Recent projects related to the five 
strategies are outlined below. 
 
Strategy #1 Improve Roadway Operations 
Intersection Geometric Improvements:  Table 8 contains a selection of major interchange and 
intersection improvements that were made to improve overall efficiency and operation of the 
CMP Network. Improvements are listed for Congested Corridors and for other corridors in the 
CMP Network.  

Table 8 Geometric Intersection/Interchange Improvements 2019 - 2024 

Roadway Improvements 

Hwy 14 Add turn lanes and replace signal on Jackson St at Rte NN 
 

Add turn lanes and replace signal on BU 65 (South) at Hwy 14 (3rd 
St) 

US 160 Add intersection turn lanes on Massey Blvd at South St in Nixa 



  

10  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Roadway Improvements 
 

Add intersection turn lanes and upgrade signals on Massey Blvd at 
Tracker Rd 

 
Add J-turn at FR 157 and add turn lanes at FR 192 

 
Add J-turn at Westgate 

 
Add intersection turn lanes on West Bypass at Rte 744 

Kansas Expwy Upgrade signals and add turn lanes at Sunset and Walnut Lawn 

US 60  Reconfigure interchange at Glenstone 

Rte M Add roundabout at FR 103 and Repmo Dr in Republic 

Rte MM Ramp intersection improvements at I-44 

Glenstone Modify access, signals, and replace bus stop pads from Valley 
Water Mill to US 60 

US 65  Add J-turn at Bluegrass Road (FR 94) 

 

Intersection Signalization Improvements:  Traffic engineers at the TMC of the Ozarks regularly 
observe individual intersections and corridors and make timing adjustments based on actual 
functionality. As technology allows, these improvements might be refined signal offsets, 
adjusted cycle lengths, changes to coordination status, creation of optional timing plans, or 
even peer-to-peer operations. Table 9 contains a selection of signalization improvements 
made over the last few years. 

Table 9 Signalization Improvements 2019 - 2024 

Roadway Improvements 

Republic Rd Republic Rd & Kansas Expressway signal retiming reconstruction 

Jefferson Ave Downtown Jefferson signals’ coordination adjusted to slow traffic down 

Campbell Ave Campbell & Primrose and Campbell & Walnut lawn (AM Peak only) 
coordinated with Campbell to south (rather than north) 

 
Campbell & Battlefield changed to operate in Red Rest in overnight hours 

 
Campbell & Republic signal retiming reconstruction 

 
 Sunshine & Campbell changed to operate in Red Rest in overnight hours 

National Ave Battlefield & National changed to operate in Red Rest in overnight hours 
 

Republic & National changed to operate in Red Rest in overnight hours 

Fremont Ave Peer-to-peer operation put into effect on South Fremont between 
Primrose and Republic outside of peak hour coordinated plans 

Central Ave Central street cycle length lowered between 14:30 and 16:30 on 
weekdays 

 
peer-to-peer operation set up for Central & Benton 



  

11  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Roadway Improvements 

Glenstone Ave coordination improvements on Saturdays on Glenstone btwn 12:00 and 
16:00 

Battlefield Rd improvements to Battlefield & Carver school signal operation 

Springfield 
Arterials 

Where possible, detector settings were changed for detectors in lanes 
with protected only movements to lock vehicle detector calls until a green 
light is serviced Previously, if the detector “dropped” a call (meaning it only 
detected a vehicle for a moment), the controller retains a call for green 
until the green is serviced 

Springfield 
Arterials 

Advanced Walk activated at several more intersections. Up to 87, or 61% 
of intersections. 

Springfield 
Arterials 

holiday timing in retail areas changed significantly 

 
Incident Management - Detection, Response & Clearance: The OTO region continues to make 
great strides with its incident management program. The region’s TIM committee meets 
quarterly and hosts an annual regional TIM exercise. Major incidents are debriefed at these 
quarterly meetings and actions are identified to address issues experienced during response 
efforts. The TMC of the Ozarks also continues to make progress in its ability to detect and track 
incidents. The TMC can deploy warnings on the region’s digital message signs and make 
alterations to signal timing if needed.  
 
Bus Turnout Construction: City Utilities of Springfield does not plan to add additional turnouts 
to its routes. 
 
Strategy #2 Reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) at Peak Travel Times 
Land Use Policies/Regulations: OTO communities have land use policies and regulations that 
support mixed use developments. These developments create the opportunity to live and 
work in the same location. Existing mixed-use developments include Farmers Park and Quarry 
Town in Springfield. Planned developments include Iron Grain Mixed-Use Development in 
Republic and Gauge Crossing in Willard.  
 
Employer Flextime Benefits/Compressed Work Week:  Encouraging employers to consider 
allowing employees to maintain a flexible schedule allowing the employee the option to 
commute during non-peak hours. 
 
Strategy #3 Shift Trips from Automobile to Other Modes 
This strategy includes improvements beyond those made adjacent to roadways that are 
included in the Congestion Management Process network.  Improvements made anywhere in 
the OTO study area that encourage people to use alternative modes may lessen the impacts 
of traffic system area wide. 

Fleet Expansion/Bus Service Expansion: City Utilities Transit has no plans to make any major 
fleet expansions in the next couple years. The utility purchased two electric buses in 2022 and 
recently received 6 vehicles for their paratransit services. These new buses were replacement 
vehicles. The utility completed a transit improvement study in 2024 that recommended route 



  

12  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

modifications to increase productivity while still serving their current customer base. The route 
modifications include some reductions of the service area on less productive routes and 
increased service frequency on routes servicing the transit center during weekdays.  

Improve/Expand Bicycle and Pedestrian Networks: The region’s overall bicycle and pedestrian 
network is growing each year, as shown in Table 10. The City of Ozark and OTO have 
completed portions of the Chadwick Flyer Trail. Greene County constructed a multi-use path 
along the Kansas Expressway extension and the City of Springfield completed sections of the 
Grant Avenue Parkway, Galloway Creek Greenway, and Fassnight Creek Greenway. As new 
subdivisions are built, the region’s sidewalk network is expanded. Additionally, the 
municipalities are actively completing and implementing ADA Transition Plans on public 
rights-of-way and the Missouri Department of Transportation is working on improving 
pedestrian facilities along major arterials, such as Kansas Expressway, Kearney St, Glenstone 
Ave and State Highway 14 in Nixa and Ozark. The construction work associated with these 
plans is improving the accessibility of the region’s sidewalks. The OTO has also invested over 
$11 million in TAP and CRP funding towards sidewalk and trail projects that will be completed 
during 2022, 2023 and 2024. 

Table 10 Bicycle/Pedestrian Network Improvements 

Type of Network 2018 2022 

Bike-Lane 29.44 22.7 

Shared Lanes 29.58 37.32 

Trails 64.51 71.32 

Sidewalks 1,115 1,299 

Percent of Roads with Sidewalks 32.07 33.54 
 
Increased Micromobility options: In 2022 the City of Springfield established regulations for 
micromobility devices and since approved two permits for operations to companies renting e-
scooters (electric scooters) on public right of way. The operation permits are limited to areas 
in the greater downtown area which is stretches from Kearney St in the north to Cherokee St in 
the south and Kansas Expressway in the west to Glenstone Ave in the east. Most ridership in 
the first years occurs in the downtown core and around the campus of Missouri State University, 
which also launched a scooter sharing program on campus. 
 
Strategy #4 Shift Trips from SOV to HOV Automobile/Van 
Rideshare Matching Services: The OTO continues to offer carpool services through 
OzarksCommute.com. In 2023 the service had 2,856 registered users. 

Vanpool/Employer Shuttle Programs:  Several area employers and multifamily housing 
complexes implemented vanpool or shuttle programs in the past. Examples included Mercy 
Medical Center, TLC Properties, Missouri State University, and Prime Trucking. During the 
COVID-19 pandemic, most vanpool programs discontinued service and programs 
experienced a decline in ridership with a change of commute patterns.  

Improved/Increased Park-and-Ride Facilities & Capital Improvements:  There is one MoDOT 
park-and-ride lot at US 65 and Evans Road. The lot has 50 spaces and is currently underutilized.  
No expansions are planned. 
 
 



  

13  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Strategy #5 Add Capacity 
The OTO recognizes that added roadway capacity is often not a long-term fix for a congestion 
problem. Induced demand and the continuation of existing development patterns often result 
in increased traffic volumes. However, additional capacity is often needed to serve growing 
traffic volumes. Capacity has been added to corridors that are identified as congested and to 
non-congested corridors that have a volume-to-capacity problem. Projects aiming to add 
capacity to congested CMP roads are listed in Table 11.  
 
 
Table 11 Capacity Improvements 2019 - 2024 

Roadway Planned or programmed improvements 

Hwy 14 Add lanes, turn lanes from Fort St to 0.2 miles east of Tiffany Blvd  
Add lanes from 32nd St to 22nd St  
Add lanes and pedestrian signal on Jackson St from 16th St to 0.1 
mile west of Rte NN  
Add turn lane from 6th to 14th 

US 160 Add lanes for four-lane expressway from 0.3 miles west of FR 94 to 
west of I-44  
Reconfigure intersection at Rte CC 

BU 65 (South St) Add lanes and pedestrian signals on South St. from Rte 65 to Rte 
14 (3rd Street) 

US 60  Operational and safety improvements on James River Freeway 
from 0.5 miles west Glenstone to US 65  
Interchange improvements at Hwy 125  
Add lanes on JRF, improve ramps from National to Rte 65   
Add lanes on James River Freeway from Campbell to National  
Add lanes on James River Freeway from Kansas Expwy to 
Campbell 

Rte MM Add lanes, realignment, and at-grade RR separation from US 60 to 
FR 160  
Add lanes from I-44 to MO 360 

I-44 Add lanes from MO 13 to US 65 in Springfield 

MO 744 Add lanes and modify signals on Kearney from Springfield-
Branson National Airport to LeCompte Rd 

US 65 Add lanes from Rte CC to Hwy 14 

 Add lanes from Hwy 14 to Rte F 

 
 
Strategy Effectiveness 

Efforts to maintain or improve congested conditions have had successes. Observable 
successes are primarily the result of two mitigation strategies: Improving Roadway Operations 
and Adding Capacity. Despite rising volumes, the region has improved acceptable Intersection 
LOS at signalized intersections and has seen improved travel times associated with capacity 
projects. Apart from expansion of the bicycle/pedestrian network that rely on people using 
their automobiles less have been less effective. In addition, while strategies to get businesses 



  

14  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

to alter work schedules have been unsuccessful, the Springfield school district has staggered 
start times for grade levels and increased school bus ridership, alleviating peak travel delays in 
some areas.  
 
 
Strategy #1: Improve Roadway Operations   
Overall improvement in intersection LOS demonstrates the effectiveness of roadway 
operations and signalization improvements in the OTO. Prioritized projects including fiber 
connections and further investment in Traffic Management Center resources have proven 
effective. In addition, geometric improvements at some intersections have been effective in 
reducing peak hour delays. Table 12 lists other operational improvements listed in the 2025 – 
2029 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). 
 
Table 12 Planned Roadway Operational Improvements 

Roadway Planned or programmed improvements 

ITS Add ITS for Ozarks Traffic on Massey Blvd from FR 192 to South St. in 
Nixa  
Add ITS for Ozarks Traffic at various locations on James River 
Freeway, Rte FF, and in Ozark  
Add ITS equipment and software on Chestnut Expwy from Lullwood 
Ave to Scenic and from east of Hwy 13 to Delaware Ave  
Add ITS equipment and software on Chestnut Expwy from West 
Bypass to Kansas Expwy 

Glenstone Modify access, signals, and replace bus stop pads from Valley Water 
Mill to US 60 

Rte D Safety and operational improvements from Glenstone to 0.3 miles 
east of FR 199 

 
 
Strategy #2: Reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) At Peak Travel Times 
The OTO will continue to encourage local business to offer flex time and move shift changes 
to non-peak travel times. The OTO will also work with area communities to encourage land use 
patterns that facilitate transit service and walking/biking. Behavioral strategies, such as this, rely 
on expanded cooperation between elected officials in OTO communities and business leaders 
to implement these local level decisions. 
  
Strategy #3:  Shift Trips from Automobile to Other Modes  
The OTO will continue to pursue policies that encourage and facilitate alternative modes of 
transportation. The OTO Board of Directors adopted Towards A Regional Trail System as its 
new regional trail plan in July 2021. This new plan lays out a vision for 45 by 45, or 45 miles of 
new trail by 2045. The OTO has prioritized sidewalk construction with all MoDOT sponsored 
projects. The OTO wants to see sidewalks built alongside road projects. The OTO is also 
involved with Let’s Go Smart: Transportation Collaborative, a community partnership designed 
to encourage residents to consider their transportation choices every day. The organization 
encourages walking, biking, riding the bus, and other forms of active transportation. The City 
of Springfield’s Sustainability Office helps coordinate city activities related to environmental 
sustainability, including the sustainability of transportation choices. This office is involved with 

https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/uploads/documents/Towards-A-Regional-Trail-System.pdf


  

15  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

many area transportation initiatives. These actions all make it easier for OTO residents to shift 
to other modes of travel. 
 
Strategy #4:  Shift Trips from SOV to HOV Automobile/Van 
The OTO is partnering with MoDOT to offer a rideshare matching portal, locally available 
through the Ozarks Commute website. This site offers opportunities for area businesses to 
encourage carpooling and for residents to find rides on their own. Facilitating the creation of 
rideshare groups is an important way the OTO can encourage shifts in people’s commuting 
behaviors.  
 
 
Strategy #5: Add Capacity 
Adding lanes has lowered volume to capacity ratios on roads that were considered over 
capacity in 2019. Conversion of US 160 from Springfield to Willard to a four lane expressway 
from a super two lane road, adding lanes and turn lanes on Hwy 14 east and west of US 65, six 
laning US 65 from US 60 to Rte CC, and adding lanes on James River Freeway from US 65 to 
National Ave are examples where lower volume to capacity ratios have improved travel speeds. 
  
Conclusion 

This congestion monitoring report looks at the identified network and the efforts taken to 
address congestion. There have been extensive efforts undertaken in the past three years 
which are outlined in the implementation strategies section of the report. To summarize, there 
have been numerous geometric improvements and additions of capacity. Extensive work has 
been done to improve coordination of the traffic signal system. Incident management remains 
a priority as crashes have increased since 2019. Great strides have been made increasing the 
bicycle and pedestrian network. These strategies have proven effective by reducing the 
percentage of severe delays during the AM and PM peaks. 
 
The OTO will continue to pursue the five strategies for recurring congestion mitigation. The 
strategies include important engineering and behavior solutions for congestion. Early priorities 
for the 2025-2029 STIP include several projects drawing from these strategies.  
 
The maps comparing the four-performance metrics included in this report, volume to capacity 
ratio, crash frequency, peak hour travel delay, and intersection level of service are included on 
the following pages. They provide clear evidence of improvements in congestion on much of 
the CMP network. While much has been done, the CMP committee has selected several 
roadways to be added to the CMP network to monitor in anticipation of congestion occurring 
over the next 20 years. These include areas in Ozark east of US 65, Rtes M and MM in Republic, 
Division St and Rte YY east of US 65, and Rte 266 west of I44 to Rte AB. By being proactive, the 
OTO remains committed to providing a useful and continuous effort to monitor and address 
congestion in the OTO area.  
 

 

 

 



  

16  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Map 3.  Volume-to-Capacity Ratio 

 

 



  

17  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

 

Map 4.1.  Crashes per Mile 2019 - 2024 

 



  

18  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

 

Map 4 .2. Intersection Crash Frequency 2019 - 2024 

 



  

19  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Map 5.1.  AM Peak Travel Delay 2019 - 2024 

 

 



  

20  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Map 5.2. PM Travel Delay 2019 - 2024 

 

 



  

21  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

Table 6.1. AM Intersection Level of Service 2019 - 2024 

 

 



  

22  OTO Congestion Management Process Phase III: Congestion Monitoring 2024    

 

Table 6.2.  PM Intersection Level of Service 2019 - 2024 

 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 5 

 

 
 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.C. 

FTA 5310 Program Administration 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
The Board of Directors approved a resolution requesting the Governor of Missouri to designate 
OTO and City Utilities as the Designated Recipient for FTA Section 5310 funding and to approve 
the Memorandum of Understanding between OTO and CU Transit for the designated recipients 
of FTA 5310 Funding on July 18, 2024. On July 23, 2024, OTO received the signed designation 
letter from the governor of Missouri. Following the designation from the governor, OTO needs 
to complete additional steps to finalize the FTA 5310 program administration.  The OTO needs 
to update the Program Management Plan (PMP) to ensure the program outlines the new 
responsibilities and procedures for allocated and administering the FTA 5310 program for the 
OTO area.  The OTO is also required to pass a resolution authorizing the filings of applications 
with the Federal Transit Administration. 
 
Federal statues require the OTO to maintain a Program Management Plan (PMP) which outlines 
policies for administering the Section 5310 Enhancing Mobility for Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities grant program. The PMP includes information on eligible subrecipients, roles and 
responsibilities, reporting, and selection criteria. 
 
Changes in this update include, designating the Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) as a 
designated recipient for FTA 5310 funding starting with fiscal year 2025, removing the Missouri 
Department of Transportation (MoDOT) as a designated recipient for FTA 5310 funding for the 
OTO area, meaning that OTO will be responsible for the administration and oversight of sub-
recipients as outlined in the updated PMP and authorizing the Executive Director of the OTO to 
approve significant revisions, amendments or updates to the PMP.  As part of the update, the 
5310-funding allocation within the OTO area will allocate 55% of the annual allocation for 
traditional projects to the OTO, 35% for non-traditional projects to CU Transit, and 10% for 
administration to OTO and CU-Transit. OTO will suballocate the funding for traditional projects 
through a competitive grant opportunity to sub-recipients.  
 
Per federal guidance and OTO’s public participation plan, the updated plan has been made 
available for public comment for a 15-day comment period on August 13th, 2024. 
 
The Resolution Authorizing the Filings of Applications with the Federal Transit Administration is 
required to give authority to the OTO Executive Director to conduct business with the FTA. The 
Executive Director will designate signature authority within the FTA electronic systems (TrAMS) 
as appropriate.  
 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR TRANSIT RECOMMENDATION:   
The Local Coordinating Board for Transit reviewed and approved the update to the Program 
Management Plan at their August 8, 2024, meeting and recommended approval. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
That a member of the Board of Directors makes one of the following motions: 
 



“Move to approve the Program Management Plan and adopt the resolution authorizing the 
Executive Director of the OTO to execute and file applications with the Federal Transit 
Administration” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to…” 
   



Resolution # 2024-16 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF APPLICATIONS WITH THE 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION, AN OPERATING ADMISTRATION OF 
THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FOR FEDERAL 

TRANSPORTATION, FOR FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE 
AUTHORIZED BY 49 U.S.C. CHAPTER 53; TITLE 23, UNITED STATES CODE, OR 

OTHER FEDERAL STATURES ADMINISTED BY THE FEDERAL TRANSIT 
ADINISTRATION. 

September 19, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administrator has been delegated authority to award federal 
financial assistance for a transportation project;  

WHEREAS, the grant or cooperative agreement for federal financial assistance will impose 
certain obligations upon the applicant, and may require the applicant to provide the local share of the 
project cost;  

WHEREAS, the applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the 
Federal Transit Administration required for the project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

1. That the Executive Director is authorized to execute and file an application for federal
assistance on behalf of Ozarks Transportation Organization with the Federal Transit
Administration for federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, title 23,
United States Code, or other federal statutes authorizing a project administered by the
Federal Transit Administration.

2. That the Executive Director is authorized to execute and file with its applications the
annual certifications and assurances and other documents the Federal Transportation
Administration requires before awarding a federal assistance grant or cooperative
agreement.



 
 

3. That Executive Director is authorized to execute grant and cooperative agreements with 
the Federal Transit Administration on behalf of Ozarks Transportation Organization.   

 
4. The Executive Director shall designate a representative and assign responsibility as 

appropriate to file and execute the applications for federal assistance and annual 
assurances within the Federal Transit Administration electronic systems.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, Board of the Organization have duly 

executed this Written Consent as of the date set forth above. 
 
The above resolution is hereby Adopted on this 19th day of September 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Mr. Derek Lee        
OTO Board of Directors Chair                  

 

The undersigned duly qualified Board Secretary acting on behalf of the Ozarks Transportation 
Organization, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally 
convened meeting of the Board of Directors held on September 19, 2024. 
 
 
 Applicant official seal, impress here. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
Ms. Martha Smartt       
OTO Board of Directors Secretary 
Recording Officer 
 
      
Date                  
 
 



Approved _____________ 2024 

Program Management Plan 

PMP 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 1 
 

Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Summary ....................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Purpose ......................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Program Management Plan Content ............................................................................................................ 3 

A. Program Goals and Objectives .......................................................................................................... 3 

B. Roles and Responsibilities ................................................................................................................. 3 

C. Coordination ...................................................................................................................................... 4 

D. Eligible Subrecipients ......................................................................................................................... 5 

E. Local Share and Local Funding Requirements ................................................................................... 5 

F. Project Selection Criteria and Method of Distributing Funds ........................................................... 6 

G. Annual Program of Project Development and Approval Process ...................................................... 7 

H. Administration, Planning and Technical Assistance .......................................................................... 7 

I. Transfer of Funds ............................................................................................................................... 7 

J. Private Sector Participation ............................................................................................................... 7 

K. Civil Rights ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

L. Section 504 and ADA Reporting ........................................................................................................ 9 

M. Program Measures ............................................................................................................................ 9 

N. Program Management .................................................................................................................... 10 

CU Program Management ............................................................................................................. 10 

OTO Program Management ........................................................................................................... 11 

O. Other Provisions .............................................................................................................................. 14 

Appendix-A: MOU ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

Appendix-B: Selection Criteria .................................................................................................................... 20 

 

  DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 2 
 

Introduction 
The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) is the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the 
Springfield, Missouri Metropolitan Area, serves as the planning authority for transportation related 
issues for communities within the Metropolitan Area. OTO including the cities of Battlefield, Nixa, Ozark, 
Republic, Springfield, Strafford and Willard and parts of Christian and Greene counties. 

The Moving Ahead for the Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) legislation brought about many 
changes to FTA programs when it was signed in July 2012. The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation 
Action (FAST Act) passed in December 2015 and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) passed 
in November 2021 did not affect policies related to this Program Management Plan PMP. This plan is 
developed to specifically meet 49 USC § 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities. Title 49 of FTA Circular 9070.1G chapter VII requires the development of a Program 
Management Plan (PMP). 

Summary 
Title 49 U.S.C. 5310 establishes the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities grant 
program. FTA Circular 9070.1G, Chapter VII requires the development of a Program Management Plan 
(PMP). The PMP shall describe 
the designated recipient’s 
policies and procedures for 
administering the Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and 
Individuals with Disabilities 
program in OTO Study Area. This 
plan addresses the following 
content as outlined under the 
Management Plan Content and 
ensures FTA requirements are 
being met by the designated 
recipient(s). A final copy of this 
PMP shall be on file with the 
Federal Transit Administration 
Region VII. 

Purpose 
The purpose of this Program 
Management Plan is for 
documentation of the designated 
recipient(s) administrative 
activities of the 5310 program. 
To continue to create and 
maintain a safe, accessible, and 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 3 
 

energy efficient metropolitan area transit system that will enhance the region’s livability and assure its 
economic vitality. 

Program Management Plan Content 
The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) FTA Circular C9070.1G requires a plan 
that describes the following elements. No prescribed format for the Program Management Plan is given. 
This plan addresses the following topics A-O, providing information for each topic as listed below. 

A. Program Goals and Objectives 
The MAP-21 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities program incorporated two 
programs from the former SAFETEA-LU legislation, (Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities 
Circular 9070.1F and New Freedom Circular 9045.1). FTA has defined the goals of the MAP-21 Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program in the FTA Circular C 9070.1G. The goal of 
this program is to improve mobility for seniors and individuals with disabilities. It is OTO’s goal to fully 
support this program by providing local agencies opportunity to participate in this program throughout 
the Metropolitan Planning area. FTA provides financial assistance for transportation services planned, 
designed, and carried out that meet the special transportation needs of elderly individuals and 
individuals with disabilities in all areas-urbanized, small urban, and rural. 

B. Roles and Responsibilities 
The Missouri Governor is responsible for designating the agencies responsible for administration of this 
program. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) attached as Appendix-A has been established 
between the Ozarks Transportation Organization,), and the City Utilities (CU) Transit. 

It is understood that OTO will be responsible for notifying entities of funding availability, developing the 
selection process, determining eligibility, and developing the program of projects. OTO will present the 
prioritized projects for inclusion in the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). In addition, will certify that projects selected for 
funding were included in a locally developed coordinated public transit-human services plan, a plan 
developed and approved through a process that included participation by seniors, individuals with 
disabilities, representatives of public, private, nonprofit transportation and human services providers 
and other members of the public. 

It is understood that CU and OTO will administer portions of this program as listed below: 

RECIPIENT DESIGNATION: The parties will request the Governor of Missouri to make a joint 
designation of the recipients of 5310. City Utilities (CU) will be the designated recipient for non-
traditional type of projects including New Freedom type projects and OTO will be the designated 
recipient for traditional 5310 type projects. OTO will administer funding for all subrecipients (this 
does not include CU). 

FUNDING ALLOCATIONS: The respective percentages and amounts of funding to be administered by 
OTO and CU on any given year will be 55% to OTO for traditional section 5310 projects, 35% to CU 
for non-traditional projects and 10% for program administration funds. The funding split will be 
communicated annually to FTA in a joint letter from the designated recipients, OTO and CU.  

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 4 
 

PROJECT SELECTION: OTO will be responsible to conduct a fair and impartial project selection 
process by publishing a notice of funding, soliciting applications and selecting projects based upon 
pre-approved selection criteria approved by the OTO Board of Directors that is consistent with the 
approved Human Service Coordinated Plan and FTA Section 5310 program guidance. 

PROGRAM OF PROJECTS: OTO will publish an approved Program of Projects (POP) as required by 
the USDOT. OTO will publish the POP as part of its Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES: CU, will be responsible for reporting performance indicators to OTO for 
the measures outlined by the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) for monitoring 
performance of transit systems. OTO will be responsible for collecting data from area subrecipients 
for performance reporting. 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT PLAN AND COORDINATION PLANNING: OTO will be responsible to 
document the program procedures in a local Program Management Plan and to publish a Human 
Services Coordination Plan. 

PLANNING: OTO will be responsible to plan for future public transportation needs and ensure 
integration and coordination among diverse transportation modes and providers. 

GRANT MANAGEMENT: OTO will be responsible for grant management responsibilities for all OTO 
area subrecipient other than those grants administered by CU. Examples of grant management 
responsibilities include determining eligibility, ensuring that subrecipients meet federal 
requirements, project audit and closeout, procurement of vehicles, financial management, reporting 
to FTA, holding title and recording liens and maintaining required certifications. 

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION FUNDS: The Program Administration Funds will be divided between 
OTO and CU based on the percentage of FTA 5310 project funds that each administers ("Project 
Funds") in any given year.  The administration funds will be split between OTO and CU.  OTO will 
receive 69.5% and CU will receive 30.5% of the administration funds. In the event that CU elects to 
not utilize the allocated 35% for non-traditional projects and/or the 30.5% of administration funds, 
it may communicate to OTO the desire to allow OTO to award these funds to other projects and/or 
administration. 

C. Coordination  
OTO has established an active Local Coordinating Board for Transit (LCBT) that meets quarterly and may 
include additional meetings as needed. The LCBT is comprised of interested stakeholders from human 
service agencies, transit agencies, advocate groups, individuals with special transportation needs, 
MoDOT and human service transportation providers. The LCBT looks at existing coordination efforts, 
and attempts to strategize new ways to coordinate special needs of transportation services. 

OTO’s Transit Coordination Plan (TCP) serves as the region's coordinated public transit-human services 
transportation plan. The TCP has been developed through participation of interested stakeholders from 
human service agencies, transit agencies, advocate groups, individuals with special transportation 
needs, Missouri Department of Transportation and human service transportation providers. The 
Transit Coordination Plan (TCP) strategies and actions are identified and further developed as a Five-
Year Implementation Plan. 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 5 
 

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program funding must be implemented 
effectively and efficiently. As part of the 5310 selection criteria a project must be part of a locally 
developed Transit Coordination Plan. 

D. Eligible Subrecipients 
The OTO administers the project selection process for “traditional” projects of the 5310 program. As a 
designated recipient for FTA 5310 funding for the OTO Planning Area, City Utilities (CU) Transit will 
receive the funding for “non-traditional” projects as outlined in the MOU shown in Appendix A. In the 
event that CU elects not to utilize the allocated funds for “non-traditional” projects, OTO will administer 
the project selection process for all projects funded through the 5310 program.  

According to FTA Circular 9070.1G the following types of agencies are eligible to receive funding through 
the 5310 program: 

• Private non-profit organization – A non-profit organization is a corporation or association 
determined by the Secretary of Treasure to be an organization described by 26 USC 501(a) or 
one which has been determined under state law to be non-profit and for which the designated 
state agency or urbanized area designated recipient has received documentation certifying the 
status of the non-profit organization. 

• State or local governments 
• Operators of public transportation services, including private operators of public transportation 

services  

In addition to being classified as one of the listed types of agencies, only sponsors whose projects serve 
the OTO area for which the funds were apportioned are eligible to receive funding, and certain qualifiers 
to governmental entities must be met when traditional 5310 project funds are requested.  

• The requesting agency must be approved by the state to coordinate services for seniors and 
individuals with disabilities; or 

• Certifies that there are no nonprofit organizations readily available in the area to provide the 
service. 

E. Local Share and Local Funding Requirements 
Federal transportation Law requires that not less than 55 percent of a recipient’s Section 5310 funds be 
available for capital projects that are “traditional” Section 5310 projects. OTO has elected to use 35 
percent of the Section 5310 funds for other eligible capital and operating projects, including New 
Freedom type projects and 10 percent shall be used for administrative fees. Grant awards may be used 
for capital projects or operating expenses as described under FTA Circular 9070.1G Section III eligible 
projects. 

Depending on which type of assistance is being applied for, project sponsors are required to match 
different percentages to the federal share of eligible expenses. The share for “traditional” capital 
projects is a minimum of 20 percent local funding with a maximum of 80 percent federal funding of the 
total eligible cost of the project. Operating expense is 50/50 (federal/local) split. All local match funds 
must be provided from sources other than the federal Department of Transportation. Matching funds 
could come from a number of nonfederal sources such as state or local appropriations, tax revenues, 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 6 
 

private donations, service revenues, net income generated from advertising and concession, non-cash 
share such as donations, volunteered services, or other in-kind contributions are eligible as a local 
match, so long as the value of each is documented and supported, and are a cost that would otherwise 
be eligible under the program, other Non-department of Transportation federal funds that are eligible 
to be expended for transportation. Income from contracts to provide human service transportation may 
be used either to reduce the net project cost (treated as revenue) or to provide local match for Section 
5310 operating assistance. 

All sources of local match must be identified and described in the grant application at the time of grant 
award. 

Exceptions to Local match requirements 
FTA Circular 9070.1G Section III (b) describes the exceptions for certain projects that relate to the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and the Clean Air Act. 

• Vehicles may receive an 85 percent federal share for the purpose of complying with or 
maintaining compliance with ADA, 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq of the CAA. A revenue vehicle that 
complies with 49 CFR part 38 may be funded at an 85 percent Federal share. 

• Vehicle-Related Equipment and facilities including clean-fuel or alternative-fuel vehicle-related 
equipment of facility for the purpose of complying or maintaining compliance with the CCA, or 
required by ADA may receive a federal share of 90 percent. FTA considers vehicle-related 
equipment to be equipment on and attached to the vehicle. 

F. Project Selection Criteria and Method of Distributing Funds 
• Assuring equity of distribution of benefits among eligible groups within the OTO Service Area. 

The application process is open to all agencies providing service within the OTO service area 

• Assuring projects were included in a locally developed coordination plan 
Selection Criteria requires all projects to be in alignment with the Transit Coordination Plan 
(TCP) strategies. 

• Documenting evidence that the local coordinating plan was developed and approved in 
cooperation with stakeholders, including individuals with disabilities and seniors utilizing 
transportation services. 
The TCP was developed through a series of meetings with a subcommittee of stakeholders that 
participated during the update of the plan. 

• Project Selection Criteria: 
o This project replaces an existing vehicle to maintain current services (15 points) 
o This project will lead to an increase in the agency’s ADA amenities offered (10 points) 
o This project will provide service to an area not previously served (10 points) 
o This project supports services of established agencies (10 points) 
o This project provides for an increased number of passengers served per week (5 points) 
o This project will create new intercity connections (5 points) 
o This project will expand transit access at night and on weekends (5 points) 
o This project expands ADA accessibility to public transportation (5 points) 
o Agency has not been awarded a vehicle in the past two years (5 points) 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 7 
 

o This project is in alignment with the themes and strategies identified in the Transit 
Coordination Plan (5 points) 

o This project will offer same day transit service (3 points) 
o This project will offer flexible scheduling options (2 points) 

Method of Distributing Funds 
OTO administers the project selection process for the 5310 program. An application furnished by the 
OTO must be submitted according to solicitation guidelines. FTA Section 5310 project requests shall be 
analyzed based on the listed considerations and ranked by review. The score will be used as a selection 
tool by the Local Coordinating Board for Transit and selected projects will be recommended for approval 
by the OTO Board of Directors. The OTO Board of Directors will be the final decision-making body for the 
project selection and decision. Agencies requesting funding from this program must certify eligibility. 

G. Annual Program of Project Development and Approval Process 
The 5310 program annual program process: 

• Application workshop in conjunction with soliciting for 5310 applications 
• Sending letters to all known agencies, public notice is posted on the OTO public board, emails 

are sent to all known transit agencies and human service agencies 
• Agencies notify public and private and paratransit providers in their service area regarding their 

intent to apply for funding, including project details. 
o Application closes on posted date stated in the application guidelines. 
o OTO prepares application for LCBT review, ranking and project selection 
o LCBT makes recommendation of project to the OTO Board of Directors 
o Public comment period (TIP and POP) 
o OTO BOD approves recommended projects 
o Approved projects are included in the TIP which is approved by the OTO Board of Directors 

H. Administration, Planning and Technical Assistance 
OTO will allow per federal guidelines that 10 percent of 5310 funding be directed toward support of the 
administrative activities. OTO and CU Transit will be allowed to apply for portions of the 10 percent 
administrative funds. The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) attached as Appendix-A spells out the 
distribution allotment of the administrative fee and is dependent on the activities performed by each 
agency. 

I. Transfer of Funds 
Although it may be allowed, OTO has made no provision to transfer 5310 funds to other programs. 

J. Private Sector Participation 
OTO shares and solicits transit information to public and private agencies on a regular basis through 
email distribution and LCBT meetings. 

It is understood that CU will not use private providers of public transportation, including purchasing 
service for any portion of its paratransit services or a third party contracted services with 5310 funding. 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 8 
 

K. Civil Rights 
Per the MOU between OTO and CU Transit, oversight for grantees will include all required certifications 
and assurance prior to signing a contact and grantees must comply with all standard federal civil rights 
requirements including: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 
• The Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) requirements of Executive Order 11375, and 
• FTA’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program requirements. 

 
It is understood that OTO will require that subrecipients recommended for federal funding submit all 
project appropriate FTA certifications and assurances prior to contract execution and annually 
thereafter. OTO will not execute any grant contract without having first received these items. These 
include, but are not limited to: 

• Standard Assurances 
• Nondiscrimination Assurances 

 
Annually, each sub-recipient will be required to submit a signed and dated Standard DOT Title VI 
Assurance. Subrecipients will also file a yearly Title VI report. This report must detail a list of all 
complaints or lawsuits, list of federal funding, description of program advisory committee and summary 
of any civil rights compliance review activities conducted by the recipient. 

If applicable as outlined in 49 CFR 26.21, subrecipients must file semi-annual DBE activity report. This 
report will detail a dollar value of contracting opportunities, expenditures made to certified DBE, and 
identification of any potential DBE firms in the area. Subrecipients will take all necessary and reasonable 
steps to: 

• Identify contracting opportunities 
• Analyze area DBE availability 
• Use good faith efforts to utilize DBE firms, and, 
• Maintain necessary records to verify steps taken and participation achieved. 

 
It is understood that OTO will exercise an active oversight role with regard to the equipment 
procurement process. OTO will require that bidding documents for vehicles or other equipment be in 
compliance with Subpart D, 49 CFR, Part 26. This requirement relates to the purchase of goods and/or 
services from disadvantaged business enterprises (DBE). 

It is understood that OTO will require that all operations assistance recipients comply with 49 CFR part 
26 and provides assistance to sub-recipients in locating DBE vendors with they are purchasing goods, 
services, or equipment. 

It is understood that CU will monitor CU’s Title VI, EEO, and DBE programs with CU’s contractors, and 
OTO will oversee compliance with OTO’s subrecipients and their contractors. Reports will be prepared 
and submitted to the Federal Transit Administration. The appropriate civil rights clauses will be 
included in contract agreements. The checklist that will be used during sub-recipient and contractor 
reviews will include a section to verify compliance with Civil Rights issues such as discrimination, 
employment, complaints, and accessibility of services. 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 9 
 

Should a Civil Rights lawsuit or complaint be filed against any of the agency participating in the MOU, 
the agency involved will properly document the complaint such as the date received, a summary of the 
action, and the status of the action. The agency staff will work with its’ legal counsel as needed and 
FTA to make sure all legal requirements have been met in resolving the issue. 

L. Section 504 and ADA Reporting 
Recipients of federal funds must comply with civil rights requirements including the federal 
protections for persons with disabilities: 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended, 
• The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and 
• Code of Federal Regulations Title 49 Parts 37 and 38. 

 
As in other federal assistance programs, special efforts to meet the transportation needs of disabled 
persons are confirmed through an ongoing process.  
 
OTO will seek, from all approved applicants, a written certification of compliance pertaining to ADA 
directives. OTO, in turn, will make all documents related to ADA reporting part of the permanent file of 
the project. This documentation will include information regarding the ADA accessibility of vehicles 
purchased through the 5310 program and executed, contracted assurances for subrecipients. Each 
subrecipient will include a procedure for ADA complaints in their Title VI plan and will include a 
maintenance policy of the ADA accessible features (the lift, securement system, etc) in their written 
maintenance plan. 
 
It is understood that CU will notify each grant contractor at the time of the grant award that they may 
be contacted by anyone alleging discrimination in service or employment, including Section 504 and 
ADA. C U ’ s  transportation system is expected to have and follow a comprehensive ADA policy which 
includes but is not limited to: 

• Staff training on accessibility issues 
• A service animal policy 
• Proper use and maintenance of lifts and securement systems 
• Personal Care Attendant policy 
• Complaint processes and policies. 

M. Program Measures 
Reporting – It will be the responsibility of both designated recipients (OTO and CU Transit) to properly 
collect and report data for the program measures in accordance with FTA requirements described in 
FTA circular 9070.1G on page II-3. 

Two performance measures for traditional 5310 projects include measures for gaps in: 
• Service filled  
• Ridership 

OTO is responsible for traditional 5310 project measures. 

Three performance measures are described for non-traditional 5310 projects that: 
• Increases or enhancements implemented  

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 10 
 

• Are additions or changes to physical infrastructure  
• Are actual or estimated number of rides for which CU will be responsible  

N. Program Management 
Per the MOU, it will be the responsibility of both designated recipients (CU Transit and OTO) to properly 
administer the program management responsibilities as agreed in such areas as procurement, financial 
management, property management, vehicle use, maintenance and disposition, accounting system, 
audit closeout as described in FTA Circular 9070.1G VII-3(n). 

CU Program Management 
CU will maintain a financial management system for financial reporting, accounting records, internal 
controls, and budgeting control subject to standards specified in state laws enforced by the State 
Auditor. All systems and procedures for financial management must comply with 49 CFR 18.20, the 
“Common Rule.” 

CU is the designated recipient for administration purposes and a potential direct recipient for portions 
of FTA grant funds and will enter into agreements directly with FTA.  

CU will not have any subrecipients to oversee or reimburse.  

CU will also maintain spreadsheets for CU’s grant projects. These spreadsheets will track project 
expenditures, amounts charged to each funding source, local matching sources, and project budgets. 
Additional spreadsheets will be prepared to summarize the total expenditures on each federal grant and 
will be used to reconcile the grant expenditures and for revisions to the program of projects and 
budgets. 

CU as a designated recipient and potential direct recipient for portions of the Section 5310 grant funding 
will be required to prepare a variety of reports on a quarterly basis. These would include a project 
narrative, local matching sources used, number of passenger trips provided, vehicle miles traveled, and 
revenue service hours provided. CU will also be required to report on an annual basis their efforts in 
purchasing from DBE vendors and a vehicle condition report. 

CU will restrict vehicle use to passenger transportation services. Vehicles must be used in service that is 
available to the general public. CU may not transfer the operational control of a vehicle purchased under 
this program to anyone else without prior written approval from FTA. 

Projects 

CU is responsible for submitting project information to FTA upon purchase and every two years during 
the Biennial Inventory of Assets and every three years for the Triennial Review. Information kept 
includes the year; included equipment; location; grant number; federal percentage share; date last 
inspected and condition; type of funding used for the purchase; and other information used by CU for 
program review and reporting. The information obtained from these reports will become part of the 
inventory record. To ensure that the assets are properly maintained, CU’s Internal Audit staff and 
Finance’s Plant Accounting staff review records and physically inspect assets including equipment. 

CU will follow FTA policy with regard to equipment and asset life cycle and disposition of equipment and 
assets. Please refer to circular 5010.1C Grant Management Guidelines. 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 11 

OTO Program Management  
OTO will maintain a financial management system for financial reporting, accounting records, internal 
controls, and budgeting control subject to standards specified in state laws enforced by the State 
Auditor. All systems and procedures for financial management must comply with 49 CFR 18.20, the 
“Common Rule.” 

OTO will execute grant agreements with other sponsors who are not eligible for direct recipient status. 
The grant agreements for capital projects will detail the equipment approved for purchase and its 
intended use and a grant agreement for operations assistance will outline the type of service provided 
by the agency, the time period covered by the agreement, and the service area. 

OTO will oversee all Springfield Section 5310 subrecipients and procure vehicles for the subrecipients 
with the federal funds based on the proportions identified on the MOU. See Appendix-A. The federal 
share on any project shall not exceed 80 percent for capital projects (85% for ADA Vehicles) and 50 
percent for operations projects. Grant expenditures will be identified by federal grant number, grant 
program and OTO will track subrecipient grant numbers. Additional spreadsheets will be prepared to 
summarize the total expenditures on each federal grant and will be used to reconcile the grant 
expenditures and for revisions to the program of projects and budgets. 

OTO will maintain spreadsheets for OTO’s subrecipients. These spreadsheets will track project 
expenditures, amounts charged to each funding source, local matching sources, and project budgets. 
Additional spreadsheets will be prepared to summarize the total expenditures on each federal grant and 
will be used to reconcile the grant expenditures and for revisions to the program of projects and 
budgets. 

OTO will restrict vehicle use to passenger transportation services. Vehicles must be used in service that 
is available to the general public. OTO may not transfer the operational control of a vehicle purchased 
under this program to anyone else without prior written approval from FTA. 

Vehicles 

Inventory 

OTO and subrecipients are responsible for submitting vehicle information to FTA upon purchase and 
every two years during the Biennial Inventory of Assets and every three years for the Triennial Review. 

OTO will follow FTA policy on vehicle life cycle and disposition of vehicles as found in FTA Circular 
5010.1C Grant Management Guidelines.  Information kept on each vehicle includes the year, make, and 
model; vehicle code, vehicle identification number, agency Vehicle number; age, date accepted, 
remaining useful life, replacement cost; ADA Access Seating Capacity; fuel type; included equipment; 
location; grant number; federal percentage share; date last inspected, recorded mileage, and condition; 
type of funding used for the purchase; and other information used by OTO for program review and 
reporting. The information obtained from these reports will become part of the inventory record along 
with the title and certificate of collision insurance coverage.  

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 12 

Maintenance 

Vehicles of sub-recipients need to be maintained in accordance with sub-recipients’ written 
maintenance plan. A maintenance plan is required for Federal Transit Administration (FTA)-funded 
assets (including vehicles/ vessels, facilities, and maintenance. Maintenance records must be kept for 
individual items and/or major components (such for each vehicle or the heating/air conditioning system 
in a building). The records should include both routine (preventive) and demand maintenance. The 
vehicle maintenance plans need to address timeline of periodic regular inspections and periodic 
preventive maintenance, including maintenance procedures for wheelchair lifts and other accessibility 
features and procedures for tracking warranty issues and pursue warranty claims. At a minimum 
periodic preventative maintenance needs to follow original equipment manufacturers 
recommendations to assure warranties remain valid.  

OTO will review subrecipients’ maintenance documents in annual on-site visits. OTO may choose to do a 
desk review in lieu of the annual on-site visit, if an on-site visit is not feasible. 

Subrecipients of 5310 funding are required to comply with the OTO Program Management Plan. 
Compliance areas include but are not limited to procurement, financial management, and vehicle 
maintenance and disposition. 

OTO Vehicle Procurement 

OTO will comply with the provision of 2 CFR 200 and FTA compliant procedures, including but not 
limited to Buy America, and documentation related to the procurement of vehicles for subrecipients. 
Procurement documents will be kept for the life of the vehicle and available for Triennial review.   

OTO Project Administration 

OTO will initiate grant closeout with FTA within 90 days of completion of all activity in the program of 
projects.  OTO will submit progress reports quarterly by the 30th day of the month following the end of 
the calendar quarter report on quarterly activities for reach open grant.  

The OTO will file Federal Financial Reports (FFR) to FTA. 

This report is filed electronically in the electronic grant making system and is prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting; that is, income is recorded when earned instead of when received, and expenses 
are recorded with incurred instead of when paid. 

OTO Accounting System 

OTO uses QuickBooks nonprofit to maintain records of funds and funding.  OTO will utilize FTA’s 
electronic grants management system, which is a complete database that provides information on 
individual grants, grantees and conditions of awards.  OTO will utilize the system to accurately monitor 
funds in current and past grants, administration monies and to determine reasonable estimates for 
future funding.  OTO will be able to keep in direct contact with FTA through the use of this system and 
account for budget revision, grants administered, and inventory.  

Each 5310 subrecipient should designate a position that serves as a basis of accountability on each 
vehicle and any funds that are involved with the vehicle(s) throughout its useful life.  These accounting 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 
 

 

Page 13 
 

records include original vehicle cost, federal and local share, repair costs, invoices, contracts and any 
other identifiable accounting documents.   

Subrecipients are to follow 2 CFR 200 for requirements associated with equipment use, management 
and disposition.  

Audits 

OTO receives an annual Single Audit as required by federal regulations.  Grants closure is initiated as 
soon as all available funds have been drawn.  Although grantees do not receive funds directly from OTO, 
the vehicles received are considered federal financial assistance according to 2 CFR 200.  Federal 
financial assistance is assistance received in the form of grants, loans, loan guarantees, property, 
cooperative agreements, direct appropriations and other assistance.  Grantees that expend the Single 
Threshold level in their fiscal year are required to obtain a single audit in accordance with 2 CFR 200.  All 
single audits are to be submitted online within nine months of the end do the recipients fiscal year. 

Sub-Recipient Reporting and Oversight 

Sub-recipients of OTO will be required to prepare a variety of program progress reports on an annual 
basis. These reports will begin based on the date agreements/contracts are signed with sub-recipients 
and will continue until the project is closed out. The reports will include vehicle mileage traveled, 
number of passenger trips provided and vehicle condition. These will include a project narrative, local 
matching sources used, number of passenger trips provided, vehicle miles traveled and a vehicle 
condition report. A form will be provided upon award to provide information to OTO for program review 
and reporting. The information obtained from these reports will become part of the inventory record as 
outlined in the inventory section. Subrecipients are also required to submit an annual Title VI report as 
outlined in the civil rights section and have to report all received civil right complaints to OTO, including 
but not limited to Title VI and ADA. If applicable as outlined in 49 CFR 26.21, sub-recipients will also be 
required to report on an annual basis their efforts in purchasing from DBE vendors.  

New subrecipients will be required to report vehicle mileage information, number of passenger trips 
provided and maintenance information semi-annually for the first year.  

In coordination with subrecipients, OTO will conduct annual on-site visits to review maintenance records 
and physically inspect vehicles. OTO may choose to do a desk review in lieu of the annual on-site visit, if 
an on-site visit is not feasible.  

It is understood that OTO will coordinate, to the best of its abilities, with the Missouri Department of 
Transportation (MoDOT) on monitoring and oversight of subrecipients for which there is a shared 
responsibility, including on-site visits. DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 14 

O. Other Provisions
Environmental Protection
OTO anticipates only funding projects with categorical exclusions from both the National
Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) and the State Environmental Protection Act (SEPA). Therefore,
there should be no further documentation necessary.

CU Transit agrees to comply with Federal transit laws, specifically 49 U.S.C § 5323 (c)(2), the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) , as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4321-4335; U.S. Council on 
Environmental Quality regulations pertaining to compliance with NEPA, 40 C.F.R. parts 1500-1508; Joint 
FHWA and FTA regulations, “Environmental Impact and Related Procedures,” 23 C.F.R. part 771 and 49 
C.F.R. part 622, Executive Order No. 11514, as amended, “Protection and Enhancement of
Environmental Quality, “42 U.S.C §4321 note, and U.S. DOT laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. §303.

Restriction on Lobbying and Code of Ethics 
It is required to complete FTA’s Certification on Lobbying prior to contract execution. All staff, officers, 
employees, board members or agents of the grantee are required to comply at a minimum of its 
agencies (OTO or CU) written code of conduct. 

Prohibition on Exclusive School Transportation 
Recipients of this program are required by 49 U.S.C. 5323(f) and FTA regulations, “School Bus 
Operations,” at 49 CFR 605.14, must agree that they will: 

• Not engage in school transportation operations in competition with private school
transportation operators only to the extent permitted by 49 U.S.C. 5323(f), and Federal
regulations; and

• Comply with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 605 before providing any school transportation
using equipment or facilities acquired with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. Chapter
53 or Title 23 U.S.C. for transportation projects.

• An exception would be the transportation of students with disabilities who are eligible CU
passengers. Agencies must understand that a violation of this agreement may require corrective
measures and the imposition of penalties, including debarment from the receipt of further
federal assistance for transportation.

Drug and Alcohol Testing 
Recipients or sub-recipients that only receive 5310 assistance are not subject to FTA Drug and Alcohol 
testing rules, but must comply with the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration rule for employees 
to hold Commercial Drivers’ Licenses (49 CFR part 382). 

Section 5310 recipients and subrecipients that also receive funding under one of the covered FTA 
programs (Section 5307, 5309, or 5311) should include any employees funded under Section 5310 
projects in their testing program (C 9070.1G, p. VIII-9). 

Worker Eligibility 
Agencies receiving FTA 5310 funds will participate in E-Verify and ensure all workers have legal status. 
Participation will be verified during the application review process.  

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 15 

Program Management Plan Update 

Significant revisions, amendments or updates to the Program Management Plan (PMP) will be reviewed 
by OTO’s Local Coordinating Board for Transit (LCBT) and per OTO’s public participation plan, posted for 
public comment period prior to taking effect. Following the review of the LCBT and the public comment 
period, the Executive Director of the OTO will be authorized to approve significant revisions, 
amendments or updates to the PMP. In accordance with FTA guidance, revisions/amendments or 
updates of the PMP that are substantive, but not pervasive, can be approved directly by the Executive 
Director. It is understood that OTO will submit any revisions, amendments or updates to the PMP to 
FTA’s regional office and that it is OTO’s responsibility for ensuring that FTA has a complete copy of the 
current PMP. 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 16 

Appendix-A: MOU 



Program Management Plan 

Page 17 



Program Management Plan 

Page 18 



Program Management Plan 

Page 19 



Program Management Plan 

Page 20 

Appendix-B: Selection Criteria 

FTA SECTION 5310 PROJECT RATING GUIDELINES 

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program (5310) program 
provides grant funds to urbanized areas for public transportation and allows investments in 
vehicles, capital projects and operating assistance that are planned, designed and carried out to 
meet the special needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities. 

GOAL 

To create and maintain a safe, accessible, and energy efficient metropolitan area transit system 
that will enhance the region’s livability and assure its economic vitality. 

POLICY 

It is the policy of the Ozarks Transportation Organization to comply with the Federal Transit 
Administration’s guidance for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 
(5310) program, this guidance requires a minimum of 55 percent of the apportionment to be 
allocated for capital for Human Service agencies, therefore until such time as found to be no 
longer in the organizations best interest, the OTO shall allocated 55 percent to human service 
organizations for the purchase of capital projects as outlined in the Code of Federal Regulations 
FTA C 9070.1G and 35 percent for capital and operation expense and beyond the ADA 
requirements as defined in the CFR, and 10 percent shall be designated for administration of 
the program. Eligible recipients of FTA Section 5310 funding shall apply for eligible project 
funding that includes vehicles, capital projects and operating assistance under FTA Section 5310 
program. 

PROCEDURE 

An application furnished by the OTO must be submitted according to solicitation guidelines. FTA 
Section 5310 project requests shall be analyzed based on the attached considerations and 
ranked by review. The score will be used as a recommendation to the OTO Board of Directors. 
The OTO Board of Directors will be the final decision-making body for the project selection and 
decision. 

Note: It is the responsibility of the transit provider to include all information needed for the 
subcommittee to assess how each project applies to these criteria. 

Eligible Capital Projects to Benefit Human Service Transit (55 percent – “traditional” projects) 

Federal transportation law established a list of activities as eligible capital projects that meet a minimum 
55 percent requirement for 5310 funding, see circular FTA 9070.1G. The LCBT has chosen to fund only 
the following activity with “55 percent” funds. 

• Additional or replacement vehicles and associated equipment (e.g. buses, vans and minivans, extra
seats, heavy-duty wheelchair lift,)

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 21 

Other Eligible Capital and Operating Expense Projects (35 percent – “non-traditional” projects) 

Federal transportation law established a list of activities as eligible other capital and operating expense 
projects that meet a minimum 35 percent requirement for 5310 funding,  
Examples include this non comprehensive list of projects that enhance paratransit activities beyond 
minimum ADA requirements: 

• Expansion of paratransit service beyond the three-fourths mile required by ADA
• Expansion of current hours of ADA paratransit operation
• Incremental cost of providing same day service
• Incremental cost of door-to-door service
• Enhance level of service by transit escort or assisting riders to destination
• Vehicles or labor to accommodate mobility aids exceeding standard ADA wheelchairs
• Additional securement location in public buses beyond ADA requirements
• Accessibility improvements to transit and intermodal stations (non-key stations)
• Accessible pathways include: curbcuts, sidewalks, accessible pedestrian signals of other features,

elevators, ramps, detectable warnings, improving signage, wayfinding technologies, other technology
improvements, and Intelligent Transportation Systems;

• Travel training
• Vehicles to support ADA taxi, rideshare, and/or vanpooling programs
• Administration and expenses related to new voucher programs
• Supporting volunteer driver and aid programs
• Additional Information can be found in FTA C 9070.1G

Note: City Utilities (CU) Transit will receive the funding for “non-traditional” projects as 
outlined in the MOU shown in Appendix A. In the event that CU elects not to utilize the 
allocated funds for “non-traditional” projects, OTO will administer the project selection 
process for all projects funded through the 5310 program. 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (10 percent) 

Up to 10 percent of the recipient’s total fiscal year apportionment may be used to fund program 
administration costs including administration, planning and technical assistance for projects funded in 
this program. Program administration costs may be funded at 100 percent federal share. 

Per the requirements of federal transportation law, 5310 funds cannot be transferred into or out of the 
areas in which they were apportioned (i.e. urban to rural areas). 

Additional Eligibility Requirements for 5310 Funding 
In addition to the above eligibility standards, projects seeking 5310 funding must address a strategy or 
action in the Transit Coordination Plan 2022. The applicant must have a minimum (non-federal) local 
match of 20 percent match for capital project (15% for ADA Vehicles), 50 percent match for operations 
and 0 percent match for administration as required by federal transportation legislation. 

DRAFT



Program Management Plan 

Page 22 

5310 Scoring Criteria 
Agency Submitting Project: ________________________ 

Vehicle Requested: ________________________ 

Federal Funds Requested:________________________ 

Type: Replacement Vehicle ☐   New Vehicle ☐ 

Max 
Points 

Possible 
Evaluation Criteria 

Points 
Awarded 

15 This project replaces an existing vehicle to maintain current services 

10 This project supports services of established agencies 

10 This project will lead to an increase in the agency’s ADA amenities offered 

10 This project will provide service to an area not previously served 

5 This project provides for an increased number of passengers served per week 

5 This project will create new intercity connections 

5 This project will expand transit access at night and on weekends 

5 This project expands ADA accessibility to public transportation 

5 Agency has not been awarded a vehicle in the past two years 

5 This project is in alignment with the themes and strategies identified in the Transit 
Coordination Plan  

3 This project will offer same day transit service 

2 This project will offer flexible scheduling options 

80 Total 

DRAFT



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 6 

 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.D. 
 

TAP Project Schedule Extension 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
The Springfield-Greene County Park Board has requested to extend the schedule of the Lost Hill 
Greenway Trail Bridge (EN2402-24), which was awarded TAP/CRP funds in January 2023. This would be a 
one-time extension, per OTO’s Reasonable Progress Policy.  
 
The Lost Hill Greenway Trail Bridge project is not on OTO’s list of Critical Obligations for Federal Fiscal 
Year 2024. The Springfield-Greene County Park Board has proposed the following schedule:  
 

Phase Current Schedule Proposed Schedule 
1. Award Notification post TIP Amendment January 2023 Completed 
2. Programming Data Form March 2023 Completed 
3. Engineering Services Contract Approval April 2024 September 2024 
4. Preliminary & Right-of-Way Plans Submittal August 2024 November 2024 
5. Plans, Specifications, & Estimate Submittal December 2024 January 2025 
6. Plans, Specifications & Estimate Approval January 2025 February 2025 
7. Construction Contract Award March 2025 May 2025 

 
 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN:  
At its regularly scheduled meeting on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee recommended 
the Board of Directors approve the revised reasonable progress schedule for the Lost Hill Greenway 
Bridge Project. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve the revised reasonable progress schedule for the Lost Hill Greenway Bridge Project.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to recommend the following…” 



1 

1923 N. Weller Avenue 

Springfield, Missouri 65803 

O: (417) 864-0288 

M: (417) 353-1955 

jsmith@springfieldmo.gov 

 

To: Jennifer Thomas, P.E., ENV SP 

 Ozark Transportation Organization 

 2208 W. Chesterfield Blvd, Suite 101 

 P: (417) 865-3042 ext. 108 

Project:  Lost Hill Park Greenway Trail Bridge - TAP - 9901 (867) 

 

Jennifer, 

 

We would like to request an extension on the Lost Hill Park Greenway Trail Bridge project - TAP - 9901 (867). 

The proposed schedule I’ve attached will give us adequate time to complete all of the tasks and will only add 

two months onto the completion of the project.  We also believe that starting construction at the start of June 

will provide more favorable conditions within the drainage channel than starting in April would provide. 

 

Please review the proposed schedule and let me know if you have any questions.   

 

Thank you! 

 

 

Jeff W. Smith, RLA, ASLA 

Senior Parks Planner 

Springfield-Greene County Park Board 

SPRINGFIELD-GREENE COUNTY PARK BOARD - PARK PLANNING OFFICE 



 
June 6, 2024 
 
 
Jeff Smith 
Springfield-Greene County Park Board 
1923 N. Weller 
Springfield, MO 65803 
 
RE: Lost Hill Greenway Bridge – TAP 9901(867) 

OTO has been diligently working to spend federal funds according to MoDOT’s requirements. In order to 
avoid lapsing funds, we are actively monitoring for reasonable progress on all projects. Project timelines 
are outlined in the project application, reasonable progress policy and the MoDOT program agreement. 

We regret to inform you OTO has determined that the Springfield-Greene County Park Board has made 
insufficient progress on the Lost Hill Greenway Bridge project. This is the first violation letter advising 
you of the missed deadline.  

The Springfield-Greene County Park Board has missed the following deadline:  

Engineering Services Contract Approval by April 30, 2024 

It is OTO’s goal to obligate all funding as soon as possible, so please continue to work diligently to get 
the project back on schedule. I have attached the required timeline for your reference.  

A one-time extension may be requested and approved by the OTO Board of Directors. This will result in 
a new timeline being established. This will not reset the number of violations. All requests will be 
considered in terms of the overall possible lapsing of funds for the OTO area. 

If an extension is not approved and the project schedule continues to not be met, funding will be 
removed from the project on September 30, 2024.  

Please let us know if you have any questions or need assistance with moving your project forward.  

Sincerely, 

 

 

Jennifer Thomas, P.E. 

 

CC: Garrett Evans, MoDOT 

 



 
 

 
 

Springfield-Greene County Park Board 

Lost Hills Greenway Bridge Project Schedule 

Phase Latest Date 

1. Award Notification post TIP Approval September 2023 

2. Programming Data Form November 2023 

3. Programming Agreement January 2024 

4. Engineering Services Contract Approval April 2024 

5. Preliminary & Right-of-Way Plans Submittal August 2024 

6. Plans, Specifications, & Estimate (PS&E) Submittal December 2024 

7. Plans, Specifications, & Estimate (PS&E) Approval January 2025 

8. Construction Contract Award March 2025 

9. Final Project Closeout Variable 

 



Project Overview
1 Projects Listed

24Adopted Sponsored by Local
Public Agencies

Bicycle and
Pedestrian

Greene County
Parks

Greene County Unincorporated
Greene County

Programmed $150,000

- 9901867 - -

Bike/Ped Plan

Construct new bridge to replace low-water crossing for greenway trail at Lost Hill Park.

Non-Federal Funding Source: Springfield-Greene County Park Board

Engineering TAP (FHWA) - $10,400 - - - - $10,400

Engineering Local - $2,600 - - - - $2,600

Total Engineering - $13,000 - - - - $13,000

Construction Local - - $30,000 - - - $30,000

Construction TAP (FHWA) - - $107,000 - - - $107,000

Total Construction - - $137,000 - - - $137,000

Total Programmed - $13,000 $137,000 - - - $150,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2402-24 - LOST HILL GREENWAY BRIDGE



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 7 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.E. 
 

Trail and Sidewalk Funding Recommendation 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
OTO made a call for projects in July, with applications due August 1, for trail and sidewalk projects, with 
the purpose of awarding TAP/CRP funding.  Five projects were received and recommended for funding 
by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 
 

1. City of Battlefield – Engineering/Design – Wilson’s Creek Trail and Phase 2 FF Pedestrian 
Improvements 

2. City of Ozark – Construction – Trail/Sidewalk Hwy CC Chadwick Flyer Connection  
3. City of Springfield – Engineering/Design and Construction – South Creek Greenway Trail – 

Sunset/Glenstone Crossing Improvements  
4. City of Strafford – Engineering/Design – Route 66 trail Phase 3  
5. City of Willard – Engineering/Design – 160 Underpass 

 
Funding Summary 

Requested Federal Share $1,333,205.00 
Total Local Share $332,802.00 
Total Costs $1,666,007.00 

 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
The OTO Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee recommended the submitted sidewalk and trail 
projects be approved for TAP/CRP funding, with approval of the City of Battlefield’s project contingent 
on including stakeholder outreach and development of conceptual plan alternatives, and Springfield’s 
Construction award contingent upon meeting PS&E reasonable progress requirements. 
 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
At its regularly scheduled on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee recommended the 
Board of Directors approve TAP/CRP funding for the trail and sidewalk projects. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve TAP/CRP funding for the five submitted sidewalk and trail projects.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to recommend the following…” 



July 2024 Bike/Ped - Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Battlefield

Greene County Battlefield - $233,172

- - Route M (Republic
Road), Highway FF

W. William St.,
Wilson's Creek

-

The City of Battlefield is focusing on enhancing pedestrian and bike accommodations in the City by further
increasing connectivity between neighborhoods and City amenities. The City proposes, with this application, to
provide for Preliminary Engineering for two substantial improvements that will greatly enhance their trail
network, improve pedestrian safety, and increase community connectivity: For the First Project, the City
proposes to provide an 8' to 12’ wide concrete sidewalk/trail beginning at the Republic Road (to the east)/State
Highway M (to the west) and Highway FF intersection that would extend south along the east side of Highway
FF approximately 5,025’ primarily within existing right-of-way and connecting to a previously completed and
STP funded sidewalk (STP-9901_814, Phase I FF Sidewalk) near W. William St. This project will connect two
currently separated commercial districts to each other and to area neighborhoods as well as the local school. A
popular restaurant/brewery with outdoor seating is midway along the route and between the two commercial
areas and could be a favored pedestrian destination among others. Currently, the sidewalk along Highway FF
ends at a commercial driveway, but was designed with the intent to extend further north which could be
fulfilled by the proposed improvements.

 
The Second Project is to provide an 8' to 12’ wide concrete sidewalk/trail also beginning at the Republic
Road/State Highway M and Highway FF intersection and that would extend West along the north side of State
Highway M approximately 3,000’ to the existing southern terminus of the Wilson’s Creek Greenway Trail. The
Wilson’s Creek Greenway currently ends at Wilsons Creek adjacent to the State Highway M bridge and
requires trail users to reverse course at that point and return to a trail head quite a ways away. This extension
shows up on various area pedestrian improvement plans and is part of a larger objective to connect trail users to
Wilson’s Creek National Battlefield located a couple of miles to the southwest and to the City of Republic.
Completion of this and other phases will provide interconnection of OTO jurisdictions (Battlefield and
Republic). This project is part of the official 2045 long range transportation plans map. Currently, there are no
sidewalks in the area and pedestrians have to walk along a busy road with steep ditches resulting in safety
concerns and discouraged pedestrian use. By completing this phase of construction in the future, pedestrians
would be interconnected with the Greenways network linking users to the City of Battlefield and beyond. It is
proposed that the east end of the project, located opposite the Township Senior Living Campus, be an alternate
should costs come in high as there is a new 5’ sidewalk located along the south side of State Highway M that
could be utilized if funds are limited for construction. In addition, prior to requesting construction funds, costs
may be reassessed and consideration of scope adjustments may occur if needed. This application is for
Preliminary Engineering funds only, which will allow the city to have shovel ready projects and a more detailed
expectation of project values. Future requests for construction funds may be for all or part of the projects
described as funds and available right-of-way allow.

-

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

CFP24-107 - Wilson's Creek Trail and Phase 2 FF Pedestrian Improvements

8/2/24, 9:44 AM ProjectTracker

https://portal.oto.ecointeractive.com/reports/240/sections?includeControls=true&page=1&pageSize=50&IncludeCompletedProjects=true&IncludeRemo… 1/5





Engineering Local - $46,635 - $46,635

Engineering Federal - $186,537 - $186,537

Total Engineering - $233,172 - $233,172

Total Programmed - $233,172 - $233,172

July 2024 Bike/Ped - Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Ozark

Christian County Ozark - $555,726

- - Fremont Road N 22nd Street

-

Trail/Sidewalk State Hwy CC-Fremont Road to N 22nd Street

-

Construction Local - - $111,146 $111,146

Construction Federal - - $444,580 $444,580

Total Construction - - $555,726 $555,726

Total Future Costs - - $555,726 $555,726

Total Programmed - - $555,726 $555,726

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FUTURE TOTAL

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FUTURE TOTAL

CFP24-104 - Trail/Sidewalk Hwy CC Chadwick Flyer Connection

8/2/24, 9:44 AM ProjectTracker

https://portal.oto.ecointeractive.com/reports/240/sections?includeControls=true&page=1&pageSize=50&IncludeCompletedProjects=true&IncludeRemo… 2/5





July 2024 Bike/Ped - Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Springfield

- - - $446,899

- - - -

-

Provide sidewalks and pedestrian crossings at intersection of Glenstone Avenue and Sunset Street in
Springfield.

-

Engineering Local - $5,829 - $5,829

Engineering Federal - $46,633 - $46,633

Engineering MoDOT - $5,829 - $5,829

Total Engineering - $58,291 - $58,291

Construction Local - - $38,861 $38,861

Construction Federal - - $310,886 $310,886

Construction MoDOT - - $38,861 $38,861

Total Construction - - $388,608 $388,608

Total Future Costs - - $388,608 $388,608

Total Programmed - $58,291 $388,608 $446,899

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FUTURE TOTAL

CFP24-106 - South Creek Greenway Trail--Sunset/Glenstone Crossing Improvements

8/2/24, 9:44 AM ProjectTracker

https://portal.oto.ecointeractive.com/reports/240/sections?includeControls=true&page=1&pageSize=50&IncludeCompletedProjects=true&IncludeRemo… 3/5



City of Springfield, Missouri GIS

I
DISCLAIMER:  All informa tion included on this ma p or digital file

is provided "as-is" for general information purposes only.  The City 
of Springfield, and all other contr ibuting data suppliers, make no 

warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the accuracy, completeness, 
reliability, or suitability of the data  for any particular use.  Fu rthermore, 

the City of Springfield, and all other contributing d ata supplie rs, assume no 
liability whatsoever associated with the use or misuse of the data.

Sunset and Glenstone Avenue Sidewalk Connection

0 40 8020

ft 7/24/2024(417) 864-1000

evan.bergmann
Callout
Sidewalk toCU Bus Stop Sign

evan.bergmann
Callout
Connection to South Creek Greenway (Fremont to Glenstone) Trail currently under design



July 2024 Bike/Ped - Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Strafford

Greene County Strafford - $295,711

- - Washington Ave 0.27 miles east of Farm
Road 123 (TransLand)

-

PS & E for 10' wide trail along Route OO from Washington Ave to TransLand

-

Engineering Federal - $236,569 - $236,569

Engineering Local - $59,142 - $59,142

Total Engineering - $295,711 - $295,711

Total Programmed - $295,711 - $295,711

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FUTURE TOTAL

CFP24-105 - Route 66 Trail - Phase 3

8/2/24, 9:44 AM ProjectTracker

https://portal.oto.ecointeractive.com/reports/240/sections?includeControls=true&page=1&pageSize=50&IncludeCompletedProjects=true&IncludeRemo… 4/5





Plan Revision

July 2024 Bike/Ped
Section

-
Project Type

Bicycle and
Pedestrian

Lead Agency

City of Willard

County

Greene County
Municipality

Willard
Status

-
Total Cost

$135,000

MoDoT ID

-
Federal ID

290653
Project From

-
Project To

-

Project Considerations

-

Project Description

Engineering on an underpass at Hwy 160 and Hwy AB

Funding Source Notes

-

Engineering Local - $27,000 - $27,000

Engineering Federal - $108,000 - $108,000

Total Engineering - $135,000 - $135,000

Total Programmed - $135,000 - $135,000

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FUTURE TOTAL

CFP24-102 - 160 Underpass

8/2/24, 10:50 AM ProjectTracker

https://portal.oto.ecointeractive.com/reports/240/sections?includeControls=true&page=1&pageSize=50&IncludeRemovedProjects=false&DoCarryOver… 1/1





 

 

 

 

 

TAB 8 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.F. 
 

Destination 2045 Amendment Number 7 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
An update to Destination 2045 is needed to include I-44 improvements from US 65 to Route 125 and to 
reflect the additional funding and updated costs for the I-44 projects between US 160 and Route 125.  
These changes are highlighted on the following pages. 
 
While these projects appear in various configurations in the Constrained project list, as well as several as 
carryover from the TIP prior to the 2021 LRTP update, below is a breakdown of the I-44 projects: 
 

PROJECT Estimated Cost 
(in thousands) 

US 160 to 13 Widening 42.14 
Route 13 to Glenstone  

Sound Study 4.84 
Widening 46.28 
Pavement Rebuild 6.73 

Glenstone to US 65  
Widening 20.14 
Pavement Rebuild 6.63 

US 65 to Route 125 93.95 
Route 13 Interchange  

Phase 1 37.64 
Phase 2 3.97 
Phase 3 9.95 
Phase 4 2.16 

New Melville Bridge 5.32 
TOTAL 279.75 

 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
At its regularly scheduled meeting on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee recommended 
the Board of Directors approve Amendment Seven to Destination 2045. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve Amendment Seven to Destination 2045.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve Amendment Seven to Destination 2045 with the following changes…” 



Destination 2045 Page 107 

Revenue Estimates through 2045 
Revenue Directed to Roadway, Bicycle, Pedestrian, ITS, Operations, and 
Maintenance Projects 

 

  2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 

MoDOT Directed Revenue $59,027,891 $76,779,044 $66,592,385 $331,230,000 $58,312,000 

Cost Share Projected Revenue $6,000,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

Suballocated STBG $7,274,284 $7,882,538 $7,930,989 $8,089,609 $8,251,401 

Suballocated TAP/CRP $2,312,656 $2,312,656 $2,312,656 $2,312,656 $2,358,909 

Local/Other $25,795,423 $8,708,407 $2,560,911 $2,600,566 $2,652,578 

TOTAL $100,410,254 $97,182,645 $80,896,941 $345,732,831 $73,074,888 

 

  2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 

 MoDOT Directed Revenue  $55,390,100 $55,944,001 $56,503,441 $57,068,475 $57,639,160 

 Cost Share Projected Revenue  $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

 Suballocated STBG  $8,416,429 $8,584,758 $8,756,453 $8,931,582 $9,110,214 

 Suballocated TAP/CRP $2,406,087 $2,454,209 $2,454,209 $2,454,209 $2,454,209 

 Local  $2,705,629 $2,759,742 $2,802,665 $2,846,448 $2,891,106 

 TOTAL  $70,418,246 $71,242,710 $72,016,768 $72,800,714 $73,594,689 

 

  2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 

 MoDOT Directed Revenue  $58,215,552 $58,797,707 $59,385,684 $59,979,541 $60,579,337 

 Cost Share Projected Revenue  $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

 Suballocated STBG  $9,292,418 $9,478,266 $9,667,832 $9,861,188 $10,058,412 

 Suballocated TAP/CRP $2,503,293 $2,503,293 $2,503,293 $2,503,293 $2,503,293 

 Local  $2,948,928 $2,995,390 $3,042,781 $3,091,120 $3,140,426 

 TOTAL  $74,460,191 $75,274,657 $76,099,590 $76,935,143 $77,781,468 

 

  2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 

 MoDOT Directed Revenue  $61,185,130 $61,796,981 $62,414,951 $63,039,101 $63,669,492 

 Cost Share Projected Revenue  $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

 Suballocated STBG  $10,259,580 $10,464,772 $10,674,067 $10,887,549 $11,105,300 

 Suballocated TAP/CRP $2,553,359 $2,553,359 $2,553,359 $2,553,359 $2,553,359 

 Local  $3,203,235 $3,254,533 $3,306,857 $3,360,227 $3,414,665 

 TOTAL  $78,701,304 $79,569,645 $80,449,234 $81,340,235 $82,242,815 

 

 

 

93: Non-Transit Revenue Estimates 2022-2045 



Destination 2045 Page 108 

  2042 2043 2044 2045 TOTAL 

 MoDOT Directed Revenue  $64,306,187 $64,949,248 $65,598,741 $66,254,728 $1,744,658,878 

 Cost Share Projected Revenue  $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $40,500,000 

 Suballocated STBG  $11,327,406 $11,553,954 $11,785,033 $12,020,733 $231,664,766 

 Suballocated TAP/CRP $2,604,426 $2,604,426 $2,604,426 $2,604,426 $59,533,423 

 Local  $3,482,958 $3,539,595 $3,597,365 $3,656,290 $102,357,844 

 TOTAL  $83,220,976 $84,147,223 $85,085,565 $86,036,178 $2,178,714,911 

 

Revenue Directed to Transit Projects  

 

  2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 

 FTA 5307  $2,755,075  $2,872,825  $2,866,486  $2,923,816  $2,982,292  

 FTA 5310  $307,843  $314,000  $320,280  $326,686  $333,220  

 FTA 5339  $292,904  $298,762  $3,304,738  $310,832  $317,049  

 City Utilities Local Share  $6,800,000  $7,000,000  $7,000,000  $9,500,000  $9,595,000  

 State of Missouri/Medicaid  $146,500  $146,500  $146,500  $146,500  $149,430  

 Other local agencies  $42,328  $43,175  $44,039  $44,919  $45,818  

 TOTAL  $10,344,650  $10,675,262  $13,682,043  $13,252,753  $13,422,808  

 

  2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 

 FTA 5307  $3,041,938  $3,102,777  $3,164,832  $3,228,129  $3,292,692  

 FTA 5310  $339,884  $346,682  $353,615  $360,688  $367,901  

 FTA 5339  $323,390  $329,857  $336,455  $343,184  $350,047  

 City Utilities Local Share  $9,690,950  $9,787,860  $9,885,738  $9,984,595  $10,084,441  

 State of Missouri/Medicaid  $149,430  $149,430  $149,430  $149,430  $152,419  

 Other local agencies  $46,734  $47,669  $48,622  $49,595  $50,586  

 TOTAL  $13,592,326  $13,764,274  $13,938,693  $14,115,621  $14,298,087  

 

  2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 

 FTA 5307  $3,358,546  $3,425,716  $3,494,231  $3,564,115  $3,635,398  

 FTA 5310  $375,260  $382,765  $390,420  $398,228  $406,193  

 FTA 5339  $357,048  $364,189  $371,473  $378,902  $386,481  

 City Utilities Local Share  $10,185,286  $10,287,139  $10,390,010  $10,493,910  $10,598,849  

 State of Missouri/Medicaid  $152,419  $152,419  $152,419  $152,419  $155,467  

 Other local agencies  $51,598  $52,630  $53,683  $54,756  $55,852  

 TOTAL  $14,480,156  $14,664,858  $14,852,235  $15,042,331  $15,238,239  

 

 

94: Transit Revenue Estimates 2022-2045 



Destination 2045 Page 109 

  2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 

 FTA 5307  $3,708,106  $3,782,268  $3,857,913  $3,935,071  $4,013,773  

 FTA 5310  $414,317  $422,603  $431,055  $439,676  $448,470  

 FTA 5339  $394,210  $402,094  $410,136  $418,339  $426,706  

 City Utilities Local Share  $10,704,838  $10,811,886  $10,920,005  $11,029,205  $11,139,497  

 State of Missouri/Medicaid  $155,467  $155,467  $155,467  $155,467  $158,576  

 Other local agencies  $56,969  $58,108  $59,270  $60,455  $61,665  

 TOTAL  $15,433,906  $15,632,426  $15,833,847  $16,038,214  $16,248,686  

 

  2042 2043 2044 2045 TOTAL 

 FTA 5307  $4,094,048  $4,175,929  $4,259,448  $4,344,637  $83,880,061  

 FTA 5310  $457,439  $466,588  $475,920  $485,438  $9,365,172  

 FTA 5339  $435,240  $443,945  $452,824  $461,880  $11,910,684  

 City Utilities Local Share  $11,250,892  $11,363,401  $11,477,035  $11,591,805  $241,572,343  

 State of Missouri/Medicaid  $158,576  $158,576  $158,576  $158,576  $3,665,459  

 Other local agencies  $62,898  $64,156  $65,439  $66,748  $1,287,711  

 TOTAL  $16,459,094  $16,672,595  $16,889,241  $17,109,084  $351,681,431  

 

Range of Alternatives 
Funding through 2045 will be limited.  For this reason, OTO has reviewed potential 
projects over that same time frame, so there is a realistic understanding of what can 
be accomplished.  OTO solicits needs and projects from member jurisdictions and 
through the public input process.  These projects are then subjected to a 
prioritization process.  The list of prioritized projects is compared to the available 
funding amounts through 2045 and a constrained list of priority projects is selected. 

Project Prioritization Process 
To prioritize projects, the Destination 2045 subcommittee developed a set of 
prioritization factors based on the plan goals.  A glossary defining the criteria for 
points is included in Appendix 2.   

  



Destination 2045 Page 110 

95: Prioritization Points  
Factor Max Points 
High Volume Corridors 8 
Safety 40 
Bike/Ped Safety 20 
At-Grade RR Crossing 4 
Multi-Modal 6 
Environmental Justice 8 
Current Congestion 15 
Future Congestion 7 
SW Freight Plan 2 
Freight Traffic 4 
Bridge Condition 6 
Extending Life Cycle 4 
Local Priority 15 
TOTAL Points 140 

 

Constrained Project Lists 
The long range transportation plan is required to contain a financial plan 
demonstrating how the adopted transportation plan can be implemented.  OTO has 
identified funding for operations, maintenance, and plan implementation of federal-
aid highways and public transportation.  As these funds are limited, the list below 
has been constrained to available funding.  The financial plan presented in 
Destination 2045 is required to be fiscally constrained by year for the first ten years 
and the outer years may reflect aggregate cost ranges. 

Foremost, OTO has accounted for the FY 2022-2025 Transportation Improvement 
Program.  The FY 2022-2025 TIP contains projects constrained in Transportation 
Plan 2040 and has been fiscally constrained itself.  The projects contained in the TIP 
can be found on the OTO website - https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/what-we-
do/transportation-improvement-program.  A small amount of funding is available 
beyond what has been programmed in the TIP and that has been made available for 
projects that have yet to be programmed in this timeframe. 

Next, OTO has considered those needs that require an annual investment through 
regular evaluation.  The first few years of these programs have already been included 
in the FY 2022-2025 TIP, then an annual cost/investment plan has been estimated 
through 2045. 

• ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
• Signal Replacement 
• Bridge Asset Management  
• Safety Improvement 
• Interstate and Major Routes Pavement Improvement 
• Minor Routes Pavement 

2045 Goals 
Safe for all users on all modes 

Asset management and fiscal responsibility 

Connected, integrated, multi-modal system 

Resilient and prepared for the future 

Quality projects implementing best practices 

https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/what-we-do/transportation-improvement-program
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/what-we-do/transportation-improvement-program


Destination 2045 Page 111 

• Intersection Operational Improvement 
• ITS Operations and Management 
• Operations and Maintenance – State and Local Systems 
• Scoping 
• Rail 

Finally, identified projects have been prioritized as outlined above and assigned a 
year for construction, with estimated costs inflated to the relevant time frame.  The 
following list has been organized by Route for ease of use.  Public transportation 
projects have been identified in a separate table. 

Fiscal Constraint for Roadway, Bicycle, Pedestrian, ITS, Operations, and 
Maintenance 

 

  2022 2023 2024 2025 

Prior Year Funding $58,933,279  $12,187,999  $19,023,364  $44,595,172  

Projected Funding $100,410,254  $97,182,645  $80,896,941  $345,732,831  

Inflated Constrained Project Costs ($147,155,534) ($90,347,280) ($55,325,134) ($166,184,413) 

Remaining Funding $12,187,999  $19,023,364  $44,595,172  $224,143,590  

 

  2026 2027 2028 2029 

Prior Year Funding $224,143,590  $35,272,561  $61,300,504  $97,246,472  

Projected Funding $73,074,888  $70,418,246  $71,242,710  $72,016,768  

Inflated Constrained Project Costs ($261,945,917) ($44,390,303) ($35,296,741) ($68,823,084) 

Remaining Funding $35,272,561  $61,300,504  $97,246,472  $100,440,157  

 

  2030 2031 2032-2037 2038-2045 

Prior Year Funding $100,440,157  $104,276,052  $107,634,193  $170,370,666  

Projected Funding $72,800,714  $73,594,689  $459,252,353  $662,091,872  

Inflated Constrained Project Costs ($68,964,819) ($70,236,547) ($396,515,881) ($625,531,072) 

Remaining Funding $104,276,052  $107,634,193  $170,370,666  $206,931,465  

 

Constrained Project List for Roadway, Bicycle, Pedestrian, ITS, Operations, 
and Maintenance 
 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

39 N/A Various|2022-2025 TIP Project Costs for TIP Adopted 
7/15/2021 

2022 $147,155,534  

39 N/A Various|2022-2025 TIP Project Costs for TIP Adopted 
7/15/2021 

2023 $78,619,210  

96: Non-Transit Fiscal Constraint 

97: Non-Transit Constrained Project List 



Destination 2045 Page 112 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

39 N/A Various|2022-2025 TIP Project Costs for TIP Adopted 
7/15/2021 

2024 $52,907,261  

39 N/A Various|2022-2025 TIP Project Costs for TIP Adopted 
7/15/2021 

2025 $38,395,001  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2023 $430,000  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2024 $800,000  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2025 $1,500,000  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2026 $2,100,000  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2027 $2,163,000  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2028 $2,227,890  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2029 $2,294,727  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2030 $2,363,569  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2031 $2,434,476  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$16,219,601  

43 N/A Various|ADA/Bike/Ped/Trail 
Investments 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$26,624,524  

10 N/A MoDOT|Signal 
Replacement Program 

Annual Program 2026 $4,502,035  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2025 $2,458,636  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2026 $2,532,395  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2027 $2,608,367  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2028 $2,686,618  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2029 $2,767,216  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2030 $2,850,233  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2031 $2,935,740  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$19,730,208  

11 N/A MoDOT|Bridge Asset 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$32,947,211  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2025 $1,966,909  



Destination 2045 Page 113 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2026 $2,025,916  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2027 $2,086,693  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2028 $2,149,294  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2029 $2,213,773  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2030 $2,280,186  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2031 $2,348,592  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$15,647,404  

12 N/A MoDOT|Safety 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$25,685,260  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2025 $8,741,816  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2026 $9,004,070  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2027 $9,274,193  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2028 $9,552,418  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2029 $9,838,991  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2030 $10,134,161  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2031 $10,438,185  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$72,005,677  

13 N/A MoDOT|Interstate and 
Major Routes Pavement 
Improvement Program 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$126,566,059  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2025 $811,896  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2026 $836,253  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2027 $861,341  



Destination 2045 Page 114 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2028 $887,181  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2029 $913,796  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2030 $941,210  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2031 $969,446  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$6,572,273  

19 N/A MoDOT|Minor Routes 
Pavement Program 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$11,164,411  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2025 $546,364  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2026 $562,754  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2027 $579,637  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2028 $597,026  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2029 $614,937  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2030 $633,385  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2031 $652,387  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$4,346,501  

21 N/A MoDOT|Intersection 
Operational Improvement 
Program 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$7,134,794  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2025 $1,803,000  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2026 $2,082,600  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2027 $1,912,802  



Destination 2045 Page 115 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2028 $1,970,186  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2029 $2,029,292  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2030 $2,090,171  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2031 $2,152,876  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$14,343,453  

34 N/A MoDOT/Springfield|ITS 
Operations and 
Management Program 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$23,544,822  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2026 $9,860,043  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2027 $10,155,844  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2028 $10,460,520  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2029 $10,774,335  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2030 $11,097,565  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2031 $11,430,492  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$76,155,222  

44 N/A Various|Operations and 
Maintenance - State and 
Local Systems 

Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$125,009,026  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2025 $50,000  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2026 $50,000  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2027 $51,500  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2028 $53,045  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2029 $54,636  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2030 $56,275  



Destination 2045 Page 116 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2031 $57,964  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$399,851  

48 N/A MoDOT|Scoping Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$702,827  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2026 $200,000  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2027 $206,000  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2028 $212,180  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2029 $218,545  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2030 $225,102  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2031 $231,855  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2032-
2037 

$1,544,724  

49 N/A MoDOT|Rail Annual Program 2038-
2045 

$2,535,669  

A31 N/A Various|EV Chargers EV Charger Program for about 60 
Charging Ports 

2024 $937,500 

57 3rd/Oak Ozark|3rd and Oak 
Intersection Improvements 

Intersection Improvements at 3rd 
and Oak - Crossing over drainage 
way 

2032-
2037 

$2,604,581  

247 Azalea Battlefield|Azalea Gap Complete the gap between Lilac Ln 
and Morning Glory 

2023 $875,500  

1 Chestnut MoDOT|Chestnut Expwy 
Capacity and Safety 
Improvements 

Capacity and Safety improvements 
on Chestnut Expressway from Rte. 
13 (Kansas Expressway) to Bus. 65 
(Glenstone Avenue) 

2032-
2037 

$5,064,462  

212 Chestnut MoDOT|Chestnut Expwy 
from Glenstone to US 65 

Operational Improvements 2038-
2045 

$3,559,229  

2 Division MoDOT|Division St 
Improvements 

Capacity improvements from 
Airport Boulevard to West Bypass 

2038-
2045 

$16,016,529  

99 Division Springfield|Division Street - 
Glenstone to Hwy 65 

Capacity and Safety Improvements 2032-
2037 

$15,844,532  

45 EW Arterial Greene|East/West Arterial 
from Kansas Expressway to 
Campbell Ave 

New roadway corridor with bicycle 
and pedestrian accommodations 

2038-
2045 

$26,249,311  

114 Glenstone MoDOT|Glenstone Safety 
and Operational 
Improvements Phase III 

Glenstone Safety and Operational 
Improvements from Valley Water 
Mill to James River Freeway 

2030 $950,078  

183 I-244 MoDOT|Conversion of JRF 
and US 65 to I-244 

Ramp Improvements and Signage 
necessary to designate I-244 

2029 $1,229,874  

4 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Capacity 
Improvements I 

Capacity improvements from Rte. 
160 (West Bypass) to Rte. 13 
(Kansas Expressway) in Springfield 

2026 $42,140,000  

5 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Capacity 
Improvements II 

Capacity improvements from 
Kansas Expwy to Glenstone Ave 

2025 $57,850,000  

6 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Ramp 
Improvements 

Ramp improvements at I-44/Rte. 
125 interchange 

2030 $2,533,540  



Destination 2045 Page 117 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

121 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Capacity 
Safety and Operational 
Improvements 

Capacity Improvements from US 65 
to Rte 125 

2026 $93,950,000 

41 I-44/MM/B MoDOT|I-44 and Routes 
MM/B Interchange 

Interchange improvements at 
Routes MM/B 

2023 $7,332,570  

22 ITS MoDOT|ITS from 
Springfield to Rogersville 

ITS improvements from Springfield 
to Rogersville (Route 65 to Route 
125) 

2024 $1,140,468  

126 Kansas Expy MoDOT|Kansas Expressway 
Capital Improvements 
Phase I, II, III, & IV 

Kansas Expwy - Norton Rd to 
Kearney Includes Interchange 

2026 $53,720,000  

127 Kansas Expy MoDOT|Kansas Expressway 
Capital Improvements 
Phase I, II, & III 

Kansas Expwy - Kearney to Grand 2032-
2037 

$4,340,968  

128 Kansas Expy MoDOT|Kansas Expressway 
Capital Improvements 
Phase I 

Kansas Expwy - Grand to Republic, 
excluding Sunshine Intersection 

2027 $7,535,281  

131 Kansas Expy MoDOT|Kansas Expressway 
Capital Improvements 
Phase II 

Kansas Expwy - Grand to Republic, 
excluding Sunshine Intersection 

2032-
2037 

$9,405,430  

248 Kansas 
Expy/Sunshine 

MoDOT|Kansas and 
Sunshine Intersection 

Intersection Improvements 2027 $6,955,644  

134 Kearney MoDOT|Kearney Safety and 
Operational Improvements 
- Airport to LeCompte 

Kearney - Airport to LeCompte 2032-
2037 

$2,652,331  

138 Kearney MoDOT|Kearney Safety and 
Operational Improvements 
- LeCompte to Mulroy 

Kearney - LeCompte to Mulroy 2038-
2045 

$3,737,190  

216 LeCompte Springfield|LeCompte Rd 
Capacity Improvements 

Capacity Improvements 2038-
2045 

$3,559,229  

215 LeCompte/YY MoDOT|LeCompte Rd and 
Rte YY Intersection 
Improvements 

Intersection Improvements 2038-
2045 

$3,559,229  

65 Longview/65 MoDOT|Longview & 65 
Interchange 

Longview and 65 interchange 2038-
2045 

$24,914,600  

246 Main Nixa|Main Street Nixa from 
Route 14 to North 

Widening and Sidewalks 2038-
2045 

$5,345,693  

A33 Main Springfield|Main Avenue Replace Bridge on Main Avenue 2025 7,500,000 

69 McCracken Ozark|McCracken Rd 
Expansion 

McCracken Capacity, Operational 
and Safety Improvement 

2030 $2,406,863  

78 Miller Willard|Miller - E Proctor to 
New Melville 

This is a project to continue 
improvement on a collector street 

2024 $477,405  

80 Miller Willard|Miller Rd - New 
Melville to Hughes 

Approximately 3,980 feet of road 
widening with ADA compliant 
sidewalks and stormwater 
improvements 

2032-
2037 

$2,170,484  

8 Mulroy Road Other|Mulroy and I-44  Interchange Improvements 2023 $3,090,000 



Destination 2045 Page 118 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

14 Route 125 MoDOT|Rte. 125 
Intersection and Outer 
Road Improvements 

Intersection improvements at I-44 
North Outer Road; Relocate North 
Outer Road 

2032-
2037 

$11,299,539  

240 Route 125/Farm 
Road 84 

MoDOT|Route 125 and 
Farm Road 84 Intersection 
Improvements 

Intersection Improvements 2038-
2045 

$1,334,711  

172 Route 125/OO MoDOT|S. 125/OO 
Signalization 

Signalization 2028 $1,194,052  

173 Route 125/OO MoDOT|N. 125/OO 
Intersection Improvements 

Intersection Improvements 2025  $6,556,362 

15 Route 13 MoDOT|Rte. 13 
Intersection improvements 
at FR 94 

Add turn lanes/reconfigure 
intersection/safety enhancements 

2028 $1,791,078  

16 Route 14 MoDOT|Rte. 14 
Improvements from 14th 
Avenue to Rte. W 

Capacity, safety and operational 
improvements from 14th Ave. to 
Rte. W 

2029 $10,811,821  

17 Route 14 MoDOT|Rte. 14 
Improvements from Rte. 
NN to 3rd Street 

Widen bridge, add westbound right 
turn lane from Route NN to 3rd 
Street in Ozark. 
Potential Cost Share 

2029 $4,304,559  

18 Route 14 MoDOT|Rte. 14 
Improvements Nixa to 
Ozark 

Roadway improvements from 
Tiffany Boulevard/Majestic Oak 
Ave. to Fremont Road 

2038-
2045 

$42,427,784  

61 Route 14 MoDOT|Rte. 14 
Improvements - Fremont to 
32nd 

Route 14 improvements from 
Fremont to 32nd 

2038-
2045 

$5,698,325  

56 Route 14/Church MoDOT|Church and 14 
Crossing improvements 

Hwy 14 & Church control & 
Streetscape upgrade 

2025 $2,403,999  

59 Route 14/W MoDOT|Intersection 
Improvements at W - Route 
14 

Intersection Improvements at W 2026 $2,813,772  

139 Route 160 MoDOT|Rte. 160 Capacity 
Improvements 

US 160 - Plainview to Hwy CC 2038-
2045 

$39,151,514  

140 Route 160 MoDOT|Rte. 160 Capacity 
Improvements 

US 160 - Hwy CC to Rte 14 2038-
2045 

$19,575,757  

142 Route 160 MoDOT|Rte. 160 Capacity 
Improvements 

US 160 & Aldersgate Intersection 
improvements 

2038-
2045 

$1,779,614  

244 Route 174 MoDOT|Rte. 174 
Intersection improvements 
at Main St 

Intersection improvements 2032-
2037 

$3,328,075  

243 Route 174 MoDOT|Rte 174 Capacity Improvements Main to 60 2032-
2037 

$7,234,946  

23 Route 60 MoDOT|US 60 Capital 
Improvements 

Capital improvements from Route 
M/MM to Route 360 

2025 $10,091,334  

24 Route 60 MoDOT|Rte. 60 Freeway 
Improvements from Routes 
NN/J to Farm Road 223 

Freeway improvements from e/o 
Rtes. NN/J to Farm Road 223 

2032-
2037 

$22,693,133  

26 Route 60 MoDOT|Rte. 60 Freeway 
Improvements 

Freeway improvements from e/o 
Rte. 65 to w/o Rtes. NN/J w/o 
interchange at 189 

2032-
2037 

$28,939,785  



Destination 2045 Page 119 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

196 Route 60 MoDOT|US 60 Safety and 
Capacity Improvements- M 
to Main St Phase I 

Intersection Improvements 2029 $4,181,571  

200 Route 60 MoDOT|US 60 
improvements - RT 174 to 
MM 

Six Lane 2026 $31,064,043  

250 Route 60 MoDOT|Address flooding 
on Route 60 between NN 
and 223 

Roadway geometric improvements 
to reduce flooding on Route 60 

2032-
2037 

$5,787,957  

167 Route 60/65 MoDOT|Ramp 
Improvements at Route 
60/65 

Ramp Capacity Improvements 2032-
2037 

$14,469,893  

235 Route 
60/National 

MoDOT|JRF & National 
Interchange Capacity 
Improvements 

Interchange Improvements 2038-
2045 

$14,236,914  

27 Route 65 MoDOT|Rte. 65 
Interchange Improvements 
at Kearney Street 

Interchange improvements, replace 
bridge at Route 744 (Kearney St.) in 
Springfield 

2030 $19,001,551  

28 Route 65 MoDOT|Rte. 65 Capacity 
Improvements, Rte. 14 to 
Rte. F 

Capacity and Operational 
Improvements from Rte. 14 to Rte. 
F 

2025 $11,145,815  

29 Route 65 MoDOT|Rte. 65 Capacity 
Improvements, Rte. CC to 
Rte. 14 

Capacity Improvements Rte. CC to 
Rte. 14 

2029 $16,575,010  

33 Route 65/CC MoDOT|Route 65 and Rte. 
CC Interchange operational 
improvements 

Eastbound Dual Left turn lanes to 
Route 65, extend northbound ramp 

2025 $2,513,272  

213 Route AA/Owen MoDOT|Rte AA intersection 
improvements at Owen Rd 

Intersection Improvements 2038-
2045 

$2,669,421  

161 Route AB/266/B MoDOT|Rtes. AB, 266 and B 
Intersection Realignment 

Rte AB & Hwy 266 2038-
2045 

$3,559,229  

162 Route AB/266/B MoDOT|Rtes. AB, 266 and B 
Intersection improvements 

Hwy 266 & Rte B 2032-
2037 

$4,051,570  

30 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. CC Capacity 
Improvements Fremont 
Road to Rte. 65 

Capacity improvements from 
Fremont Road to Route 65 in Ozark 

2025 $6,009,999  

31 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. CC Extension 
in Nixa 

Extend Route CC from Route 160 to 
Main Street in Nixa 

2032-
2037 

$8,681,936  

32 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. CC 
Intersection improvements 
at Main St. 

Intersection Improvements at Rte. 
CC & Main Street in Nixa 

2031 $2,413,830  

63 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. J 
Improvements Ozark 

Rte J - US 65 to Hwy NN - Widening 2038-
2045 

$5,338,843  

154 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. CC 
Improvements in Nixa and 
Ozark - Cheyenne to Main 

Rte. CC Cheyenne to Main 2030 $11,400,931  

155 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. CC 
Improvements in Nixa and 
Ozark - Fremont to 
Cheyenne 

Rte CC - Fremont to Cheyenne 2032-
2037 

$10,128,925  



Destination 2045 Page 120 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected Sponsor|Project 
Name 

Description Time 
Band 

Inflated Cost 

204 Route FF MoDOT|Route FF 
Intersection Improvements 

Improvements at various locations 
along FF through Battlefield 

2032-
2037 

$4,340,968  

36 Route MM MoDOT|Rte. MM 
Improvements I-44 to 
James River Freeway 

Capacity Improvements from I-44 
to James River Freeway in Republic 

2025 $10,061,830  

37 Route MM MoDOT|Route MM 
Capacity Improvements 

Widen improvements from 3 to 5 
lanes 

2038-
2045 

$3,000,430  

251 Route MM MoDOT|Widen Bridge over 
James River Freeway 

Bridge Widening 2038-
2045 

$12,457,300  

64 Route NN MoDOT|NN Improvements 
- Jackson to Weaver 

Operational and Safety 
Improvements on HWY NN from 
Weaver to Jackson 

2031 $4,175,274  

67 Route NN MoDOT|Hwy NN 
Improvements - J to Sunset 

Capacity, Operational and Safety 
Improvements 

2038-
2045 

$2,598,237  

245 Route O/Miller MoDOT|Route O and Miller 
Intersection and Pedestrian 
Improvements 

Intersection and Pedestrian 
Improvements 

2038-
2045 

$177,961  

174 Route OO MoDOT|OO Capacity 
Improvements 

Capacity Improvements Route OO 
from south Route 125 to north 
Route 125 

2025 $3,278,181 

169 Route 
OO/Washington 

MoDOT|Route OO and 
Washington Street 
Intersection Improvements 

Intersection improvements at 
Washington Street, including 
widening of grade crossing and 
signalization 

2026 $4,502,035  

209 Route P MoDOT|Rte P Intersection 
Improvements at Miller 

Intersection Improvements 2032-
2037 

$1,085,242  

38 Route ZZ MoDOT|Rte. ZZ Extension Extend Route ZZ to Route 60, 
construct railroad overpass in 
Republic. 

2031 $27,712,078  

202 Route ZZ MoDOT|Rte ZZ Intersection 
Improvements at Hines 

Intersection Improvements 2032-
2037 

$2,170,484  

233 Route ZZ/Repmo MoDOT|Rte ZZ & Repmo Dr 
Intersection Improvements 

Intersection Improvements 2038-
2045 

$2,669,421  

A32 Smyrna Christian|Green Bridge Replace Green Bridge in Christian 
County 

2024 $,3,560,000 

58 South MoDOT|South Street 
Expansion 

Capacity/Safety/Operational 
Improvements 6th to 14th 

2028 $1,515,252  

40 Sunshine MoDOT|East Sunshine 
Safety and Operational 
Improvements 

Safety and operational 
improvements on Sunshine Street 
from Bus. 65 (Glenstone Avenue) to 
Bedford Avenue. 

2032-
2037 

$3,255,726  

147 West Bypass MoDOT|West Bypass 
Intersection Improvements 
Phase I 

Various Intersection Improvements 
from Division to James River 
Freeway 

2031 $2,283,353  

TOTAL COST ($2,039,154,226) 

Prior Year Funding* $58,933,279  

 Projected Funding  $2,013,214,911  

 Remaining Funding  $32,993,964  

 *Prior year funding identified in FY 2022-2025 TIP  
 



Destination 2045 Page 121 

 

Fiscal Constraint for Transit  

 

 2022 2023 2024 2025 

Prior Year Funding $4,017,791  $2,320,541  $2,039,085  $5,192,974  

Projected Funding $10,344,650  $10,675,262  $13,682,043  $13,252,753  

Inflated Constrained Project Costs ($12,041,900) ($10,956,718) ($10,528,154) ($11,446,454) 

Remaining Funding $2,320,541  $2,039,085  $5,192,974  $6,999,273  

 

 2026 2027 2028 2029 

Prior Year Funding $6,999,273  $6,714,986  $6,583,705  $6,607,532  

Projected Funding $13,422,808  $13,592,326  $13,764,274  $13,938,693  

Inflated Constrained Project Costs ($13,707,096) ($13,723,606) ($13,740,447) ($13,757,624) 

Remaining Funding $6,714,986  $6,583,705  $6,607,532  $6,788,601  

 

 2030 2031 2032-2037 2038-2045 

Prior Year Funding $6,788,601  $7,129,076  $7,634,147  $8,528,395  

Projected Funding $14,115,621  $14,298,087  $89,711,725  $130,883,188  

Inflated Constrained Project Costs ($13,775,145) ($13,793,017) ($88,817,477) ($135,987,192) 

Remaining Funding $7,129,076  $7,634,147  $8,528,395  $3,424,392  

 

Constrained Project List for Transit  

 

Expected Sponsor|Expenses 2022 2023 2024 2025 

CU Transit|Operating Expenses $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Preventative Maintenance $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Planning $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Security $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|ADA Enhancements $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Fixed Route Bus Replacement $0  $0  $0  $2,000,000  

CU Transit|Paratransit Bus Replacement $0  $0  $560,000  $0  

CU Transit|Shelter/Signs/ Amenities $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|ITS $0  $0  $0  $0  

Various|Other Agency Vehicles $0  $0  $0  $0  

Various|FY 2022-2025 TIP $12,041,900  $10,956,718  $9,968,154  $9,446,454  

Total ($12,041,900) ($10,956,718) ($10,528,154) ($11,446,454) 

Prior Year Funding $4,017,791  $2,320,541  $2,039,085  $5,192,974  

Projected Funding $10,344,650  $10,675,262  $13,682,043  $13,252,753  

Remaining Funding $2,320,541  $2,039,085  $5,192,974  $6,999,273  

98: Transit Fiscal Constraint 

99: Transit Constrained Project List 



Destination 2045 Page 122 

 

Expected Sponsor|Expenses 2026 2027 2028 2029 

CU Transit|Operating Expenses $11,257,740  $11,257,740  $11,257,740  $11,257,740  

CU Transit|Preventative Maintenance $1,623,840  $1,623,840  $1,623,840  $1,623,840  

CU Transit|Planning $227,312  $231,858  $236,495  $241,225  

CU Transit|Security $37,279  $38,024  $38,785  $39,560  

CU Transit|ADA Enhancements $160,362  $163,569  $166,841  $170,177  

CU Transit|Fixed Route Bus Replacement $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Paratransit Bus Replacement $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Shelter/Signs/ Amenities $50,192  $51,196  $52,220  $53,264  

CU Transit|ITS $102,956  $105,015  $107,115  $109,258  

Various|Other Agency Vehicles $247,416  $252,364  $257,411  $262,559  

Various|FY 2022-2025 TIP $0  $0  $0  $0  

Total ($13,707,096) ($13,723,606) ($13,740,447) ($13,757,624) 

Prior Year Funding $6,999,273  $6,714,986  $6,583,705  $6,607,532  

Projected Funding $13,422,808  $13,592,326  $13,764,274  $13,938,693  

Remaining Funding $6,714,986  $6,583,705  $6,607,532  $6,788,601  

 

 

 

Expected Sponsor|Expenses 2030 2031 2032-2037 2038-2045 

CU Transit|Operating Expenses $11,257,740  $11,257,740  $72,435,489  $110,991,562  

CU Transit|Preventative Maintenance $1,623,840  $1,623,840  $10,448,247  $16,009,655  

CU Transit|Planning $246,050  $250,971  $1,614,816  $2,474,353  

CU Transit|Security $40,352  $41,159  $264,826  $405,789  

CU Transit|ADA Enhancements $173,581  $177,053  $1,139,207  $1,745,585  

CU Transit|Fixed Route Bus Replacement $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Paratransit Bus Replacement $0  $0  $0  $0  

CU Transit|Shelter/Signs/ Amenities $54,329  $55,416  $356,562  $546,354  

CU Transit|ITS $111,443  $113,672  $731,396  $1,120,705  

Various|Other Agency Vehicles $267,811  $273,167  $1,826,933  $2,693,189  

Various|FY 2022-2025 TIP $0  $0  $0  $0  

Total ($13,775,145) ($13,793,017) ($88,817,477) ($135,987,192) 

Prior Year Funding $6,788,601  $7,129,076  $7,634,147  $8,528,395  

Projected Funding $14,115,621  $14,298,087  $89,711,725  $130,883,188  

Remaining Funding $7,129,076  $7,634,147  $8,528,395  $3,424,392  

Unconstrained Projects 
The following tables include those projects not prioritized for funding.   



Destination 2045 Page 123 

Non-Transit Unconstrained Needs 
 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected 
Sponsor|Project 

Name 

Description Current Cost 

74 10th Ozark|10th Street 
Bridge 

10th Street Bridge - Part of the NN 
Improvements to South - Connect 
NN to Oak and then South St. 
Must cross Finley River 

$8,500,000  

3 4th to Plainview Battlefield|New Road 
from City of 
Battlefield to 
Plainview 

Connecting 4th in Battlefield to 
Plainview Road 

$2,000,000  

222 Camino Alto/Lyon Springfield|Camino 
Alto & Lyon Ave 

Signalization $2,500,000  

92 Campbell Springfield|Campbell 
Avenue - Republic to 
Westview (Primrose) 

Capacity and Safety 
Improvements 

$1,500,000  

46 EW Arterial Greene|East/West 
Arterial - Campbell to 
National Ave 

New roadway including bicycle 
and pedestrian accommodations.  

$15,000,000  

47 EW Arterial Greene|East/West 
Arterial - National Ave 
to Kissick 

New roadway including bicycle 
and pedestrian accommodations.  

$19,000,000  

185 EW Arterial Greene|East/West 
Arterial from Kissick to 
Southview 

New roadway including bicycle 
and pedestrian accommodations.  

$15,000,000  

187 EW Arterial Greene|E/W Arterial - 
Kansas Expy to FF 

New roadway including bicycle 
and pedestrian accommodations.  

$17,000,000  

52 Farm Road 115/140 Greene|Farm Road 
115 (Haseltine Rd) at 
Farm Road 140 

Intersection improvements at FR 
115 & FR 140 to include a new 
roundabout with storm water and 
pedestrian improvements. 

$1,500,000  

 7 Farm Road 190 Greene|Extend Farm 
Road 190 past 
Battlefield 

Extension from FF to FR 115 $2,000,000  

221 Farm Road 
89/Hickory 

Greene|Farm Road 89 
& Hickory Ln 

Signalization $10,000  

220 Farm Road 89/ 
Williamsburg 

Greene|Farm Road 89 
& Williamsburg Walk 

Signalization $10,000  

70 Farmers Branch MoDOT|Farmers 
Branch Expansion 

Capacity, Operational and Safety 
Improvements Farmers Branch to 
County Line 

$3,350,000  

71 Fremont Ozark|Fremont Rd 
Expansion 

Fremont Rd - HWY CC to Longview  
Capacity, Operational and Safety 
Improvements 

$2,765,000  

100: Unconstrained Non-Transit List – Unfunded Needs 



Destination 2045 Page 124 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected 
Sponsor|Project 

Name 

Description Current Cost 

73 Fremont Ozark|Fremont Rd 
Expansion - Ph 2 

Fremont Rd - Longview to 14. 
Capacity, Operational and Safety 
Improvements 

$3,550,000  

231 Glenstone/ 
Sunshine 

MoDOT|Glenstone & 
Sunshine intersection 
improvements 

Operational improvements at 
Sunshine and Glenstone 

$5,000,000  

234 Hines/Lynn Republic|Hines & 
Lynn intersection 
improvements 

Intersection Improvements $2,000,000  

83 Hughes Willard|Hughes Rd - 
Megan to Hunt Rd 

Approximately 1,340' of new road 
construction, built to collector 
standards. ROW acquisition 
required. 

$550,000  

121 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Safety 
and Operational 
Improvements 

I-44 - US 65 to Rte 125 $4,080,000  

116 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Safety 
and Operational 
Improvements 

I-44 - Chestnut to US 160 $4,080,000  

117 I-44 MoDOT|I-44 Safety 
and Operational 
Improvements 

I-44 - 360 to Chestnut $4,080,000  

168 I-44/125 MoDOT|I-44 and 
Route 125 
Interchange 
Improvements 

Interchange improvements at 
Route 125 including pedestrian 
accommodations 

$20,000,000  

130 Kansas Expy MoDOT|Kansas 
Expressway Capital 
Improvements Phase 
III 

Kansas Expwy - Grand to Republic, 
excluding Sunshine Intersection 

$6,500,000  

125 Kansas Expy MoDOT|Kansas 
Expressway Capital 
Improvements Phase 
I, II, & III 

Kansas Expwy - OTO Northern 
Boundary to Norton 

$25,000,000  

236 Kansas Expy/Walnut MoDOT|Kansas Expwy 
& Walnut St bike 
crossing 

Bike/ped crossing improvements $150,000  

219 Main/Farm Road 168 Greene|Main & FR 
168 intersection 
improvements 

Intersection Improvements $550,000  

81 McCracken Ozark|McCracken Rd 
Upgrades Ph 2 

Operational and Safety 
Improvements Hawkins Road to 
HWY J 

$2,250,000  

68 Melton Ozark|Melton 
Intersection & Turn 
Lane  

Intersection at Melton & right 
turn lane on to Melton 

$996,000  



Destination 2045 Page 125 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected 
Sponsor|Project 

Name 

Description Current Cost 

55 National Avenue Greene|National 
Avenue (FR 163) 
Roadway Extension 

Extend National Avenue (FR 163) 
from Farm Road 192 to the 
southern Greene County/Christian 
County line as a Primary Arterial 
corridor.  

$7,000,000  

66 North Ozark|W North Rd 
Improvements 

Longview expansion from 
Cheyenne to Fremont 

$1,560,000  

88 North Nixa|North St 
expansion 

Upgrading North St to current 
OTO Secondary Arterial Standards 

$8,000,000  

62 OTC Entrance MoDOT|OTC Entrance 
Upgrades 

OTC Campus Entrance control 
upgrade 

$2,500,000  

54 Plainview Road Greene|Plainview 
Road (FR 182) 
Widening from 
Golden to Battlefield 
City Limits 

Widening Plainview Road (FR 182) 
to a 3-lane section including 
upgraded pedestrian facilities and 
new curb & gutter.  

$10,000,000  

184 Republic Springfield|Republic 
Road Bridge over JRF 

New Bridge to connect to 
Gasconade 

$25,000,000  

242 Route 125 MoDOT|125 Safety Improvements from FR 84 
to OTO North Boundary 

$5,000,000  

241 Route 125/Farm 
Road 132 

MoDOT|125/ FR 132 Intersection Improvements $475,000  

239 Route 125/YY MoDOT|125/YY Intersection Improvements $2,000,000  

218 Route 13 MoDOT|Highway 13 
Connector to 160 

Alternate route from US 360 to US 
160 

$65,000,000  

190 Route 14 MoDOT|Hwy 14 
Nicholas to OTO 
western boundary 

Capacity and Safety 
Improvements 

$7,500,000  

189 Route 14 MoDOT|Hwy 14 
improvements Rte W 
to Rte JJ 

Capacity and Safety 
improvements 

$3,250,000  

141 Route 160 MoDOT|Rte. 160 
Capacity 
Improvements 

US 160 - Rte 14 to OTO Boundary 
improve transition from 6-lanes to 
4-lanes to 2-lanes 

$6,000,000  

193 Route 160 MoDOT|US 160 
widening from 
Jackson to Rte 123 

Capacity Improvements $7,500,000  

192 Route 160/Farm 
Road 123 

MoDOT|US 160 & FR 
123 intersection 
improvements 

Intersection Improvements $2,000,000  

201 Route 174/Boston MoDOT|Intersection 
Improvements Rte 
174/Boston 

Intersection Improvements $1,500,000  



Destination 2045 Page 126 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected 
Sponsor|Project 

Name 

Description Current Cost 

238 Route 413 MoDOT|MO 413 - JRF 
to West Bypass 

six-lane $21,000,000  

249 Route 60 MoDOT|US 60 Safety 
and Capacity 
Improvements- M to 
Main St Phase II 

Intersection Improvements $3,500,000  

9 Route 60 MoDOT|Rte. 60 
Freeway 
Improvements 

Interchange at 189 $20,000,000  

124 Route 60 MoDOT|James River 
Freeway Capacity 
Improvements 

JRF - West Bypass to Kansas 
Expwy 

$16,000,000  

123 Route 60 MoDOT|James River 
Freeway Capacity 
Improvements 

JRF - MO 413 to West Bypass $15,000,000  

122 Route 60 MoDOT|James River 
Freeway Capacity 
Improvements 

JRF - I-44 to MO 413 $15,000,000  

25 Route 60 MoDOT|Rte. 60 
Capacity 
Improvements west of 
Republic 

Roadway improvements from 
County Road 194 to West Avenue 
in Republic. 

$3,979,000  

42 Route 60/Main/P MoDOT|US 60 & Main 
St. Republic/State 
Highway P 

Intersection improvements at US 
60 & Main St./State Highway P, 
Republic. Linear and capacity 
improvements along Main 
St./State Highway P. to E Miller 
Rd. 

$3,000,000  

164 Route 65 MoDOT|US 65 
Intersection 
improvements north 
of I-44 

Us 65 & Rte AA/C $12,500,000  

165 Route 65 MoDOT|US 65 
Intersection 
improvements north 
of I-44 

US 65 & Rte KK/A $2,500,000  

186 Route 65/Gasconade Springfield|Highway 
65 & Gasconade 
Interchange 

New interchange S. of Gasconade 
on US 60 

$60,000,000  

225 Route AB MoDOT|Rte AB Safety 
improvements from 
Willard to Rte EE 

Safety Improvements $1,000,000  

159 Route AB/266/B MoDOT|Rtes. AB, 266 
and B Intersection 
improvements 

Rte AB & Rte EE $1,000,000  

160 Route AB/266/B MoDOT|Rtes. AB, 266 
and B Intersection 
improvements 

Rte AB and RR X-ing $500,000  



Destination 2045 Page 127 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected 
Sponsor|Project 

Name 

Description Current Cost 

157 Route AB/266/B MoDOT|Rtes. AB, 266 
and B Intersection 
improvements 

Rte AB & New Melville (FR84) $500,000  

158 Route AB/266/B MoDOT|Rtes. AB, 266 
and B Intersection 
improvements 

Rte AB & FR 94 $500,000  

214 Route B MoDOT|Rte B from 
Rte 266 to I-44 lane 
widening 

Capacity Improvements $1,500,000  

156 Route CC MoDOT|Rte. CC 
Improvements in Nixa 
and Ozark 

Rte NN - Hwy J to Pheasant Rd - 
operational and safety 
improvements 

$29,000,000  

207 Route FF MoDOT|Rte FF 
intersection 
improvements at 
Weaver (FR 178) 

Intersection improvements $2,500,000  

205 Route FF MoDOT|Rte FF Safety 
and Capacity 
improvements 
through Battlefield 

Capacity and Safety 
Improvements 

$13,500,000  

35 Route FF MoDOT|Rte. FF 
intersection 
improvements at 
Republic Road 

Intersection improvements at 
various locations 

$2,600,000  

208 Route M MoDOT|Rte M 
capacity 
improvements Rte ZZ 
to Rte FF 

Capacity Improvements $20,000,000  

232 Route M/Farm Road 
101 

MoDOT|Rte M & FR 
101 intersection 
improvements 

Intersection Improvements $1,250,000  

206 Route MM MoDOT|Rte MM 
intersection 
improvements at 
Sawyer 

Intersection Improvements $1,250,000  

75 Route NN MoDOT|Hwy NN 
Improvements Oak to 
South St 

NN improvements Oak to South St 
- Connect NN to Oak and then 
South St. Must cross Finley River 

$642,070  

210 Route P MoDOT|Rte P 
capacity 
improvements from 
Main to Miller 

Capacity Improvements $4,250,000  

217 Route P MoDOT|Rte P center 
turn lane US 60 to 
Lombardy 

Add a center turn lane to Route P $3,750,000  



Destination 2045 Page 128 

Project 
No. 

Route Expected 
Sponsor|Project 

Name 

Description Current Cost 

79 Route W MoDOT|Hwy W 
Expansion 

HWY W from 14 to Old Prospect 
Road, Capacity, Operational and 
Safety Improvements 

$2,700,000  

203 Route ZZ MoDOT|Rte ZZ 
intersection 
improvements at FR 
174 

Intersection Improvements $1,500,000  

82 Selmore Ozark|Selmore 
Widening 

Capacity, Operational and Safety 
Improvements 

$3,810,000  

76 Sunset Ozark|Sunset 
Intersection 
Improvements 

Intersection at Sunset 
improvements 

$1,390,000  

170 Washington/Madison Strafford|Realignment 
of Washington and 
Madison 

Washington, Madison from Route 
OO to Bumgarner 

$750,000  

53 Weaver Road Greene|Weaver Road 
(FR 178) Widening - 
West of Campbell 
Ave. 

Widening Weaver Road (FR 178) 
to a 3-lane secondary arterial 
section. Project to include 
pedestrian facilities and 
curb/gutter.  

$50,000,000  

 20 West Bypass MoDOT|West Bypass 
Intersection 
Improvements Phase 
II 

Division to James River Freeway $1,750,000  

Total $637,247,070  

 

Transit Unconstrained Needs 
These needs are based on useful life replacements of existing transit vehicles, as well 
as remaining Shelter/Signs/Amenities unafforded on the constrained list.  Trolley 
service as a supplement to the existing fixed-route service has been discussed for 
key locations in and around downtown Springfield.  The costs for purchasing three 
trolleys, as well as operating them, has been included.  Also listed are the 
recommended service changes from the 2012 Transit Route Study.  For Levels I 
through V, the costs are in addition to the previous level and the base transit system, 
such that Level V total cost would include the current system, plus the costs include 
din Levels I, II, III, IV, and V.  Levels I through V also consider replacement costs for 
the initial capital costs. 

  



Destination 2045 Page 129 

 

Expected Sponsor|Expenses 2022-2026 2027-2031 2032-2037 2038-2045 Total 

CU Transit|6 Paratransit Buses 
 

$726,000  
  

$726,000  

CU Transit|10 Fixed Route Electric Buses 
 

$10,000,000  
  

$10,000,000  

CU Transit|10 Fixed Route Electric Buses 
  

$10,000,000  
 

$10,000,000  

CU Transit|6 Paratransit Buses 
  

$726,000  
 

$726,000  

CU Transit|4 Fixed Route Electric Buses 
   

$4,000,000  $4,000,000  

CU Transit|Trolley Service (3 Trolleys) 
 

$1,500,000  
  

$1,500,000  

CU Transit|Trolley Service (Operating) 
 

$500,000  $5,000,000  $5,000,000  $10,500,000  

CU Transit|Electric Infrastructure $1,800,000  $3,000,000  $2,400,000  $1,200,000  $8,400,000  

CU Transit|Placemaking Shelters $50,000  $50,000  $50,000  $50,000  $200,000  

CU Transit|Route Study Level I 
Additional Costs 

$6,426,105  $6,383,085  $10,359,429  $16,907,203  $40,075,822  

CU Transit|Route Study Level II 
Additional Costs 

$13,135,181  $11,517,597  $21,643,197  $30,507,247  $76,803,222  

CU Transit|Route Study Level III 
Additional Costs 

$17,339,590  $17,411,821  $28,248,027  $47,419,979  $110,419,417  

CU Transit|Route Study Level IV 
Additional Costs 

$19,385,976  $16,909,144  $31,946,087  $44,788,111  $113,029,317  

CU Transit|Route Study Level V 
Additional Costs 

$49,579,852  $47,097,901  $82,218,339  $127,784,880  $306,680,972  

CU Transit|Limited Stop Circulator $626,281  $674,683  $878,796  $1,474,536  $3,654,297  

Total $108,342,985  $115,770,231  $193,469,876  $279,131,956  $696,715,048  

Model Results 
As the Destination 2045 planning process commenced, the OTO travel demand 
model was utilized to determine current and future needs should no investment be 
made to the transportation network by 2045.  The following results highlight the 
results of the OTO investment plan. 

  

101: Unconstrained Transit List – Unfunded Needs 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 9 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.G. 
 

Amendment Number One to the FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
There are multiple items included as part of Amendment Number One to the FY 2025-2028 
Transportation Improvement Program.   

 
1. *New* Wilson’s Creek Trail and Phase 2 FF Pedestrian Improvements (EN2501) 

July Call for Projects TAP Award for engineering pedestrian improvements along Route FF and 
Route M for a total programmed amount of $233,172. 
 

2. *New* South Creek Greenway Trail – Sunset/Glenstone Crossing Improvements (EN2502) 
July Call for Projects CRP Award for engineering and construction of crossing improvements at 
Sunset and Glenstone for a total programmed amount of $446,899. 
 

3. *New* Route 66 Trail – Phase 3 (EN2503) 
July Call for Projects TAP Award for engineering Phase 3 of the Route 66 Trail for a total 
programmed amount of $295,711. 
 

4. *New* US 160 Underpass East of Route AB (EN2504) 
July Call for Projects TAP Award for engineering a pedestrian underpass of US 160, just east of 
Route AB, for a total programmed amount of $135,000. 
 

5. *New* Trail/Sidewalk Highway CC Chadwick Flyer Connection (EN2601) 
July Call for Projects TAP Award for construction of trail/sidewalk along Highway CC for a total 
programmed amount of $555,726. 
 

6. *New* I-44 Safety Project (MO2521) 
Programming Special Revenue Funds from the State of Missouri for safety and capacity 
improvements on I-44 for a total programmed amount of $165,583,000. 
 

7. *New* I-44 Pavement Project (MO2522) 
Programming Special Revenue Funds from the State of Missouri for pavement rebuild on I-44 for 
a total programmed amount of $11,003,000. 
 

8. *New* Hines and ZZ (RP2503) 
The City of Republic is requesting to add funding for engineering and right-of-way at the 
intersection of Hines and Route ZZ for a total programmed amount of $500,000. 
 

  



TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN:   
At its regularly scheduled meeting on August 21, 2024, the Technical Planning Committee recommended 
the Board of Directors approve Amendment 1 to the FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement 
Program. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve Amendment 1 to the FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve Amendment 1 to the FY 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program, with these 
changes…” 



25A1 Sponsored by Local
Public Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Battlefield

Greene County Battlefield Programmed $233,172

- - Route M (Republic
Road), Highway FF

W. William St.,
Wilson's Creek

Environmental Justice
Area, Bike/Ped Plan,
Regional Trail Plan
Priority, Advance
Construction

Engineering for trail along Route FF between W. William Street and Route M and along Highway M from
the existing trail at Wilson's Creek and Route FF. Project will include alternatives analysis to determine
the best alignment for the trails.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Battlefield; FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated
Advanced Construction (AC) Conversion - TAP

Engineering Local - $46,635 - - - - $46,635

Engineering Local-AC - $186,537 - - - - $186,537

Total Engineering - $233,172 - - - - $233,172

Total Programmed - $233,172 - - - - $233,172

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2501-25A1 - WILSON'S CREEK TRAIL AND PHASE 2 FF PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS



25A1 Sponsored by Local
Public Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Springfield

Greene County Springfield Programmed $446,899

- - - -

Bike/Ped Plan,
Regional Trail Plan
Priority, Advance
Construction

Engineering of sidewalks and pedestrian crossings at intersection of Glenstone Avenue and Sunset Street
in Springfield.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Springfield, State Transportation Revenues; FYI: PE-Award only,
Construction-Award pending Reasonable Progress Compliance; Federal Funding Category upon
Anticipated Advanced Construction (AC) Conversion - CRP

Engineering MoDOT - $5,829 - - - - $5,829

Engineering Local - $5,829 - - - - $5,829

Engineering CRP (FHWA) - $46,633 - - - - $46,633

Total Engineering - $58,291 - - - - $58,291

Construction MoDOT - $38,861 - - - - $38,861

Construction Local-AC - $310,886 - - - - $310,886

Construction Local - $38,861 - - - - $38,861

Total Construction - $388,608 - - - - $388,608

Total Programmed - $446,899 - - - - $446,899

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2502-25A1 - SOUTH CREEK GREENWAY TRAIL-SUNSET/GLENSTONE CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS



25A1 Sponsored by Local
Public Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Strafford

Greene County Strafford Programmed $295,711

- - Washington Ave 0.27 miles east of
Farm Road 123
(TransLand)

Environmental Justice
Area, Bike/Ped Plan,
Regional Trail Plan
Priority, Advance
Construction

PS & E for 10' wide trail along Route OO from Washington Ave to TransLand

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Strafford; FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated
Advanced Construction (AC) Conversion - TAP

Engineering Local - $59,142 - - - - $59,142

Engineering Local-AC - $236,569 - - - - $236,569

Total Engineering - $295,711 - - - - $295,711

Total Programmed - $295,711 - - - - $295,711

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2503-25A1 - ROUTE 66 TRAIL - PHASE 3



25A1 Sponsored by Local
Public Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Willard

Greene County Willard Programmed $135,000

- - - -

Bike/Ped Plan

Engineering for an underpass on Highway 160 east of Route AB, including trail connections between
underpass and Route AB on north and south sides of Highway 160.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Willard; FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated Advanced
Construction (AC) Conversion - TAP

Engineering Local-AC - $108,000 - - - - $108,000

Engineering Local - $27,000 - - - - $27,000

Total Engineering - $135,000 - - - - $135,000

Total Programmed - $135,000 - - - - $135,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2504-25A1 - US 160 UNDERPASS EAST OF ROUTE AB



25A1 Cost Shares Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Ozark

Christian County Ozark Programmed $555,726

- - Fremont Road N 22nd Street

Bike/Ped Plan

Construction of Trail/Sidewalk along State Hwy CC from Fremont Road to N 22nd Street.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Ozark

Construction Local - - $111,146 - - - $111,146

Construction TAP (FHWA) - - $444,580 - - - $444,580

Total Construction - - $555,726 - - - $555,726

Total Programmed - - $555,726 - - - $555,726

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2601-25A1 - TRAIL/SIDEWALK HWY CC CHADWICK FLYER CONNECTION



25A1 Sponsored by MoDOT System Improvement MoDOT

Greene County Springfield, Strafford Programmed $165,583,000

ST0088 - US 160 Route 125

Environmental Justice
Area

Safety and capacity improvements from Rte. 160 in Springfield to Rte. 125 in Strafford.

Non-Federal Funding Source: SFY 2025 Special General Revenue Funds

Engineering MoDOT - $10,586,000 - - - - $10,586,000

Total Engineering - $10,586,000 - - - - $10,586,000

Construction MoDOT - $154,997,000 - - - - $154,997,000

Total Construction - $154,997,000 - - - - $154,997,000

Total Programmed - $165,583,000 - - - - $165,583,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

MO2521-25A1 - I-44 SAFETY PROJECT



25A1 Sponsored by MoDOT Asset Management -
Pavement

MoDOT

Greene County Springfield Programmed $11,003,000

ST0088B - Route 13 US 65

Environmental Justice
Area

Rebuild pavement from Rte. 13 (Kansas Expressway) to Rte. 65 in Springfield.

Non-Federal Funding Source: SFY 2025 Special General Revenue Funds

Engineering MoDOT - $500,000 - - - - $500,000

Total Engineering - $500,000 - - - - $500,000

Construction MoDOT - $10,503,000 - - - - $10,503,000

Total Construction - $10,503,000 - - - - $10,503,000

Total Programmed - $11,003,000 - - - - $11,003,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

MO2522-25A1 - I-44 PAVEMENT PROJECT



25A1 Sponsored by Local
Public Agencies

Scoping City of Republic

Greene County Republic Programmed $500,000

- - - -

Bike/Ped Plan,
Regional Trail Plan
Priority

Engineering and ROW for the Hines and Route ZZ intersection in Republic.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Republic

Engineering Local - $64,000 - - - - $64,000

Engineering STBG-U (FHWA) - $256,000 - - - - $256,000

Total Engineering - $320,000 - - - - $320,000

ROW Local - $100,000 - - - - $100,000

ROW STBG-U (FHWA) - $80,000 - - - - $80,000

Total ROW - $180,000 - - - - $180,000

Total Programmed - $500,000 - - - - $500,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project
Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FUTURE TOTAL

RP2503-25A1 - HINES AND ZZ



Revenue Source Carryover 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total
MoDOT State/Federal $29,745,750 $341,730,000 $41,286,000 $61,707,000 $27,797,000 $33,186 
RAISE $0 $24,822,313 $0 $0 $0 $24,822,313 
Suballocated STBG-U $7,884,416 $8,089,609 $8,251,401 $8,416,429 $8,584,758 $41,226,613 
Suballocated TAP $3,355,907 $1,635,984 $1,668,704 $1,702,078 $1,736,119 $10,098,792 
Suballocated CRP $2,550,324 $965,102 $984,404 $1,004,092 $1,024,174 $6,528,096 
Aviation - FAA $0 $3,490,713 $3,560,527 $3,631,738 $3,704,373 $14,387,351 
FTA 5307 $8,583,087 $3,778,542 $3,854,113 $3,931,195 $4,009,819 $24,156,756 
FTA 5310 $1,209,290 $421,275 $429,701 $438,295 $447,061 $2,945,622 
FTA 5339 $871,186 $362,479 $368,729 $3,600,703 $381,605 $5,584,702 
Transit MO HealthNet Contract $0 $29,000 $29,000 $29,000 $29,000 $116,000 
Transit State Operating Funding $247,527 $143,500 $143,500 $143,500 $43,500 $721,527 
CU Transit Utility Ratepayers $8,408,850 $7,612,190 $7,613,190 $7,132,430 $7,109,430 $37,876,090 
CU Transit Farebox, Ads, Rent $0 $955,000 $954,000 $1,015,000 $1,038,000 $3,962,000 
Human Service Agencies $302,323 $57,925 $59,084 $60,266 $61,471 $541,069 
TOTAL $63,158,659 $394,093,632 $69,202,353 $92,811,726 $55,966,310 $173,000,117 

$8,495,293 $8,798,774 $8,380,196 $8,281,401

2025 2026 2027 2028 Total
$19,495,870 $19,495,870 $19,495,870 $19,495,870 $77,983,480 
($3,823,687) ($3,926,927) ($4,032,954) ($4,141,844) ($15,925,412)

($15,249,162) ($406,941) ($264,773) ($603,873) ($16,524,749)
$62,389,099 $62,389,099 $62,389,099 $62,389,099 $249,556,396 
$62,812,120 $77,551,101 $77,587,242 $77,139,252 $295,089,715 

Transit Local Operations/Maint. Carryover 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total
System Operations Local $8,008,970 $7,708,899 $7,708,899 $7,708,899 $7,708,899 $38,844,566 
System Maintenance Local $399,880 $399,880 $399,880 $190,000 $190,000 $1,579,640 
Local Programmed O&M -- ($16,517,629) ($8,108,779) ($7,898,899) ($7,898,899) ($40,424,206)
Carryover $8,408,850 $8,408,850 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Additional O&M Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

REVENUE

LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY CAPACITY

LPA Capacity
CART All Jurisdictions (Projected)
O&M (634.73 miles * $5,323/mile)
TIP Programmed Funds All Jurisdictions
Other Committed Funds All Jurisdictions
TOTAL

Ozarks Transportation Organization G-1 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program



Fund Type Programmed (2025) Programmed (2026) Programmed (2027) Programmed (2028)
FEDERAL
BRO (FHWA) $3,443,357 $36,000 $ $0
CRP (FHWA) $4,346,672 $0 $0 $0
I/M (FHWA) $135,000 $135,000 $ $0
NHPP (FHWA) $82,242,400 $19,783,200 $44,060,800 $19,803,200
RAISE $24,822,313 $ $ $
SAFETY (FHWA) $3,556,500 $680,400 $262,800 $64,800
STBG (FHWA) $26,891,903 $1,053,600 $150,400 $72,000
STBG-U (FHWA) $30,749,191 $764,019 $789,419 $2,415,491
TAP (FHWA) $5,911,486 $827,740 $134,836 $0
Federal Subtotal $182,098,822 $23,279,959 $45,398,255 $22,355,491
STATE
MoDOT $208,717,749 $8,685,600 $12,646,582 $5,969,200
MoDOT-AC $22,375,997 $12,335,200 $5,177,164 $2,772,800
MoDOT O&M $6,225,965 $6,369,163 $6,515,653 $6,665,513
State Subtotal $237,319,711 $27,389,963 $24,339,399 $15,407,513
LOCAL/OTHER $231,093,746 $21,020,800 $17,823,746 $8,742,000
Local $15,249,162 $406,941 $264,773 $603,873
Local-AC $841,992 $0 $0 $0
MO-ARPA $1,179,750 $0 $0 $0
Other $3,207,260 $0 $0 $0
Local/Other Subtotal $20,478,164 $406,941 $264,773 $603,873
Total $439,896,697 $51,076,863 $70,002,427 $38,366,877

$433,670,732 $44,707,700 $63,486,774 $31,701,364 $573,566,570
Prior Year FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 TOTAL

Available State and Federal Funding $29,745,750 $341,730,000 $41,286,000 $61,707,000 $27,797,000 $502,265,750
Federal Discretionary Funding $0 $24,822,313 $0 $0 $0 $24,822,313
Available Operations and Maintenance Funding $0 $6,225,965 $6,369,163 $6,515,653 $6,665,513 $25,776,294
Funds from Other Sources (inc. Local) $0 $20,478,164 $406,941 $264,773 $603,873 $21,753,751
Available Suballocated Funding $13,790,647 $10,690,695 $10,904,509 $11,122,599 $11,345,051 $57,853,501
TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING $43,536,397 $403,947,137 $58,966,613 $79,610,025 $46,411,437 $632,471,609
Carryover $43,536,397 $7,586,837 $15,476,587 $25,084,185 --
Programmed State and Federal Funding ($439,896,697) ($51,076,863) ($70,002,427) ($38,366,877) ($599,342,864)
TOTAL REMAINING $43,536,397 $7,586,837 $15,476,587 $25,084,185 $33,128,745 $33,128,745

FINANCIAL CONSTRAINT

FHWA Sponsored Projects

Ozarks Transportation Organization G-2 2025-2028 Transportation Improvement Program



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 10 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.H. 
 

Unfunded Needs List 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
The OTO Board of Directors adopted the recommended 2024 MoDOT unfunded needs list in May 2024 
with a motion that included adding the James River Loop North Study, in the event the funding for I-44 
was approved. As the project funding for I-44 was included in the final Missouri budget, the project was 
included in the published draft of the MoDOT unfunded needs.  
 
The Greene County Commission has requested via the included letter that the project be removed from 
the listing after some public concerns with the potential study. The OTO Executive Director then sent a 
letter to the Missouri Highway Commission (MHTC) requesting removal from the unfunded needs list. 
MoDOT requested any changes be submitted in writing no later than August 27th.  
 
The request is for the Board of Directors to ratify the request made by the Executive Director to request 
removal of the project.  
 
The Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission is planning to approve the list at the upcoming 
October meeting.  
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to ratify the request to remove the James River Loop North Study.” 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 

 

 

 

 

August 27, 2024 

 

Dear Commission, 

The Ozarks Transportation Organization would like to request the removal of the James River extension 
project from the High Priority Unfunded Needs list. The project appears as Rte. WW in the Southwest 
Rural Tier 1 list. As you know we have had extensive public comment on the project and have decided to 
defer consideration at this time and would like to request removal of the project from the list. 

We appreciate the partnership with MoDOT on developing the unfunded needs list and look forward to 
the continued identification and funding of needed projects in the Springfield region.  

Thank you for your consideration and appreciate your efforts in facilitating public comment to further 
inform our decision.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Sara Fields 

  



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 11 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.I. 

2025 Legislative Priorities 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

Annually, the OTO establishes a list of Legislative Priorities for use when communicating with area 
legislators.  It proves to be very valuable and is well received.    

Included for member review and input is a draft list of priorities for 2025. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 

“Move to adopt the 2025 Legislative Priorities.” 

OR 

“Move to adopt the 2025 Legislative Priorities with the following changes…” 



OTO 2025 Federal Legisla�ve Priori�es 

The Ozarks Transporta�on Organiza�on supports 

• $6 million to provide for four lanes on state Highway MM from I-44 to US 360. The total 
project cost is $17 million. 

• Continued Investment in the I-44 Corridor to improve freight movement, enhance safety and 
improve congestion in the state of Missouri. 

• Additional transportation infrastructure funding to support the OTO Priorities which include 
safety and congestion relieving projects, as well as bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure to 
support the continued development of a healthy region. 

• Continued streamlining of the environmental review processes including one federal decision 
and reductions in authorization decision timelines to extend to Environmental Assessments as 
well as Environmental Impact Statements. 

• Granting MPO’s direct recipient status for federal funds allowing for a direct funding 
relationship between the federal government and MPOs.  

• Shifting discretionary funding to formula funding through an equitable formula to metropolitan 
areas resulting in a more predictable funding distribution. 

• Clarifying federal regulations to ensure funds suballocated to MPOs are available for obligation 
throughout for four federal fiscal years as outlined in 23 USC 118.b. 

• Reduction in match requirements to 10 percent for all federal funds.  

 

OTO 2025 State Legisla�ve Priori�es 

The Ozarks Transporta�on Organiza�on supports 

• $6 million to provide for four lanes on state Highway MM from I-44 to US 360. 
• Funding a new round of Governors Cost Share using state funds for additional partnership 

opportunities between local governments and the private sector. 
• Continued investment in the I-44 Corridor to improve freight movement, enhance safety and 

improve congestion in the state of Missouri. 
• Increased funding for multimodal transportation to include rail crossings, aviation, transit, 

sidewalk, and trail funding. 

 

OTO Priori�es for MoDOT 

• Missouri should make federal urban area suballocated funding available for obligation for four 
federal fiscal years as outlined in federal law 23 USC 118.b.  

• Allow for the increase in statewide cost share funds for projects affected by COVID that were 
approved between 2020 and 2022.  
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 12 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM II.K. 

Safe Streets and Roads for All Safety Action Plan Update 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

To stay up to date on the OTO Safety Action Plan, Destination Safe Streets, visit 
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/ss4a. 

Engagement 
In January and February of 2024, OTO and their equity engagement consultants – CMT and Pratt 
Consulting – hosted several open houses and solicited input through a survey and online mapping tool.  
The survey gathered input regarding safety concerns on major and local roadways by the primary mode 
of the respondent.  A summary of these results has been provided to OTO and is included.  Stakeholder 
meetings were also held in March and April, and those results are still being summarized.  Additional 
engagement opportunities took place over the summer to keep the plan active with the public. 

Safety Analysis 
Through consultation with the Destination 2045 Advisory Team and OTO member jurisdictions, OTO and 
Lochmueller have developed the regional and local high injury networks, drafted a systemic safety 
analysis, and developed an initial list of projects for priority consideration.  The high injury network map 
is included in the agenda.  OTO has received draft recommendations from Lochmueller and has worked 
with the Advisory Team to provide comments.  Final reports will be available by the end of September 
and will be incorporated into the Safety Action Plan draft. 

Vision Zero Goals 
The Safe Streets and Roads for All funding program requires approved plans to include a leadership 
commitment and goal setting for zero roadway fatalities and injuries, with a timeline.  The Advisory 
Team has proposed a goal and timeline, which has also been shared with the Technical Planning 
Committee.  It is proposed to set a goal of zero fatalities by 2040 and zero injuries by 2050.  Statewide, 
MoDOT currently has a goal of zero fatalities by 2030 and zero serious injuries by 2040.  For reference, 
here is a summary of the crash numbers for the OTO region over the past six years: 

Year All 
Crashes Fatal Serious 

Injury 
Minor 
Injury 

Property 
Damage 

Only 
2023 6,085 41 182 2,003 3,859 
2022 6,222 39 208 2,076 3,899 
2021 6,495 41 210 2,035 4,209 
2020 5,957 40 197 1,829 3,891 
2019 6,798 31 165 2,195 4,407 
2018 6,722 30 192 2,155 4,345 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 

No official action is requested, however, any feedback is appreciated.  

https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/ss4a


 

 

 

 

 

TAB 13 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 09/19/2024; ITEM I.C. 

Public Comment 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 

Under Tab 13 of the agenda packet, for Board member review, are Public Comments for 
the time frame between July 18, 2024 and September 10, 2024. Any additional public 
comment received by September 18, 2024 will be shared before the meeting. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  

This item is informational only, no action is required. 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Roundabout – Tracker Road and Nicholas Road 
 

City/County of concern:  Christian County 
 

Date received:  07/22/2024  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Anonymous    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
Comment: 

A roundabout should be put here 
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Walk/Bike Bridge over JRF from Kansas Ave/Maplewood to Kansas 
Court 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  07/22/2024  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Anonymous    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
Comment: 

There should be a walking & biking bridge put here 
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  N 14th Street Extension 
 

City/County of concern:  Ozark/Christian County 
 

Date received:  07/22/2024  Received through:  Staff Email 
 

Contact Name:  Kris Dryer  Contact Email/Ph #:  saveriversidebridge@gmail.com 

 
Please note that in addition to the submitter’s comments, graphics were submitted (included at 
the end). 
 
Comment:   

Yesterday I looked at the new City of Ozark corridor plan. When I looked closely 
at it I was completely shocked to see my property on the plans. The plans show 
that the City wants to put a road right through my front yard on the West side and 
another road through the North side of my property, both will take up a huge 
portion of my acre of land. It also shows that they want to put a sidewalk and 
recreational trail through my land. 
 
I live at 2375 N 14th st in Ozark MO and I live in the County, not the City, and we 
are not annexed into the City. I’m a single mom due to divorce and I’ve spent 16 
years of my life paying for my acre of land and I have plans in the future to build a 
nice home on my land to replace my mobile home. I keep my land looking nice 
and even though my son and I live in a mobile home we are not trailer trash. I am 
an Ozark MO native and I am the Founder and Director of the Save Riverside 
Bridge Initiative. I care about my community and I love my peaceful quiet 
neighborhood that has a lot of wildlife in it.  
 
In the attachment are pictures of their plans and my land is highlighted in yellow 
with a red arrow pointing to it. I had my land surveyed in 2021 and I will include 
that on the attachment as well.  
 
I am coming to you to ask you if there are other routes for traffic that would be 
better for their future traffic plans? I always thought the best place to extend the  

N 14th Street Extension Page 1 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

mailto:saveriversidebridge@gmail.com


road to CC highway from here is the outer road next to Highway 65 on the East  
side of the highway going from the Elks Lodge to the baseball stadium. I live on a 
hill so it doesn’t make sense to put a road in through my land to connect to NN 
highway. It would destroy a lot of my mature trees, kill the wildlife and run them 
off and turn my quiet neighborhood into a place where people will speed through 
to cut through from NN to 65 Hwy.  
 
 
I appreciate your help, thank you!  
 
 
Kris Dyer 
Christian County Resident 
 

 
 
 

N 14th Street Extension Page 2 



 
 

N 14th Street Extension Page 3 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N 14th Street Extension Page 4 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  New Traffic Pattern at 160 and Route CC 
 

City/County of concern:  Ozark/Christian County 
 

Date received:  07/23/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  John Anderson   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  White Cane Education  
 

City/County of concern:  OTO MPO Area 
 

Date received:  07/22/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Bus Routes and Construction at National and Division  
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  07/29/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee    Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Possible Delays due to Kansas Expressway Resurfacing  
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene 
 

Date received:  07/30/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
   

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Travel Options between Springfield and Nixa  
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Nixa/Greene/Christian 
 

Date received:  07/30/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  CU Transit Route and Schedule Changes 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene 
 

Date received:  08/02/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
   

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  CU Transit Route Changes due to Route 66 Festival 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene 
 

Date received:  08/08/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
   

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Safety Scores and Highway D 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene  
 

Date received:  08/11/2024    Received through:  Comment Email 
 

Contact Name:  Shonda Foster Contact Email/Ph #:  Mrs.shonda.foster@gmail.com 
 

 
Comment:   
Good evening! I was reviewing the Basemap 4.1 and noticed the Safety Score 
listed after all of the crash statistics.  
After searching your website, I was unable to find any guidance on interpreting 
this Safety Score. Example, is 10 good, bad, or average? 
Thank you for your assistance! 
Shonda Foster 
 
OTO Response:   

Hello Mrs. Foster, the safety scores in the base map are a combination of total 
crash rate, injury crash rate, and fatal crash rates.  A score of 1 - 4 is possible for 
each rate equaling combined range of 3 - 12 which was then rescaled to 1 - 10 and 
multiplied by 2 to arrive at 2 - 20 points possible. Thus, the score of 10 is middling. 

We have updated this method for this year's scoring which will be reflected in the 
base map in the very near future. Thank you so much for your question! I tried to 
provide a concise response. 

If you would like any further clarification or have more questions, please let me 
know. Thanks again and have a great day. 

Comment:   
This is very helpful,  thank you! So, with the rating, is 2 or 20 the "safest"?  

I am specifically looking at State Hwy D (East Sunshine) and Farm Road 199 
intersection.  City council has just approved a 191 home subdivision to.be built on 
the NE corner of the intersection (which is currently farm land). 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

http://to.be/


Also up for vote is rezoning the NW plot of that intersection to General 
Commercial.  Can you provide any insight or projections as to how the increased 
traffic of a commercial business would impact safety of that stretch of State Hwy 
D? 

Thank you for your help! 

Shonda Foster  

 

OTO Response:   

Twenty would be the bigger safety need.  OTO does not review developments for 
impacts to the transportation network.  That is done by the City, County, and/or 
MoDOT.  This would have been reviewed prior to approval.  We apologize that we 
do not have any information on the proposed development or the impacts to 
Highway D.   

Thank you again for reaching out! 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 13 between Springfield and Highway 86 
 

City/County of concern:  OTO MPO Area 
 

Date received:  08/16/2024   Received through:  MoDOT Comments 
 

Contact Name:  Philip Jones    Contact Email/Ph #:  philandpeggy@sbcglobal.net 

 
Comment: 
13hwy in between Springfield and 86hwy is getting to busy and dangerous. We need 4 
lane and a new safer bridge over Table Rock Lake in Kimberling City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MoDOT Response:   
Thank you for submitting a comment on Missouri’s High Priority Unfunded Needs. We value 
your input and will share your comment with our planning partners, the Ozarks Transportation 
Organization and the Southwest Missouri Council of Governments.  

 

MoDOT and our planning partners will consider your comment as we work together to finalize 
the list of high priority unfunded needs. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 14 and Highway W 
 

City/County of concern:  Ozark/Christian County 
 

Date received:  08/16/2024   Received through:  MoDOT Comments 
 

Contact Name:  Nicole Girardi   Contact Email/Ph #:  ngirardi@live.com 

 
Comment: 
Intersection 14 hwy and W getting very busy and increasingly dangerous to navigate. 
Widening will bring more traffic. Hoping our elected officials recognize the need for 
some controls out this way 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MoDOT Response:   
Thank you for submitting a comment on Missouri’s High Priority Unfunded Needs. We value 
your input and will share your comment with our planning partner the Ozarks Transportation 
Organization. 

MoDOT and our planning partners will consider your comment as we work together to finalize 
the list of high priority unfunded needs. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Bike Lanes on Battlefield and Plainview 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene 
 

Date received:  08/19/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  John White    Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
   

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Battlefield and Blackman   
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  08/20/2024  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Sheri Milne    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 

Comment:  The intersection of Battlefield and Blackman has become more 
dangerous in the last 2 years as the amount of traffic has increased. Many times I 
have witnessed cars failing to stop at the 3 way stop signs. I feel that this 
intersection would benefit from a traffic circle which would slow traffic and 
decrease the amount of near accidents caused by failure to stop. 
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 13 and Citydel Lane/Sunrise Drive 
 

City/County of concern:  Nixa/Christian County 
 

Date received:  08/23/2024  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Wade    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
Comment: 

Right turn lane and sidewalk would probably help in the future of easing traffic 
and Make it better walk ability The new Dollar General was getting built 
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 13 and Deer Ridge Drive/Hiawatha Road 
 

City/County of concern:  Christian County 
 

Date received:  08/23/2024  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Anonymous    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
Comment: 

This area needs a turn lane I seen the vehicles have to put on the brake let them 
people turn 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 14  
 

City/County of concern:  Ozark/Christian County 
 

Date received:  08/16/2024   Received through:  MoDOT Comments 
 

Contact Name:  Rick Bradford   Contact Email/Ph #:  bradford3275@hotmail.com 

 
Comment: 
Hwy 14 East of Ozark needs widening past Hwy W, and especially need help at the 
intersection at 14 & W with parents taking children to East Elementary, especially trying 
to cross 14. In the mornings, west bound traffic on 14 can be backed up to the Dollar 
General store. This project needs moved up to Tier 1. In addition, people think the speed 
limit is 55 when is not. Need a flashing your speed limit sign when approaching Hwy W 
and heading toward Hwy W. I appreciate the opportunity to comment and the services 
you provide. Also I recommend a decoy Police vehicle on Hwy 65 construction over the 
Finley River, people are not slowing down for the construction. 
 
 
MoDOT Response:   
Thank you for submitting a comment on Missouri’s High Priority Unfunded Needs. We value 
your input and will share your comment with our planning partner the Ozarks Transportation 
Organization. 

MoDOT and our planning partners will consider your comment as we work together to finalize 
the list of high priority unfunded needs. 

 

Reply Comment – 08.27.2024: 
A fatality at Hwy 14 & W today in Ozark, what is going to take to make it a safer intersection?   
Please take action before another fatality.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 125    
 

City/County of concern:  Strafford/Greene County 
 

Date received:  08/30/2024  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Anonymous    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
Comment:   

Why can't 125 be turned into a boulevard where walking, biking and vehicles? 
Also get rid of train truck crossing 
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Severely Delayed Roads Comparison   
 

City/County of concern:  OTO MPO Area 
 

Date received:  09/03/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Laura Nichols    Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
  
  

 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Bus Changes 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  09/05/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Carolyn McGhee   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  

       
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  MHTC’s Meeting in Springfield 
 

City/County of concern:  OTO MPO Area 
 

Date received:  09/05/2024   Received through:  Facebook 
 

Contact Name:  Rep. Bill Owen   Contact Email/Ph #:  not available      

 
OTO’s Original Posting     Facebook Comments 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  

       
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 14 

  



Congress could ease rules for small cities
seeking transportation money, experts say

JAKUB PORZYCKI/NURPHOTO VIA GETTY IMAGES

By Daniel C. Vock | AUGUST 12, 2024 05:08 PM ET

Discretionary grants give the president’s administration—and members of Congress—an opportunity to shape transportation

policy. But applying for and administering them can be a challenge for local governments.

TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE STATE AND FEDERAL RELATIONS

One of the many changes that the 2021 federal infrastructure law made to transportation policy was giving local
governments more opportunities to apply directly for federal grants, rather than depending on their state government.

But Congress is likely to scrutinize—and possibly change—those discretionary grant programs when they craft the next
surface transportation bill, two transportation experts told a gathering at the National Conference of State Legislatures
annual conference last week, in part to make the application process more user-friendly.

“We opened up grant opportunities more to local governments and to metropolitan planning organizations that have not
always had the ability to directly apply for federal transportation dollars,” said Jordan Baugh, the senior policy advisor for
the Democratic members of the U.S. Senate Committee on Environment and Public Works. “That’s created opportunities,
but also a lot of challenges, particularly for smaller cities that don’t have a large transportation or public works department.”

The smaller organizations often don’t have the experience applying for and administering large federal grant programs.
Congress might want to provide technical expertise for local communities, or help them build capacity to oversee the
delivery of those projects, Baugh said.

Susan Howard, director of policy and government relations for the American Association of State Highway and
Transportation O�cials, or AASHTO, said state transportation departments can help local o�cials prepare and administer

Connecting state and local government leaders

https://www.route-fifty.com/voices/dan-vock/22626/?oref=rf-post-author?oref=rf-post-author
https://www.route-fifty.com/topic/transportation/?oref=rf-article-topics
https://www.route-fifty.com/topic/infrastructure/?oref=rf-article-topics
https://www.route-fifty.com/topic/state-and-federal-relations/?oref=rf-article-topics
https://twitter.com/share?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&text=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&via=routefifty
https://twitter.com/share?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&text=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&via=routefifty
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&mini=true&summary=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.&source=Route-Fifty.com&title=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&mini=true&summary=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.&source=Route-Fifty.com&title=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?picture=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.route-fifty.com%2Fmedia%2Fimg%2Fcd%2F2024%2F08%2F12%2Fwork_ahead%2F860x394.jpg&name=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&app_id=1628679770698810&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com&link=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&display=popup&description=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?picture=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.route-fifty.com%2Fmedia%2Fimg%2Fcd%2F2024%2F08%2F12%2Fwork_ahead%2F860x394.jpg&name=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&app_id=1628679770698810&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com&link=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&display=popup&description=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.
mailto:?body=Discretionary%20grants%20give%20the%20president%E2%80%99s%20administration%E2%80%94and%20members%20of%20Congress%E2%80%94an%20opportunity%20to%20shape%20transportation%20policy.%20But%20applying%20for%20and%20administering%20them%20can%20be%20a%20challenge%20for%20local%20governments.%0A%0Ahttps%3A//www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/08/congress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say/398755/&subject=Route%20Fifty%3A%20Congress%20could%20ease%20rules%20for%20small%20cities%20seeking%20transportation%20money%2C%20experts%20say
mailto:?body=Discretionary%20grants%20give%20the%20president%E2%80%99s%20administration%E2%80%94and%20members%20of%20Congress%E2%80%94an%20opportunity%20to%20shape%20transportation%20policy.%20But%20applying%20for%20and%20administering%20them%20can%20be%20a%20challenge%20for%20local%20governments.%0A%0Ahttps%3A//www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/08/congress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say/398755/&subject=Route%20Fifty%3A%20Congress%20could%20ease%20rules%20for%20small%20cities%20seeking%20transportation%20money%2C%20experts%20say
https://www.linkedin.com/posts/national-conference-of-state-legislatures_surface-transportation-whats-ahead-on-the-activity-7226659595396485121-dhMJ?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_desktop
https://www.route-fifty.com/?oref=rf-nav


For local o�cials in smaller jurisdictions, though, the rules that come with federal grants can be di�cult. “That’s been one of 
the big challenges with the discretionary grant programs, as you open up to a whole new universe of recipients: 
understanding what it means to comply with NEPA [an environmental law], Davis-Bacon [governing prevailing wages], etc,” 
she said.

The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act created more than $150 billion worth of discretionary grant programs, which 
gave the Biden administration a chance to put its own stamp on the kinds of projects it wanted to accelerate. President Joe 
Biden has prioritized e�orts to combat climate change, promote racial equity, encourage the use of union labor and build 
infrastructure that supports alternate modes of transportation along with automobiles.

Those e�orts have sometimes angered congressional and state-level Republicans, who argue that the Democratic
administration has undermined the bipartisan consensus that led to the passage of the $1.2 trillion funding law in the �rst
place.

Presidential administrations of both parties have used discretionary grant programs to promote their pet issues. For
example, one popular program not only shifted emphasis but changed its name under three successive administrations.
The Obama administration pushed for the creation of so-called TIGER grants in the 2009 stimulus package, which it used to
fund projects in urban areas. The Trump administration rechristened the e�ort as BUILD grants, and prioritized rural areas.
Under Biden, the program grew bigger and became known as RAISE grants, and they are evenly split between urban and
rural projects.

Still, the vast majority of transportation money from the federal government is automatically distributed to states using
formulas written by Congress.

One reason Congress might be interested in keeping discretionary grants, though, is that it allows federal lawmakers to
promote projects important to their constituents, even if they are not high on the state’s list of priorities.

“These discretionary grant programs are satisfying an itch that earmarks once did,” said AASHTO’s Howard. “We didn’t have
earmarks in the [infrastructure law], but we had a lot of programs to direct dollars to local priorities.”

Baugh, the Senate sta�er, noted that the number of discretionary grant programs started expanding at the same time that
Congress stopped using earmarks in its transportation bills.

“Discretionary grants do preserve some of that ability for the administration and for Congress to also direct where some of
these priorities are and where some federal funding can go,” he said.

Washington state Rep. Jake Fey, a Democrat, told the panelists that the e�ort it took to apply for the federal grants could be
immense. State and local governments go through a lot of e�ort to prepare an application “only to have it not funded,” he
said. “A lot of resources and engineering expertise goes towards that… and a lot of that e�ort doesn’t result in a project at
the state or local level.”

“There seems to not be a rhyme or reason,” he said. “But there’s a lot of waste that occurs in all that e�ort to put an
application together. Maybe there’s some ways to put people into a queue so they could be assured it might not happen
this year, but it might happen �ve years from now.”

https://nacto.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/NACTO-IIJA-City-Overview.pdf
https://www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/06/biden-awards-18b-urban-rural-transportation-projects/397647/?oref=rf-related-article


Baugh said Congress would likely look at streamlining the application process for discretionary grants when the
infrastructure law expires in 2026. Lawmakers could, for example, combine multiple grant programs so they aren’t so
narrowly tailored.

“You’re not applying for 15 di�erent grants, but you could have a little more �exibility in terms of grant size and recipient
size so that you’re making the process as easy as possible for local governments,” he said. “It’s not going to be easy,
because the Federal Aid Highway program is complicated, but making it easier and maybe a little more predictable and a
little more user-friendly for folks that don’t have a lot of experience working directly with USDOT is something that
Congress may want to look at.”

Howard credited the Biden administration for doing an “excellent job” in identifying areas that local governments need
technical support for in order to apply for grants. But that only goes so far, she said. “It’s just a big ocean and a lot of little
�sh.”
Daniel C. Vock is a senior reporter for Route Fifty based in Washington, D.C.

Transportation Case Studies

https://the-atlas.com/projects/ev-car-share-network-minneapolis-saint-paul?utm_campaign=articles&utm_content=raleigh-led-streetlight-tech-123132&utm_medium=feature-box&utm_source=route-fifty&utm_term=transportation
https://the-atlas.com/projects/los-angeles-demonstrates-shared-mobility-delivers-on-climate-change-and-transportation-inequity-3027?utm_campaign=articles&utm_content=raleigh-led-streetlight-tech-123132&utm_medium=feature-box&utm_source=route-fifty&utm_term=transportation
https://the-atlas.com/projects/metropolitan-transportation-commission-streamlines-procurement?utm_campaign=articles&utm_content=raleigh-led-streetlight-tech-123132&utm_medium=feature-box&utm_source=route-fifty&utm_term=transportation
https://the-atlas.com/projects?utm_campaign=articles&utm_content=congress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say-398755&utm_medium=feature-box&utm_source=route-fifty&utm_term=transportation
https://twitter.com/share?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&text=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&via=routefifty
https://twitter.com/share?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&text=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&via=routefifty
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&mini=true&summary=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.&source=Route-Fifty.com&title=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&mini=true&summary=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.&source=Route-Fifty.com&title=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?picture=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.route-fifty.com%2Fmedia%2Fimg%2Fcd%2F2024%2F08%2F12%2Fwork_ahead%2F860x394.jpg&name=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&app_id=1628679770698810&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com&link=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&display=popup&description=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?picture=https%3A%2F%2Fcdn.route-fifty.com%2Fmedia%2Fimg%2Fcd%2F2024%2F08%2F12%2Fwork_ahead%2F860x394.jpg&name=Congress+could+ease+rules+for+small+cities+seeking+transportation+money%2C+experts+say&app_id=1628679770698810&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com&link=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.route-fifty.com%2Finfrastructure%2F2024%2F08%2Fcongress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say%2F398755%2F&display=popup&description=Discretionary+grants+give+the+president%E2%80%99s+administration%E2%80%94and+members+of+Congress%E2%80%94an+opportunity+to+shape+transportation+policy.+But+applying+for+and+administering+them+can+be+a+challenge+for+local+governments.
mailto:?body=Discretionary%20grants%20give%20the%20president%E2%80%99s%20administration%E2%80%94and%20members%20of%20Congress%E2%80%94an%20opportunity%20to%20shape%20transportation%20policy.%20But%20applying%20for%20and%20administering%20them%20can%20be%20a%20challenge%20for%20local%20governments.%0A%0Ahttps%3A//www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/08/congress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say/398755/&subject=Route%20Fifty%3A%20Congress%20could%20ease%20rules%20for%20small%20cities%20seeking%20transportation%20money%2C%20experts%20say
mailto:?body=Discretionary%20grants%20give%20the%20president%E2%80%99s%20administration%E2%80%94and%20members%20of%20Congress%E2%80%94an%20opportunity%20to%20shape%20transportation%20policy.%20But%20applying%20for%20and%20administering%20them%20can%20be%20a%20challenge%20for%20local%20governments.%0A%0Ahttps%3A//www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/08/congress-could-ease-rules-small-cities-seeking-transportation-money-experts-say/398755/&subject=Route%20Fifty%3A%20Congress%20could%20ease%20rules%20for%20small%20cities%20seeking%20transportation%20money%2C%20experts%20say
https://www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/06/midwest-states-launch-new-rail-service-12-years-making/397304/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/06/midwest-states-launch-new-rail-service-12-years-making/397304/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/infrastructure/2024/06/midwest-states-launch-new-rail-service-12-years-making/397304/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/management/2024/06/why-fight-over-abortion-pills-isnt-over-yet/397402/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/management/2024/06/why-fight-over-abortion-pills-isnt-over-yet/397402/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/management/2024/06/why-fight-over-abortion-pills-isnt-over-yet/397402/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/management/2024/06/silver-tsunami-here-government-ready/397222/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/management/2024/06/silver-tsunami-here-government-ready/397222/?oref=rf-earthbox-post
https://www.route-fifty.com/management/2024/06/silver-tsunami-here-government-ready/397222/?oref=rf-earthbox-post


U.S. Government Accountability Office

Home  Reports & Testimonies  Discretionary Transportation Grants: DOT Should Fully Document Key Selection …

Discretionary Transportation Grants:
DOT Should Fully Document Key Selection Decisions for Its
Rural Program

GAO-24-106882
Published: Aug 12, 2024. Publicly Released: Aug 12, 2024.

   

State and local governments are struggling to maintain rural roads.
Underinvestment, the U.S. Department of Transportation says, has resulted in

their slow and steady decline. Funding the surface transportation system has
been on our High Risk List since 2007.

We reviewed DOT's selection process for awarding $300 million slated for rural
road projects. In year 1 of the program, DOT awarded $274 million to 12 of 243

finalists.

DOT didn't fully document its rationale for key selection decisions. By doing so, it

could enhance transparency and clarify why some applications were selected over
others. Our recommendation addresses this issue.

Fast Facts

8/13/24, 9:08 AM Discretionary Transportation Grants: DOT Should Fully Document Key Selection Decisions for Its Rural Program | U.S. GAO

1/6

https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/
https://www.gao.gov/reports-testimonies
https://www.gao.gov/high-risk-list


In March 2022, the Department of Transportation (DOT) announced up to $300

million available for award under the Rural Surface Transportation Grants Program
(Rural). DOT advanced 243 of the 317 applications to its Senior Review Team—a

team of senior DOT officials that is responsible for reviewing applications and
advancing applications to the Secretary of Transportation for award

consideration. Local governments submitted most of these applications, which
generally requested funding for roadway projects in areas with a population of

less than 50,000. Demand for funding was high as these applications requested a

total of over $9.3 billion in funding—about 30 times the maximum amount
available—with most applications requesting less than $25 million.

Highlights

What GAO Found

2/6



Selected Characteristics of Applications That Advanced to the Rural Surface
Transportation Grant Program's Senior Review Team, Fiscal Year 2022

DOT's selection process generally aligned with federal guidance and regulations

for grants management, but DOT did not fully document its rationale for key

decisions during that process, as required by DOT guidance. For example, in
response to a DOT requirement, DOT developed an evaluation plan that specified

the actions the Senior Review Team must take, as well as the criteria for taking
those actions. GAO found that in advancing and selecting Rural applications for

award, DOT documented the outcomes of key decisions but did not fully
document their rationale, as required by DOT guidance. Specifically, DOT did not

fully document its rationale for requesting additional information from some

applicants that did not initially meet the Rural program statutory project
requirements, but not from others. In addition, DOT did not document its

rationale for rating certain applications more highly than others that were
similarly situated. As a result, DOT's documentation provided limited insight into

its rationale for decisions that could have affected the outcome for an
application. By fully documenting its rationale for key decisions, DOT can better

ensure that its process for selecting applications for award is consistent and

transparent.

Over 70 percent of the nation's 4 million miles of public access roads are

estimated to be in rural areas. Rural—a DOT discretionary grant program—funds

Why GAO Did This Study

3/6



eligible projects to improve and expand surface transportation infrastructure in

rural areas (i.e., areas outside an urbanized area that has a population of over
200,000). DOT awarded $274 million in fiscal year 2022 funding for 12 Rural

applications.

The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act includes a provision for GAO to

examine DOT's Rural awards selection process. This report (1) describes the
characteristics of Rural applications that DOT advanced to the Senior Review

Team; and (2) assesses the extent to which DOT's selection assesses process
aligned with guidance and federal regulations. GAO reviewed statutory

requirements, DOT's notice of funding opportunity, evaluation plan, and other
documentation on the Rural fiscal year 2022 selection process; analyzed

application and award data; and interviewed DOT officials. GAO also compared

DOT's selection process with federal regulations for discretionary grant programs,
DOT guidance, and standards for internal control in the federal government.

GAO is recommending that DOT ensure that Rural program officials fully document the

rationale for key decisions when advancing and selecting applications for award. DOT
disagreed with the recommendation, stating that its documentation is full and complete.

GAO maintains the recommendation is valid, as discussed in the report.

Recommendations

Recommendations for Executive Action

4/6



Agency
Affected

Recommendation Status

Department of
Transportation

The Secretary of Transportation
should ensure Rural program
officials fully document the
rationale behind key decisions
related to advancing and selecting
applications for award.
(Recommendation 1)

GAO Contacts
Elizabeth (Biza) Repko
Director

Office of Public Affairs
Sarah Kaczmarek
Acting Managing Director

When we confirm what 
actions the agency has 
taken in response to this 
recommendation, we will 
provide updated 
information.

Full Report

5/6

https://www.gao.gov/products/gao-24-106882?order=name&sort=asc
https://www.gao.gov/products/gao-24-106882?order=name&sort=asc
https://www.gao.gov/products/gao-24-106882?order=field_status_code&sort=asc
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-24-106882-highlights.pdf
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-24-106882.pdf
https://www.gao.gov/about/contact-us/find-an-expert/elizabeth-repko
mailto:repkoe@gao.gov
mailto:repkoe@gao.gov
mailto:repkoe@gao.gov
tel:+1-202-512-2834
https://www.gao.gov/about/contact-us/find-an-expert/sarah-kaczmarek
mailto:kaczmareks@gao.gov
mailto:kaczmareks@gao.gov
mailto:kaczmareks@gao.gov
tel:+1-202-512-4800


States can compensate with vehicle and odometer taxes, but local

governments can harness new data technologies — including GPS, 5G

and AI — to meet the need for more than states’ hand-me-down dollars.

OPINION | Aug. 13, 2024 •  Girard Miller

FINANCE

Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking
Fuel Taxes

8/13/24, 9:05 AM Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking Fuel Taxes

https://www.governing.com/finance/funding-local-roads-in-an-era-of-evs-and-shrinking-fuel-taxes 1/12

https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjssBoJny4dCjbajuwGbVIARTx66x5O8ozISI19zjtDjSFPZKMTr3_YdLkKX7BO8S5EdxvuVIq72q0PlrMRoqelELrTzoR1k74tXEufHq2SqDj7UvBOWst5BBEM2_pP0ZIFzmqFdjTRzgZotvzpsZp3pMT7A_akeIYSSNoCCUvkXMdxyQgGhIPmZ17Dm0YVqe7j2bVhbSkRP1BRxGZF98uj1I9wPfywutHyIv2YPnXxGDU3dOnb2mqcUUp3GVdyBaL4qOlcihoVbl1zepEVktLJ7KmxCD_tATcpE3KwpVAzzTERbgGaVncEYrl1nIYBYW2TTxpx3OBaR5AVT9iKyuww7qXvg&sai=AMfl-YScZe1MI31lnErpK1Lsqt9O_bINbSU6DJAE_nQxeSo6p2usdGNHn-SLedCF2BM5k77QkWnbScFH8r9jsrOgbIIj0L8Pwjp6ye6KDQ&sig=Cg0ArKJSzBm2wzQY1bZh&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&adurl=https://cleargov.com/lp/demo%3Futm_campaign%3DGoverning_BCM%26subsource%3DGoverning%26product%3DBCM
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjssBoJny4dCjbajuwGbVIARTx66x5O8ozISI19zjtDjSFPZKMTr3_YdLkKX7BO8S5EdxvuVIq72q0PlrMRoqelELrTzoR1k74tXEufHq2SqDj7UvBOWst5BBEM2_pP0ZIFzmqFdjTRzgZotvzpsZp3pMT7A_akeIYSSNoCCUvkXMdxyQgGhIPmZ17Dm0YVqe7j2bVhbSkRP1BRxGZF98uj1I9wPfywutHyIv2YPnXxGDU3dOnb2mqcUUp3GVdyBaL4qOlcihoVbl1zepEVktLJ7KmxCD_tATcpE3KwpVAzzTERbgGaVncEYrl1nIYBYW2TTxpx3OBaR5AVT9iKyuww7qXvg&sai=AMfl-YScZe1MI31lnErpK1Lsqt9O_bINbSU6DJAE_nQxeSo6p2usdGNHn-SLedCF2BM5k77QkWnbScFH8r9jsrOgbIIj0L8Pwjp6ye6KDQ&sig=Cg0ArKJSzBm2wzQY1bZh&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&adurl=https://cleargov.com/lp/demo%3Futm_campaign%3DGoverning_BCM%26subsource%3DGoverning%26product%3DBCM
https://www.governing.com/authors/Girard-Miller.html
https://www.governing.com/finance
https://www.facebook.com/dialog/share?app_id=314190606794339&display=popup&href=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.governing.com%2Ffinance%2Ffunding-local-roads-in-an-era-of-evs-and-shrinking-fuel-taxes
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.governing.com%2Ffinance%2Ffunding-local-roads-in-an-era-of-evs-and-shrinking-fuel-taxes&mini=true&title=Funding%20Local%20Roads%20in%20an%20Era%20of%20EVs%20and%20Shrinking%20Fuel%20Taxes&summary=States%20can%20compensate%20with%20vehicle%20and%20odometer%20taxes%2C%20but%20local%20governments%20can%20harness%20new%20data%20technologies%20%E2%80%94%20including%20GPS%2C%205G%20and%20AI%20%E2%80%94%20to%20meet%20the%20need%20for%20more%20than%20states%E2%80%99%20hand-me-down%20dollars.&source=Governing
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.governing.com%2Ffinance%2Ffunding-local-roads-in-an-era-of-evs-and-shrinking-fuel-taxes&text=Funding%20Local%20Roads%20in%20an%20Era%20of%20EVs%20and%20Shrinking%20Fuel%20Taxes
mailto:?body=Funding%20Local%20Roads%20in%20an%20Era%20of%20EVs%20and%20Shrinking%20Fuel%20Taxes%0A%0Ahttps%3A%2F%2Fwww.governing.com%2Ffinance%2Ffunding-local-roads-in-an-era-of-evs-and-shrinking-fuel-taxes%0A%0AStates%20can%20compensate%20with%20vehicle%20and%20odometer%20taxes%2C%20but%20local%20governments%20can%20harness%20new%20data%20technologies%20%E2%80%94%20including%20GPS%2C%205G%20and%20AI%20%E2%80%94%20to%20meet%20the%20need%20for%20more%20than%20states%E2%80%99%20hand-me-down%20dollars.
javascript:window.print()
https://www.governing.com/
https://www.governing.com/


Ford electric cars for sale at a dealership in Gilbert, Ariz. There were about 3.3 million EVs on U.S. roads in the fourth

quarter of 2023, and the International Energy Agency projects U.S. sales to rise by 20 percent in 2024, accounting for

about 11 percent of all new-car sales. (Shutterstock)

Whether or not the nation migrates predominantly to electric vehicles in a

decade or so, the future of motor fuel taxes is clearly downward. Meanwhile, the

costs of resurfacing and maintaining local streets and roads are not going away,

but will probably escalate as our infrastructure continues to age.

If Congress cannot or will not levy new taxes to fund the nation’s freeways and

bridges, it is likely that states will have no choice but to raise their taxes on

vehicles. Higher automobile sales and transfer taxes seem inevitable, and it’s easy

to imagine that an entirely new robotaxi industry will be taxed at the point of

sale by the states, with some form of revenue sharing for local governments.

The lowest-hanging fruit for financing roads will simply be annual vehicle fees

and odometer readings that state DMVs can use to assess user fees that they share

with local governments, probably using formulas quite similar to those in place

today for allocating fuel tax revenues. In fact, more than half the states already

charge EV drivers an extra fee, and many — most notably Oregon — are testing,

piloting or creating programs to charge EV drivers by the mile.

8/13/24, 9:05 AM Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking Fuel Taxes

2/12

https://www.governing.com/finance/clock-ticking-for-states-to-replace-dwindling-gas-taxes
https://www.governing.com/finance/clock-ticking-for-states-to-replace-dwindling-gas-taxes
https://www.governing.com/news/headlines/oregon-to-introduce-new-car-fees-as-gas-tax-is-phased-out.html


For states, that’s the easy way out. Whether local governments will take a more 

aggressive posture to collect revenues of their own is yet to be seen. Scattered 

reports of cities charging fees for local vehicular deliveries of food and 

merchandise would suggest that mayors and public works directors are 

awakening to the need and potential opportunity to collect localized fees for use 

and maintenance of local roads and streets.

Fortunately for localities, there are technology trends working in their favor that 

can be channeled for purposes of financing local surface transportation 

networks. One of them is the ever-expanding capabilities of satellite GPS 

monitors. There is also the 5G telecommunications network being built out by 

major carriers so that vehicle locations can be identified readily at a granular 

level without overloading GPS systems.

The importance of 5G telecom tech here is not so much its signal speed as its vast 

and ever-growing network of signal stations to capture movements of less than 

one mile that will be easy to register and thereby employed to charge a user fee 

specific to the local jurisdiction. Artificial intelligence systems should be able to 

connect the dots between recorded drive-bys, down to the level of individual city 

blocks.

It’s technologically foreseeable that both freeways and major state and county 

roads will eventually become mini toll roads, charging by the mile. Similarly, 

cities and towns can readily collect a few pennies for each trip to grocery stores, 

shopping malls, offices and commuter train stations. Transponders of various 

kinds now used by toll roads and bridges, or something similar, will become 

ubiquitous. It’s just a question of which and how such technology will be 

deployed.

8/13/24, 9:05 AM Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking Fuel Taxes

3/12

https://www.govtech.com/transportation/why-gas-taxes-are-out-and-amazon-delivery-fees-are-in?__hstc=42518906.81e30c9dffd747d5e35a23de5d8c78e7.1723557891574.1723557891574.1723557891574.1&__hssc=42518906.1.1723557891574&__hsfp=79320913
https://www.wpi.edu/news/explainers/5g-technology


For new vehicles, at some point the manufacturing industry will almost certainly

be required to incorporate both odometer-reading and location sensors that can

communicate with state and local highway departments and toll facilities.

Whether this involves uniform federal or piecemeal state legislation is almost

immaterial, as states will ultimately have ways to penalize non-compliance.

For pre-transition vehicles, both electrified and gasoline-powered, locator devices

such as license plate readers, transponders or software patches to a car’s

navigation system will be feasible measures. Dealerships can be required to

assure compliance at the point of sale as a condition for licensing and

registration, as could smog check and auto repair shops. Scofflaws who fail or

decline to get with the program for retrofitting older vehicles can be surcharged

by the state DMV on their vehicle registration fees, with revenues shared with the

owner’s residential jurisdictions.

No doubt there are private- and public-sector technologists already thinking

about the best ways to engineer micro-locators on vehicles for the purpose of

assessing governmental user fees. The ideal systems would be statewide

combinations of privacy-controlled, integrated sensory networks combined with

multijurisdictional consumer billing. Once it becomes clear how state and local

policymakers will be thinking about what, where and how to tax vehicle usage —

and distribute the revenues — the private sector will engineer competitive

solutions in the search of profitable data collection and revenue management

systems.

Staking a Claim

Local government associations would be wise to engage proactively and early in

this innovation process so that the new tolling systems capture granular local

road use data. Otherwise, they will be stuck with nothing more than hand-me-

down state dollars assigned to them by conventional population and road-mile

formulas. Now is the best time for cities, towns and counties and their finance

teams to start staking a claim on the revenue stream and make reasonable

demands for granular data capture that can be used to assess user fees to fund

local streets and roads.

8/13/24, 9:05 AM Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking Fuel Taxes

4/12



That’s because the evolving sensor and data technologies that work easiest for

state DMVs and transportation departments will not be optimal for local

government revenue capture. The billing systems needed for that will be more

complex. And integrating the state versus local dimensions of this riddle is both a

technological and political challenge.

Even if local governments ultimately accept a statewide revenue collection

system with formulaic allocations to localities, it’s likely that many of them will

still find it necessary to levy their own separate, additional user fees based on

mileage driven within their jurisdictions. It’s not unlike the collection of voter-

approved “piggyback” sales taxes that are commonplace in many local

jurisdictions. The beauty of modern technology is that electrons are cheap, so the

incremental cost of accurately capturing individual trip data for each vehicle is

negligible and would be unobtrusive once a measurement system is set up.

Street-specific usage data will also be immensely helpful to local public works

departments as they plan their capital improvement programs for street

maintenance and repairs. It’s one thing for a mayor to receive a check from the

state treasurer based on citywide vehicle registrations and quite another for the

public works director to know exactly which streets are getting the heaviest use

and by what vehicle classes. Undoubtedly, law enforcement agencies will also

favor efforts to glean granular, time-punched data from vehicle movements —

though given the Big Brother and privacy issues that raises, precautions are

obviously necessary.

Optimizing Local Revenues

Whatever technologies ultimately prevail, a centralized and coordinated state-

level tolling system would be most efficient, with local governments’ shares

determined by a combination of revenue sharing and location-specific actual use

fees. No driver wants to receive separate bills from dozens of jurisdictions;

computers can readily handle the data compilation and billing processes. And

isolated, disjointed local systems independently collecting micro-tolls for street

usage would be too easy for local drivers to evade.

It’s unlikely that all local governments would need or want to charge user fees on

8/13/24, 9:05 AM Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking Fuel Taxes

5/12



their own, beyond what a statewide system would allocate to them. That’s just

one of several reasons we don’t typically have local gas taxes today. But for those

with serious revenue shortfalls in their public works budgets, there may be no

better alternative.

The takeaway for local officials here is that state municipal leagues, public works

departments, financial professionals and their national umbrella organizations

must begin now to engage actively at the state level in the formulation of next-

generation revenue strategies and systems to fund their local streets and road

work. Without active efforts by these groups to build their case, state officials will

largely ignore the special needs and interests of America’s largest cities, which

are the most likely entities to draw the short straws in statewide road-revenue

allocations.

At the very least, state laws should not pre-empt local governments’ authority to

extract user fees. The sooner local officials and their associations open a

legislative dialogue in the state capitals, the better their chances will be to

influence the technology to be used and the way funds will be distributed.

Governing's opinion columns reflect the views of their authors and not
necessarily those of Governing's editors or management.

8/13/24, 9:05 AM Funding Local Roads in an Era of EVs and Shrinking Fuel Taxes

6/12

https://www.governing.com/finance/the-multibillion-dollar-implications-of-evs-for-state-budgets
https://www.governing.com/finance/clock-ticking-for-states-to-replace-dwindling-gas-taxes
https://www.governing.com/finance/soon-gas-taxes-wont-pay-for-roads-but-amazon-deliveries-might
https://www.governing.com/finance/california-offers-400-to-test-gas-tax-alternatives


Study: Americans spend most on
gas in unlikely places

C R E D I T  CA R D S  >  N E W S

The Bankrate promise

At Bankrate we strive to help you make smarter �nancial decisions. While we adhere to strict

, this post may contain references to products from our partners. Here's an explanation

for . The content on this page is accurate as of the posting date; however, some of

the o�ers mentioned may have expired. Terms apply to the o�ers listed on this page. Any opinions,

Im
ag

es
 b

y 
G

et
ty

Im
ag

es
; I

llu
st

ra
ti

on
 b

y 
H

un
te

r 
N

ew
to

n/
Ba

nk
ra

te

editorial integrity

how we make money

5  M I N  R E A D

August 19, 2024  Cite us

Written by Alex Gailey Edited by Chris Kahn

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate

https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/news/american-gas-spending-study/?email=8c96c8461cf0fbdf2206b916c7bfee647d8c39a3&emaila=975aa80… 1/13

https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/
https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/news/
https://www.facebook.com/share.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bankrate.com%2Fcredit-cards%2Fnews%2Famerican-gas-spending-study%2F&title=Study%3A+Americans+spend+most+on+gas+in+unlikely+places
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Study%3A+Americans+spend+most+on+gas+in+unlikely+places&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bankrate.com%2Fcredit-cards%2Fnews%2Famerican-gas-spending-study%2F
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&source=Bankrate.com&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bankrate.com%2Fcredit-cards%2Fnews%2Famerican-gas-spending-study%2F&title=Study%3A+Americans+spend+most+on+gas+in+unlikely+places
mailto:?subject=Study%3A%20Americans%20spend%20most%20on%20gas%20in%20unlikely%20places&body=Read%20more%20at%20https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bankrate.com%2Fcredit-cards%2Fnews%2Famerican-gas-spending-study%2F
https://www.bankrate.com/


analyses, reviews or recommendations expressed in this article are those of the author’s alone, and have

not been reviewed, approved or otherwise endorsed by any card issuer.

Where are Americans spending the most on gas in the U.S.? The answer may surprise

you.

Expensive states like California and Washington are notorious for their high gas prices,

but there’s another part of the equation that is often overlooked: average annual

mileage.

A new analysis by Bankrate of AAA and Federal Highway Administration data found

that Americans spend more on gas on average in more a�ordable states, such as

Indiana, Wyoming and Missouri, than in states with higher gas prices like California and

Washington.

The reason? Drivers in those low-cost states tend to spend a lot more time on the road,

burning more gasoline than their counterparts in high-cost states. Drivers in Indiana, for

example, average nearly 20,600 miles and shell out nearly $3,000 on gas annually,

while drivers in California drive roughly 11,400 miles and spend about $2,000 per year

on gas, according to .

Whether you live in a high- or low-cost gasoline state, our analysis suggests there may

be ways to cut back on the amount that you pay at the pump. Here’s where Americans

are spending the most and least on gas across the country based on their driving habits,

plus tips on how to spend less on fuel.

Bankrate’s Hidden Costs of Car Ownership Study

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate

http://www.bankrate.com/insurance/car/hidden-cost-car-ownership-study/


“Gas expenditures can be a surprising hidden cost of
car ownership, especially for drivers living in more rural

areas where their daily travels are spread out over a
larger area.”

— S H A N N O N  M A R T I N ,  BA N K RAT E  I N SU RA N C E  A N A LYST

Drivers are spending the most on gas in
Indiana, Wyoming and Missouri

Gas prices matter to the extent that you’re driving. The more driving you do, the more

you’ll spend on gas, even if the price per gallon is cheaper in your state compared to

other states.

According to Bankrate’s calculations, drivers in Indiana ($2,913), Wyoming ($2,765) and

Missouri ($2,279) have the highest average gas costs per year. Residents in Indiana,

Wyoming and Missouri tend to drive more and, therefore, spend more on gas annually.

The 10 states with the highest annual gas costs tend to have a lower cost of living and

lower gas prices at the pump, with the exception of Indiana.

The average price for a gallon of regular gas was $3.68 in Indiana, $3.33 in Wyoming

and $3.20 in Missouri as of late July, but here’s how many miles people are driving on

average in those states, according to :2022 Federal Highway Administration data

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/statistics/2022/


Wyoming: 21,588 miles

Indiana: 20,560 miles

Missouri: 18,514 miles

Comparatively, drivers in the District of Columbia ($956), Rhode Island ($1,314) and

New York ($1,329) have the lowest average gas costs per year. Residents in those states

are driving signi�cantly less on average per year:

District of Columbia: 6,695 miles

New York: 9,548 miles

Washington: 9,819 miles

As of late July, the average price for a gallon of regular gas in the District of Columbia

was $3.71, $3.62 in New York and $4.25 in Washington.

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate



What about states with high gas prices like 

California and Washington?

There’s no denying that gas prices are higher in certain parts of the country, like 

California and the Paci�c Northwest. As of late July, the average price for a gallon of 

regular gas in those parts of the country hovered between $4.66 and $4.25 — the 

highest in the country.

But that doesn’t mean residents of those states are shelling out more for gas. In fact, 

people in California, Oregon, and Washington spend less on gas on average because 

they drive less. A variety of factors, like fuel costs, public transportation and density, 

account for the big di�erences between driving habits in each state.

Californians drive 11,409 miles per year, which is about 2,187 miles less than the average 

American motorist and 10,179 miles less than their counterparts in Wyoming. People 

also drive less in the Paci�c Northwest, averaging 9,819 miles per year in Washington 

and 11,780 miles per year in Oregon.

Assuming that the average car in the U.S. travels about 26 miles on a gallon of gas, 

Californians average roughly $2,043 per year on gas. Drivers in Washington and Oregon 

spend a little less than that on average: $1,605 and $1,790 annually, respectively.

Gas prices have been trending down across the country over the last few months due to 

falling oil prices. The national average for a gallon of regular gas hovered around $3.50 

as of late July, similar to the price in June, according to AAA data. A year ago, the 

national price of regular gas was around $3.85 per gallon.

“Oil prices have fallen quite a bit lately. In April, a barrel of oil was in the upper $80s, but 

today, it is $10 a barrel cheaper,” Andrew Gross, AAA spokesperson, said in a statement 

in July. “That might mitigate any upward pressure on pump prices.”

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate

https://gasprices.aaa.com/


How to save money at the gas pump

Consider incorporating these �ve hacks into your day-to-day to keep your gas expenses

down.

1. Shop around: If you’re turning into the �rst gas station you see, you’re likely leaving

money on the table. Instead, be proactive and research the lowest-priced options near

you through  like GasBuddy, Gas Guru and AAA. These apps can tell you

where the lowest gas prices are no matter where you are in the country, and you can

sort results by fuel grade, distance and price.

2. Join a rewards program: If you’re loyal to a particular gas station near you, consider

joining its  if it has one. Many grocery stores and popular gas stations,

like Exxon Mobil and Shell, o�er rewards for �lling up at their stations. The incentives

may be small, but they could  over time.

3. Consider paying with cash: It may be wise to keep cash on hand for gas, especially

when traveling long distances by car. Some stations o�er lower gas prices if you pay

with cash instead of a debit or credit card. The di�erence is usually small, between 5 to

10 cents, but that can build up to tangible savings if you’re consistently paying lower

gas prices with cash.

free gas apps

rewards program

add up to big savings

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate

https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/travel/best-gas-apps/
https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/rewards/gas-rewards-programs-guide/
https://www.bankrate.com/banking/see-how-to-save-money-through-small-savings-over-time/


4. Leverage a cash back credit card: Another way to save at the pump is by using a

. While you won’t be able to snag lower gas prices with a credit

card, the gas rewards you earn could lead to more savings when you �ll up at the pump.

Several  o�er as much as 3 percent cash back at gas stations, which can

equate to hundreds of dollars back in your pocket annually if you’re using the card

responsibly.

5. Consider mass transit: The most straightforward way to save at the pump is to take

advantage of public transportation when convenient instead of driving. If you do have

to drive somewhere, be strategic about bundling your errands together to save on fuel.

cash back credit card

credit cards

Written by

Lead Data Reporter, Personal Finance

As a lead data reporter at Bankrate, Alex Gailey writes about the numbers behind consumer

�nance and economic trends.

Edited by

Managing Editor, Surveys and Data Studies

Chris Kahn

Alex Gailey

8/26/24, 9:53 AM Study: Americans Spend Most On Gas In Unlikely Places | Bankrate

https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/cash-back/best-cash-back-cards/
https://www.bankrate.com/credit-cards/rewards/best-gas-cards/
https://www.bankrate.com/authors/alex-gailey/
https://twitter.com/@alex_gailey
https://www.linkedin.com/in/alexandragailey/
mailto:agailey@bankrate.com
https://www.bankrate.com/authors/alex-gailey/
https://twitter.com/@cmkahn
https://www.linkedin.com/in/chris-kahn-0b4a395/
mailto:ckahn@redventures.com


T H E  F I F T Y

The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes
Pay-per-mile fees have emerged as the most likely solution to dropping gas revenues linked to electric vehicles.

Illustration by Keith Alexander Lee for POLITICO

B y  A L E X  N I E V E S
0 8 / 1 4 / 2 0 2 4  0 5 : 0 0  A M  E D T

T he U.S.’ electric vehicle boom is ushering in a new crisis lawmakers

have known for decades is coming: The gas tax system that prevents

crumbling roads and bridges is evaporating.

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

https://www.politico.com/news/2024/08/14/ev-gas-tax-drivers-california-00173619 1/9

https://www.politico.com/series/states/the-fifty
https://www.politico.com/staff/alexander-nieves
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https://politi.co/4ds3zc0
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https://politi.co/4ds3zc0&text=The+dark+side+of+the+EV+revolution%3A+Road+taxes&via=politico
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_uLW3YTBmLtWoo91JBCTW&tk=5joevCn2TzNwHzIDqqWSLAkUFSVcy1tazbCGmPfJ-20BdtxsPA_W3g6EnWEI93QBbYfZSFL8Lq281nPMR_g_fq3m-wWLTeL0bGYEAcsljAAcgMY53KTV_di7ev468_oD_uOTiDhzgyjKOAvcHqZtefaLZy4of12U3bSDugBgsepUCJLJMpxwC1LlmeBHTFN7MfAddHtmTPRlUeJ4feazaLhUw1vwsjxzbX5EAqtd6D6VT3ga0_GmKyXBPdSfEsU0X8VKUZdUR2GxioiRxvkWA9_YgnoWqq-rUuKXslOX8ni9-jTdvOsQGwgxKqCa1_P71KA9OYb8xKh7OvHLzUtqN6fXssagXVyz74EJ7lNkvAIM4741sOxQ1O3f9KUsWHTlRLT7UgNQu3OG1DpmeiK7V4YAMoNfB0g52mr9R80HnIhuHQ8WI48MGxTW3I7v5PDF6RWUwvo6JOg-eHehUfe1fuIseq1kGv9y7sXXzKp7CTlAKRlbx3lDbYrEU8Cfr5HNTVjbrsC5pxYOoCyF5wW9DWrZ9m-VfaKG6FrcBN0HnIcuK2f0pmtKd57E0qGxQZLA_nd0LRV9AW9jMzSJptgJA8Olac8NfDT5W8QEe_CI87blXqlra_ZGzgdxgnbm2v03TsZi5gZ34qUzX9dV13DT6acR7pPcv8rdQI0iIbMz36a010ystDHJJ9hUd7v4VIhh
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_uLW3YTBmLtWoo91JBCTW&tk=Ap4z9uW5Uyhu9y__ePszcfrCEJjZ_qh8EEkQe6jhQq7WTbT8trK_SSn6BdjpuVcpnM2KKC8nbMj5IXq9tOC5JqAbMz_jq9zCwbb7-fSi2YCG-wOkW_KvDyuIQemGGkS_nhBW3RSLGxfycOl7uR6CqCkRBL2sTo7l0DW3LHco8LZGkWl49ghJMX_WRVX_jxiQm_XCqYDEqVDcadWdzIBPls2-LDicKiepsw9HNgobvetdFy9OI337Z8rAtzTSX13fc9wGqbMp7X_3gly_945o34OmsLqv39goxnp83bQLrGFjShwcNQI0ANXK1B9GqsX0--kv59G0dYzDGjSORJZdFeFlzfnniltKmnmlP3mQm5wJQ3XS5w9bjVd89zlVXDn9v3Cojfs5O2DMcl0Gxb_CRIRuj0z506alPsdqn-RgzHc8niuFe2qajpawyRnzLT5QLCqgCD17Wehkk1ZrecD3KyxLRqg88OioKi4O56o_XJ_5FsMyjEj0C-KKBTBpGLOOjwiIp81GyKfBxZyVYkrMFLpD91xNrEOyCLQW9mONCKNh7dfrQz-5UM-lHxp_rJZglGLhpGknIFxnfL29N_YIy26-Y1z-kO2Hx4K7DOTngM4UKwjQ7SUjIeK4h4hMjLWo5sdKNUoJaapv3xVqjvGlzaMi5xZyWkPpbQx2KBb9dICyBsXDfX4dXyJvDIVV3CD-P92qyX0yZpve7iXxAzI-bQ
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_uLW3YTBmLtWoo91JBCTW&tk=Ap4z9uW5Uyhu9y__ePszcfrCEJjZ_qh8EEkQe6jhQq7WTbT8trK_SSn6BdjpuVcpnM2KKC8nbMj5IXq9tOC5JqAbMz_jq9zCwbb7-fSi2YCG-wOkW_KvDyuIQemGGkS_nhBW3RSLGxfycOl7uR6CqCkRBL2sTo7l0DW3LHco8LZGkWl49ghJMX_WRVX_jxiQm_XCqYDEqVDcadWdzIBPls2-LDicKiepsw9HNgobvetdFy9OI337Z8rAtzTSX13fc9wGqbMp7X_3gly_945o34OmsLqv39goxnp83bQLrGFjShwcNQI0ANXK1B9GqsX0--kv59G0dYzDGjSORJZdFeFlzfnniltKmnmlP3mQm5wJQ3XS5w9bjVd89zlVXDn9v3Cojfs5O2DMcl0Gxb_CRIRuj0z506alPsdqn-RgzHc8niuFe2qajpawyRnzLT5QLCqgCD17Wehkk1ZrecD3KyxLRqg88OioKi4O56o_XJ_5FsMyjEj0C-KKBTBpGLOOjwiIp81GyKfBxZyVYkrMFLpD91xNrEOyCLQW9mONCKNh7dfrQz-5UM-lHxp_rJZglGLhpGknIFxnfL29N_YIy26-Y1z-kO2Hx4K7DOTngM4UKwjQ7SUjIeK4h4hMjLWo5sdKNUoJaapv3xVqjvGlzaMi5xZyWkPpbQx2KBb9dICyBsXDfX4dXyJvDIVV3CD-P92qyX0yZpve7iXxAzI-bQ
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_uLW3YTBmLtWoo91JBCTW&tk=5joevCn2TzNwHzIDqqWSLAkUFSVcy1tazbCGmPfJ-20BdtxsPA_W3g6EnWEI93QBbYfZSFL8Lq281nPMR_g_fq3m-wWLTeL0bGYEAcsljAAcgMY53KTV_di7ev468_oD_uOTiDhzgyjKOAvcHqZtefaLZy4of12U3bSDugBgsepUCJLJMpxwC1LlmeBHTFN7MfAddHtmTPRlUeJ4feazaLhUw1vwsjxzbX5EAqtd6D6VT3ga0_GmKyXBPdSfEsU0X8VKUZdUR2GxioiRxvkWA9_YgnoWqq-rUuKXslOX8ni9-jTdvOsQGwgxKqCa1_P71KA9OYb8xKh7OvHLzUtqN6fXssagXVyz74EJ7lNkvAIM4741sOxQ1O3f9KUsWHTlRLT7UgNQu3OG1DpmeiK7V4YAMoNfB0g52mr9R80HnIhuHQ8WI48MGxTW3I7v5PDF6RWUwvo6JOg-eHehUfe1fuIseq1kGv9y7sXXzKp7CTlAKRlbx3lDbYrEU8Cfr5HNTVjbrsC5pxYOoCyF5wW9DWrZ9m-VfaKG6FrcBN0HnIcuK2f0pmtKd57E0qGxQZLA_nd0LRV9AW9jMzSJptgJA8Olac8NfDT5W8QEe_CI87blXqlra_ZGzgdxgnbm2v03TsZi5gZ34qUzX9dV13DT6acR7pPcv8rdQI0iIbMz36a010ystDHJJ9hUd7v4VIhh
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_uLW3YTBmLtWoo91JBCTW&tk=5joevCn2TzNwHzIDqqWSLAkUFSVcy1tazbCGmPfJ-20BdtxsPA_W3g6EnWEI93QBbYfZSFL8Lq281nPMR_g_fq3m-wWLTeL0bGYEAcsljAAcgMY53KTV_di7ev468_oD_uOTiDhzgyjKOAvcHqZtefaLZy4of12U3bSDugBgsepUCJLJMpxwC1LlmeBHTFN7MfAddHtmTPRlUeJ4feazaLhUw1vwsjxzbX5EAqtd6D6VT3ga0_GmKyXBPdSfEsU0X8VKUZdUR2GxioiRxvkWA9_YgnoWqq-rUuKXslOX8ni9-jTdvOsQGwgxKqCa1_P71KA9OYb8xKh7OvHLzUtqN6fXssagXVyz74EJ7lNkvAIM4741sOxQ1O3f9KUsWHTlRLT7UgNQu3OG1DpmeiK7V4YAMoNfB0g52mr9R80HnIhuHQ8WI48MGxTW3I7v5PDF6RWUwvo6JOg-eHehUfe1fuIseq1kGv9y7sXXzKp7CTlAKRlbx3lDbYrEU8Cfr5HNTVjbrsC5pxYOoCyF5wW9DWrZ9m-VfaKG6FrcBN0HnIcuK2f0pmtKd57E0qGxQZLA_nd0LRV9AW9jMzSJptgJA8Olac8NfDT5W8QEe_CI87blXqlra_ZGzgdxgnbm2v03TsZi5gZ34qUzX9dV13DT6acR7pPcv8rdQI0iIbMz36YUw5ikrQHsyU1nYZLj9nWS
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_uLW3YTBmLtWoo91JBCTW&tk=5joevCn2TzNwHzIDqqWSLAkUFSVcy1tazbCGmPfJ-20BdtxsPA_W3g6EnWEI93QBbYfZSFL8Lq281nPMR_g_fq3m-wWLTeL0bGYEAcsljAAcgMY53KTV_di7ev468_oD_uOTiDhzgyjKOAvcHqZtefaLZy4of12U3bSDugBgsepUCJLJMpxwC1LlmeBHTFN7MfAddHtmTPRlUeJ4feazaLhUw1vwsjxzbX5EAqtd6D6VT3ga0_GmKyXBPdSfEsU0X8VKUZdUR2GxioiRxvkWA9_YgnoWqq-rUuKXslOX8ni9-jTdvOsQGwgxKqCa1_P71KA9OYb8xKh7OvHLzUtqN6fXssagXVyz74EJ7lNkvAIM4741sOxQ1O3f9KUsWHTlRLT7UgNQu3OG1DpmeiK7V4YAMoNfB0g52mr9R80HnIhuHQ8WI48MGxTW3I7v5PDF6RWUwvo6JOg-eHehUfe1fuIseq1kGv9y7sXXzKp7CTlAKRlbx3lDbYrEU8Cfr5HNTVjbrsC5pxYOoCyF5wW9DWrZ9m-VfaKG6FrcBN0HnIcuK2f0pmtKd57E0qGxQZLA_nd0LRV9AW9jMzSJptgJA8Olac8NfDT5W8QEe_CI87blXqlra_ZGzgdxgnbm2v03TsZi5gZ34qUzX9dV13DT6acR7pPcv8rdQI0iIbMz36YwQAe-wEHeEM117X13qeYH
https://optout.rtbhouse.com/?utm_source=optout_icon&oot=_vjYOUpuXKbEcZmhO4MX0OzFYAI-H9-h2fju9mubjo7drX4nlfjncoK5I6U-OmZIDfE6rFfgZmWNkkrdqOU2gTarUdu_Gc6NTYkCiGRM9mo&dsa_show=&dsa_behalf=
https://www.politico.com/


There’s a solution waiting in the wings. Charging drivers for the miles they

traverse could easily replace the roughly $80 billion in revenue that state and

federal gas taxes produce annually. The problem is getting elected officials to
put that plan into action.

Gas taxes are among the most politically risky issues elected officials can wade

into, and few — on the state or the federal level — are willing to put their

weight behind proposals to charge drivers to use public roads.

“It is certainly the third-rail issue here,” said Democratic Sen. Dave Cortese,

chair of the California Senate’s Transportation Committee. “That all tends to

rear its ugly head whenever anybody even talks about gas tax increases or this
issue of a potential replacement for it.”

As more EVs hit the road, the logistics of ditching gas taxes will only become more difficult. | Rich
Pedroncelli/AP

California is hardly alone — a politically diverse set of states, including

Minnesota, Oregon, Utah, New Hampshire and Virginia, is also confronting a

loss in revenue thanks to the EV transition. State lawmakers know a fiscal cliff

is looming, but the vast majority of them can’t muster the political will to deal

with it.

Transportation experts say it’s a problem elected officials need to be thinking

about now, even as the electric vehicle transition is still nascent in most states.

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

2/9

https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_tWXuTgkIEase7qyf46J8&tk=Bdl2umiLjYO80ip98fnwBLAYqaRZgV2R6s_IwKqWw_xGzkpCEEBuApI-blKLVdmmJbmHNWidx7bYIkhWn6wRs-F51oHkx1JZGAObmSQ02oLrwmewoSAW5jT6HfGGCzCLwXJCEBb5ExkiHt7V75Sc1ZY7ov1hPTLCEN0N8-sMT8g90FfPQA5y6Nt-jU4lN1Ie6itffJYLqCBkgc-3iJKOTbQSW_fWfs5BxI1BGX9UnFg0zf8of4tiiEwCEw6Q095yIUoBFDEkuG09MooWzXKb4AI3xuacK_LYZlIBR7uw9oh-3Hpw7yiuwEloWw1IF7ygvZtlcA_ZjmtxF9vjfEDBAB486LsXlVfmya7P5M5MJjkJPTIjQ8QhOQiV7vKBUpnApSGmRBMejR296i5csO9W6Ej4wJ4kCU5T7N4XKVgPEapzetpUDFj2_44g6ugX2UddJ7YiKrtXSR-ejUdRawVWhzyaoeicp-EB0aH9FDRZuUuaLOwpWgdmf-lcXbkOXSoso5xbRW2sRbrO0X2k9zRmjw
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_tWXuTgkIEase7qyf46J8&tk=tnnobQ_fbx8wgixfXPKeIpVtU6KicT--QIXnTlzvPyibZXkJB6VOvaXg9p84JxPMzKCW4iNYi0UB11baDDxCjBeeQOWJ9Dzz5E4hMsTdcLTg6ZuY9fBqcy5i1eRqPd-b50AU5FWhuVJK5bc2EC4SgVPrzD7hNN_ELfyYZdZB1qKG8KrhJ-9fyWrqdcpKwrSVh4S3BJU-SXU_D0YhC7czhD0WtkNeAXGiSP55xhTMNsTaVlY9JpX_zh80U_I4Pdr4r5-ZoAWlYpHc6dul1dNt6BR6o4mN1UV7iPbsoKApmfoRK4RzjN44rS62xZjMz1TUFCRbKBhOmyTAzdsPJ5Jtepg56xYVErlu7rpgsGDec2Y996fZqJ_8Q3hRlaCbJBLQarS_9xJIdFplHAvT65TL7uHDb5CQjS7FsTI2saHnQlpn7x1p__1T6Pgf2uKdrsnN9Kq8O1RUy_QfIoo40LYb0RFfBGqK1zHnP8LYnffCvPBS2dUz_twlBZXvUcr-jQtm
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_tWXuTgkIEase7qyf46J8&tk=tnnobQ_fbx8wgixfXPKeIpVtU6KicT--QIXnTlzvPyibZXkJB6VOvaXg9p84JxPMzKCW4iNYi0UB11baDDxCjBeeQOWJ9Dzz5E4hMsTdcLTg6ZuY9fBqcy5i1eRqPd-b50AU5FWhuVJK5bc2EC4SgVPrzD7hNN_ELfyYZdZB1qKG8KrhJ-9fyWrqdcpKwrSVh4S3BJU-SXU_D0YhC7czhD0WtkNeAXGiSP55xhTMNsTaVlY9JpX_zh80U_I4Pdr4r5-ZoAWlYpHc6dul1dNt6BR6o4mN1UV7iPbsoKApmfoRK4RzjN44rS62xZjMz1TUFCRbKBhOmyTAzdsPJ5Jtepg56xYVErlu7rpgsGDec2Y996fZqJ_8Q3hRlaCbJBLQarS_9xJIdFplHAvT65TL7uHDb5CQjS7FsTI2saHnQlpn7x1p__1T6Pgf2uKdrsnN9Kq8O1RUy_QfIoo40LYb0RFfBGqK1zHnP8LYnffCvPBS2dUz_twlBZXvUcr-jQtm
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_tWXuTgkIEase7qyf46J8&tk=tnnobQ_fbx8wgixfXPKeIpVtU6KicT--QIXnTlzvPyibZXkJB6VOvaXg9p84JxPMzKCW4iNYi0UB11baDDxCjBeeQOWJ9Dzz5E4hMsTdcLTg6ZuY9fBqcy5i1eRqPd-b50AU5FWhuVJK5bc2EC4SgVPrzD7hNN_ELfyYZdZB1qKG8KrhJ-9fyWrqdcpKwrSVh4S3BJU-SXU_D0YhC7czhD0WtkNeAXGiSP55xhTMNsTaVlY9JpX_zh80U_I4Pdr4r5-ZoAWlYpHc6dul1dNt6BR6o4mN1UV7iPbsoKApmfoRK4RzjN44rS62xZjMz1TUFCRbKBhOmyTAzdsPJ5Jtepg56xYVErlu7rpgsGDec2Y996fZqJ_8Q3hRlaCbJBLQarS_9xJIdFplHAvT65TL7uHDb5CQjS7FsTI2saHnQlpn7x1p__1T6Pgf2uKdrsnN9Kq8O1RUy_QfIoo40LYb0RFfBGqK1zHnP8LYnffCvPDJKwhWyEJB2CXkIitciE8t
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20240814_tWXuTgkIEase7qyf46J8&tk=tnnobQ_fbx8wgixfXPKeIpVtU6KicT--QIXnTlzvPyibZXkJB6VOvaXg9p84JxPMzKCW4iNYi0UB11baDDxCjBeeQOWJ9Dzz5E4hMsTdcLTg6ZuY9fBqcy5i1eRqPd-b50AU5FWhuVJK5bc2EC4SgVPrzD7hNN_ELfyYZdZB1qKG8KrhJ-9fyWrqdcpKwrSVh4S3BJU-SXU_D0YhC7czhD0WtkNeAXGiSP55xhTMNsTaVlY9JpX_zh80U_I4Pdr4r5-ZoAWlYpHc6dul1dNt6BR6o4mN1UV7iPbsoKApmfoRK4RzjN44rS62xZjMz1TUFCRbKBhOmyTAzdsPJ5Jtepg56xYVErlu7rpgsGDec2Y996fZqJ_8Q3hRlaCbJBLQarS_9xJIdFplHAvT65TL7uHDb5CQjS7FsTI2saHnQlpn7x1p__1T6Pgf2uKdrsnN9Kq8O1RUy_QfIoo40LYb0RFfBGqK1zHnP8LYnffCvPDuzaipbBH6qF5MWICRtpgO
https://optout.rtbhouse.com/?utm_source=optout_icon&oot=4_3jKjQsWp-Hi1QAoYUU7wuqXzI7AeKdIFqY-4k9zIfUvfLTHaBalAi2FeS6Y7eTmfwrt7hcmKu2V_dYHRmTcGQKzzpKSZb9ZEo5r6vJ1cg&dsa_show=&dsa_behalf=


As more EVs hit the road, the logistics of ditching gas taxes will only become

The future is approaching most rapidly in California, where Gov. Gavin
Newsom’s goal to end the sale of new gas-powered cars by 2035 is projected to

produce a 64 percent — or $5 billion — decline in gas taxes over the next

decade. EVs make up about 5 percent of all cars on the road and a quarter of

new car sales — and aren’t paying their full share of road taxes. California

already charges EVs a fee of $118 per year, but it’s only enough to make up
about a fifth of the amount drivers would have paid at the pump.

California Democrats still feel the sting from the last time they tinkered with

gas prices, a 12-cent-per-gallon hike in 2017. Weathered billboards still dot

rural highways in Republican areas blaming state Democrats for raising gas

prices. That vote resulted in a recall campaign led by the Republican Party and
anti-tax groups that ousted state Sen. Josh Newman, who represents a

competitive district in Orange County.

Newman reclaimed the seat in 2020, but said his experience is what every

lawmaker fears. He blamed the recall on a lack of voter education, and said a

road-user charge could face a similar backlash if people don’t understand why

a change is happening.

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

3/9

https://www.lao.ca.gov/reports/2023/4821/ZEV-Impacts-on-Transportation-121323.pdf
https://www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/zero-emission-vehicle-and-infrastructure-statistics-collection/light
https://laist.com/news/kpcc-archive/state-senator-in-danger-of-recall-based-on-prelimi
https://www.politico.com/series/states/the-fifty/?cid=fifty_m
https://www.politico.com/series/states/the-fifty/?cid=fifty_m


“It’s hard for me to envision a smooth transition to a system where Californians

get a bill in the mail that says, ‘You drove 1400 miles last month, you owe $140

bucks,’” Newman said. “People would lose their minds.”

A national problem

All states rely on a mix of state and federal gas revenue — along with vehicle
registration fees and local sales taxes — to build and maintain America’s

extensive roadways and public transit systems.

The revenue generated from those taxes steadily increased as car ownership

exploded, but transportation experts say it has been apparent since the 1970s

that increased vehicle fuel efficiency would eventually shift that curve

That trend is now being supercharged as 16 states have adopted all or part of

California’s stronger-than-federal regulations — which call for 68 percent of

new cars to be zero-emission by 2030 — and the Biden administration has

instituted federal fuel efficiency standards that are expected to make two-thirds

of vehicles sold in the United States either fully electric or hybrid electric- and
gasoline-powered vehicles by 2032.

The shift to electric vehicles has been faster in Democratic states that have

incentivized EV purchasing as a tool to fight climate change, but conservative

lawmakers aren’t immune to gas revenue declines as efficient hybrids are

increasingly popular.

“Looking to the future, we could see that it was cutting into the funding,” said

Republican Utah Rep. Kay Christofferson, who spearheaded the launch of a

voluntary road-user fee in 2020 that’s one of the few active programs around

the country. “We thought if things are moving that fast, we’ve got to get ahead

of this and understand it.”

Attempts by lawmakers in Minnesota and New Hampshire to pass road use

legislation have failed amid concerns about cost and data privacy.

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

4/9

https://www.politico.com/news/2024/03/21/biden-electric-car-rule-voters-00148440#:~:text=Under%20the%20final%20rule%2C%20automakers,hybrid%20electric%20vehicles%20by%202032.
https://www.politico.com/news/2024/03/21/biden-electric-car-rule-voters-00148440#:~:text=Under%20the%20final%20rule%2C%20automakers,hybrid%20electric%20vehicles%20by%202032.
https://www.autosinnovate.org/posts/papers-reports/Get%20Connected%20EV%20Quarterly%20Report%202024%20Q1.pdf
https://www.way.com/blog/when-it-comes-to-this-democrats-and-republicans-are-on-the-same-page/
https://www.way.com/blog/when-it-comes-to-this-democrats-and-republicans-are-on-the-same-page/


While drivers pay for gas at the pump, the actual taxes are collected from storage facilities that hold fuel before it’s trucked to gas
stations. | Justin Sullivan/Getty Images

Minnesota state Rep. Steve Elkins, a Democrat who previously worked as a

transportation economist, plans to reintroduce his proposal next year to

establish a per-mile fee for electric vehicles after four failed attempts. He said
the legislation had caused concerns about the privacy implications of tracking

drivers’ movements and pushback from EV advocates angry over new fees, but

also that his fellow lawmakers questioned the need to act. Less than 1 percent

of registered cars in Minnesota are EVs, though the state has a goal of 65

percent by 2040.

“If we wait until there’s 100,000 or 200,000 EVs on the road, and have to do a
big bang implementation, there’s a much bigger risk of failure,” he said.

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

5/9



Most states are still trying to raise gas taxes more or raise fees on EV owners.

Nearly three dozen states have approved gas tax increases and additional fees

specifically for EV owners over the last decade to offset revenue shortfalls —
but not at high enough levels to reverse long-term declines as more drivers skip

the pump.

Those that have tried to transition are mostly in the voluntary stage. Utah,

Oregon and Virginia’s programs have gotten good feedback from participants.

But questions remain about how a much larger group of non self-selecting
drivers will respond to statewide mandates, as well as how state transportation

agencies can handle the administrative logistics.

Beyond voter appetite, state leaders will have to contend with potentially

massive increases in administrative costs that will come from shifting away

from gas taxes that are simple and inexpensive to collect. While drivers pay for
gas at the pump, the actual taxes are collected from storage facilities that hold

fuel before it’s trucked to gas stations. In California, for instance, there are only

32 of these facilities tax collectors have to deal with.

“Every dollar you raise from a gas tax, it costs less than a penny to administer it

in California,” said Alan Jenn, an assistant professor at UC Davis and expert in
road-user charges. “So imagine the administrative cost of going from that to

now collecting taxes from 40 million people.”

One way to save money, according to officials in Oregon and Utah, is to use

vehicles’ existing GPS and diagnostic systems to measure mileage, rather than

installing additional state-approved devices.

The federal 18.4-cent-per-gallon gas tax, which doesn’t adjust for inflation, has lost almost half its value
since it was last raised in 1993. | Justin Sullivan/Getty Images

The key to getting auto companies on board with sharing that information is

likely widespread adoption and pressure from states or a federal road-user
program. State lawmakers shouldn’t expect help from Congress any time soon.

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

6/9

https://www.ncsl.org/transportation/recent-legislative-actions-likely-to-change-gas-taxes#:~:text=Fuel%20Tax%20Legislation,-Since%202013%2C%2033&text=Minnesota%20also%20raised%20and%20indexed,and%20D.C.%20increased%20gas%20taxes.
https://www.politico.com/news/2024/08/14/ev-fees-states-energy-00168976
https://www.politico.com/news/2024/08/14/ev-fees-states-energy-00168976
https://www.lao.ca.gov/reports/2023/4821/ZEV-Impacts-on-Transportation-121323.pdf
https://www.politico.com/news/2024/08/14/ev-fees-states-energy-00168976
https://www.politico.com/news/2024/08/14/ev-fees-states-energy-00168976


The federal 18.4-cent-per-gallon gas tax, which doesn’t adjust for inflation, has

lost almost half its value since it was last raised in 1993. Congress has already

turned to tapping the country’s general fund to pay for transportation
expenses, and the Federal Highway Administration is expected to spend twice

as much money as it takes in by 2030, said Jeff Davis, a senior fellow with the

Eno Center for Transportation.

The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law championed by the Biden administration

included $10 million per year from 2022 through 2026 to fund a national road-

user pilot that hasn’t come to fruition. The law required the Department of
Transportation to establish an advisory board by February 2022, but it still

hasn’t been formed.

“No matter who is in the White House, it’s really challenging to deal with the

pilot program that is seen as exploring a tax increase,” said Garett Shrode, who

co-authored an Eno study on road-user fees.

Going it alone

That means it’s going to be up to states, which account for roughly a quarter of
overall transportation revenues, to chart their own paths. There are some signs

of movement.

Hawaii became the first state to approve a mandatory road-user charge last

summer after a similar proposal stalled the previous year. Messaging matters:

Democratic Sen. Chris Lee said lawmakers focused on communicating how the
program works, after the previous year’s debate stalled amid rural drivers

worried they could end up paying more and EV owners who believed the new

charge would be on top of an existing $50 registration fee.

“Everybody was upset and thought that was absolutely unfair, and they would

have been right if that had been true, but it wasn’t,” Lee said. “So going into
last year, we were very clear from the outset that this is a replacement, not an

additional tax.”

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

7/9

https://www.politico.com/news/2021/09/04/washington-driving-fee-509499
https://www.politico.com/news/2021/09/04/washington-driving-fee-509499
https://enotrans.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/Driving-Change-Advice-for-the-National-VMT-Fee-Pilot.pdf
https://hiruc.org/#:~:text=When%20will%20the%20road%20charge,pay%20a%20flat%20%2450%20fee.


Hawaii’s program, which will allow EV drivers to voluntarily sign up in 2025 in

exchange for waiving the registration free before becoming mandatory for EVs

in 2028 and all vehicles in 2033, included an education campaign where
360,000 drivers were mailed postcards showing how much they will pay in

road-user fees, a move possible because the state records odometer readings

annually.

That sort of messaging would be a challenge in states like Michigan and

Tennessee, which only record the number of miles driven when a title is
transferred. That lack of data will make it much harder to convince drivers in

those states that the transition from a gas tax to a road-user charge isn’t costing

them more.

“In order for this to be politically acceptable, it has to be an even trade,” Davis

said.

California’s Department of Transportation is launching its fourth pilot road-

user charge program this month, aimed at testing credit and debit payments

through a new state website.

California Assemblymember Lori Wilson, chair of her chamber’s
transportation committee, said she plans to hold informational hearings on the

issue next year and didn’t rule out the idea of authoring a road-use charge bill

in the future. Her committee staff estimate it would take six years to fully

switch off from the gas tax system.

“I think people are skeptical because they don’t understand the impacts of it,”
she said. “And you don’t want to be the person who touches a hot button and

then it goes wrong.”

F I L E D  U N D E R :  C A L I F O R N I A ,  G A S ,  O I L  A N D  G A S ,  G A S  P R I C E ,  E L E C T R I C  V E H I C L E S ,

8/14/24, 2:35 PM The dark side of the EV revolution: Road taxes - POLITICO

8/9

https://caroadcharge.com/about/faqs/#needToPay2024
https://www.politico.com/tag/california
https://www.politico.com/news/gas
https://www.politico.com/tag/oil-and-gas
https://www.politico.com/news/gas-price
https://www.politico.com/tag/electric-vehicles
https://www.politico.com/playbook


Energy

Toyota plansToyota plans
solid-statesolid-state
battery withbattery with
range of 900range of 900
miles per chargemiles per charge
by Stas Margaronis 4 hours ago

Toyota is developing a next-generation solid-
state battery that will have a range of 900 miles
per charge and is projected to be in commercial
development by 2027-2028, according to a
Toyota spokesperson.

The Toyota spokesperson told AJOT: “The solid-
state batteries are less dense, making them …
lighter than lithium-ion batteries, they will not
have any flammable components, they can be
charged faster and vehicles with solid-state
batteries are estimated to have a projected
range of around 1475 kilometers (917 miles).”

8/14/24, 3:00 PM Toyota plans solid-state battery with range of 900 miles per charge | AJOT.COM

https://www.ajot.com/insights/full/ai-toyota-plans-solid-state-battery-with-range-of-900-miles-per-charge 2/6

https://www.ajot.com/insights
https://www.ajot.com/insights
https://www.ajot.com/news/channel/energy
https://www.ajot.com/premium/author/58
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjss-FHywgJIfwIbLriuV7G9OPdQ7w4N4nzyg2-h2T9NBAP3grmTg-cxlw6XRHN5NgIlcOeQz043UPmXzHVO2HN4Ba-WfaneZ2cESJIfayNq8BtWLWvMxG6iQAG4sdw4i--xv6cP_a8p2U9B5uqDSZDsxf7o3UJHefZHcMWs9xXWYSB3uPFRjiY2ACnWH-HB6bO1K-kJvvcBj7foLsjfVeiDp0YJczakmgbY4v0llX-2meSEX6cPPK_XnZ63Ucp3HCQ9VM1pz1x3Dif2Dkdw6QK8Hl5HicMfB7tB1bHTRmMK2DrOQtw7x-NH_ofY3otDE81uGk5x3grQ3CIxDZs4Y1NgbsLCGMwZAeXkXbb1ik3-g_oElYRxSGU2TgRAPuR967uWJ&sai=AMfl-YQhFUF3VcQvbVAhD8rGayA_oppSQ1imICq0oCKoGiRVh7eRJ9cUgP1loHh-v0JyfXBJwWNBLbWF6l-lVLkPvgbFGfzc8mljA-oHgIKHBLsZVAyJ_0xMkjgxOYsdBA&sig=Cg0ArKJSzB6MZY3_7gC3&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&adurl=https://www.philaport.com/&nm=1
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/tiaca-air-cargo-forum
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/tiaca-air-cargo-forum
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/tiaca-air-cargo-forum
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/tiaca-air-cargo-forum
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/2024-iana-intermodal-expo
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/2024-iana-intermodal-expo
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/2024-iana-intermodal-expo
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/2024-iana-intermodal-expo
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/11th-maritime-salvage-casualty-response-conference
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/11th-maritime-salvage-casualty-response-conference
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/11th-maritime-salvage-casualty-response-conference
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/11th-maritime-salvage-casualty-response-conference


Toyota is currently developing a method for
mass production, “striving for commercialization
in 2027-2028.”

The difference between conventional batteries
such as lithium-ion batteries and the new solid-
state batteries is conventional batteries utilize
an electrolyte that is liquid and solid-state
batteries utilize an electrolyte made of solid
materials. Solid electrolytes perform better in
terms of stability, safety, and thermal
conductivity.

Technological
Breakthroughs
The Toyota representative explained: “Having
discovered a technological breakthrough that
overcomes the longstanding challenge of
battery durability Toyota is reviewing its
introduction to conventional HEVs (Hybrid
Electric Vehicles) and accelerating development
of batteries for BEVs (Battery Electric Vehicles),
for which expectations are rising.”

However, the company is pursuing a multi-
pronged approach: “Toyota is pursuing a multi-
pathway approach with its batteries. There are
certain challenges in expense in ramping up to
scale with the solid-state batteries, including
things like battery durability and costs. So, the
solid-state batteries will be introduced and

8/14/24, 3:00 PM Toyota plans solid-state battery with range of 900 miles per charge | AJOT.COM

3/6

https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/smart-maritime-network-meeting-toyko
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/smart-maritime-network-meeting-toyko
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/smart-maritime-network-meeting-toyko
https://www.ajot.com/events/event_details/smart-maritime-network-meeting-toyko
https://www.ajot.com/issues/issue/issue-767-breakbulk-quarterly-usmca-trade-logistics-real-estate-great-lakes-st-lawrence


commercialized for mass production (and)
developed over time.”

In the meantime, Toyota will be introducing its
next-generation lithium-ion battery for the next-
generation BEV to be introduced in 2026 which
will have a cruising range of 1,000 km or 621
miles: “We are developing a prismatic battery
with a focus on performance to install in such
cars.”

While increasing the energy density of the
battery, Toyota aims to increase the cruising
range by improving other vehicle efficiencies,
such as aerodynamics and weight reduction,
while at the same time reducing costs.

Battery Program
In an October 2023 media briefing, Koji Sato,
President and CEO, of Toyota Motor
Corporation, explained the strategy surrounding
the development of Toyota’s solid-state battery
program:

“Idemitsu Kosan and Toyota Motor Corporation
have agreed to collaborate on the mass
production of solid-state batteries. Specifically,
our two companies will combine their separate
efforts to mass-produce new materials and
establish a supply chain for solid electrolytes,
which hold the key to the commercialization of
solid-state batteries.

First, between 2027 and 2028, we will start to
produce solid-state batteries for use in battery
electric vehicles. We will then lay the foundation
for mass production …

And, looking ahead to the future of battery
technology, we are developing solid-state
batteries as an option beyond liquid batteries.
An advantage of solid-state batteries is that the
electrolyte is solid. This allows ions, which

8/14/24, 3:00 PM Toyota plans solid-state battery with range of 900 miles per charge | AJOT.COM

4/6



convey electricity, to move faster, thus enabling
shorter charging times, increased cruising
ranges, and higher power output. Solid-state
batteries are also characterized by being highly
stable because they are resistant to changes in
temperature and can robustly endure high
temperatures and high voltages.

In addition, as solid-state batteries are smaller
and more powerful, they will enable battery EVs
to meet a diverse range of needs, from sports
cars, which require high-power performance, to
commercial vehicles, which require frequent
quick recharging.”

The Challenge
Sato said that the big challenge in bringing
solid-state batteries into commercial
applications has been the issue of durability and
cracking. He said Idemitsu has solved this
problem: “Since 2013, our partner in working
together to solve this issue has been Idemitsu,
which was one of the first companies to conduct
the development of elemental technologies for
solid-state batteries. One such elemental
technology is a highly flexible, adhesive, and
crack-resistant solid electrolyte. Through
repeated trial and error and by combining the
material technologies of both companies, we
have been able to develop a crack-resistant
material that demonstrates high performance.
By combining this new solid electrolyte with the
Toyota Group's cathode and anode materials
and battery technologies, we are now on the
path toward achieving both performance and
durability in solid-state batteries.”

With this accomplishment, Sato said: “The key
theme for us going forward is mass production.”

8/14/24, 3:00 PM Toyota plans solid-state battery with range of 900 miles per charge | AJOT.COM

5/6


	Agenda
	Tab 1 - Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	Destruction of OTO Records
	Financial Statements for FY 2024 Budget Year
	FY 2024-2027 TIP Administrative Modification 7
	Annual Listing of Obligated Projects (ALOP)

	Tab 2 - Federal Funds Obligation Status Update
	Tab 3 - FRA Long Distance Service Study Resolution of Support
	Tab 4 - Congestion Management Process Evaluation
	Tab 5 - Program Management Plan/5310
	Tab 6 - TAP Project Schedule Extension
	Tab 7 - Trail and Sidewalk Project Funding Recommendation
	Tab 8 - Destination 2045 Amendment 7
	Tab 9 - FY 2025-2028 TIP Amendment One
	Tab 10 - Unfunded Needs List
	Tab 11 - Legislative Priorities
	Tab 12 - Safe Streets and Roads for All Update
	Tab 13 - Public Comment
	Tab 14 - Articles



